
May 18, 2023 

3:00 PM 

Welcome to the City of St. Petersburg City Council meeting. The public may address City 
Council in person.  

The public must attend the meeting in person to speak during public hearings or quasi-
judicial hearings.  If you are a person with a disability who needs an accommodation in 
order to participate in this meeting or have any questions, please contact the City Clerk’s 
Office at 893-7448. If you are deaf/hard of hearing and require the services of an interpreter, 
please call our TDD number, 892-5259, or the Florida Relay Service at 711, as soon as 
possible. The City requests at least 72 hours advance notice, prior to the scheduled meeting, 
for accommodations.

To assist the City Council in conducting the City’s business, we ask that you observe the 
following:

1. If you are speaking under the Public Hearings, Appeals or Open Forum sections of 
the agenda, please observe the time limits indicated on the agenda.

2. Placards and posters are not permitted in the Chamber. Applause is not permitted 
except in connection with Awards and Presentations.

3. Please do not address Council from your seat. If asked by Council to speak to an 
issue, please do so from the podium.

4. Please do not pass notes to Council during the meeting.

5. Please be courteous to other members of the audience by keeping side conversations 
to a minimum.

6. The Fire Code prohibits anyone from standing in the aisles or in the back of the 
room.

7. If other seating is available, please do not occupy the seats reserved for individuals 
who are deaf/hard of hearing.

The public can also attend the meeting in the following ways:
• Watch live on Channel 15 WOW!/Channel 641 Spectrum/Channel 20 Frontier FiOS 
• Watch live online at www.stpete.org/TV
• Listen and participate by dialing one of the following phone numbers 
 +1 312 626 6799 or 
 +1 646 876 9923 or 
 +1 253 215 8782 or 
 +1 301 715 8592 or 
 +1 346 248 7799 or 



2 

 +1 669 900 6833 and entering webinar ID: 975 6564 6765#
• Watch, listen, and participate on your computer, mobile phone, or other device 
 by visiting the following link: https://zoom.us/j/97565646765

The public can participate in the meeting by providing public comment for agenda items other than 
public hearings and quasi-judicial hearings in the following ways:

• If attending the Zoom meeting by computer or other device, use the “raise hand” button in 
the Zoom app.  
• If attending the Zoom meeting by phone only, enter *9 on the phone to use the “raise hand” 
feature.

The “raise hand” feature in the Zoom meeting indicates your desire to speak but does not allow 
you to speak immediately.  You must use the “raise hand” feature at the time the agenda item is 
addressed.  All “raised hands” will be lowered after each agenda item.  When it is your turn to 
speak, your microphone will be unmuted. At the conclusion of your comments or when you reach 
the three-minute limit, you will be muted.  Please be advised that at all times the chair has the 
authority and discretion to re-order agenda items, and in the event the meeting is disrupted by 
violations of the rules of decorum, to accept public comment by alternate means, including by 
email only.

Regardless of the method of participation used, normal rules for participation apply, including the 
three-minute limit on comments, the requirement that any presentation materials must be 
submitted to the City Clerk in advance of the meeting, and the rules of decorum. Public comments 
must be submitted before the public comment period has closed.



3 

May 18, 2023 

3:00 PM 

A. Meeting Called to Order and Roll Call.

Invocation and Pledge to the Flag of the United States of America.

B. Approval of Agenda with Additions and Deletions.

C. Consent Agenda (see attached)

Open Forum

The City Council receives public comment during Open Forum and on agenda items with 
limited exceptions consistent with Florida law.  All issues discussed under Open Forum must 
be limited to issues related to the City of St. Petersburg government. If you wish to address 
City Council on subjects other than public hearing or quasi-judicial items listed on the 
agenda, please sign up with the Clerk. Only City residents, owners of property in the City, 
owners of businesses in the City or their employees may speak during Open Forum.

If you wish to address City Council through the Zoom meeting, you must use the “raise 
hand” feature button in the Zoom app or enter *9 on your phone at the time the agenda item 
is addressed.   When it is your turn to speak, you will be unmuted and asked to state your 
name and address.  At the conclusion of your comments or when you reach the three-minute 
time limit, you will be muted.  All “raised hands” will be lowered after each agenda item.

Regardless of the method of participation used, normal rules apply, including the three-
minute time limit on comments, the requirement that any presentation materials must be 
submitted in advance of the meeting and the rules of decorum.  If live public comment is 
disrupted by violations of the rules of decorum, the chair is authorized to accept public 
comment by alternate means, including by email only.

D. Awards and Presentations

E. Reports

1. A Resolution of the City of St. Petersburg, Florida (City) approving an Interlocal

Agreement between the City and Manatee County Port Authority (Authority) regarding

collaboration on dredge material placement and seagrass mitigation efforts; authorizing

the City Attorneys Office to make non-substantive changes to the Interlocal Agreement;

authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute the Interlocal Agreement; and providing

an effective date.

2. A Resolution authorizing the Mayor or his designee to accept a Hazard Mitigation Grant

Program Award from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), through the

pass-through entity, the Florida Division of Emergency Management, at a maximum

reimbursement amount of $443,650; approving a supplemental appropriation in the

amount of $443,650 from the increase in the unappropriated balance of the Water

Resources Capital Projects Fund (4003), resulting from this grant funding, to the COS

Consol Building FY19 Project (16887); authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute

all documents necessary to effectuate the grant; and providing an effective date.

F. New Business

1. Respectfully requesting a referral to the Budget, Finance, and Taxation Committee to

discuss pre-funding during FY 23, a portion of the FY 24 Pension Fund contribution.

(Councilmember Gerdes- Staff Request)



4 

2. Respectfully requesting a referral to the Legislative Affairs and Intergovernmental

Relations Committee for a discussion on the impact of Senate Bill 250 on current city

ordinances and ordinances that are in the process at the time of passage. (Chair Gabbard)

3. Respectfully requesting a referral to the Public Services & Infrastructure Committee to

discuss the enforcement of driving without a license and potential diversion options.

(Councilmember Floyd)

G. Council Committee Reports

1. April 27, 2023 Youth & Family Services Committee - Action Item

(a) A Resolution Supporting the Provision of Legal Representation, Through Third-Party

Pro-Bono Legal Service Providers, to Tenants in the City Facing Potential Eviction

and Otherwise May Not Be Able to Afford Legal Representation.

H. Legal

1. A resolution approving the settlement of the lawsuit of William Hubbard,

Employee/Claimant vs. City of St. Petersburg, Employer and Commercial Risk

Management, Carrier/Servicing Agent, Claim No. C3690446 and providing an effective

date.

2. A resolution approving settlement of the lawsuit of Annette Carroll v. City of St.

Petersburg, Florida, Circuit Court for Pinellas County, Florida, Case No. 21-004365-CI,

and providing an effective date.

I. Public Hearings and Quasi-Judicial Proceedings - 5:01 P.M.

Public Hearings

NOTE:  The following Public Hearing items have been submitted for consideration by the City

Council.  If you wish to speak on any of the Public Hearing items, please obtain one of the

YELLOW cards from the containers on the wall outside of Council Chamber, fill it out as

directed, and present it to the Clerk.  You will be given 3 minutes ONLY to state your position

on any item but may address more than one item.

1. Confirming Preliminary Assessment for Building Securing Number LCA 1645

2. Confirming Preliminary Assessment for Building Securing Number SEC 1282

3. LDR 2022-06: A private-initiated application requesting a text amendment to the Land

Development Regulations: Ordinance 545-H, an Ordinance of the City of St. Petersburg,

Florida amending its Land Development Regulations; Amending Section 16.30.020.4 of

the City Code relating to the Adaptive Reuse of Historic Buildings Overlay; and providing

an effective date. (Legislative)

Quasi-Judicial Proceedings 

Swearing in of witnesses.  Representatives of City Administration, the applicant/appellant, 

opponents, and members of the public who wish to speak at the public hearing must declare 

that he or she will testify truthfully by taking an oath or affirmation in the following form: 

"Do you swear or affirm that the evidence you are about to give will be the truth, the 

whole truth, and nothing but the truth?" 



5 

The oath or affirmation will be administered prior to the presentation of testimony and will 

be administered in mass to those who wish to speak.  Persons who submit cards to speak 

after the administration of the oath, who have not been previously sworn, will be sworn prior 

to speaking.   For detailed procedures to be followed for Quasi-Judicial Proceedings, 

please see yellow sheet attached to this agenda. 

4. Ordinance 133-HL approving the owner-initiated designation of the Standard Oil Service

Station, located at 2439 4th Street South, as a Local Historic Landmark of the St.

Petersburg Register of Historic Places (City File 22-90300002). [Quasi-judicial]

5. A private initiated application for a 1.66-acre site, which consists of the entire eastern

facing block of 14th Street North between 7th and 5th Avenues North, just west of St.

Anthonys Hospital, requesting amendments to the Future Land Use and Official Zoning

maps. (Quasi-judicial)

(a) Ordinance 754-L, amending the Future Land Use Map from Planned Redevelopment

Residential (PR-R) to Residential Medium (RM) and from Planned Redevelopment

Residential (PR-R) to Planned Redevelopment Mixed Use (PR-MU); providing for repeal of

conflicting ordinances and provisions thereof; and providing an effective date.

(b) Ordinance 786-Z, amending the Official Zoning Map from Neighborhood Traditional - 2 (NT-

2) to Neighborhood Suburban Multifamily 1 (NSM-1) and from Neighborhood Traditional

Mixed Residential 1 (NTM-1) to Corridor Residential Traditional -1 (CRT-1); providing for

repeal of conflicting ordinances and provisions thereof; and providing an effective date.

J. Open Forum

K. Adjournment



6 

 

 

Consent Agenda A 

May 18, 2023 

 

NOTE:  The Consent Agenda contains normal, routine business items that are very likely to be approved by 

the City Council by a single motion.  Council questions on these items were answered prior to the meeting.  

Each Councilmember may, however, defer any item for added discussion at a later time. 

(Procurement) 

1. Approving the renewal of a one-year blanket purchase agreement and an increase in 

allocation with SP Plus Corporation, for shuttle bus services, for the Municipal Pier 

District, at an estimated annual cost of $950,000 per year, for a total contract amount of 

$1,963,000. 

2. Approving the renewal of a one-year blanket purchase agreement and an increase in 

allocation with Blue Crew Services, Inc., for cleaning and maintenance services, for the 

Municipal Pier District, at an estimated annual cost of $878,000 per year, for a total 

contract amount of $1,756,000. 

3. Approving the renewal of a one-year blanket purchase agreement and an increase in 

allocation with Covenant Security Solutions LLC, for security services, for the Municipal 

Pier District, at an estimated annual cost of $650,000 per year, for a total contract amount 

of $1,300,000. 

4. Approving a one-year blanket purchase agreement with Bank of America, N.A. for 

merchant credit card merchant processing and related services, including Automated 

Clearing House (“ACH”) transaction processing and account verification, and requesting a 

waiver of Procurement Code Section 2-209(b) pursuant to Procurement Code 2-222, to 

effectuate a one-year agreement at an estimated annual cost of $1,000,000. 

5. Approving a contract with Ric-Man Construction Florida, Inc. for progressive design 

build services for the Downtown Watermain Replacement Program; authorizing the 

Mayor, or his designee, to execute an agreement with Ric-Man Construction Florida, Inc. 

for pre-construction services in the amount of $876,078.89 (ECID Project No. 21058-111; 

Oracle No. 18011); and providing an effective date. 

(City Development) 

(Leisure Services) 

6. Approving a resolution authorizing the Mayor or his designee to accept additional funding 

in the amount of  $644,220 from the Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas, Inc. (ELC), 

which will be utilized to enhance programs provided by the Parks and Recreation 

Department; authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute all documents necessary to 



7 

receive this additions funding from ELC; approving a supplemental appropriation in the 

amount of $644,220 from the increase in the unappropriated balance of the General Fund 

(0001), resulting from these additional funds, to the Parks and Recreation Department, 

Administration Division (190-1573), FY23 ELC Stabilization Grant Project (19572); and 

providing an effective date. 

(Public Works) 

(Appointments) 

(Miscellaneous) 

7. A resolution approving an Amendment (“Plan Amendment”) to the City’s Local Housing 

Assistance Plan under the State Housing Initiatives Partnership (“SHIP”) Program for FY 

2021-2024 (“Current Plan”); authorizing the Mayor or his designee to accept a grant of 

$2,497,889 from the Florida Housing Finance Corporation (“FHFC”) for FY 2022/23 to 

fund the State Housing Initiatives Partnership (“SHIP”) Program for the purpose of 

providing affordable housing opportunities for extremely-low, very-low, low-, moderate-, 

and 140% (purchase assistance program only) income persons; and to expend funds in 

accordance with the current Plan, as amended, upon approval by FHFC; finding that five 

percent (5%) of the City’s SHIP allocation plus five (5%) percent of Program Income is 

insufficient to pay the administrative costs of the City’s SHIP Program; authorizing the 

use of up to ten percent (10%) of the City’s SHIP allocation plus ten (10%) of the City’s 

SHIP Program Income for administrative costs of the SHIP Program; authorizing the 

Mayor or his designee to execute the grant requirements with the FHFC as necessary to 

effectuate this transaction; and providing an effective date. 

 



8 

 
Consent Agenda B 

May 18, 2023 

 

NOTE:  The Consent Agenda contains normal, routine business items that are very likely to be approved by 

the City Council by a single motion.  Council questions on these items were answered prior to the meeting.  

Each Councilmember may, however, defer any item for added discussion at a later time. 

(Procurement) 

1. Approving an increase in allocation for the 4th of July fireworks display with Pyro 

Productions of Alabama, Inc., in the amount of $50,000, for a total contract amount of 

$271,250. 

2. Accepting a bid from Insight Public Sector, Inc. for Trend Micro support for 3,200 users 

and a deep discovery inspector appliance, for the Department of Technology Services at a 

total cost of $78,176.10.  

3. Accepting a proposal from Thompson Consulting Services LLC. for disaster related 

reimbursement assistance. 

(City Development) 

4. A resolution approving an agreement between the City of St. Petersburg, Florida (City) 

and Pinellas County, Florida for the City to purchase, install, and maintain parking meters 

for the Judicial County Building parking lot located on the northeast corner of the 

intersection of 1st Avenue North and 6th Street North at an initial cost not to exceed 

$17,000 and an estimated annual revenue to the City of $12,250 after the initial cost has 

been recouped; authorizing the City Attorney’s office to make non-substantive changes to 

the agreement; authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute the Agreement and all 

other necessary documents; and providing an effective date. 

5. Authorizing the Mayor, or his designee, to execute a License Agreement with the Police 

Athletic League of St. Petersburg, Inc., a Florida not-for-profit corporation, for the use of 

the Main Building located at 1450 - 16th Street North, St. Petersburg, within a portion of 

the City-owned Woodlawn Park for a period of three (3) years at an aggregate rent of 

$36.00; waiving the reserve for replacement requirement of City Council Resolution No. 

79-740A; and providing an effective date. (Requires affirmative vote of at least six (6) 

members of City Council.) 

(Leisure Services) 

(Public Works) 

6. A Resolution approving the five-year interlocal agreement (“Interlocal Agreement”) 

between the City of St. Petersburg (“City”) and Pinellas County (“County”) to provide for 

the reimbursement of costs for occasional modifications to the Recreational Water Quality 

Map on the Pinellas County Water Atlas website in an amount not to exceed $10,000; 



9 

authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute the Interlocal Agreement and all other 

documents necessary to effectuate this transaction; authorizing the City Attorney’s Office 

to make non-substantive changes to the Interlocal Agreement; and providing an effective 

date. 

7. A Resolution authorizing the Mayor or his designee to accept a Hazard Mitigation Grant 

Program Award from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), through the 

pass-through entity, the Florida Division of Emergency Management, at a maximum 

reimbursement amount of $443,650; approving a supplemental appropriation in the 

amount of $443,650 from the increase in the unappropriated balance of the Water 

Resources Capital Projects Fund (4003), resulting from this grant funding, to the COS 

Consol Building FY19 Project (16887); authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute 

all documents necessary to effectuate the grant; and providing an effective date. (MOVED 

TO REPORTS AS E-2) 

(Appointments) 

8. A resolution appointing HanH H. Tran and Christa Bruning as regular members to the 

Code Enforcement Board; and providing an effective date. 

(Miscellaneous) 

9. Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes (March 30, 2023) 

10. Approving a supplemental appropriation in the amount of $87,500 from the 

unappropriated balance of the General Capital Improvement Fund (3001) to the Marine 

Team Dive Equipment Project (19624) for replacement dive equipment for the Fire 

Rescue Department. 

11. Public Services & Infrastructure Committee Meeting Minutes (April 13, 2023) 

12. Budget, Finance, and Taxation Committee Meeting Minutes (April 27, 2023) 

13. Housing, Land Use, and Transportation Committee Meeting Minutes (April 13, 2023) 

 

 

 

 



10 

 

 
Note:  An abbreviated listing of upcoming MEETING AGENDA Council meetings. 

Economic & Workforce Development Committee 

Thursday, May 25, 2023, 8:30 a.m., City Council Chambers 

Budget, Finance & Taxation Committee 

Thursday, May 25, 2023, 10:30 a.m., City Council Chambers 

CRA/Agenda Review 

Thursday, May 25, 2023, 1:30 p.m., City Council Chambers 

Committee of the Whole 

Thursday, May 25, 2023, 2:00 p.m., City Council Chambers 

Joint Committee of the Whole/ Citizens Advisory Committee 

Thursday, May 25, 2023, 5:15 p.m., Conference Room 100 

City Council Meeting 

Thursday, June 1, 2023, 9:00 a.m., City Council Chambers 
 

 



11 

 
Board and Commission Vacancies 

Civil Service Board 

2 Regular Members 

((No term date limits)) 

Civil Service Board 

2 Alternate Members 

((No term date limits)) 

Nuisance Abatement Board 

2 Regular Members 

((Term expires 12/31/24 and 12/31/25)) 

Nuisance Abatement Board 

2 Alternate Members 

((Term expires 8/31/24 and 12/31/24)) 



12 

 PROCEDURES TO BE FOLLOWED FOR QUASI-JUDICIAL PROCEEDINGS: 

 1.  Anyone wishing to speak must fill out a yellow card and present the card to the Clerk. 
All speakers must be sworn prior to presenting testimony. No cards may be submitted after the 
close of Public Comment. Each party and speaker is limited to the time limits set forth herein 
and may not give their time to another speaker or party. Each party and speaker wishing to 
present handouts, photographs, presentation slides or any other materials (collectively, “Materials”) 
during a quasi-judicial proceeding must submit such Materials to the City Clerk no later than 24 
hours in advance of the applicable public hearing. Materials submitted after the deadline will not 
be accepted and may not be used.

2.  At any time during the proceeding, City Council members may ask questions of any speaker 
or party. The time consumed by Council Member questions and answers to such questions shall not 
count against the time frames allowed herein. Burden of proof: in all appeals, the Appellant bears the 
burden of proof; in rezoning and land use cases, the Property Owner or Applicant bears the burden of 
proof except in cases initiated by the City, in which event the City Administration bears the burden of 
proof; for all other applications, the Applicant bears the burden of proof. Waiver of Objection: at any 
time during the proceeding Council Members may leave the Council Chamber for short periods of 
time provided they continue to hear testimony by audio. If any party has an objection to a Council 
Member leaving the Chamber during the hearing, such objection must be made at the start of the 
hearing. If an objection is not made as required herein it shall be deemed to have been waived. 

3.  Reading of the Title of the Ordinance(s), if applicable. 

4.  Initial Presentation. Each party shall be allowed ten (10) minutes for their initial presentation. 
The order of initial presentations shall be:

 a. Presentation by City Administration. 
 b. Presentation by the Appellant followed by the Applicant, if different. If Appellant and 
Applicant are different entities, then each is allowed the allotted time for each part of these 
procedures. 
 c. Presentation by Opponent. If anyone wishes to utilize the initial presentation time provided 
for an Opponent, said person shall register as an Opponent with the City Clerk at least one week prior 
to the scheduled public hearing or within 48 hours after the City staff report for the public hearing 
has been published (whichever is later). If more than one person registers to utilize the initial 
presentation time provided for an Opponent, the registered persons shall attempt to agree on a single 
representative to participate as the Opponent in the proceeding. If the persons cannot agree on a 
single representative, then each person (or person’s representative) shall share equally the time 
allotted to the Opponent for each part of these procedures. If there is an Appellant who is not the 
Applicant or Property Owner, then no Opponent is allowed. If a Property Owner who is not the 
Appellant or the Applicant opposes the Application and utilizes any part of the time available to the 
Property Owner to make an initial presentation, the Opponent shall not be permitted to make an 
initial presentation (but shall be provided an opportunity for cross-examination and rebuttal/closing).
 d. If the Property Owner is neither the Appellant nor the Applicant, they shall be allowed the 
allotted time for each part of these procedures and shall have the opportunity to speak last in each 
part of these procedures so that they have the opportunity to address what all the interested parties 
have presented. 



5.  Public Comment. Upon conclusion of the initial presentations, members of the public may 
speak for not more than three (3) minutes each. Speakers shall limit their testimony to information 
relevant to the ordinance or application and criteria for review.

6.  Cross Examination. Each party shall be allowed a total of five (5) minutes for cross 
examination, which includes the time consumed by both questions and answers. Each party who 
opposes the application may only cross examine any witness who previously testified in support of the 
application. Each party who supports the application may only cross examine any witness who 
previously testified in opposition to the application. The questioning party is not permitted to make 
any statements, only to ask questions that are directly related to the testimony or evidence presented. 
All questions shall be addressed to the Chair and then (at the discretion of the Chair) asked either by 
the Chair or by the party conducting the cross examination of the appropriate witness. One (1) 
representative of each party shall conduct the cross examination.  If anyone wishes to utilize the time 
provided for cross examination and rebuttal as an Opponent, and no one has previously registered with 
the City Clerk as an Opponent, said individual shall notify the City Clerk prior to the beginning of 
initial presentations for the applicable public hearing.  If no one gives such notice, there shall be no 
cross examination or rebuttal by Opponent(s).  The order of cross examination shall be:

 a. Cross examination by City Administration. 
 b. Cross examination by Opponents, if applicable. 
 c. Cross examination by Appellant followed by Applicant, followed by Property Owner, if 
different. 

7.  Rebuttal/Closing. Each party shall have five (5) minutes to provide a closing argument and/or 
rebuttal. The order of rebuttal/closing shall be: 

 a. Rebuttal/Closing by City Administration. 
 b. Rebuttal/Closing by Opponent, if applicable. 
 c. Rebuttal/Closing by Applicant followed by the Appellant, if different, followed by Property 
Owner, if different. 

00630194.doc - revised 7/7/2022

13 



14 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: A Resolution of the City of St. 

Petersburg, Florida (City) approving an Interlocal Agreement between the City and Manatee County 

Port Authority (Authority) regarding collaboration on dredge material placement and seagrass 

mitigation efforts; authorizing the City Attorneys Office to make non-substantive changes to the 

Interlocal Agreement; authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute the Interlocal Agreement; 

and providing an effective date. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



E-1

E-1



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
 

Report 
 

Meeting of May 18, 2023 
 

TO: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair and Members of City Council 
 
SUBJECT: A Resolution of the City of St. Petersburg, Florida (“City”) approving an Interlocal 
Agreement between the City and Manatee County Port Authority (“Authority”) regarding 
collaboration on dredge material placement and seagrass mitigation efforts; authorizing the City 
Attorney’s Office to make non-substantive changes to the Interlocal Agreement; authorizing the 
Mayor or his designee to execute the Interlocal Agreement; and providing an effective date. 
 
EXPLANATION: The City owns submerged lands in Tampa Bay adjacent to North Shore Park 
where the City intends to construct a seagrass mitigation bank (“Bank”), and the City is seeking to 
place fill material in a 32-acre (more or less) dredge hole (“Dredge Hole”) located within a portion 
of the Bank. In order to achieve success for the Bank, the Dredge Hole needs to be filled to an 
elevation that can support seagrass growth. The Authority is undertaking its Berth 4 Extension 
project which will extend the existing vessel docking facility 600 feet northward and deepening 
adjacent waterways, which is anticipated to generate a sufficient quantity of material to fill the 
City’s Dredge Hole in one event.  
 
The Parties desire to collaborate on a project where the Authority deposits its material generated 
from the Berth 4 Extension project into the Dredge Hole and, in return, the Authority may receive 
up to six (6) seagrass mitigation credits from the City. To memorialize the terms and conditions 
under which they desire to proceed in pursuing the Project, the Parties executed a Memorandum 
of Understanding on July 15, 2022 (and which was approved by City Council prior to execution) 
and agreed to endeavor in good faith to work toward executing a mutually agreeable and binding 
contract for the Project.  
 
The Parties now desire to enter into the attached Interlocal Agreement, to further clarify 
responsibilities of each Party related to the Project. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve the attached Resolution authorizing the Mayor or his designee 
to execute the Interlocal Agreement between the City and the Authority. 
 
COST/FUNDING/ASSESSMENT:  Neither party will owe monetary payment to the other Party 
due to activities under this interlocal agreement.  Funding for city expenses related to this project 
have been previously appropriated in the General Fund (0001), Engineering and Capital 
Improvement Department, Design Division (130.1349).  
 
ATTACHMENTS: Resolution 
   Interlocal Agreement 



1 
 

Resolution No. 2023-____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG, 
FLORIDA APPROVING AN INTERLOCAL 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY AND MANATEE 
COUNTY PORT AUTHORITY REGARDING 
COLLABORATION ON DREDGE MATERIAL 
PLACEMENT AND SEAGRASS MITIGATION 
EFFORTS; AUTHORIZING THE CITY ATTORNEY’S 
OFFICE TO MAKE NON-SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES 
TO THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT; 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO 
EXECUTE THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 WHEREAS, since 2016, the City of St. Petersburg (City) has been working to 
establish a first-of-its-kind municipal seagrass mitigation bank (Bank) on the 
submerged lands it owns adjacent to North Shore Park in Tampa Bay; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in its efforts to establish the Bank, the City has sought the required 
permits from State and Federal agencies; and 
 
 WHEREAS, while the City has obtained the necessary State permits, the Federal 
permit process through the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) remains on-going; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, central to the success of the Bank and maximizing new seagrass 
growth is the filling in of a decades-old dredge hole located adjacent to the beach 
at North Shore Park; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Manatee County Port Authority (Authority) is in the planning 
stage of an expansion project that will result in the need to dispose of approximately 
470,000 cubic yards of dredge material; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and Authority mutually desire to explore the opportunity for 
the City to receive the dredge material from the Authority’s expansion project and 
place said material in the dredge hole located off of North Shore Park; and 
 
 WHEREAS, as both the City and Authority finalize Federal permits for their 
respective projects, the timing of the availability of the Port’s dredge material is a 
factor being considered by the Corps in its issuance of the permits; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority seeks seagrass mitigation credits from the City to satisfy 
permit requirements related to anticipated impacts to seagrass during its expansion 
project; and 



2 
 

 
 WHEREAS, in exchange for three (3) seagrass mitigation credits upon issuance 
by the permitting agencies, and three (3) additional future credits upon the final 
construction and demonstration of ecological success (i.e., new seagrass growth) 
within the Bank, the City will receive the dredge material from the Authority, who will 
also be responsible for its transport across Tampa Bay, placement in the Bank, and 
associated risks thereto; and 
 
 WHEREAS, City Administration believes that given the timing of the availability 
of the dredge material and the Authority’s tasks associated with the transport and 
placement of the material, plus the value of the approximately 470,000 cubic yards 
of fill, six (6) seagrass mitigation credits is fair consideration from the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to memorialize the terms and conditions under which they 
desired to proceed in pursuing this opportunity, the City and Authority executed a 
Memorandum of Understanding on July 15, 2022, at which point the negotiation of 
the Interlocal Agreement attached hereto was able to commence; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority approved the Interlocal Agreement at its April 25, 2023 
meeting. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida that the Interlocal Agreement between the Manatee County Port 
Authority and the City of St. Petersburg regarding collaboration on dredge material 
placement and seagrass mitigation efforts is hereby approved. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Attorney’s Office is authorized to make 
non-substantive changes to the Interlocal Agreement. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to execute 
the Interlocal Agreement. 
 
 This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
Approved by: 
 
 
/s/: Michael J. Dema      __________________   
Legal Department        Engineering 
00678814.docx 
 
 
 



 

Page 1 of 21 
 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN CITY OF SAINT PETERSBURG, FLORIDA, AND MANATEE COUNTY PORT 

AUTHORITY REGARDING COLLABORATION ON DREDGED MATERIAL 

PLACEMENT AND SEAGRASS MITIGATION EFFORTS 

 

This Interlocal Agreement (“Agreement”), is made and entered into as of the ______of 

________________, 2023, by and between Manatee County Port Authority (the “Authority”), a 

dependent special district, having an address at SeaPort Manatee, 300 Tampa Bay Way, Suite One, 

Palmetto, Florida 34221-6608, and the City of St. Petersburg, Florida (“City”), a municipal 

corporation of the State of Florida with its principal place of business located at 175 5th Street 

North, St. Petersburg, Florida 33701, collectively referred to as the “Parties” and individually as a 

“Party.” 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, the City is an active member of the Tampa Bay Estuary Program, working to 

restore and enhance Tampa Bay seagrass habitat since 1995; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City owns in fee simple the North Shore Seagrass Mitigation Area which 

is generally depicted in Exhibit A (“Area”), and the City is seeking to fill with material a 32-acres 

(more or less) dredge hole located within a portion of the Area (“Dredge Hole”), and intends to 

operate the Area as a seagrass mitigation bank called the North Shore Seagrass Mitigation Bank 

(“Bank”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has been designing restoration plans for the Bank since 2015, with 

initial designs assuming filling would occur in multiple fill-event phases; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Authority currently owns and operates public seaport facilities in the 

northwestern portion of Manatee County, Florida, known as “SeaPort Manatee”, a catalyst of 

economic growth which creates $5.1 billion in annual positive economic impact for the United 

States economy and more than 37,287 direct and indirect jobs; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Authority is undertaking a Berth 4 Extension project which will extend 

the vessel docking facility 600 feet northward, deepening adjacent waterways and is anticipated to 

generate a sufficient quantity of material to fill the Dredge Hole in one filling-event; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City recognizes that one filling-event is less disruptive and presents less 

risk than multiple filling-event phases, one mobilization and demobilization construction 

activation is likely to reduce construction cost when compared to multiple activations, and one 

filling event will allow the City to expedite restoration and to realize environmental and financial 

benefits in the short-term when compared to an uncertain duration of time under a phased multiple 

filling-event approach; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to collaborate on a project where the Authority deposits its 

material generated from the Berth 4 Extension project into the Dredge Hole and, in return, the 



 

Page 2 of 21 
 

Authority may receive up to six (6) seagrass mitigation credits from the City (the “Project”, which 

is more particularly described below in the Section entitled ‘Project’); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City recognizes that state and federal requirements prohibit the Project 

from physically starting until the Authority receives and documents a proportionate amount of 

seagrass mitigation credits needed to offset unavoidable impacts generated by the removal of 

material; and 

 

WHEREAS, to memorialize the terms and conditions under which they desired to proceed 

in pursuing the Project, the Parties executed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) on July 15, 

2022, and agreed to endeavor in good faith to work towards executing a mutually agreeable and 

binding contract for the Project; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this Agreement, to further clarify 

responsibilities of each Party related to the Project.   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the foregoing recitals, the promises, 

covenants and conditions contained herein, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby 

acknowledges, and mutual, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

1. Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by reference. 

 

2. Purpose of the Agreement. The Parties are entering into this Agreement to establish 

contractually binding terms and conditions under which they desire to proceed in pursuing 

the Project.  

 

3. Project. The Authority is designing and permitting its Berth 4 Extension project. The 

project involves waterway deepening and filling activities in Tampa Bay with unavoidable 

seagrass impacts requiring mitigation.  Uniform Mitigation Assessment Method (UMAM) 

seagrass mitigation credits will be needed by the Authority to offset the minimized impact 

of the Berth 4 Extension project.  The Authority estimates the quantity of material 

generated from the Berth 4 Extension project will be approximately 498,400 cubic yards 

(CY) of dredged material, consisting of surficial sands, generally considered suitable for 

seagrass mitigation area cap material, and underlying material generally considered 

suitable for foundation fill material. 

 

The City has a Dredge Hole in the Area, which it desires to fill to an elevation suitable for 

the planting and establishment of seagrass. The City anticipates that it will need 

approximately 470,000 CY of material to fill the Dredge Hole in the Area. By filling the 

Dredge Hole to an elevation suitable for seagrass propagation, the City expects to generate 

marketable seagrass mitigation credits and operate the Bank.  It is the intent of the Parties 

that the Authority receives mitigation credits described in this Agreement. 

 

While the City has estimated the need of 470,000 CY, actual quantities will vary based on 

site conditions and final delineation of construction boundaries, and is the responsibility of 

the Authority to complete the scope outlined in this Agreement. The successful completion 



 

Page 3 of 21 
 

of this Project and successful operation of the Bank may allow for the additional seagrass 

mitigation credits described in paragraph 7.e.ii. of this Agreement to be released to the City 

and as such provided to the Authority. 
 

4. Project scope. The Project scope includes the following major activities, listed in 

chronological order in which Project activities are likely to occur: 

 

a. The City, following approval of the Mitigation Banking Instrument (“MBI”) by the U.S. 

Army Corps of Engineers (“USACE”), shall assign three (3) UMAM seagrass 

mitigation credits to the Authority within three (3) weeks of their issuance, which will 

allow the Authority to solicit construction contract bids. 

 

b. The City shall perform an updated field survey of seagrasses and marine resources in 

the vicinity of the placement site to delineate the construction boundaries of the Dredge 

Hole. The survey and resultant delineation shall be performed under the supervision of 

a Professional Surveyor and Mapper (“Surveyor”) licensed in Florida.  The City will 

provide an electronic copy of the Surveyor’s drawing and coordinate description to the 

Authority before July 31, 2023. The Authority will be responsible for conducting fill 

operations within the updated construction boundary. 

 
c. Upon award of the Authority’s construction contract and issuance of the Notice-to-

Proceed, the Authority’s contractor shall commence Project mobilization and site 

preparation, including the installation of turbidity curtains around the entire Dredge 

Hole, in accordance with the updated construction boundary provided by the Surveyor. 
 

d. The Authority shall provide for the transport and placement of the dredged material 

generated from the Berth 4 Extension project within the Dredge Hole. See Exhibit A.1. 
 

e. The Authority shall transport the material dredged from the Berth 4 Extension project 

area to the Dredge Hole by barge, utilizing approximately 12 miles of existing 

navigation channels. See Exhibit A.2. 
 

f. The Authority shall provide for the temporary storage of surficial sands inside the 

Dredge Hole turbidity curtain envelope. 
 

g. The Authority intends to construct submerged cross-dike(s) within the Dredge Hole to 

create interior containment cell(s), and construction of a terminal dike (i.e., final cross-

dike) with the toe of terminal dike extending towards the southern edge of construction 

limits. See Exhibit A.3. 

 
h. The Authority will provide mechanical placement of foundation fill material in each 

cell. See Exhibits A.4 and A.5. 

 

i. The Authority will provide for transport of surficial sands from the temporary storage 

area and mechanical or hydraulic placement of a sand cap (i.e., surficial sands) in each 

cell. See Exhibit A.5. 



 

Page 4 of 21 
 

 
j. Once contracted surface elevations have been achieved in each cell, the Authority will 

verify the work and request concurrence by the City. The City will formally 

acknowledge completion and acceptance of each cell (“Acceptance Sections”), and shall 

relieve the Authority of any further obligations, requirements, and responsibilities for 

that cell. 
 

k. The exterior turbidity curtain will not be removed until a given cell or series of cells has 

been accepted. Prior to or after completion of individual cells, the Authority will install 

an interior turbidity curtain to isolate the completed cell. The interior turbidity curtain 

will separate completed Acceptance Sections from active fill placement areas.  
 

l. The Project will be substantially complete when all Acceptance Sections are completed 

in accordance with the contract plans and specification requirements, and the Authority 

has verified placement by hydrographic surveys in accordance with specification 

requirements. The City will issue concurrence of substantial completion upon 

notification by the Authority that the construction contract has been accepted as 

satisfactorily complete. See Exhibit A.6. 
 

m. The final completion of the Project will occur once the Authority (i) removes remaining 

turbidity controls, (ii) demobilization of construction contractor and related equipment 

are removed from the Area, (iii) As-Built cross sections (signed and seal) are provided 

to the City. 

 

5. Representations. It is further understood by the Parties: 

 

a. The Authority has received a Florida Department of Environmental Protection 

(“FDEP”) Environmental Resource Permit (“ERP”) and related variance. The ERP 

provides for the placement of material in the Dredge Hole in one event. 

 

b. The Authority applied on February 3, 2021, to the USACE for a federal Individual 

Permit (“IP”) which is in the review process. The application provides for the 

placement of material in the Dredge Hole in one event. 

 

c. The Authority is anticipating federal permit approval during the 2nd quarter of 2023. 

 

d. To determine any construction related impacts to seagrass in areas adjacent to the Berth 

4 Extension project, a waterside seagrass survey needs to be conducted prior to 

construction. The pre-construction seagrass survey needs to be completed during the 

seagrass growing season, which runs from June 1st to August 31st each year. The 

survey must be conducted within 1 year of construction initiation. The Authority’s 

previous survey has expired, and the Authority intends to complete a new survey and 

submit results to FDEP on or before July 26, 2023, and commence installation of 

temporary turbidity controls around the Berth 4 Extension project area on or after 

August 28, 2023. 

 



 

Page 5 of 21 
 

e. The Authority’s Berth 4 Extension project is subject to additional grant funding awards. 

In order to make the Project a success and in lieu of receiving additional grant funding, 

the Authority intends to complete the Berth 4 Extension project in two phases. The first 

phase will complete Project related activities, including waterway deepening, material 

generation, material transportation, and material placement activities. The second 

phase will extend the structural vessel docking facility 600 feet northward, which does 

not involve the Project. Part of the grant funding for the first phase of the Berth 4 

Extension project has a five-year performance period with an ending date of May 31, 

2024. 

 

f. The volume of material available from the Authority’s Berth 4 Extension project is an 

engineer’s estimate. The physical placement location of the Dredge Hole terminal dike 

(i.e., final cross-dike) is dependent on volume and characteristics of available dredged 

fill material. 

 

g. The City has obtained an ERP from the Southwest Florida Water Management District 

for the Bank. 

 

h. The City has applied to USACE for a federal MBI for the Bank, which is in the review 

process. 

 

i. No additional, non-permit related, sediment testing, or analysis will be required by 

either Party after the Effective Date.  

 

6. Authority Responsibilities. By entering into this Agreement with the City, the Authority 

agrees: 

 

a. The Authority will work with the City to ensure that the Authority’s and City’s permit 

conditions are compatible.  

 

b. The Authority will complete the contracting and permitting of the Project without 

delay. 

 

c. The Authority will be responsible for sediment testing required by permits. The 

Authority is responsible for analysis of and the final placement of material, as required 

by permits for the Bank, and will share the data with the City. 

 

d. The Authority, at its expense, will dredge and place the material in its final position in 

the Dredge Hole in accordance with its permits and the City's permits. The Authority 

will provide the City with an electronic copy of technical specifications for the Project. 

The technical specifications will include material placement specifications. The City 

will approve placement specifications in writing prior to Authority's construction 

bidding. Approved placement specifications will be included in the Authority's 

construction contract. 

 



 

Page 6 of 21 
 

e. The Authority will be responsible for implementing all construction Best Management 

Practices (BMPs) required by its permits for the filling of the Dredge Hole in the Area, 

including, turbidity controls, material placement BMPs to minimize displacement of 

existing Dredge Hole bottom sediments, higher quality sediment capping requirements, 

and limiting impacts to adjacent seagrass communities from construction related 

equipment and other construction activities. 

 

f. The Authority will work with the City to develop and implement a parallel and 

complementary public relations campaign. For questions about Project components 

physically located within of the Authority’s jurisdictional boundaries including any 

submerged lands, public inquires will be directed to: 

 

Virginia Zimmermann 

Director of Communications & Public Relations 

Phone: (941) 721-2323 

Email: vzimmermann@seaportmanatee.com 

 

7. City Responsibilities. By entering into this Agreement with the Authority, the City 

agrees: 

 

a. If necessary, the City will modify its state ERP and fashion its federal MBI application 

for the Bank to provide for Authority placement of approximately 470,000 CY of 

material from its Berth 4 Extension project in the Dredge Hole in one event, 

accommodating the Authority’s schedule as closely as possible. 

 

b. The City will draft or revise its permits to provide for the availability of seagrass 

mitigation credits in stages as early as possible, with as much as possible available in 

advance of deposition of material in the Dredge Hole and acknowledges that the 

Authority has no responsibility for planting or success, as defined by the permits of the 

Bank.  

 

c. The City will work with the Authority to ensure that the City’s and the Authority’s 

permit conditions are compatible, including the relative timing of seagrass mitigation 

credits availability and dredging and deposition of material.  

 

d. The City will work toward completion of the design and permitting of the Project 

without delay. Time is of the essence. 

 

e. As compensation for the material placement in the Dredge Hole, the City will provide 

to the Authority a total of up to six (6), state and federal, UMAM seagrass mitigation 

credits if such credits become available. To commence the Project and recognize the 

Authority’s contributions to the success of the Project in the form of transportation cost, 

construction cost and associated risk assumed by the Authority, the Parties will follow 

the below schedule for the assignment of UMAM seagrass mitigation credits: 

 



 

Page 7 of 21 
 

i. To the extent such UMAM seagrass mitigation credits become available, the 

City will assign three (3) UMAM seagrass mitigation credits to the Authority 

prior to the Authority’s award of the Berth 4 construction contract, in 

accordance with paragraph 4.a. of this Agreement.  If the three (3) UMAM 

seagrass mitigation credits are not available based on the USACE MBI approval 

for the Bank, by August 31, 2023, either Party may terminate this Agreement 

by providing notice to the other Party. 

 

ii. To the extent such UMAM seagrass mitigation credits become available, the 

City will assign up to three (3) additional (cumulative total of six (6) state and 

federal UMAM credits) UMAM seagrass mitigation credits to the Authority 

once the Project has been completed, the planting of seagrass has occurred in 

the Area, and the Bank is deemed successful by the permitting agencies.  The 

City makes no guarantees that such credits will become available.  More 

particularly, the City intends that the cumulative fifth, seventh, and ninth 

UMAM seagrass mitigation credits, which are planned to be generated after the 

Bank is deemed successful by the permitting agencies shall be assigned to the 

Authority. Table 1 shows the intended assignment of credits as credits are 

released in accordance with an approved federal MBI. 
 

                              Table 1. Intended Assignment of Any Released Credits 

 

Cumulative 

Release of 

Credits 

Assignment Phase 

1 From City to Authority Upon Approval of 

MBI and Release of 

Credits 
2 From City to Authority 

3 From City to Authority 

4 For City Use 

Upon Release of 

Credits 

5 From City to Authority 

6 For City Use 

7 From City to Authority 

8 For City Use 

9 From City to Authority 

 

f. The City will review and approve the dredged material placement specifications prior 

to Authority’s bidding the Berth 4 construction contract. The City shall hire a licensed 

Professional Surveyor and Mapper to field delineate and describe the construction 

boundaries of the Dredge Hole. The City shall observe and comment on the placement 

of material, acknowledge proper material placement in stages (i.e., the Authority’s 

contractor constructs an underwater cross-dike across the north end of the 32 acre 

Dredge Hole to create a cellular fill area (Acceptance Section), the Authority’s 

contractor fills-in a cell with material, the Authority obtains acknowledgement of 

completion and acceptance from the City for each constructed cell, City relieves 

Authority of any further obligations, requirements, and responsibilities of Acceptance 

Sections, the Authority’s contractor proceeds southward to construct the next cell) prior 



 

Page 8 of 21 
 

to subsequent stages of deposition, and the City shall own and be responsible for the 

material once Acceptance Sections are complete and substantial completion is attained, 

as set forth in paragraphs 4.j. and 4.l. of this Agreement. 

 

g. The City, at its expense, will be responsible for any necessary planting and achieving 

seagrass mitigation success as defined by the City’s permits associated with the Bank. 

 

h. The City will work with the Authority’s contractor to ensure safety, including keeping 

the public away from construction activities occurring in or near the Area including the 

Dredge Hole. 

 

i. The City will work with the Authority to develop and implement a paralleled and 

complementary public relations campaign. For questions about Project components 

physically located within the City’s jurisdictional boundaries including any submerged 

lands, public inquires will be directed to: 

 

Erica Riggins  

Public Information Officer 

Phone: (727) 892-5896 

Email: erica.riggins@stpete.org 

 

8. Financial Obligation. Neither Party shall owe any monetary payment to the other Party due 

to activities undertaken under this Agreement. 

 

9. Non-appropriation. The obligations and responsibilities of the City as to any funding 

required pursuant to this Agreement shall be limited to an obligation in any given year to 

budget, appropriate and pay from legally available funds, after monies for essential City 

services have been budgeted and appropriated, sufficient monies for the funding that is 

required during that year.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City shall not be prohibited 

from pledging any legally available non-ad valorem revenues for any obligations 

heretofore or hereafter incurred, which pledge shall be prior and superior to any obligation 

of the City pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

10. Responsibility. The City and the Authority shall be responsible for their respective 

employees’ acts of negligence when such employees are within the scope of their 

employment and shall only be liable for any damages resulting from said negligence to the 

extent permitted by Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. Nothing herein is intended to serve 

as a waiver of sovereign immunity by either the City or the Authority. Nothing herein shall 

be construed as consent by the City or the Authority to be sued by third parties in any 

matter arising out of this Agreement. 

 

11. Term. The City will be responsible for filing this Agreement with the Clerk of Circuit Court 

of Pinellas County, Florida after the Agreement has been fully executed by the Parties and 

this Agreement shall be effective upon the date of filing (“Effective Date”).  The term of 

this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall terminate upon final 



 

Page 9 of 21 
 

completion of the Project and the City’s assignment of six (6) UMAM seagrass mitigation 

credits to the Authority, unless earlier terminated as provided for herein. 

 

12. Termination. Either Party may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the 

defaulting party in the event either party defaults on any of the terms or conditions of this 

Agreement and such failure continues for a period of thirty (30) days following notice from 

the non-defaulting party specifying the default. 

 

13. Project Representatives and Notice. In order to assure proper coordination and review 

throughout the term of this Agreement, the City and the Authority each designate Project 

Representatives as follows: 

 

City: 

 

Jesse I. Wood  

Civil Engineer II 

City of St. Petersburg 

P.O. Box 2842 

St. Petersburg, FL 33731  

Email: jesse.wood@stpete.org 

Phone: (727) 892-5795 

 

Authority: 

 

Dan Fitz-Patrick 

Director of Planning & Project Development 

Manatee County Port Authority  

300 Tampa Bay Way, Suite One 

Palmetto, Florida 34221 

Email: dfitzpatrick@seaportmanatee.com  

Phone: (941) 720-4714 

 

Either Party may designate a replacement Project Representative, which shall become 

effective immediately upon receipt of notice of such replacement designation by the other 

party. All communications between the Party Representatives expressly required under this 

Agreement must be in writing and delivered by personal delivery, electronic mail, read receipt 

request, or USPS certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 

Unless and to the extent otherwise provided in this Agreement (e.g., communications 

between Party Representatives), all notices, demands, requests for approvals and other 

communications which are required to be given by one Party to another must be in writing 

and will be deemed given and delivered on the date delivered in person, upon the expiration 

of five (5) days following the date mailed by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, 

return receipt requested, to the address provided below, or upon the date delivered by 

overnight courier (signature required) to the address provided below. 

 



 

Page 10 of 21 
 

If to Authority:    If to the City: 

 

Executive Director    Mayor 

Manatee County Port Authority  City of St. Petersburg, FL 

300 Tampa Bay Way, Suite One   P.O. Box 2842 

Palmetto, Florida 34221    St. Petersburg, FL 33731  

   

 With required copy to:   With required copy to: 

 

Jennifer Cowan, Port Counsel Michael Dema, Managing Assistant City  

Bryant Miller Olive P.A.    Attorney 

201 Franklin Street, Suite 2700     P.O. Box 2842 

Tampa, FL 33602    St. Petersburg, FL 33701  

 

14. Requirements to be included in Construction Contract(s).  

 

The Authority shall require that all construction contracts with contractor(s) hired to 

undertake any part of the Project include the following conditions: 

 

a. Indemnify, hold harmless, pay on behalf of, and defend the City, its officers, 

employees, contractors, and agents, and Authority, its officers, employees, 

contractors, and agents, from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, 

including, but not limited to, attorney’s fees, arising out of or in connection with 

the Project; 

 

b. provide a dual obligee payment and performance bond in accordance with and 

pursuant to the requirements of Florida Statutes Section 255.05 in the full amount 

of the Project cost, naming the City and Authority as obligees; 

 

c. provide the City with the same insurance coverage as the Authority, naming the 

City and Authority as additional insured entities and certificate holders. 

 

15. Force Majeure. Neither Party will be liable for its non-performance or delayed performance 

under this Agreement if caused by force majeure but only for a period of time equivalent 

to the non-performance or delay caused by force majeure. Force majeure is defined as a 

fire, flood, act of God, war, terrorism, riot, national emergency, sabotage, civil disturbance, 

strike, labor dispute, governmental act, law, ordinance, rule or regulation, or event which 

are not the fault or are beyond the control of the Party. Force Majeure does not include 

delay do to COVID-19, as it is ongoing at the time of this Agreement. 

 

16. Modifications of Agreement. Any alterations, variations, changes, modifications, or 

waivers of provisions of this Agreement shall only be valid when they have been reduced 

to writing, duly signed by each of the Parties hereto, and attached to the original of this 

Agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Parties may by mutual written agreement 

change dates set forth in this Agreement in order to achieve successful completion of the 

Project. 



 

Page 11 of 21 
 

 

17. City Consent and Action.  For purposes of this Agreement, (i) any required written 

permission, consent, acceptance, approval, or agreement (“Approval”) by the City means 

the Approval of the Mayor or his authorized designee, unless otherwise set forth in this 

Agreement or unless otherwise required to be exercised by City Council pursuant to the 

City Charter or applicable laws; and (ii) any right of the City to take any action permitted, 

allowed, or required by this Agreement may be  exercised by the Mayor or his authorized 

designee, unless otherwise set forth in this Mayor or unless otherwise required to be 

exercised by City Council pursuant to the City Charter or applicable laws. 

 

18. Assignment and Successors and Assigns. The Parties shall not assign their rights or 

obligations hereunder except with the prior written consent of the other Party. This 

Agreement may not be assigned by either party without the prior written consent of the 

other party. The Parties each bind itself, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives 

to the other party hereto and to the successors, assigns, and legal representatives of such 

other party in respect to all covenants and obligations contained herein.  

 

19. Compliance with Applicable Laws. Both Parties shall comply with all applicable federal, 

state, and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations, the federal and state constitutions, 

and orders and decrees of any lawful authorities having jurisdiction over the matter at issue, 

including but not limited to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. 

 

20. Authority. This Agreement does not create any authority on the Parties to bind the other 

Party by any act, promise or representation, unless specially authorized in advance by such 

Party in writing.  This Agreement does not create a partnership or joint venture and neither 

Party shall be deemed a partner or a joint venture of the other. The Authority acknowledges 

that is an independent party and not an agent of City. 

 

21. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is not intended to create any rights for 

anyone other than the Parties to this Agreement. 

 

22. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be 

deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.  

Signed signature pages may be transmitted via facsimile or other digital imaging method, 

and any such signature shall have the same legal effect as an original. 

 

23. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including Exhibits hereto, embodies the whole 

agreement between the Parties.  There are no promises, terms, conditions or allegations 

other than those contained herein, and this Agreement shall supersede all previous 

communications, representations and/or agreements, whether written or verbal, between 

the Parties hereto. 

 

24. Severability. Should any section or portion of any section of this Agreement be rendered 

void, invalid or unenforceable by any court of law for any reason, such determination will 

not render void, invalid or unenforceable any other section or any part of any other section 

of this Agreement. 



 

Page 12 of 21 
 

 

25. Governing Law. This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Florida and shall 

become effective on the Effective Date.   

 

 

  





 

Page 14 of 21 
 

Exhibit A.1. 

 

Example picture showing material generation using a clamshell dredge. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 15 of 21 
 

Exhibit A.2. 

 

Maps showing route of barge (or “scow”) transportation of material from the Berth 4 Extension 

project area to the Dredge Hole, using 12 miles of existing navigation channels. 

 



 

Page 16 of 21 
 

 



 

Page 17 of 21 
 

Exhibit A.3. 

 

Typical cross-section of a containment cross-dike and terminal dike. 

 

 

  



 

Page 18 of 21 
 

Exhibit A.4. 

 

Example picture showing mechanical placement of material. 

 

 
 

Exhibit A.5. 

 

Typical fill cross-section with underlying material and sand cap (i.e., surficial sands). 

 

 



 

Page 19 of 21 
 

Exhibit A.6. 

 

Construction sequencing of cells. 

 

Cell 1 

 

 
 

Cell 2 

 

 



 

Page 20 of 21 
 

Cell 3 

 

 

 

Cell 4 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 21 of 21 
 

 

Final Cell (e.g., Cell 5) 

 

 

 

After completion of Final Cell 

 

  
 

 



Page 1 of 1

-- City of St. Petersburg Authorization Request --

General Authorization

Request #

214670

Name: Johnson, Sarah B Request Date: 11-MAY-2023 Status: APPROVED

Authorization Request

Subject: Council - 5/18 ADD

Message: Manatee County - Seagrass Mitigation - Interlocal Agreement

Supporting
Documentation:

Manatee County - Interlocal Agreement - Final.pdf

Approver Completed By Response
Response

Date Type

0 Johnson, Sarah B SUBMITTED 11-MAY-2023

1 Prayman, Brejesh B Prayman, Brejesh B APPROVE 11-MAY-2023 User Defined 

2 Griffin, Christopher Michael Griffin, Christopher Michael APPROVE 11-MAY-2023 User Defined 

3 Tankersley, Claude Duval Tankersley, Claude Duval APPROVE 11-MAY-2023 User Defined 



40 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: A Resolution authorizing the 

Mayor or his designee to accept a Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Award from the Federal 

Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), through the pass-through entity, the Florida Division of 

Emergency Management, at a maximum reimbursement amount of $443,650; approving a 

supplemental appropriation in the amount of $443,650 from the increase in the unappropriated 

balance of the Water Resources Capital Projects Fund (4003), resulting from this grant funding, to 

the COS Consol Building FY19 Project (16887); authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute 

all documents necessary to effectuate the grant; and providing an effective date. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



E-2

E-2



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting of May 18, 2023 

 

 TO:          The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair and Members of City Council 

 

SUBJECT: A Resolution authorizing the Mayor or his designee to accept a Hazard Mitigation Grant 

Program Award from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (“FEMA”), through the pass-through 

entity, the Florida Division of Emergency Management, at a maximum reimbursement amount of $443,650; 

approving a supplemental appropriation in the amount of $443,650 from the increase in the unappropriated 

balance of the Water Resources Capital Projects Fund (4003), resulting from this grant funding, to the COS 

Consol Building FY19 Project (16887); authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute all documents 

necessary to effectuate the grant; and providing an effective date. 

 

EXPLANATION:  This grant, offered through Florida’s Hazard Mitigation Grant Program, is to fund 

Code-Plus hardening and a safe room designed to FEMA P-361 standards within the Cosme Water 

Treatment Plant in Odessa. The grant will allow for resiliency improvements at the Cosme plant which will 

better protect staff and service during severe weather. The City of St. Petersburg will use this grant funding 

to conduct Phase I – Design of this project, which includes the engineering designs and calculations, 

surveys, permitting, and notices. 

 

Mitigation Activities consist of Phase I activities, which include engineering, designing, plans preparation, 

permitting, and bidding for the proposed project, for Phase II approval, for Code-Plus hardening, an internal 

safe room designed to FEMA P-361 standards, and generator at the Cosme Water Treatment Plant in 

Odessa. 

 

FEMA awarded this project on January 11, 2023; with a Pre-Award date of November 1, 2021; this 

Agreement shall begin upon execution by both parties, and the Period of Performance for this project shall 

end on April 30, 2024. 

 

This Grant’s funding summary includes a $420,300 federal share and a $46,700 local share, for a total 

project cost of $467,000. The Grant also includes federally-funded Sub-Recipient Management Costs in 

the amount of $23,350. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Administration recommends authorizing the Mayor or his designee to accept a 

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Award from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (“FEMA”), 

through the pass-through entity, the Florida Division of Emergency Management, at a maximum 

reimbursement amount of $443,650; approving a supplemental appropriation in the amount of $443,650 

from the increase in the unappropriated balance of the Water Resources Capital Projects Fund (4003), 

resulting from this grant funding, to the COS Consol Building FY19 Project (16887); authorizing the Mayor 

or his designee to execute all documents necessary to effectuate the grant; and providing an effective date. 

 

COST/FUNDING/ASSESSMENT INFORMATION: Revenues of $443,650 will be received from 

FEMA through the Florida Division of Emergency Management and deposited into the Water Resources 

Capital Projects Fund (4003).  The local share portion of the funding has been previously appropriated in 

the Water Resources Capital Projects Fund (4003), COS Consol Building FY19 Project (16887).  



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Additional funding for the grant portion will be available after approval of a supplemental appropriation in 

the amount of $443,650 from the increase in the unappropriated balance of the Water Resources Capital 

Projects Fund (4003), resulting from this grant funding, to the COS Consol Building FY19 Project (16887).  

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Resolution  

    Federally-Funded Subaward and Grant Agreement 

 

 

APPROVALS: ________________________ ________________________ 

              Administrative                    Budget 

 

 

 



1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR 

OR HIS DESIGNEE TO ACCEPT A HAZARD 

MITIGATION GRANT PROGRAM AWARD 

FROM THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY 

MANAGEMENT AGENCY (“FEMA”), 

THROUGH THE PASS-THROUGH ENTITY, 

THE FLORIDA DIVISION OF EMERGENCY 

MANAGEMENT, AT A MAXIMUM 

REIMBURSEMENT AMOUNT OF $443,650; 

APPROVING A SUPPLEMENTAL 

APPROPRIATION IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$443,650 FROM THE INCREASE IN THE 

UNAPPROPRIATED BALANCE OF THE 

WATER RESOURCES CAPITAL PROJECTS 

FUND (4003), RESULTING FROM THIS GRANT 

FUNDING, TO THE COS CONSOL BUILDING 

FY19 PROJECT (16887); AUTHORIZING THE 

MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE ALL 

DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE 

THE GRANT; AND PROVIDING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City applied for a Hazard Mitigation Grant to compliment large 

scale facility projects in planning at the Cosme Water Treatment Plant in Odessa, Florida 
(“Cosme”), which will allow for resiliency improvements to protect City staff and service during 
severe weather; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City has been awarded a Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 

Award from FEMA, through the pass-through entity, the Florida Division of Emergency 
Management; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the purpose of the grant is to fund Phase I design of the project 

which includes Code-Plus hardening, a safe room designed to FEMA P-361 standards, and the 
installation of a generator at Cosme; and 

  
 WHEREAS, the local portion of the funding for the project has been previously 

appropriated in the Water Resources Capital Projects Fund (4003), COS Consol Building FY19 
Project (16887); and 

 
 WHEREAS, additional funding for the grant portion will be available after 

approval of a supplemental appropriation in the amount of $443,650 from the increase in the 
unappropriated balance of the Water Resources Capital Projects Fund (4003), resulting from this 
grant funding, to the COS Consol Building FY19 Project (16887); and 
 



2 

 

 WHEREAS, Administration recommends approval of this resolution. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 

Petersburg, Florida, that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to accept a Hazard Mitigation 
Grant Program Award from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (“FEMA”), through 
the pass-through entity, the Florida Division of Emergency Management, at a maximum 
reimbursement amount of $443,650. 

 
  BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that there is hereby approved from the increase in 
the unappropriated balance of the Water Resources Capital Projects Fund (4003), resulting from 
the acceptance of the grant funds, the following supplemental appropriation for FY23: 
   
  Water Resources Capital Projects Fund (4003)             
  COS Consol Building FY19 Project (16887)   $443,650  
 
 
  BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to 
execute all documents necessary to effectuate the grant. 
  
 This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
 
 

LEGAL:     DEPARTMENT: 

 

                                                                      __________________________________ 

 

BUDGET: 

 

_______________________________ 

 



SUB-RECIPIENT AGREEMENT CHECKLIST 

DIVISION OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
MITIGATION BUREAU 

REQUEST FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL 
SUB-RECIPIENT: City of St.Petersburg 
PROJECT #: 4486-091-R 
PROJECT TITLE: City of St. Petersburg, Cosme Water Treatment Plant, Code Plus, 

Hurricane Safe Room and Generator.  
CONTRACT #: H0952 
MODIFICATION #: NA 

SUB-RECIPIENT REPRESENTATIVE (POINT OF CONTACT) 
Kira Barrera Operations 
Special Projects Coordinator 
1650 Third Avenue North St. 
Petersburg, FL 33713 

Enclosed is your copy of the proposed contract/modification between City of St. Petersburg 
and the Florida Division of Emergency Management (FDEM).  

COMPLETE 
This form is required to be included with all Reviews, Approvals, and Submittal 
Signed electronic copy 
Reviewed and Approved 
Signed and Dated by Official Representative 
Copy of the organization’s resolution or charter that specifically identifies the 
person or position that is authorized to sign, if not Chairman, Mayor, or Chief 
Attachment I - Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) - 
completed, signed, and dated 

 N/A for Modifications or State Funded Agreements 
Attachment K – Certification Regarding Lobbying - completed, signed, and dated 

 N/A for Modifications or State Funded Agreements 
Electronic Submittal to the Grant Specialist Evan Jenkins on  

If you have any questions regarding this contract, or who is authorized to sign it, please contact 
your Project Manager at (850) 359-9204 or email me at Kelsie.Gartz@em.myflorida.com. 



1 

Agreement Number: H0952 
Project Number: 4486-091-R 

FEDERALLY-FUNDED SUBAWARD AND GRANT AGREEMENT 

2 C.F.R. §200.1 states that a “subaward may be provided through any form of legal agreement, 

including an agreement that the pass-through entity considers a contract.” 

As defined by 2 C.F.R. §200.1, “pass-through entity” means “a non-Federal entity that provides a 

subaward to a subrecipient to carry out part of a Federal program.” 

As defined by 2 C.F.R. §200.1, “Sub-Recipient” means “an entity, usually but not limited to non-

Federal entities that receives a subaward from a pass-through entity to carry out part of a Federal 

program.” 

As defined by 2 C.F.R. §200.1, “Federal award” means “Federal financial assistance that a non-

Federal entity receives directly from a Federal awarding agency or indirectly from a pass-through entity.” 

As defined by 2 C.F.R. §200.1, “subaward” means “an award provided by a pass-through entity to a 

Sub-Recipient for the Sub-Recipient to carry out part of a Federal award received by the pass-through 

entity.” 

The following information is provided pursuant to 2 C.F.R. §200.332: 

Sub-Recipient’s name: City of St. Petersburg 

Sub-Recipient's unique entity identifier (UEI/FEIN): LARHMJNJAKS4 / 596000424 

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): FEMA-DR-4486-FL 

Federal Award Date: January 11, 2023 

Subaward Period of Performance Start and End Date: Upon execution through April 30, 2024 

Amount of Federal Funds Obligated by this Agreement: $443,650.00
Total Amount of Federal Funds Obligated to the Sub-Recipient 

by the pass-through entity to include this Agreement: $443,650.00 
Total Amount of the Federal Award committed to the Sub-

Recipient by the pass-through entity $443,650.00
Federal award project description (see FFATA): Hurricane Safe Room and Generator 

Name of Federal awarding agency: Federal Emergency Management Agency 

Name of pass-through entity: FL Division of Emergency Management 

Contact information for the pass-through entity: Kelsie.Gartz@em.myflorida.com 
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number and 

Name: 97.039 Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 

Whether the award is R&D: N/A 

Indirect cost rate for the Federal award: N/A 



2 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by the State of Florida, Division of Emergency Management, 

with headquarters in Tallahassee, Florida (hereinafter referred to as the "Division"), and City of St. 

Petersburg, (hereinafter referred to as the "Sub-Recipient"). 

For the purposes of this Agreement, the Division serves as the pass-through entity for a Federal 

award, and the Sub-Recipient serves as the recipient of a subaward. 

THIS AGREEMENT IS ENTERED INTO BASED ON THE FOLLOWING REPRESENTATIONS: 

A. The Sub-Recipient represents that it is fully qualified and eligible to receive these grant funds 

to provide the services identified herein; 

B. The State of Florida received these grant funds from the Federal government, and the 

Division has the authority to subgrant these funds to the Sub-Recipient upon the terms and conditions 

outlined below; and, 

C. The Division has statutory authority to disburse the funds under this Agreement. 

THEREFORE, the Division and the Sub-Recipient agree to the following: 

(1) APPLICATION OF STATE LAW TO THIS AGREEMENT 

2 C.F.R. §200.302(a) provides: “Each state must expend and account for the Federal 

award in accordance with state laws and procedures for expending and accounting for the state's own 

funds.”  Therefore, section 215.971, Florida Statutes, entitled “Agreements funded with federal or state 

assistance”, applies to this Agreement. 

(2) LAWS, RULES, REGULATIONS AND POLICIES 

a. The Sub-Recipient's performance under this Agreement is subject to 2 C.F.R. Part 

200, entitled “Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 

Awards.” 

b. As required by section 215.971(1), Florida Statutes, this Agreement includes: 

i. A provision specifying a scope of work that clearly establishes the tasks that 

the Sub-Recipient is required to perform. 

ii. A provision dividing the agreement into quantifiable units of deliverables that 

must be received and accepted in writing by the Division before payment.  Each deliverable must be 

directly related to the scope of work and specify the required minimum level of service to be performed 

and the criteria for evaluating the successful completion of each deliverable. 

iii. A provision specifying the financial consequences that apply if the Sub-

Recipient fails to perform the minimum level of service required by the agreement. 

iv. A provision specifying that the Sub-Recipient may expend funds only for 

allowable costs resulting from obligations incurred during the specified agreement period. 

v. A provision specifying that any balance of unobligated funds which has been 

advanced or paid must be refunded to the Division. 



3 
 

vi. A provision specifying that any funds paid in excess of the amount to which 

the Sub-Recipient is entitled under the terms and conditions of the agreement must be refunded to the 

Division. 

c. In addition to the foregoing, the Sub-Recipient and the Division shall be governed by 

all applicable State and Federal laws, rules and regulations, including those identified in Attachment B.  

Any express reference in this Agreement to a particular statute, rule, or regulation in no way implies that 

no other statute, rule, or regulation applies. 

(3) CONTACT 

a. In accordance with section 215.971(2), Florida Statutes, the Division’s Grant 

Manager shall be responsible for enforcing performance of this Agreement’s terms and conditions and 

shall serve as the Division’s liaison with the Sub-Recipient.  As part of his/her duties, the Grant Manager 

for the Division shall: 

i. Monitor and document Sub-Recipient performance; and, 

ii. Review and document all deliverables for which the Sub-Recipient requests 

payment. 

b. The Division's Grant Manager for this Agreement is: 

Kelsie Gartz 

Project Manager 

Bureau of Mitigation 

Florida Division of Emergency Management 

2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard 

Tallahassee, FL 32399 

Telephone: (850) 359-9204 

Email:  Kelsie.Gartz@em.myflorida.com 

The Division's Alternate Grant Manager for this Agreement is: 

Kathleen Marshall 

Community Program Manager 

Bureau of Mitigation 

Florida Division of Emergency Management 

2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard 

Tallahassee, FL 32399 

Telephone: 850-815-4503 

Email:  Kathleen.Marshall@em.myflorida.com 

 



4 

1. The name and address of the Representative of the Sub-Recipient responsible for the

administration of this Agreement is:

Kira Barrera 

Special Projects Coordinator

1650 Third Avenue North 

St. Petersburg, FL 33713 

Telephone: (727) 892-5604 

Email:   kira.barrera@stpete.org 

2. In the event that different representatives or addresses are designated by either party after

execution of this Agreement, notice of the name, title and address of the new representative will

be provided to the other party.

(4) TERMS AND CONDITIONS

This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties. 

(5) EXECUTION

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, any one of which may 

be taken as an original. 

(6) MODIFICATION

Either party may request modification of the provisions of this Agreement.  Changes 

which are agreed upon shall be valid only when in writing, signed by each of the parties, and attached to 

the original of this Agreement. 

(7) SCOPE OF WORK

The Sub-Recipient shall perform the work in accordance with the Budget and Scope of 

Work, Attachment A of this Agreement.   

(8) PERIOD OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall begin upon execution by both parties and shall end on

 unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph (17) of this Agreement.  

Consistent with the definition of “period of performance” contained in 2 C.F.R. §200.1, the term “period 

of agreement” refers to the time during which the Sub-Recipient “may incur new obligations to carry out 

the work authorized under” this Agreement.  In accordance with section 215.971(1)(d), Florida Statutes, 

the Sub-Recipient may expend funds authorized by this Agreement “only for allowable costs resulting 

from obligations incurred during” the period of agreement. 

(9) FUNDING

a. This is a cost-reimbursement Agreement, subject to the availability of funds.



5 
 

b. The State of Florida's performance and obligation to pay under this Agreement is 

contingent upon an annual appropriation by the Legislature, and subject to any modification in 

accordance with either chapter 216, Florida Statutes, or the Florida Constitution. 

c. The Division will reimburse the Sub-Recipient only for allowable costs incurred by the 

Sub-Recipient in the successful completion of each deliverable.  The maximum reimbursement amount 

for each deliverable is outlined in Attachment A of this Agreement (“Budget and Scope of Work”).  The 

maximum reimbursement amount for the entirety of this Agreement is $443,650.00. 

d. As required by 2 C.F.R. §200.415(a), any request for payment under this Agreement 

must include a certification, signed by an official who is authorized to legally bind the Sub-Recipient, 

which reads as follows: “By signing this report, I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the 

report is true, complete, and accurate, and the expenditures, disbursements and cash receipts are for the 

purposes and objectives set forth in the terms and conditions of the Federal award.  I am aware that any 

false, fictitious, or fraudulent information, or the omission of any material fact, may subject me to criminal, 

civil or administrative penalties for fraud, false statements, false claims or otherwise. (U.S. Code Title 18, 

Section 1001 and Title 31, Sections 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).”   

e. The Division will review any request for reimbursement by comparing the 

documentation provided by the Sub-Recipient against a performance measure, outlined in Attachment A, 

that clearly delineates: 

i. The required minimum acceptable level of service to be performed; and, 

ii. The criteria for evaluating the successful completion of each deliverable.   

f. The performance measure required by section 215.971(1)(b), Florida Statutes, 

remains consistent with the requirement for a “performance goal”, which is defined in 2 C.F.R. §200.1 as 

“a target level of performance expressed as a tangible, measurable objective, against which actual 

achievement can be compared.”  It also remains consistent with the requirement, contained in 2 C.F.R. 

§200.329, that the Division and the Sub-Recipient “relate financial data to performance goals and 

objectives of the Federal award.” 

g. If authorized by the Federal Awarding Agency, then the Division will reimburse the 

Sub-Recipient for overtime expenses in accordance with 2 C.F.R. §200.430 (“Compensation—personal 

services”) and 2 C.F.R. §200.431 (“Compensation—fringe benefits”).  If the Sub-Recipient seeks 

reimbursement for overtime expenses for periods when no work is performed due to vacation, holiday, 

illness, failure of the employer to provide sufficient work, or other similar cause (See 29 U.S.C. 

§207(e)(2)), then the Division will treat the expense as a fringe benefit.  2 C.F.R. §200.431(a) defines 

fringe benefits as “allowances and services provided by employers to their employees as compensation in 

addition to regular salaries and wages.”  Fringe benefits are allowable under this Agreement as long as 

the benefits are reasonable and are required by law, Sub-Recipient-employee agreement, or an 

established policy of the Sub-Recipient.  2 C.F.R. §200.431(b) provides that the cost of fringe benefits in 



6 
 

the form of regular compensation paid to employees during periods of authorized absences from the job, 

such as for annual leave, family-related leave, sick leave, holidays, court leave, military leave, 

administrative leave, and other similar benefits, are allowable if all of the following criteria are met: 

i. They are provided under established written leave policies; 

ii. The costs are equitably allocated to all related activities, including Federal 

awards; and, 

iii. The accounting basis (cash or accrual) selected for costing each type of 

leave is consistently followed by the non-Federal entity or specified grouping of employees. 

h. If authorized by the Federal Awarding Agency, then the Division will reimburse the 

Sub-Recipient for travel expenses in accordance with 2 C.F.R. §200.474.  As required by the Reference 

Guide for State Expenditures, reimbursement for travel must be in accordance with section 112.061, 

Florida Statutes, which includes submission of the claim on the approved state travel voucher.  If the Sub-

Recipient seeks reimbursement for travel costs that exceed the amounts stated in section 112.061(6)(b), 

Florida Statutes ($6 for breakfast, $11 for lunch, and $19 for dinner), then the Sub-Recipient must provide 

documentation that: 

i. The costs are reasonable and do not exceed charges normally allowed by 

the Sub-Recipient in its regular operations as a result of the Sub-Recipient’s written travel policy; and, 

ii. Participation of the individual in the travel is necessary to the Federal award. 

i. The Division’s grant manager, as required by section 215.971(2)(c), Florida Statutes, 

shall reconcile and verify all funds received against all funds expended during the grant agreement period 

and produce a final reconciliation report.  The final report must identify any funds paid in excess of the 

expenditures incurred by the Sub-Recipient. 

j. As defined by 2 C.F.R. §200.1, the term “improper payment” means or includes: 

i. Any payment that should not have been made or that was made in an 

incorrect amount (including overpayments and underpayments) under statutory, contractual, 

administrative, or other legally applicable requirements; and, 

ii. Any payment to an ineligible party, any payment for an ineligible good or 

service, any duplicate payment, any payment for a good or service not received (except for such 

payments where authorized by law), any payment that does not account for credit for applicable 

discounts, and any payment where insufficient or lack of documentation prevents a reviewer from 

discerning whether a payment was proper. 

(10)  RECORDS 

a. As required by 2 C.F.R. §200.336, the Federal awarding agency, Inspectors General, 

the Comptroller General of the United States, and the Division, or any of their authorized representatives, 

shall enjoy the right of access to any documents, papers, or other records of the Sub-Recipient which are 

pertinent to the Federal award, in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts.  The right 



7 
 

of access also includes timely and reasonable access to the Sub-Recipient’s personnel for the purpose of 

interview and discussion related to such documents.  Finally, the right of access is not limited to the 

required retention period but lasts as long as the records are retained. 

b. As required by 2 C.F.R. §200.332(a)(5), the Division, the Chief Inspector General of 

the State of Florida, the Florida Auditor General, or any of their authorized representatives, shall enjoy the 

right of access to any documents, financial statements, papers, or other records of the Sub-Recipient 

which are pertinent to this Agreement, in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts.  

The right of access also includes timely and reasonable access to the Sub-Recipient’s personnel for the 

purpose of interview and discussion related to such documents. 

c. As required by Florida Department of State’s record retention requirements (Chapter 

119, Florida Statutes) and by 2 C.F.R. §200.334, the Sub-Recipient shall retain sufficient records to show 

its compliance with the terms of this Agreement, as well as the compliance of all subcontractors or 

consultants paid from funds under this Agreement, for a period of five (5) years from the date of 

submission of the final expenditure report.  The following are the only exceptions to the five (5) year 

requirement: 

i. If any litigation, claim, or audit is started before the expiration of the 5-year 

period, then the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, or audit findings involving the records 

have been resolved and final action taken. 

ii. When the Division or the Sub-Recipient is notified in writing by the Federal 

awarding agency, cognizant agency for audit, oversight agency for audit, cognizant agency for indirect 

costs, or pass-through entity to extend the retention period. 

iii. Records for real property and equipment acquired with Federal funds must 

be retained for 5 years after final disposition. 

iv. When records are transferred to or maintained by the Federal awarding 

agency or pass-through entity, the 5-year retention requirement is not applicable to the Sub-Recipient. 

v. Records for program income transactions after the period of performance.  In 

some cases, recipients must report program income after the period of performance.  Where there is such 

a requirement, the retention period for the records pertaining to the earning of the program income starts 

from the end of the non-Federal entity's fiscal year in which the program income is earned. 

vi. Indirect cost rate proposals and cost allocations plans.  This paragraph 

applies to the following types of documents and their supporting records:  indirect cost rate computations 

or proposals, cost allocation plans, and any similar accounting computations of the rate at which a 

particular group of costs is chargeable (such as computer usage chargeback rates or composite fringe 

benefit rates).  



8 
 

d. In accordance with 2 C.F.R. §200.335, the Federal awarding agency must request 

transfer of certain records to its custody from the Division or the Sub-Recipient when it determines that 

the records possess long-term retention value. 

e. In accordance with 2 C.F.R. §200.336, the Division must always provide or accept 

paper versions of Agreement information to and from the Sub-Recipient upon request.  If paper copies 

are submitted, then the Division must not require more than an original and two copies.  When original 

records are electronic and cannot be altered, there is no need to create and retain paper copies.  When 

original records are paper, electronic versions may be substituted through the use of duplication or other 

forms of electronic media provided that they are subject to periodic quality control reviews, provide 

reasonable safeguards against alteration, and remain readable. 

f. As required by 2 C.F.R. §200.303, the Sub-Recipient shall take reasonable measures 

to safeguard protected personally identifiable information and other information the Federal awarding 

agency or the Division designates as sensitive or the Sub-Recipient considers sensitive consistent with 

applicable Federal, state, local, and tribal laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality. 

g. Florida's Government in the Sunshine Law (Section 286.011, Florida Statutes) 

provides the citizens of Florida with a right of access to governmental proceedings and mandates three, 

basic requirements: (1) meetings of public boards or commissions must be open to the public; (2) 

reasonable notice of such meetings must be given; and, (3) minutes of the meetings must be taken and 

promptly recorded.  The mere receipt of public funds by a private entity, standing alone, is insufficient to 

bring that entity within the ambit of the open government requirements.  However, the Government in the 

Sunshine Law applies to private entities that provide services to governmental agencies and that act on 

behalf of those agencies in the agencies' performance of their public duties.  If a public agency delegates 

the performance of its public purpose to a private entity, then, to the extent that private entity is 

performing that public purpose, the Government in the Sunshine Law applies.  For example, if a volunteer 

fire department provides firefighting services to a governmental entity and uses facilities and equipment 

purchased with public funds, then the Government in the Sunshine Law applies to board of directors for 

that volunteer fire department.  Thus, to the extent that the Government in the Sunshine Law applies to 

the Sub-Recipient based upon the funds provided under this Agreement, the meetings of the Sub-

Recipient's governing board or the meetings of any subcommittee making recommendations to the 

governing board may be subject to open government requirements.  These meetings shall be publicly 

noticed, open to the public, and the minutes of all the meetings shall be public records, available to the 

public in accordance with chapter 119, Florida Statutes. 

h. Florida's Public Records Law provides a right of access to the records of the state 

and local governments as well as to private entities acting on their behalf.  Unless specifically exempted 

from disclosure by the Legislature, all materials made or received by a governmental agency (or a private 

entity acting on behalf of such an agency) in conjunction with official business which are used to 



9 
 

perpetuate, communicate, or formalize knowledge qualify as public records subject to public inspection.  

The mere receipt of public funds by a private entity, standing alone, is insufficient to bring that entity 

within the ambit of the public record requirements.  However, when a public entity delegates a public 

function to a private entity, the records generated by the private entity's performance of that duty become 

public records.  Thus, the nature and scope of the services provided by a private entity determine whether 

that entity is acting on behalf of a public agency and is therefore subject to the requirements of Florida's 

Public Records Law. 

i. The Sub-Recipient shall maintain all records for the Sub-Recipient and for all 

subcontractors or consultants to be paid from funds provided under this Agreement, including 

documentation of all program costs, in a form sufficient to determine compliance with the requirements 

and objectives of the Budget and Scope of Work - Attachment A - and all other applicable laws and 

regulations. 

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 
CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING 
TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC 
RECORDS AT: (850) 815-7671 Records@em.myflorida.com, or 2555 
Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, FL 32399. 

(11)  AUDITS 

a. The Sub-Recipient shall comply with the audit requirements contained in 2 C.F.R. 

Part 200, Subpart F. 

b. In accounting for the receipt and expenditure of funds under this Agreement, the 

Sub-Recipient shall follow Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”).  As defined by 2 C.F.R. 

§200.1, GAAP “has the meaning specified in accounting standards issued by the Government Accounting 

Standards Board (GASB) and the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB).” 

c. When conducting an audit of the Sub-Recipient’s performance under this Agreement, 

the Division shall use Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards (“GAGAS”).  As defined by 2 

C.F.R. §200.1, GAGAS, “also known as the Yellow Book, means generally accepted government auditing 

standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, which are applicable to financial 

audits.”   

d. If an audit shows that all or any portion of the funds disbursed were not spent in 

accordance with the conditions of this Agreement, the Sub-Recipient shall be held liable for 

reimbursement to the Division of all funds not spent in accordance with these applicable regulations and 

Agreement provisions within thirty (30) days after the Division has notified the Sub-Recipient of such non-

compliance. 



10 
 

e. The Sub-Recipient shall have all audits completed by an independent auditor, which 

is defined in section 215.97(2)(i), Florida Statutes, as “an independent certified public accountant licensed 

under chapter 473.”  The independent auditor shall state that the audit complied with the applicable 

provisions noted above.  The audit must be received by the Division no later than nine months from the 

end of the Sub-Recipient’s fiscal year. 

f. The Sub-Recipient shall send copies of reporting packages for audits conducted in 

accordance with 2 C.F.R. Part 200, by or on behalf of the Sub-Recipient, to the Division at the following 

address: 

DEMSingle_Audit@em.myflorida.com 

OR 

Office of the Inspector General 

2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100 

g. The Sub-Recipient shall send the Single Audit reporting package and Form SF-SAC 

to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse by submission online at:   

http://harvester.census.gov/fac/collect/ddeindex.html 

h. The Sub-Recipient shall send any management letter issued by the auditor to the 

Division at the following address:  

DEMSingle_Audit@em.myflorida.com 

OR 

Office of the Inspector General 

2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100 

(12)  REPORTS 

a. Consistent with 2 C.F.R. §200.328, the Sub-Recipient shall provide the Division with 

quarterly reports and a close-out report.  These reports shall include the current status and progress by 

the Sub-Recipient and all subcontractors in completing the work described in the Scope of Work and the 

expenditure of funds under this Agreement, in addition to any other information requested by the Division. 

b. Quarterly reports are due to the Division no later than fifteen (15) days after the end 

of each quarter of the program year and shall be sent each quarter until submission of the administrative 

close-out report.  The ending dates for each quarter of the program year are March 31, June 30, 

September 30, and December 31. 

c. The close-out report is due sixty (60) days after termination of this Agreement or sixty 

(60) days after completion of the activities contained in this Agreement, whichever first occurs. 



11 
 

d. If all required reports and copies are not sent to the Division or are not completed in a 

manner acceptable to the Division, then the Division may withhold further payments until they are 

completed or may take other action as stated in Paragraph (16) REMEDIES.   "Acceptable to the 

Division" means that the work product was completed in accordance with the Budget and Scope of Work. 

e. The Sub-Recipient shall provide additional program updates or information that may 

be required by the Division. 

f. The Sub-Recipient shall provide additional reports and information identified in 

Attachment F. 

(13)  MONITORING 

a. The Sub-Recipient shall monitor its performance under this Agreement, as well as 

that of its subcontractors and/or consultants who are paid from funds provided under this Agreement, to 

ensure that time schedules are being met, the Schedule of Deliverables and Scope of Work are being 

accomplished within the specified time periods, and other performance goals are being achieved.  A 

review shall be done for each function or activity in Attachment A to this Agreement and reported in the 

quarterly report. 

b. In addition to reviews of audits, monitoring procedures may include, but not be limited 

to, on-site visits by Division staff, limited scope audits, and/or other procedures.  The Sub-Recipient 

agrees to comply and cooperate with any monitoring procedures/processes deemed appropriate by the 

Division.  In the event that the Division determines that a limited scope audit of the Sub-Recipient is 

appropriate, the Sub-Recipient agrees to comply with any additional instructions provided by the Division 

to the Sub-Recipient regarding such audit.  The Sub-Recipient further agrees to comply and cooperate 

with any inspections, reviews, investigations or audits deemed necessary by the Florida Chief Financial 

Officer or Auditor General.  In addition, the Division will monitor the performance and financial 

management by the Sub-Recipient throughout the contract term to ensure timely completion of all tasks. 

(14)  LIABILITY 
a. Unless Sub-Recipient is a State agency or subdivision, as defined in section 

768.28(2), Florida Statutes, the Sub-Recipient is solely responsible to parties it deals with in carrying out 

the terms of this Agreement and, as authorized by section 768.28(19), Florida Statutes, Sub-Recipient 

shall hold the Division harmless against all claims of whatever nature by third parties arising from the 

work performance under this Agreement.  For purposes of this Agreement, Sub-Recipient agrees that it is 

not an employee or agent of the Division, but is an independent contractor.   

b. As required by section 768.28(19), Florida Statutes, any Sub-Recipient which is a 

state agency or subdivision, as defined in section 768.28(2), Florida Statutes, agrees to be fully 

responsible for its negligent or tortious acts or omissions which result in claims or suits against the 

Division, and agrees to be liable for any damages proximately caused by the acts or omissions to the 

extent set forth in section 768.28, Florida Statutes.  Nothing herein is intended to serve as a waiver of 



12 
 

sovereign immunity by any Sub-Recipient to which sovereign immunity applies.  Nothing herein shall be 

construed as consent by a state agency or subdivision of the State of Florida to be sued by third parties in 

any matter arising out of any contract.   

(15)  DEFAULT 

If any of the following events occur ("Events of Default"), all obligations on the part of the 

Division to make further payment of funds shall terminate and the Division has the option to exercise any 

of its remedies set forth in Paragraph (16); however, the Division may make payments or partial payments 

after any Events of Default without waiving the right to exercise such remedies, and without becoming 

liable to make any further payment if: 

a. Any warranty or representation made by the Sub-Recipient in this Agreement or any 

previous agreement with the Division is or becomes false or misleading in any respect, or if the Sub-

Recipient fails to keep or perform any of the obligations, terms or covenants in this Agreement or any 

previous agreement with the Division and has not cured them in timely fashion, or is unable or unwilling to 

meet its obligations under this Agreement; 

b. Material adverse changes occur in the financial condition of the Sub-Recipient at any 

time during the term of this Agreement, and the Sub-Recipient fails to cure this adverse change within 

thirty (30) days from the date written notice is sent by the Division; 

c. Any reports required by this Agreement have not been submitted to the Division or 

have been submitted with incorrect, incomplete or insufficient information; or, 

d. The Sub-Recipient has failed to perform and complete on time any of its obligations 

under this Agreement. 

(16)  REMEDIES 

If an Event of Default occurs, then the Division shall, after thirty (30) calendar days 

written notice to the Sub-Recipient and upon the Sub-Recipient's failure to cure within those thirty (30) 

days, exercise any one or more of the following remedies, either concurrently or consecutively:  

a. Terminate this Agreement, provided that the Sub-Recipient is given at least thirty (30) 

days prior written notice of the termination.  The notice shall be effective when placed in the United 

States, first class mail, postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail-return receipt requested, to the 

address in paragraph (3) herein; 

b. Begin an appropriate legal or equitable action to enforce performance of this 

Agreement; 

c. Withhold or suspend payment of all or any part of a request for payment; 

d. Require that the Sub-Recipient refund to the Division any monies used for ineligible 

purposes under the laws, rules and regulations governing the use of these funds.   

e. Exercise any corrective or remedial actions, to include but not be limited to: 



13 
 

i. Request additional information from the Sub-Recipient to determine the 

reasons for or the extent of non-compliance or lack of performance,  

ii. Issue a written warning to advise that more serious measures may be taken 

if the situation is not corrected,  

iii. Advise the Sub-Recipient to suspend, discontinue or refrain from incurring 

costs for any activities in question or  

iv. Require the Sub-Recipient to reimburse the Division for the amount of costs 

incurred for any items determined to be ineligible;  

f. Exercise any other rights or remedies which may be available under law. 

Pursuing any of the above remedies will not stop the Division from pursuing any other 

remedies in this Agreement or provided at law or in equity.  If the Division waives any right or remedy in 

this Agreement or fails to insist on strict performance by the Sub-Recipient, it will not affect, extend or 

waive any other right or remedy of the Division, or affect the later exercise of the same right or remedy by 

the Division for any other default by the Sub-Recipient.   

(17)  TERMINATION 

a. The Division may terminate this Agreement for cause after thirty (30) days written 

notice.  Cause can include misuse of funds, fraud, lack of compliance with applicable rules, laws and 

regulations, failure to perform on time, and refusal by the Sub-Recipient to permit public access to any 

document, paper, letter, or other material subject to disclosure under chapter 119, Florida Statutes, as 

amended. 

b. The Division may terminate this Agreement for convenience or when it determines, in 

its sole discretion that continuing the Agreement would not produce beneficial results in line with the 

further expenditure of funds, by providing the Sub-Recipient with thirty (30) calendar day’s prior written 

notice. 

c. The parties may agree to terminate this Agreement for their mutual convenience 

through a written amendment of this Agreement.  The amendment will state the effective date of the 

termination and the procedures for proper closeout of the Agreement. 

d. In the event that this Agreement is terminated, the Sub-Recipient will not incur new 

obligations for the terminated portion of the Agreement after the Sub-Recipient has received the 

notification of termination.  The Sub-Recipient will cancel as many outstanding obligations as possible.  

Costs incurred after receipt of the termination notice will be disallowed.   The Sub-Recipient shall not be 

relieved of liability to the Division because of any breach of Agreement by the Sub-Recipient.  The 

Division may, to the extent authorized by law, withhold payments to the Sub-Recipient for the purpose of 

set-off until the exact amount of damages due the Division from the Sub-Recipient is determined.  

(18)  PROCUREMENT 



14 
 

a. The Sub-Recipient shall ensure that any procurement involving funds authorized by 

the Agreement complies with all applicable federal and state laws and regulations, to include 2 C.F.R. 

§§200.318 through 200.327 as well as Appendix II to 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (entitled “Contract Provisions for 

Non-Federal Entity Contracts Under Federal Awards”). 

b. As required by 2 C.F.R. §200.318(i), the Sub-Recipient shall “maintain records 

sufficient to detail the history of procurement.  These records will include, but are not necessarily limited 

to the following:  rationale for the method of procurement, selection of contract type, contractor selection 

or rejection, and the basis for the contract price.” 

c. As required by 2 C.F.R. §200.318(b), the Sub-Recipient shall “maintain oversight to 

ensure that contractors perform in accordance with the terms, conditions, and specifications of their 

contracts or purchase orders.”  In order to demonstrate compliance with this requirement, the Sub-

Recipient shall document, in its quarterly report to the Division, the progress of any and all subcontractors 

performing work under this Agreement. 

d. The Sub-Recipient agrees to include in the subcontract that (i) the subcontractor is 

bound by the terms of this Agreement, (ii) the subcontractor is bound by all applicable state and federal 

laws and regulations, and (iii) the subcontractor shall hold the Division and Sub-Recipient harmless 

against all claims of whatever nature arising out of the subcontractor's performance of work under this 

Agreement, to the extent allowed and required by law. 

e. As required by 2 C.F.R. §200.318(c)(1), the Sub-Recipient shall “maintain written 

standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and governing the actions of its employees engaged in 

the selection, award and administration of contracts.” 

f. As required by 2 C.F.R. §200.319(a), the Sub-Recipient shall conduct any 

procurement under this agreement “in a manner providing full and open competition.”  Accordingly, the 

Sub-Recipient shall not: 

i. Place unreasonable requirements on firms in order for them to qualify to do 

business; 

ii. Require unnecessary experience or excessive bonding; 

iii. Use noncompetitive pricing practices between firms or between affiliated 

companies; 

iv. Execute noncompetitive contracts to consultants that are on retainer 

contracts; 

v. Authorize, condone, or ignore organizational conflicts of interest; 

vi. Specify only a brand name product without allowing vendors to offer an 

equivalent; 



15 
 

vii. Specify a brand name product instead of describing the performance, 

specifications, or other relevant requirements that pertain to the commodity or service solicited by the 

procurement; 

viii. Engage in any arbitrary action during the procurement process; or, 

ix. Allow a vendor to bid on a contract if that bidder was involved with 

developing or drafting the specifications, requirements, statement of work, invitation to bid, or request for 

proposals. 

g. “[E]xcept in those cases where applicable Federal statutes expressly mandate or 

encourage” otherwise, the Sub-Recipient, as required by 2 C.F.R. §200.319(c), shall not use a 

geographic preference when procuring commodities or services under this Agreement. 

h. The Sub-Recipient shall conduct any procurement involving invitations to bid (i.e. 

sealed bids) in accordance with 2 C.F.R. §200.320(d) as well as section 287.057(1)(a), Florida Statutes. 

i. The Sub-Recipient shall conduct any procurement involving requests for proposals 

(i.e. competitive proposals) in accordance with 2 C.F.R. §200.320(2) as well as section 287.057(1)(b), 

Florida Statutes. 

j. For each subcontract, the Sub-Recipient shall provide a written statement to the 

Division as to whether that subcontractor is a minority business enterprise, as defined in section 288.703, 

Florida Statutes.  Additionally, the Sub-Recipient shall comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. §200.321 

(“Contracting with small and minority businesses, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area 

firms”). 

k. If the Sub-Recipient chooses to subcontract any of the work required under this 

Agreement, then the Sub-Recipient shall review its competitive solicitation and subsequent contract to be 

awarded for compliance with the procurement standards in 2 C.F.R. §§200.318 through 200.327 and 

required contract provisions in Appendix II to 2 C.F.R. Part 200. If the Sub-Recipient publishes a 

competitive solicitation or executes a contract that is not in compliance with the Federal procurement 

standards in 2 C.F.R. §§200.318 through 200.327 or the requirements of Appendix II to 2 C.F.R. Part 

200, then the Sub-Recipient is on notice that the Division may:   

a) Terminate this Agreement in accordance with the provisions outlined in 

paragraph (17) above; or,  

b)  Refuse to reimburse the Sub-Recipient for any costs associated with that 

solicitation.  

l. FEMA has developed helpful resources for subgrant recipients related to compliance 

with the Federal procurement standards in 2 C.F.R. §§200.318 through 200.327 and required contract 

provisions in Appendix II to 2 C.F.R. Part 200.  These resources are generally available at 

https://www.fema.gov/procurement-disaster-assistance-team.   



16 
 

(19)  ATTACHMENTS 

a. All attachments to this Agreement are incorporated as if set out fully. 

b. In the event of any inconsistencies or conflict between the language of this 

Agreement and the attachments, the language of the attachments shall control, but only to the extent of 

the conflict or inconsistency. 

c. This Agreement has the following attachments: 
i. Exhibit 1 - Funding Sources 

ii. Attachment A – Budget and Scope of Work 

iii. Attachment B – Program Statutes and Regulations  

iv. Attachment C – Statement of Assurances 

v. Attachment D – Request for Advance or Reimbursement 

vi. Attachment E – Justification of Advance Payment 

vii. Attachment F – Quarterly Report Form 

viii. Attachment G – Warranties and Representations  

ix. Attachment H – Certification Regarding Debarment  

x. Attachment I – Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act 

xi. Attachment J – Mandatory Contract Provisions 

xii. Attachment K – Certification Regarding Lobbying 

(20)  PAYMENTS 

a. Any advance payment under this Agreement is subject to 2 C.F.R. §200.305 and, as 

applicable, section 216.181(16), Florida Statutes.  All advances are required to be held in an interest-

bearing account.  If an advance payment is requested, the budget data on which the request is based and 

a justification statement shall be included in this Agreement as Attachment E.  Attachment E will specify 

the amount of advance payment needed and provide an explanation of the necessity for and proposed 

use of these funds.  No advance shall be accepted for processing if a reimbursement has been paid prior 

to the submittal of a request for advanced payment.  After the initial advance, if any, payment shall be 

made on a reimbursement basis as needed. 

b. Invoices shall be submitted at least quarterly and shall include the supporting 

documentation for all costs of the project or services.  The final invoice shall be submitted within sixty (60) 

days after the expiration date of the agreement.  An explanation of any circumstances prohibiting the 

submittal of quarterly invoices shall be submitted to the Division grant manager as part of the Sub-

Recipient’s quarterly reporting as referenced in Paragraph (12) of this Agreement. 

c. If the necessary funds are not available to fund this Agreement as a result of action 

by the United States Congress, the federal Office of Management and Budgeting, the State Chief 

Financial Officer or under subparagraph (9)b. of this Agreement, all obligations on the part of the Division 



17 
 

to make any further payment of funds shall terminate, and the Sub-Recipient shall submit its closeout 

report within thirty (30) days of receiving notice from the Division. 

(21)  REPAYMENTS  

a. All refunds or repayments due to the Division under this Agreement are to be made 

payable to the order of “Division of Emergency Management”, and mailed directly to the following 

address: 

Division of Emergency Management 

Cashier 

2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard 

Tallahassee FL 32399-2100 

b. In accordance with section 215.34(2), Florida Statutes, if a check or other draft is 

returned to the Division for collection, Sub-Recipient shall pay the Division a service fee of $15.00 or 5% 

of the face amount of the returned check or draft, whichever is greater. 

(22)  MANDATED CONDITIONS  

a. The validity of this Agreement is subject to the truth and accuracy of all the 

information, representations, and materials submitted or provided by the Sub-Recipient in this Agreement, 

in any later submission or response to a Division request, or in any submission or response to fulfill the 

requirements of this Agreement.  All of said information, representations, and materials are incorporated 

by reference.  The inaccuracy of the submissions or any material changes shall, at the option of the 

Division and with thirty (30) days written notice to the Sub-Recipient, cause the termination of this 

Agreement and the release of the Division from all its obligations to the Sub-Recipient.  
b. This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the State of Florida, and venue 

for any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be in the Circuit Court of Leon County.  If any provision 

of this Agreement is in conflict with any applicable statute or rule, or is unenforceable, then the provision 

shall be null and void to the extent of the conflict, and shall be severable, but shall not invalidate any other 

provision of this Agreement. 

c. Any power of approval or disapproval granted to the Division under the terms of this 

Agreement shall survive the term of this Agreement. 

d. The Sub-Recipient agrees to comply with the Americans With Disabilities Act (Public 

Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. Section 12101 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination by public and private 

entities on the basis of disability in employment, public accommodations, transportation, State and local 

government services, and telecommunications. 

e. Those who have been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a 

public entity crime or on the discriminatory vendor list may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any 

goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the 

construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to 



18 
 

a public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or 

consultant under a contract with a public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in 

excess of $25,000.00 for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list  

or on the discriminatory vendor list.  

f. Any Sub-Recipient which is not a local government or state agency, and which 

receives funds under this Agreement from the federal government, certifies, to the best of its knowledge 

and belief, that it and its principals or affiliates: 

i. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, voluntarily excluded or disqualified from covered transactions by a federal department or 

agency; 

ii. Have not, within a five-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of 

or had a civil judgment rendered against them for  fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, 

attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state or local) transaction or contract under public 

transaction; violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, 

bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

iii. Are not presently indicted or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 

governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any offenses enumerated in paragraph 

(22) f. ii. of this certification; and, 

iv. Have not within a five-year period preceding this Agreement had one or more 

public transactions (federal, state or local) terminated for cause or default. 

g. In addition, the Sub-Recipient shall send to the Division (by email or by 
facsimile transmission) the completed “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, 
Ineligibility And Voluntary Exclusion” (Attachment H) for each intended subcontractor which Sub-
Recipient plans to fund under this Agreement.  The form must be received by the Division before 
the Sub-Recipient enters into a contract with any subcontractor. 

h. The Division reserves the right to unilaterally cancel this Agreement if the Sub-

Recipient refuses to allow public access to all documents, papers, letters or other material subject to the 

provisions of chapter 119, Florida Statutes, which the Sub-Recipient created or received under this 

Agreement. 

i. If the Sub-Recipient is allowed to temporarily invest any advances of funds under this 

Agreement, any interest income shall either be returned to the Division or be applied against the 

Division’s obligation to pay the contract amount. 

j. The State of Florida will not intentionally award publicly-funded contracts to any 

contractor who knowingly employs unauthorized alien workers, constituting a violation of the employment 

provisions contained in 8 U.S.C. Section 1324a(e) [Section 274A(e) of the Immigration and Nationality Act 

(“INA”)].  The Division shall consider the employment by any contractor of unauthorized aliens a violation 



19 
 

of Section 274A(e) of the INA.  Such violation by the Sub-Recipient of the employment provisions 

contained in Section 274A(e) of the INA shall be grounds for unilateral cancellation of this Agreement by 

the Division.   

k. Section 287.05805, Florida Statutes, requires that any state funds provided for the 

purchase of or improvements to real property are contingent upon the contractor or political subdivision 

granting to the state a security interest in the property at least to the amount of state funds provided for at 

least 5 years from the date of purchase or the completion of the improvements or as further required by 

law.  

l. The Division may, at its option, terminate the Contract if the Contractor is found to 

have submitted a false certification as provided under section 287.135(5), Florida Statutes, or been 

placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with 

Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or been engaged in business operations in Cuba or 

Syria, or to have been placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in a 

boycott of Israel. 

(23)  LOBBYING PROHIBITION 

a. 2 C.F.R. §200.450 prohibits reimbursement for costs associated with certain lobbying 

activities. 

b. Section 216.347, Florida Statutes, prohibits “any disbursement of grants and aids 

appropriations pursuant to a contract or grant to any person or organization unless the terms of the grant 

or contract prohibit the expenditure of funds for the purpose of lobbying the Legislature, the judicial 

branch, or a state agency.” 

c. No funds or other resources received from the Division under this Agreement may be 

used directly or indirectly to influence legislation or any other official action by the Florida Legislature or 

any state agency. 

d. The Sub-Recipient certifies, by its signature to this Agreement, that to the best of his 

or her knowledge and belief: 

i. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on 

behalf of the Sub-Recipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 

employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of 

a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any 

Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the 

extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan or 

cooperative agreement.   

ii. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be 

paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 

Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 



20 
 

connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement, the Sub-Recipient shall 

complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities."  

iii. The Sub-Recipient shall require that this certification be included in the 

award documents for all subawards (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, 

loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all Sub-Recipients shall certify and disclose. 

iv. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was 

placed when this transaction was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite 

for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code.  Any person 

who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not 

more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

(24)  COPYRIGHT, PATENT AND TRADEMARK 

EXCEPT AS PROVIDED BELOW, ANY AND ALL PATENT RIGHTS ACCRUING 
UNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT ARE HEREBY 
RESERVED TO THE STATE OF FLORIDA; AND, ANY AND ALL COPYRIGHTS ACCRUING UNDER 
OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT ARE HEREBY 
TRANSFERRED BY THE SUB-RECIPIENT TO THE STATE OF FLORIDA.  

a. If the Sub-Recipient has a pre-existing patent or copyright, the Sub-Recipient shall 

retain all rights and entitlements to that pre-existing patent or copyright unless the Agreement provides 

otherwise. 

b. If any discovery or invention is developed in the course of or as a result of work or 

services performed under this Agreement, or in any way connected with it, the Sub-Recipient shall refer 

the discovery or invention to the Division for a determination whether the State of Florida will seek patent 

protection in its name.  Any patent rights accruing under or in connection with the performance of this 

Agreement are reserved to the State of Florida.  If any books, manuals, films, or other copyrightable 

material are produced, the Sub-Recipient shall notify the Division.  Any copyrights accruing under or in 

connection with the performance under this Agreement are transferred by the Sub-Recipient to the State 

of Florida. 

c. Within thirty (30) days of execution of this Agreement, the Sub-Recipient shall 

disclose all intellectual properties relating to the performance of this Agreement which he or she knows or 

should know could give rise to a patent or copyright.  The Sub-Recipient shall retain all rights and 

entitlements to any pre-existing intellectual property which is disclosed.  Failure to disclose will indicate 

that no such property exists.  The Division shall then, under Paragraph (24) b., have the right to all 

patents and copyrights which accrue during performance of the Agreement. 

d. If the Sub-Recipient qualifies as a state university under Florida law, then, pursuant 

to section 1004.23, Florida Statutes, any invention conceived exclusively by the employees of the Sub-

Recipient shall become the sole property of the Sub-Recipient.  In the case of joint inventions, that is 



21 
 

inventions made jointly by one or more employees of both parties hereto, each party shall have an equal, 

undivided interest in and to such joint inventions.  The Division shall retain a perpetual, irrevocable, fully-

paid, nonexclusive license, for its use and the use of its contractors of any resulting patented, copyrighted 

or trademarked work products, developed solely by the Sub-Recipient, under this Agreement, for Florida 

government purposes. 

(25)  LEGAL AUTHORIZATION 

The Sub-Recipient certifies that it has the legal authority to receive the funds under this 

Agreement and that its governing body has authorized the execution and acceptance of this Agreement.  

The Sub-Recipient also certifies that the undersigned person has the authority to legally execute and bind 

Sub-Recipient to the terms of this Agreement. 

(26)  EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT 

a. In accordance with 41 C.F.R. §60-1.4(b), the Sub-Recipient hereby agrees that it will 

incorporate or cause to be incorporated into any contract for construction work, or modification thereof, as 

defined in the regulations of the Secretary of Labor at 41 C.F.R. Chapter 60, which is paid for in whole or 

in part with funds obtained from the Federal Government or borrowed on the credit of the Federal 

Government pursuant to a grant, contract, loan insurance, or guarantee, or undertaken pursuant to any 

Federal program involving such grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee, the following equal 

opportunity clause: 

 
During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows: 
 

i. The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or 
applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, or national origin.  The contractor will take 
affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that 
employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, 
color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin.  
Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following:   
 
Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment 
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of 
compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The 
contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees 
and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the 
provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

 
ii. The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for 

employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all 
qualified applicants will receive considerations for employment without 
regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or 
national origin. 

 
iii. The contractor will not discharge or in any other manner 

discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because 



22 
 

such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed 
the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or 
applicant.  This provision shall not apply to instances in which an 
employee who has access to the compensation information of other 
employees or applicants as a part of such employee’s essential job 
functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or 
applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such 
information, unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint 
or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or 
action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is 
consistent with the contractor’s legal duty to furnish information.  

 
iv. The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of 

workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other 
contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor 
union or workers’ representatives of the contractor’s commitments under 
this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places 
available to employees and applicants for employment. 

 
v. The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 

11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant 
orders of the Secretary of Labor. 

 
vi. The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by 

Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, 
regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, 
and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the 
administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of 
investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and 
orders. 

 
vii. In the event of the contractor’s noncompliance with the 

nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, 
regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or 
suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared 
ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted 
construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in 
Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions 
may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 
11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the 
Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law. 

 
viii. The contractor will include the portion of the sentence 

immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the provisions of paragraphs 
(1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted 
by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant 
to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that 
such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.  The 
contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or 
purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of 
enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance: 

 
Provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or 
is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of 



23 
 

such direction by the administering agency the contractor may request 
the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of 
the United States. 

 

b. The Sub-Recipient further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity 

clause with respect to its own employment practices when it participates in federally assisted construction 

work:  Provided, that if the applicant so participating is a State or local government, the above equal 

opportunity clause is not applicable to any agency, instrumentality or subdivision of such government 

which does not participate in work on or under the contract. 

c. The Sub-Recipient agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with the 

administering agency and the Secretary of Labor in obtaining the compliance of contractors and 

subcontractors with the equal opportunity clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the 

Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor such 

information as they may require for the supervision of such compliance, and that it will otherwise assist 

the administering agency in the discharge of the agency’s primary responsibility for securing compliance. 

d. The Sub-Recipient further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or 

contract modification subject to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a contractor 

debarred from, or who has not demonstrated eligibility for, Government contracts and federally assisted 

construction contracts pursuant to the Executive order and will carry out such sanctions and penalties for 

violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be imposed upon contractors and subcontractors by the 

administering agency or the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Part II, Subpart D of the Executive order.  In 

addition, the Sub-Recipient agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply with these undertakings, the 

administering agency may take any or all of the following actions:  cancel, terminate, or suspend in whole 

or in part this grant (contract, loan, insurance, guarantee); refrain from extending any further assistance to 

the Sub-Recipient under the program with respect to which the failure or refund occurred until satisfactory 

assurance of future compliance has been received from such Sub-Recipient; and refer the case to the 

Department of Justice for appropriate legal proceedings. 

(27)  COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACT 

The Sub-Recipient hereby agrees that, unless exempt under Federal law, it will 

incorporate or cause to be incorporated into any contract for construction work, or modification thereof, 

the following clause: 

i. Contractor.  The contractor shall comply with 18 U.S.C. § 874, 
40 U.S.C. § 3145, and the requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 3 as may be 
applicable, which are incorporated by reference into this contract. 

 
ii. Subcontracts.  The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any 

subcontracts the clause above and such other clauses as the FEMA may 
by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the 
subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts.  



24 
 

The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any 
subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all of these contract 
clauses. 

 
iii. Breach.  A breach of the contract clauses above may be grounds 

for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and 
subcontractor as provided in 29 C.F.R. § 5.12. 

 

(28)  CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS 

If the Sub-Recipient, with the funds authorized by this Agreement, enters into a contract 

that exceeds $100,000 and involves the employment of mechanics or laborers, then any such contract 

must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department 

of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. Part 5).  Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be 

required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 

hours.  Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated 

at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 

hours in the work week.  The requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable to construction work and 

provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions 

which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous.  These requirements do not apply to the purchases of 

supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for transportation. 

(29)  CLEAN AIR ACT AND THE FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT 

If the Sub-Recipient, with the funds authorized by this Agreement, enters into a contract 

that exceeds $150,000, then any such contract must include the following provision: 

Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or 
regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) 
and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 
1251-1387), and will report violations to FEMA and the Regional Office of 
the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). 

(30)  SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT 

If the Sub-Recipient, with the funds authorized by this Agreement, enters into a contract, 

then any such contract must include the following provisions: 

i. This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. 
pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000.  As such the contractor is required to 
verify that none of the contractor, its principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 
180.995), or its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded 
(defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 
180.935). 

 
ii. The contractor must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 

2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C and must include a requirement to comply 
with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into. 

 



25 
 

iii. This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon 
by the Division.  If it is later determined that the contractor did not comply 
with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, in 
addition to remedies available to the Division, the Federal Government 
may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension 
and/or debarment. 

 
iv. The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements 

of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C while this 
offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise 
from this offer.  The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a 
provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered transactions. 

(31)  BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT 

If the Sub-Recipient, with the funds authorized by this Agreement, enters into a contract, 

then any such contract must include the following clause: 

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended).  
Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file 
the required certification.  Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will 
not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or 
organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with 
obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 
U.S.C. § 1352.  Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with non-
Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal 
award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the 
recipient. 

 
If this subgrant agreement amount is $100,000 or more, the Sub-Recipient, and 

subcontractors as applicable, shall sign Attachment K – Certification Regarding Lobbying. 

(32)  CONTRACTING WITH SMALL AND MINORITY BUSINESSES, WOMEN’S BUSINESS 

ENTERPRISES, AND LABOR SURPLUS AREA FIRMS 

a. If the Sub-Recipient, with the funds authorized by this Agreement, seeks to procure 

goods or services, then, in accordance with 2 C.F.R. §200.321, the Sub-Recipient shall take the following 

affirmative steps to assure that minority businesses, women’s business enterprises, and labor surplus 

area firms are used whenever possible: 

i. Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business 

enterprises on solicitation lists; 

ii. Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business 

enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources; 

iii. Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or 

quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business 

enterprises; 



26 
 

iv. Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which 

encourage participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; 

v. Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as 

the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of 

Commerce; and 

vi. Requiring the prime contractor, if subcontracts are to be let, to take the 

affirmative steps listed in paragraphs i. through v. of this subparagraph. 

b. The requirement outlined in subparagraph a. above, sometimes referred to as 

“socioeconomic contracting,” does not impose an obligation to set aside either the solicitation or award of 

a contract to these types of firms.  Rather, the requirement only imposes an obligation to carry out and 

document the six affirmative steps identified above. 

c. The “socioeconomic contracting” requirement outlines the affirmative steps that the 

Sub-Recipient must take; the requirements do not preclude the Sub-Recipient from undertaking additional 

steps to involve small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises. 

d. The requirement to divide total requirements, when economically feasible, into 

smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and 

women’s business enterprises, does not authorize the Sub-Recipient to break a single project down into 

smaller components in order to circumvent the micro-purchase or small purchase thresholds so as to 

utilize streamlined acquisition procedures (e.g. “project splitting”). 

(33)  ASSURANCES 

The Sub-Recipient shall comply with any Statement of Assurances incorporated as 

Attachment C. 

  



27 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement. 

 
 
SUB-RECIPIENT:   CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG     

 

By: ____________________________________________________ 

Name and Title: __________________________________________ 

Date: _______________________  

FEID#: _________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DIVISION OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
 
By: _________________________________________________ 

Name and Title:  Kevin Guthrie, Director      

 

Date:____________________________________ 

 

 



28 
 

EXHIBIT – 1 
 

THE FOLLOWING FEDERAL RESOURCES ARE AWARDED TO THE SUB-RECIPIENT UNDER THIS 

AGREEMENT: 

 

Federal Program 
 Federal agency: Federal Emergency Management Agency: Hazard Mitigation Grant 
 Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance title and number: 97.039 
 Award amount:  $ 443,650.00 
 

THE FOLLOWING COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS APPLY TO THE FEDERAL RESOURCES 
AWARDED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT: 

 2 C.F.R. Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards 

 The Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act, Public Law 93-288, as 
amended, 42 U.S.C. 5121 et seq., and Related Authorities 

 Sections 1361(A) of the National Flood Insurance Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 4104c, as amended by 
the National Flood Insurance Reform Act of 1994, Public Law 103-325 and the Bunning-Bereuter-
Blumenauer Flood Insurance Reform Act of 2004, Public Law 108-264 

 31 C.F.R. Part 205 Rules and Procedures for Funds Transfers 
 

Federal Program: 

1. Sub-Recipient is to use funding to perform the following eligible activities: 

 Generators for Critical Facilities 
 Other projects that reduce future disaster losses (Hurricane Safe Room)  

 
2. Sub-Recipient is subject to all administrative and financial requirements as set forth in this 

Agreement, or will be in violation of the terms of the Agreement. 



29 
 

Attachment A 
Budget and Scope of Work 

 
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this Scope of Work is Code-Plus hardening and a safe room designed to FEMA P-361 
standards within the Cosme Water Treatment Plant in Odessa, Pinellas County, Florida, funded through 
the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) DR-4486-091-R, as approved by the Florida Division of 
Emergency Management (Division) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).   

The Sub-Recipient, City of St. Petersburg, shall conduct Phase I – Design of this project, which includes 
the engineering designs and calculations, surveys, permitting, and notices.  No construction activities are 
approved at this time.  The Sub-Recipient shall complete the Phase I work in accordance with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations and codes.   

PROJECT OVERVIEW: 

As a Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) project, the Sub-Recipient shall provide above code wind 
protection, internal hurricane safe room capabilities and backup power for a new Emergency Operations 
Center (EOC) to be constructed within the Cosme Water Treatment Plant located at 16015 Race Track 
Road, Odessa, Florida 33556.  Coordinates: (28.09610, -82.59700). 

The scope is for Phase I only, which includes but is not limited to surveying, engineering, designing, plans 
preparation, permitting and bidding for the proposed project, for Phase II approval.  No construction 
activities for this project have been approved. 

When completed, the Sub-Recipient shall provide necessary information in the Phase I deliverables for 
the Phase II review of the following proposed activities. 

The Phase II proposed scope of work shall implement a code plus and hurricane safe room project that 
includes all hardening activities to provide above code wind protection to the new EOC, including FEMA 
361-compliant internal safe room areas within this critical facility.  The new two-story, 14,950 total square 
foot structure is to be constructed adjacent to the Main Pump and Filter building within the Cosme Water 
Treatment Plant.  The new facility shall be designed with all necessary activities to protect the building 
envelope, including but not limited to an impact-rated roof and truss system with gravity support brackets 
for gutters, impact-rated exterior wall protection, weather stripping, hurricane-rated entry glass doors and 
impact-resistant window and door systems.  Additionally, the EOC shall be designed to include three built-
in-place internal hurricane safe rooms to accommodate approximately 30 critical and essential services 
employees.  The three internal safe rooms shall have a total gross area of approximately 2,230 square 
feet, with approximately 1,450 square feet of usable space.  According to preliminary estimates, the City 
of St. Petersburg proposes one internal safe room to have a gross area of approximately 1,430 square 
feet, with approximately 930 square feet of usable space.  The other two internal safe rooms shall have a 
gross area of approximately 400 square feet each, with approximately 260 square feet of usable space 
each.  The city has identified the Cosme Water Treatment Plant as an ideal location for the construction 
of the new EOC due to its placement outside the floodplain and its immediate proximity to this essential 
facility.  During an emergency, water treatment plant employees must remain on-site to monitor critical 
operations and impacts that may affect the potable water supply.  Currently, critical employees operate 
from the Main Pump and Filter building, which has several wind vulnerabilities.  The new structure shall 
be designed to simultaneously serve as the city’s EOC and operational headquarters for the Cosme Water 
Treatment Plant. 

The City of St. Petersburg also proposes the installation of a permanent 816 kW diesel generator, or the 
adequate size determined by the vendor and/or an electrical engineer during the bid process to 
appropriately support the new EOC and the Cosme Water Treatment Plant’s service lines that pump water 
from Tampa Bay Water’s well fields.  The proposal includes the installation of an automatic transfer switch, 



30 
 

construction of a concrete pad and an approximately 1,600 square foot generator enclosure.  The Cosme 
Water Treatment Plant, owned and operated by the City of St. Petersburg, has an operating permit for 
water production up to 68 million gallons per day.  The city purchases raw water from Tampa Bay Water, 
which is supplied from the Cosme-Odessa well field.  Water enters the plant through three individual 
service lines, is treated, and potable water is distributed to the entire City of St. Petersburg plus the City 
of Gulfport.  Currently, these service lines operate on grid power only, with no backup power supply.  If 
the service lines are not powered for a significant period of time, storage tanks can provide potable water 
for only one to two days until they are depleted, and water supply is suspended.  Overall, the proposed 
project shall harden the exterior envelope of the EOC reducing the potential for structural and content 
damage and shall provide near-absolute protection to essential personnel in alignment with the County’s 
Local Mitigation Strategy plan.  Furthermore, the project shall also secure access to potable water and 
allow continuity of operations at this critical facility.   

The code plus portion of the project shall be designed to provide protection against 180 MPH winds, 
exceeding the wind speed required for the area of 154 MPH per Florida Building Code.  Wind protection 
shall be provided on any other opening such as vents, louvers and exhaust fans.   

The internal safe room or area should be designed and constructed to be structurally independent of the 
host building, providing protection against 180 MPH winds, the same as a stand-alone safe room.  The 
design of the safe room should assume the failure of the host building.  The internal safe room construction 
shall be designed by the criteria contained in the standards of the Department of Homeland Security, 
Federal Emergency Management Agency guidance manual FEMA P-361 Design and Construction for 
Community Safe Room, to provide “near-absolute protection”.  Construction documents for community 
safe rooms designed for more than 50 occupants, as well as for safe rooms in an elementary school, 
secondary school, day care facility with an occupant load greater than 16, or any Risk Category IV 
building, are required to undergo peer review.  Allowable costs for safe rooms apply to retrofits of existing 
facilities, new construction, and single or dual-use facilities. Only eligible expenditures that are directly 
related to and necessary for the hazard mitigation purpose of providing immediate life-safety protection 
shall be reimbursed. Eligible and ineligible costs are outlined in the 2015 HMA Guidance Addendum, C. 
Hazard Mitigation Assistance for Safe Rooms. 

The generator shall be protected against a 500-year flood event by implementing specific activities or by 
locating the generator outside the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) and shall be protected against wind 
with a rated enclosure based on its location requirements.  Activities shall be completed in strict compliance 
with Federal, State and Local Rules and Regulations.   
 

TASKS & DELIVERABLES: 

A) Tasks: 
1) The Sub-Recipient shall procure the services of a qualified and licensed Florida contractor and 

execute a contract with the selected bidder to complete the scope of work as approved by the Division 
and FEMA.  The Sub-Recipient shall select the qualified, licensed Florida contractor in accordance 
with the Sub-Recipient’s procurement policy as well as all Federal and State Laws and Regulations.  
All procurement activities shall contain sufficient source documentation and be in accordance with all 
applicable regulations.   

The Sub-Recipient shall be responsible for furnishing or contracting all labor, materials, equipment, 
tools, transportation and supervision and for performing all work per sealed engineering designs and 
prepared plans presented to the Division by the Sub-Recipient and subsequently approved by the 
Division and FEMA.   

The Sub-Recipient shall ensure that no contractors or subcontractors are debarred or suspended from 
participating in federally funded projects.   

The selected contractor shall have a current and valid occupational license/business tax receipt 
issued for the type of services being performed.   



31 
 

The Sub-Recipient shall provide documentation demonstrating the results of the procurement 
process.  This shall include a rationale for the method of procurement and selection of contract type, 
contractor selection and/or rejection and bid tabulation and listing, and the basis of contract price.   

The Sub-Recipient shall provide an executed “Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, Voluntary 
Exclusion Form” for each contractor and/or subcontractor performing services under this agreement.   

Executed contracts with contractors and/or subcontractors shall be provided to the Division by the 
Sub-Recipient.   

The Sub-Recipient shall provide copies of professional licenses for contractors selected to perform 
services.  The Sub-Recipient shall provide a copy of a current and valid occupational license or 
business tax receipt issued for the type of services to be performed by the selected contractor. 

2) The Sub-Recipient shall monitor and manage the Phase I portion of this project in accordance with 
the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program application and supporting documentation as submitted to the 
Division and subsequently approved by the Division and FEMA.  The Division and FEMA shall render 
a Phase II determination upon completion of the review of Phase I deliverables.  No construction 
activities are approved at this time.  The Sub-Recipient shall ensure that all applicable state, local and 
federal laws and regulations are followed and documented, as appropriate.   

Phase I consists of fees; for conducting survey, study, engineering, design, public notices, and/or 
permitting associated with the modification(s) needed.   

All Phase I work shall be completed in accordance with all applicable state, local and federal laws and 
regulations and documented, as appropriate.  

Upon completion of Task 2, the Sub-Recipient shall submit the following documents with sufficient 
supporting documentation, and provide a summary of all contract scope of work and scope of work 
changes, if any. Additional documentation shall include: 

a) Copy of permit(s), notice of commencement. 

b) Two sets of engineering Signed/Sealed final design and analysis, and surveying. 

c) Construction Plans and bid documents. 

d) A copy of conducted peer review, if applicable. 

e) Revised cost estimate for Phase II – construction (include Phase I costs), to implement the design 
project. 

f) All Product Specifications / Data Sheet(s) (technical standards) satisfying protection requirements 
on all products utilized. 

 

g) Color aerial map with the project area clearly marked.  

h) Color photographs of the project area.  

i) Proof of compliance with Project Conditions and Requirements contained herein. 

j) Pursuant to subsection 553.896(2), Florida Statutes, projects including the construction of new or 
retrofitted window or door coverings must conform to design drawings that are signed, sealed, 
and inspected by a structural engineer who is registered in this state.  The Sub-Recipient shall 
provide an inspection report and attestation or a copy of the signed and sealed plans to the 
Division before payment will be made. 

k) Any other documentation requested by the Division, not limited to Project Conditions and 
Requirements herein. 



32 
 

3) During the course of this agreement, the Sub-Recipient shall submit requests for reimbursement.  
Adequate and complete source documentation shall be submitted to support all costs (federal share 
and local share) related to the project.  In some cases, all project activities may not be fully complete 
prior to requesting reimbursement of costs incurred in completion of this scope of work; however, a 
partial reimbursement may be requested.   

The Sub-Recipient shall submit an Affidavit signed by the Sub-Recipient’s project personnel with each 
reimbursement request attesting to the completion of the work, that disbursements or payments were 
made in accordance with all agreement and regulatory conditions, and that reimbursement is due and 
has not been previously requested.   

The Sub-Recipient shall maintain accurate time records.  The Sub-Recipient shall ensure invoices are 
accurate and any contracted services were rendered within the terms and timelines of this agreement.  
All supporting documentation shall agree with the requested billing period.  All costs submitted for 
reimbursement shall contain adequate source documentation which may include but not be limited to 
cancelled checks, bank statements, Electronic Funds Transfer, paid bills and invoices, payrolls, time 
and attendance records, contract and subcontract award documents.   

The Sub-Recipient shall pre-audit bills, invoices, and/or charges submitted by subcontractors and pay 
subcontractors for approved bills, invoices, and/or charges.  Sub-Recipient shall ensure that all 
subcontractor bills, invoices, and/or charges are legitimate and clearly identify the activities being 
performed and associated costs.   

Sub-Recipient Management Costs (SRMC) expenditure must adhere to FEMA Policy #104-11-1 
HMGP Management Costs (Interim) signed November 14, 2018.  FEMA defines management costs 
as any: Indirect costs, Direct administrative costs, and other administrative expenses associated with 
a specific project.  Administrative costs are expenses incurred by a Sub-Recipient in managing and 
administering the federal award to ensure that federal, state requirements are met including: 
solicitation, development, review, and processing of sub-applications; delivery of technical assistance; 
quarterly progress and fiscal reporting; project monitoring; technical monitoring; compliance activities 
associated with federal procurement requirements; documentation of quality of work verification for 
quarterly reports and closeout; payment of claims; closeout review and liquidation; and records 
retention. 

Any activities that are directly related to a project are not eligible under management costs. For 
example, architectural, engineering, and design services are project costs and cannot be included 
under management costs.  Similarly, construction management activities that manage, coordinate, 
and supervise the construction process from project scoping to project completion are project costs.  
These activities cannot be included under management costs. 

Due to Strategic Funds Management (SFM), SRMC Interim Policy requires management costs to be 
obligated in increments sufficient to cover Sub-Recipient needs, for no more than one year, unless 
contractual agreements require additional funding.  FEMA has established a threshold where annual 
increments will be applied to larger awards allowing smaller awards to be fully obligated.  Obligations 
will be handled by the size of the total subaward.   

The Sub-Recipient shall pre-audit all SRMC source documentation – personnel, fringe benefits, travel, 
equipment, supplies, contractual, and indirect costs.  A brief narrative is required to identify what the 
funds will be used for.  Documentation shall be detailed and clearly describe each approved task 
performed, hours devoted to each task, and the hourly rate charged including enough information to 
calculate the hourly rates based on payroll records.  Employee benefits and tasks shall be clearly 
shown on the Personnel Activity Form, and all Personnel or Contractual SRMC shall be invoiced 
separate from all other project costs. 

Project Management Expenses (only applies to disasters prior to August 1, 2017, all others adhere to 
FEMA Policy #104-11-1 for SRMC):  The Sub-Recipient shall pre-audit source documentation such 
as payroll records, project time sheets, attendance logs, etc.  Documentation shall be detailed 
information describing tasks performed, hours devoted to each task, and the hourly rate charged for 



33 
 

each hour including enough information to calculate the hourly rates based on payroll records.  
Employee benefits shall be clearly shown. 

The Division shall review all submitted requests for reimbursement for basic accuracy of information.  
Further, the Division shall ensure that no unauthorized work was completed prior to the approved 
project start date by verifying vendor and contractor invoices.  The Division shall verify that reported 
costs were incurred in the performance of eligible work, that the approved work was completed, and 
that the mitigation measures are in compliance with the approved scope of work prior to processing 
any requests for reimbursement.   

Review and approval of any third-party in-kind services, if applicable, shall be conducted by the 
Division in coordination with the Sub-Recipient.  Quarterly Reports shall be submitted by the Sub-
Recipient and received by the Division at the times provided in this agreement prior to the processing 
of any reimbursement. 

The Sub-Recipient shall submit to the Division requests for reimbursement of actual Phase I costs 
related to the project as identified in the project application and this scope of work.  The Requests for 
Reimbursement (RFR) shall include: 

a) Contractor, subcontractor, and/or vendor invoices which clearly display dates of services 
performed, description of services performed, location of services performed, cost of services 
performed, name of service provider and any other pertinent information; 

b) Proof of payment from the Sub-Recipient to the contractor, subcontractor, and/or vendor for 
invoiced services; 

c) Clear identification of amount of costs being requested for reimbursement as well as costs being 
applied against the local match amount.   

The Sub-Recipient’s Request for Reimbursement shall include the final Phase I project cost. 
Supporting documentation shall show that all contractors and subcontractors have been paid. 

B) Deliverables: 
Mitigation Activities consist of Phase I activities, which include engineering, designing, plans 
preparation, permitting, and bidding for the proposed project, for Phase II approval, for Code-Plus 
hardening, an internal safe room designed to FEMA P-361 standards, and generator at the Cosme 
Water Treatment Plant in Odessa, Florida 33556.    

The code plus portion of the project shall be designed to provide protection against 180 MPH winds, 
exceeding the wind speed required for the area of 154 MPH per Florida Building Code.  Wind 
protection shall be provided on any other opening such as vents, louvers and exhaust fans.   

The internal safe room or area should be designed and constructed to be structurally independent of 
the host building, providing protection against 180 MPH winds, the same as a stand-alone safe room. 
The design of the safe room should assume the failure of the host building.  The internal safe room 
construction shall be designed by the criteria contained in the standards of the Department of 
Homeland Security, Federal Emergency Management Agency guidance manual FEMA P-361 Design 
and Construction for Community Safe Room, to provide “near-absolute protection”. Construction 
documents for community safe rooms designed for more than 50 occupants, as well as for safe rooms 
in an elementary school, secondary school, day care facility with an occupant load greater than 16, or 
any Risk Category IV building, are required to undergo peer review. Allowable costs for safe rooms 
apply to retrofits of existing facilities, new construction, and single or dual-use facilities. Only eligible 
expenditures that are directly related to and necessary for the hazard mitigation purpose of providing 
immediate life-safety protection shall be reimbursed. Eligible and ineligible costs are outlined in the 
2015 HMA Guidance Addendum, C. Hazard Mitigation Assistance for Safe Rooms. 

The generator shall be protected against a 500-year flood event by implementing specific activities or 
by locating the generator outside the SFHA and shall be protected against wind with a rated enclosure 



34 
 

based on its location requirements.  Activities shall be completed in strict compliance with Federal, 
State and Local Rules and Regulations.   

Pursuant to subsection 553.896(2), Florida Statutes, projects including the construction of new or 
retrofitted window or door coverings must conform to design drawings that are signed, sealed, and 
inspected by a structural engineer who is registered in this state.  The Sub-Recipient shall provide 
an inspection report and attestation or a copy of the signed and sealed plans to the Division before 
payment will be made. 

Provided the Sub-Recipient performs in accordance with the Scope of Work outlined in this 
Agreement, the Division shall reimburse the Sub-Recipient based on the percentage of overall project 
completion.   

PROJECT CONDITIONS AND REQUIREMENTS: 

C) Engineering:  
1) The Sub-Recipient shall submit Engineering plans and bidding documents prepared to complete the 

project, indicating the code plus portion will be able to withstand 180 MPH winds and the safe room 
portion will be able to withstand 180 MPH winds.   

2) Design documents shall provide a detailed description that includes specifics on project scope of 
work, depth and extent of ground disturbance at all construction locations of the project. 

3) Submit a refined cost estimate, to include Phase I Fees and Phase II Construction Materials, Labor 
and Fees.  

4) A copy of the conducted peer review verifying the designs are compliance with all requirements, if 
applicable. 

5) The Sub-Recipient shall submit all Product Specifications / Data Sheet(s) (technical standards) 
satisfying protection requirements on all products utilized. 

6) The Sub-Recipient shall provide a copy of the Notice of Commencement, and any local official 
Inspection Report and/or Final Approval, as applicable.  

7) A letter from the professional of record affirming the code plus portion will be able to withstand 180 
MPH winds and the safe room portion will be able to withstand 180 MPH winds.   

8) The Sub-Recipient shall submit all Product Specifications / Data Sheet(s) (technical standards) 
satisfying protection. 

9) The Sub-Recipient shall submit a certified letter of completion from Engineer of Record.  The Sub-
Recipient’s Engineer of Record shall provide a formal certificate or letter affirming that the project has 
been designed in conformance with the approved project drawings, specifications, scope, and 
applicable codes.  

10) The Sub-Recipient shall follow all applicable State, Local and Federal Laws, Regulations and 
requirements, and obtain (before starting project work) and comply with all required permits and 
approvals.  Failure to obtain all appropriate Federal, State, and Local permits and clearances may 
jeopardize federal funding.   

11) The code plus portion of the project has not been evaluated by the criteria contained in the standards 
of the Department of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency Management Agency guidance manual 
FEMA 361-Design and Construction for Community Shelter, and thus does not provide “near absolute 
protection”.  It is understood and agreed by the Division and the Sub-Recipient that the building may 
have vulnerabilities due to age, design and location that may result in damage to the building from 
wind events even after the installation of the mitigation measures funded under this Subgrant 
Agreement.  It is further understood and agreed by the Division and the Sub-Recipient that the level 
of wind protection provided by the mitigation action, although meeting State standards and codes and 



35 
 

enhancing the structural integrity of the building, does not ensure the safety or survival of building 
occupants. 

12) The internal safe room or area should be designed and constructed to be structurally independent of 
the host building, providing protection against 180 MPH winds, the same than a stand-alone safe 
room. The design of the safe room should assume the failure of the host building.  The internal safe 
room construction shall be designed by the criteria contained in the standards of the Department of 
Homeland Security, Federal Emergency Management Agency guidance manual FEMA P-361 Design 
and Construction for Community Safe Room, to provide “near-absolute protection”.  Construction 
documents for community safe rooms designed for more than 50 occupants, as well as for safe rooms 
in an elementary school, secondary school, day care facility with an occupant load greater than 16, 
or any Risk Category IV building, are required to undergo peer review.   

D) Environmental: 
1) Any change to the approved scope of work shall require re-evaluation for compliance with NEPA and 

other Laws and Executive Orders. 

2) Acceptance of federal funding requires the Sub-Recipient to comply with all federal, state, and local 
laws.  Failure to obtain all appropriate federal, state, and local environmental permits and clearances 
may jeopardize federal funding. 

3) Meet all required Environmental laws and policies, and all necessary Environmental compliance 
documents shall be obtained as applicable. 

4) Historical Preservation compliance documents shall be obtained. Review documentation required: 

a) Color aerial map with the project location clearly marked. 

b) Color photographs of the project area (electronic). 

c) Indicate if project site is located within a designated historic district of historic neighborhood.  

5) Phase I of this project is approved with the condition that the above list of deliverables shall be 
submitted for review and approval by the Division and FEMA before Phase II is considered.  

6) No construction work may begin until Phase II is approved by the Division and FEMA. 

E) Programmatic: 
1) The Sub-Recipient must notify the Division as soon as significant developments become known, such 

as delays or adverse conditions that might raise costs or delay completion, or favorable conditions 
allowing lower costs or earlier completion. 

2) The Division and FEMA shall approve a change in the scope of work in advance, regardless of the 
impact to the budget. 

3) The Sub-Recipient must “obtain prior written approval for any budget revision which would result in a 
need for additional funds” [44 CFR 13(c)], from the Division and FEMA.   

4) Any extension of the Period of Performance shall be submitted to FEMA 60 days prior to the expiration 
date.  Therefore, any request for a Period of Performance Extension shall be in writing and submitted, 
along with substantiation of new expiration date and a new schedule of work, to the Division, a 
minimum of seventy (70) days prior to the expiration date, for Division processing to FEMA. 

5) The Sub-Recipient must avoid duplication of benefits between the HMGP and any other form of 
assistance, as required by Section 312 of the Stafford Act, and further clarification in 44 CFR 206.191. 

6) A copy of the Sub-Recipient executed subcontract agreement(s) must be forwarded to the Division 
within 10 days of execution. 



36 
 

7) Project approval is with the condition that the tasks, deliverables, and conditions be accomplished 
and submitted 30 days prior to the Period of Performance date, for reviews and approvals by the 
Division, for submittal to FEMA.  

8) Sub-Recipient Management Costs (SRMC), implemented under the Disaster Relief and Recovery Act 
of 2018 (DRRA), amended Section 324 of the Stafford Act, and the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 
Management Costs (Interim) FEMA Policy 104-11-1, provides 100% federal funding under HMGP to 
Sub-Recipients to efficiently manage the grant and complete activities in a timely manner.   

a) SRMC must conform to 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart E, applicable program regulations, and Hazard 
Mitigation Assistance (HMA) Guidance (2015), ensuring costs are reasonable, allowable, 
allocable and necessary to the overall project.   

b) Funding is for approved indirect costs, direct administrative costs, and administrative expenses 
associated with this specific project and shall have adequate documentation.  

c) SRMC cannot exceed 5% of the total project costs awarded.  

d) SRMC is 100% federally funded and will be reimbursed based on actual costs incurred for each 
individual Request for Reimbursement (RFR) submitted with the required documentation. 

e) SRMC shall be reconciled against actual costs on a quarterly basis and annual basis. 

f) If the Final Project Reconciliation results in a reduction of total project costs, any resulting SRMC 
overpayment shall be reimbursed back to the State for return to FEMA prior to FEMA Closeout. 

This is FEMA project number 4486-091-R.  It is funded under HMGP, FEMA-4486-DR-FL and must 
adhere to all program guidelines established for the HMGP in accordance with the PAS Operational 
Agreement for Disaster 4486. 

FEMA awarded this project on January 11, 2023; with a Pre-Award date of November 1, 2021; this 
Agreement shall begin upon execution by both parties, and the Period of Performance for this project shall 
end on April 30, 2024.    

F) FINANCIAL CONSEQUENCES: 
If the Sub-Recipient fails to comply with any term of the award, the Division shall take one or more of the 
following actions, as appropriate in the circumstances: 

1) Temporarily withhold cash payments pending correction of the deficiency by the Sub-Recipient; 

2) Disallow all or part of the cost of the activity or action not in compliance; 

3) Wholly or partly suspend or terminate the current award for the Sub-Recipient’s program; 

4) Withhold further awards for the program; or 

5) Take other remedies that may be legally available.  

 



37 
 

SCHEDULE OF WORK 

Phase I –     

State Contracting:   2 Months 

Bidding / Local Procurement:  3 Months 

Design Specifications:  5 Months 

Permitting / Survey:  3 Months 

Deliverables Submitted to FDEM:  2 Months 

Total Period of Performance:  15 Months 
 

BUDGET 
Line Item Budget* 

 Project Cost Federal Cost Non-Federal Cost 
Materials: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Labor: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Fees: $447,000.00 $402,300.00 $44,700.00 
**Pre-Award: $20,000.00 $18,000.00 $2,000.00 
    
Initial Agreement Amount: $467,000.00 $420,300.00 $46,700.00 
***Contingency Funds: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Project Total: $467,000.00 $420,300.00 $46,700.00 
****SRMC     
SRMC: $23,350.00 $23,350.00  
SRMC-Pre-Award: $0.00 $0.00  

SRMC Total: $23,350.00 $23,350.00  

*Any line item amount in this Budget may be increased or decreased 10% or less, with the Division’s 
approval, without an amendment to this Agreement being required, so long as the overall amount of the 
funds obligated under this Agreement is not increased. 

**This project has a Pre-Award, approved by FEMA in the amount of $20,000.00 project costs with a start 
date of November 1, 2021. 

*** This project has an estimated $0.00 in contingency funds.  Per FEMA Hazard Mitigation Assistance 
Guidance Part VI, D.3.4 – Contingency funds are not automatically available for use.  Prior to their release, 
contingency funds must be re-budgeted to another direct cost category and identified.  Post-award changes 
to the budget require prior written approval from the Division (FDEM).  The written request should 
demonstrate what unforeseen condition related to the project arose that required the use of contingency 
funds. 



38 
 

Project Management costs are included for this project in the amount of $0.00 

**** Sub-Recipient Management Costs (SRMC) are included for this project in the amount of 
$23,350.00 in Federal funding.  Per the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Interim FEMA Policy 104-11-
1, SRMC provides HMGP funding to Sub-Recipients to efficiently manage the grant and complete activities 
in a timely manner.  SRMC must conform to 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart E, ensuring costs are reasonable, 
allowable, allocable and necessary to the overall project.   

SRMC cannot exceed 5% of the approved total project costs awarded and shall be reimbursed at 5% for 
each Request for Reimbursement (RFR) submitted with the required documentation.   

If the Final Project Reconciliation results in a reduction of total project costs, any resulting SRMC 
overpayment shall be reimbursed back to the State for return to FEMA prior to FEMA Closeout.  

 
Funding Summary Totals 

Federal Share:  $420,300.00 (90.00%) 
Non-Federal Share:  $46,700.00 (10.00%) 
Total Project Cost:  $467,000.00 (100.00%) 
    
SRMC (100% Federal)  $23,350.00  

 



39 
 

Attachment B 
Program Statutes and Regulations 

 
The parties to this Agreement and the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) are generally 

governed by the following statutes and regulations: 
 
(1) The Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act;  
 
(2) 44 C.F.R. Parts 7, 9, 10, 13, 14, 17, 18, 25, 206, 220, and 221, and any other applicable 

FEMA policy memoranda and guidance documents; 
 
(3) State of Florida Administrative Plan for the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program; 
 
(4) Hazard Mitigation Assistance Guidance- February 27, 2015 Update; and 
 
(5) All applicable laws and regulations delineated in Attachment C of this Agreement. 
 
In addition to the above statutes and regulations, the Sub-recipient must comply with the 

following: 
 
The Sub-recipient shall fully perform the approved hazard mitigation project, as described in the 

Application and Attachment A (Budget and Scope of Work) attached to this Agreement, in accordance 
with approved scope of work indicated therein, the estimate of costs indicated therein, the allocation of 
funds indicated therein, and the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  The Sub-recipient shall not 
deviate from the approved project and the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  The Sub-recipient 
shall comply with any and all applicable codes and standards in performing work funded under this 
Agreement, and shall provide any appropriate maintenance and security for the project.  

 
Any development permit issued by, or development activity undertaken by, the Sub-recipient and 

any land use permitted by or engaged in by the Sub-recipient, shall be consistent with the local 
comprehensive plan and land development regulations prepared and adopted pursuant to chapter 163, 
Part II, Florida Statutes.  Funds shall be expended for, and development activities and land uses 
authorized for, only those uses which are permitted under the comprehensive plan and land development 
regulations.  The Sub-recipient shall be responsible for ensuring that any development permit issued and 
any development activity or land use undertaken is, where applicable, also authorized by the Water 
Management District, the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, the Florida Department of 
Health, the Florida Game and Fish Commission, and any Federal, State, or local environmental or land 
use permitting authority, where required.  The Sub-recipient agrees that any repair or construction shall 
be in accordance with applicable standards of safety, decency, and sanitation, and in conformity with 
applicable codes, specifications and standards. 

 
The Sub-recipient will provide and maintain competent and adequate engineering supervision at 

the construction site to ensure that the completed work conforms with the approved plans and 
specifications and will furnish progress reports and such other information to HMGP as may be required.  

 
If the hazard mitigation project described in Attachment A includes an acquisition or relocation 

project, then the Sub-recipient shall ensure that, as a condition of funding under this Agreement, the 
owner of the affected real property shall record in the public records of the county where it is located the 
following covenants and restrictions, which shall run with and apply to any property acquired, accepted, or 
from which a structure will be removed pursuant to the project. 

 



40 
 

(1) The property will be dedicated and maintained in perpetuity for a use that is compatible 
with open space, recreational, or wetlands management practices; 

(2) No new structure will be erected on property other than: 
a. a public facility that is open on all sides and functionally related to a designed open 

space; 
b. a restroom; or  

(3) A structure that the Director of the Federal Emergency Management Agency approves in 
writing before the commencement of the construction of the structure; 

(4) After the date of the acquisition or relocation no application for disaster assistance for any 
purpose will be made to any Federal entity and no disaster assistance will be provided for 
the property by any Federal source; and  

(5) If any of these covenants and restrictions is violated by the owner or by some third party 
with the knowledge of the owner, fee simple title to the Property described herein shall be 
conveyed to the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund of the State of 
Florida without further notice to the owner, its successors and assigns, and the owner, its 
successors and assigns shall forfeit all right, title and interest in and to the property. 

 
HMGP Contract Manager will evaluate requests for cost overruns and submit to the regional 

Director written determination of cost overrun eligibility.  Cost overruns shall meet Federal regulations set 
forth in 44 C.F.R.  §206.438(b).  

 
The National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) stipulates that additions or amendments to a 

HMGP Sub-Recipient Scope of Work (SOW) shall be reviewed by all State and Federal agencies 
participating in the NEPA process.   

 
As a reminder, the Sub-recipient must obtain prior approval from the State, before implementing 

changes to the approved project Scope of Work (SOW).  Per the Uniform Administrative Requirements for 
Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State and Local Governments: 

 
(1) For Construction projects, the grantee must “obtain prior written approval for any budget 

revision which result in a need for additional funds” (2 C.F.R. § 200.308); 

(2) A change in the Scope of Work must be approved by FEMA in advance regardless of the 
budget implications; and  

(3) The Sub-recipient must notify the State as soon as significant developments become 
known, such as delays or adverse conditions that might raise costs or delay completion, 
or favorable conditions allowing lower cost or earlier completion.  Any extensions of the 
period of performance must be submitted to FEMA sixty (60) days prior to the project 
expiration date.  

 
The Sub-recipient assures that it will comply with the following statutes and regulations to the 

extent applicable: 
 

(1) 53 Federal Register 8034 
(2) Federal Acquisition Regulations 31.2 
(3) Section 1352, Title 31, US Code 
(4) Chapter 473, Florida Statutes 
(5) Chapter 215, Florida Statutes 
(6) Section 768.28, Florida Statutes 
(7) Chapter 119, Florida Statutes 
(8) Section 216.181(6), Florida Statutes 



41 
 

(9) Cash Management Improvement Act of 1990 
(10) American with Disabilities Act 
(11) Section 112.061, Florida Statutes 
(12) Immigration and Nationality Act  
(13) Section 286.011, Florida Statutes 
(14) 2 C.F.R. Part 200 – Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 

Requirements for Federal Awards 
(15) Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 
(16) Title I of the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 
(17) Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act, or the Victims of Crime Act 
(18) Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, as amended 
(19) Victims of Crime Act (as appropriate)  
(20) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended 
(21) Subtitle A, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) (1990) 
(22) Department of Justice regulations on disability discrimination, 28 C.F.R., Part 35 and  

Part 39 
(23) 42 U.S.C. 5154a 

  



42 
 

Attachment C 

Statement of Assurances 

To the extent the following provisions apply to this Agreement, the Sub-recipient certifies that:  
 
(a) It possesses legal authority to enter into this Agreement and to carry out the proposed program; 

 
(b) Its governing body has duly adopted or passed as an official act of resolution, motion or similar 

action authorizing the execution of the hazard mitigation agreement with the Division of 
Emergency Management (DEM), including all understandings and assurances contained in it, 
and directing and authorizing the Sub-recipient’s chief administrative officer or designee to act in 
connection with the application and to provide such additional information as may be required; 
 

(c) No member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States, and no Resident Commissioner, 
shall receive any share or part of this Agreement or any benefit.  No member, officer, or 
employee of the Sub-recipient or its designees or agents, no member of the governing body of 
the locality in which this program is situated, and no other public official of the locality or localities 
who exercises any functions or responsibilities with respect to the program during his tenure or 
for one year after, shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or subcontract, or the 
proceeds, for work be performed in connection with the program assisted under this Agreement.  
The Sub-recipient shall incorporate, in all contracts or subcontracts a provision prohibiting any 
interest pursuant to the purpose stated above; 
 

(d) All Sub-recipient contracts for which the State Legislature is in any part a funding source, shall 
contain language to provide for termination with reasonable costs to be paid by the Sub-recipient 
for eligible contract work completed prior to the date the notice of suspension of funding was 
received by the Sub-recipient.  Any cost incurred after a notice of suspension or termination is 
received by the Sub-recipient may not be funded with funds provided under this Agreement 
unless previously approved in writing by the Division.  All Sub-recipient contracts shall contain 
provisions for termination for cause or convenience and shall provide for the method of payment 
in such event;  
 

(e) It will comply with: 
 
(1) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act of 1962, 40 U.S.C. 327 et seq., requiring 

that mechanics and laborers (including watchmen and guards) employed on federally 
assisted contracts be paid wages of not less than one and one-half times their basic 
wage rates for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in a work week; and  

(2) Federal Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. Section 201 et seq., requiring that covered 
employees be paid at least minimum prescribed wage, and also that they be paid one 
and one-half times their basic wage rates for all hours worked in excess of the prescribed 
work-week. 

 
(f) It will comply with  

 
(1) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352), and the regulations issued pursuant 

thereto, which provides that no person in the United States shall on the grounds of race, 
color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be 
otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which the Sub-
recipient received Federal financial assistance and will immediately take any measures 
necessary to effectuate this assurance.  If any real property or structure thereon is 
provided or improved with the aid of Federal financial assistance extended to the Sub-



43 
 

recipient, this assurance shall obligate the Sub-recipient, or in the case of any transfer of 
such property, any transferee, for the period during which the real property or structure is 
used for a purpose for which the Federal financial assistance is extended, or for another 
purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits;  

(2) Any prohibition against discrimination on the basis of age under the Age Discrimination 
Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. 6101-6107) which prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of age or with respect to otherwise qualifies handicapped individuals as provided in 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; 

(3) Executive Order 11246, as amended by Executive Orders 11375 and 12086, and the 
regulations issued pursuant thereto, which provide that no person shall be discriminated 
against on the basis of race, color, religion, sex or national origin in all phases of 
employment during the performance of federal or federally assisted construction 
contracts; affirmative action to insure fair treatment in employment, upgrading, demotion, 
or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff/termination, rates of pay or other 
forms of compensation; and election for training and apprenticeship; 
 

(g) It will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using positions for a purpose that is or 
gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private gain for themselves or others, 
particularly those with whom they have family, business, or other ties pursuant to section 112.313 
and section 112.3135, Florida Statutes; 
 

(h) It will comply with the Anti-Kickback Act of 1986, 41 U.S.C. Chapter 87 which outlaws and 
prescribes penalties for “kickbacks” of wages in federally financed or assisted construction 
activities; 
 

(i) It will comply with the provisions of 5 U.S.C. 7323 (further known as the Hatch Act) which limits 
the political activities of employees;  
 

(j) It will comply with the flood insurance purchase and other requirements of the Flood Disaster 
Protection Act of 1973, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 50, including requirements regarding the 
purchase of flood insurance in communities where such insurance is available as a condition for 
the receipt of any Federal financial assistance for construction or acquisition purposes for use in 
any area having special flood hazards.  The phrase “Federal financial assistance” includes any 
form of loan, grant, guaranty, insurance payment, rebate, subsidy, disaster assistance loan or 
grant, or any other form of direct or indirect Federal assistance; 
 
For sites located within Special Flood Hazard Areas (SFHA), the Sub-recipient must include a 
FEMA Model Acknowledgement of Conditions of Mitigation of Property in a Special Flood Hazard 
Area with FEMA Grant Funds executed by the title holder with the closeout request verifying that 
certain SFHA requirements were satisfied on each of the properties.  The Model 
Acknowledgement can be found at www.fema.gov/governmenta/grant/sfha_conditions.shtm 
 

(k) It will require every building or facility (other than a privately owned residential structure) 
designed, constructed, or altered with funds provided under this Agreement to comply with the 
“Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards,” (AS) which is Appendix A to 41 C.F.R. Section 101-
19.6 for general type buildings and Appendix A to 24 C.F.R., Part 40 for residential structures.  
The Sub-recipient will be responsible for conducting inspections to ensure compliance with these 
specifications by the contractor;  
 

(l) It will, in connection with its performance of environmental assessments under the National 
Environmental Policy Act of 1969, comply with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation 
Act of 1966 (54 U.S.C.), Executive Order 11593, 36 C.F.R., Part 800, and the Preservation of 
Archaeological and Historical Data Act of 1966 (54 U.S.C. 3125) by: 



44 
 

 
(1) Consulting with the State Historic Preservation Office to identify properties listed in or 

eligible for inclusion in the National Register of Historic Places that are subject to adverse 
effects (see 36 C.F.R., Section 800.8) by the proposed activity; and  

(2) Complying with all requirements established by the State to avoid or mitigate adverse 
effects upon such properties. 

(3) Abiding by the terms and conditions of the “Programmatic Agreement Among the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency, the Florida State Historic Preservation 
Office, the Florida Division of Emergency Management and the Advisory Council 
on Historic Preservation, (PA)” which addresses roles and responsibilities of Federal 
and State entities in implementing Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act 
(NHPA), 54 U.S.C., and implementing regulations in 36 C.F.R., Part 800. 

(4) When any of the Sub-recipient’s projects funded under this Agreement may affect a 
historic property, as defined in 36 C.F.R., Part 800.16 (I)(1), the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) may require the Sub-recipient to review the eligible scope 
of work in consultation with the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) and suggest 
methods of repair or construction that will conform with the recommended approaches 
set out in the Secretary of Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation and Guidelines for 
Rehabilitating Historic Buildings 1992 (Standards), the Secretary of the Interior’s 
Guidelines for Archeological Documentation (Guidelines) (48 Federal Register 
44734-37), or any other applicable Secretary of Interior standards.  If FEMA determines 
that the eligible scope of work will not conform with the Standards, the Sub-recipient 
agrees to participate in consultations to develop, and after execution by all parties, to 
abide by, a written agreement that establishes mitigation and recondition measures, 
including but not limited to, impacts to archeological sites, and the salvage, storage, and 
reuse of any significant architectural features that may otherwise be demolished.  

(5) The Sub-recipient agrees to notify FEMA and the Division if any project funded under this 
Agreement will involve ground disturbing activities, including, but not limited to: 
subsurface disturbance; removal of trees; excavation of footings and foundations, and 
installation of utilities (such as water, sewer, storm drains, electrical, gas, leach lines and 
septic tanks) except where these activities are restricted solely to areas previously 
disturbed by the installation, replacement or maintenance of such utilities.  FEMA will 
request the SHPO’s opinion on the potential that archeological properties may be present 
and be affected by such activities.  The SHPO will advise the Sub-recipient on any 
feasible steps to be accomplished to avoid any National Register eligible archeological 
property or will make recommendations for the development of a treatment plan for the 
recovery or archeological data from the property.  

If the Sub-recipient is unable to avoid the archeological property, develop, in consultation 
with SHPO, a treatment plan consistent with the Guidelines and take into account the 
Advisory Council on Historic Preservation (Council) publication “Treatment of 
Archeological Properties”.  The Sub-recipient shall forward information regarding the 
treatment plan to FEMA, the SHPO and the Council for review.  If the SHPO and the 
Council do not object within fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of the treatment plan, 
FEMA may direct the Sub-recipient to implement the treatment plan.  If either the Council 
or the SHPO object, Sub-recipient shall not proceed with the project until the objection is 
resolved.  

(6) The Sub-recipient shall notify the Division and FEMA as soon as practicable: (a) of any 
changes in the approved scope of work for a National Register eligible or listed property; 
(b) of all changes to a project that may result in a supplemental DSR or modify a HMGP 
project for a National Register eligible or listed property; (c) if it appears that a project 
funded under this Agreement will affect a previously unidentified property that may be 



45 
 

eligible for inclusion in the National Register or affect a known historic property in an 
unanticipated manner.  The Sub-recipient acknowledges that FEMA may require the Sub-
recipient to stop construction in the vicinity of the discovery of a previously unidentified 
property that may eligible for inclusion in the National Register or upon learning that 
construction may affect a known historic property in an unanticipated manner.  The Sub-
recipient further acknowledges that FEMA may require the Sub-recipient to take all 
reasonable measures to avoid or minimize harm to such property until FEMA concludes 
consultation with the SHPO.  The Sub-recipient also acknowledges that FEMA will 
require, and the Sub-recipient shall comply with, modifications to the project scope of 
work necessary to implement recommendations to address the project and the property.  

(7) The Sub-recipient acknowledges that, unless FEMA specifically stipulates otherwise, it 
shall not receive funding for projects when, with intent to avoid the requirements of the 
PA or the NHPA, the Sub-recipient intentionally and significantly adversely affects a 
historic property, or having the legal power to prevent it, allowed such significant adverse 
effect to occur.  

 
(m) It will comply with applicable provisions of the following laws and policies prohibiting 

discrimination: 
 

i. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits discrimination based 
on race, color, or national origin (including limited English proficiency).  

ii. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, which prohibits discrimination 
based on disability.  

iii. Title IX of the Education Amendments Act of 1972, as amended, which prohibits 
discrimination based on sex in education programs or activities.  

iv. Age Discrimination Act of 1975, which prohibits discrimination based on age.  

v. U.S. Department of Homeland Security regulation 6 C.F.R. Part 19, which prohibits 
discrimination based on religion in social service programs.  

(n) It will comply with Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. 1681-
1683 and 1685-1686) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex;  
 

(o) It will comply with the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and 
Rehabilitation Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. 4541-45-94) relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of 
alcohol abuse or alcoholism;  
 

(p) It will comply with 523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. 290 dd-3 and 
290 ee-3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient records;  
 

(q) It will comply with Lead-Based Paint Poison Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4821 et seq.) which 
prohibits the use of lead based paint in construction of rehabilitation or residential structures; 
 

(r) It will comply with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (P.L. 94-163; 42 U.S.C. 6201-6422), 
and the provisions of the State Energy Conservation Plan adopted pursuant thereto; 
 

(s) It will comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of 1966, (7 U.S.C. 2131-2159), pertaining to 
the care, handling, and treatment of warm blooded animals held for research, teaching, or other 
activities supported by an award of assistance under this Agreement;  
 

(t) It will comply with Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, (42 U.S.C 2000c and 42 U.S.C. 3601-
3619), as amended, relating to non-discrimination in the sale, rental, or financing of housing, and 



46 
 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
race, color or national origin; 
 

(u) It will comply with the Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 7401-7675; 
 

(v) It will comply with the Clean Water Act of 1977, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251-1388 
 

(w) It will comply with the endangered Species Act of 1973, 16 U.S.C. 1531-1544; 
 

(x) It will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 1970, 42 U.S.C. 4701-4772; 
 

(y) It will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with the National Historic Preservation 
Act of 1966, as amended, 54 U.S.C.; 
 

(z) It will comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant to the National 
Environmental Policy Act of 1969, 42 U.S.C. 4321-4347; 
 

(aa) It will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with the Preservation of Archeological 
and Historical Preservation Act of 1966, 16 U.S.C. 54 U.S.C. 3125 
 

(bb) It will comply with the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504, 29 U.S.C. 794, regarding non-
discrimination;  
 

(cc) It will comply with the environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant to the Safe 
Drinking Water Act of 1974, 42 U.S.C. 300f-300j-27, regarding the protection of underground 
water sources;  
 

(dd) It will comply with the requirements of Titles II and III of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and 
Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, 42 U.S.C. 4621-4638, which provide for fair and 
equitable treatment of persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of Federal or 
Federally assisted programs;  
 

(ee) It will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968, 16 U.S.C. 1271-1287, related to 
protecting components or potential components of the national wild and scenic rivers system; 
 

(ff) It will comply with the following Executive Orders: EO 11514 (NEPA); EO 11738 (violating 
facilities); EO 11988 (Floodplain Management); EO 11990 (Wetlands); and EO 12898 
(Environmental Justice); 
 

(gg) It will comply with the Coastal Barrier Resources Act of 1977, 16 U.S.C. 3501-3510; 
 

(hh) It will assure project consistency with the approved State program developed under the Coastal 
Zone Management Act of 1972, 16 U.S.C. 1451-14674; and  
 

(ii) It will comply with the Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act of 1958, 16 U.S.C. 661-668. 
 

(jj) With respect to demolition activities, it will: 
 
(1) Create and make available documentation sufficient to demonstrate that the Sub-

recipient and its demolition contractor have sufficient manpower and equipment to 
comply with the obligations as outlined in this Agreement. 

(2) Return the property to its natural state as though no improvements had ever been 
contained thereon.  



47 
 

(3) Furnish documentation of all qualified personnel, licenses and all equipment necessary to 
inspect buildings located in the Sub-recipient’s jurisdiction to detect the presence of 
asbestos and lead in accordance with requirements of the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency, the Florida Department of Environmental Protection and the County Health 
Department.  

(4) Provide documentation of the inspection results for each structure to indicate: 
a. Safety Hazard Present 
b. Health Hazards Present 
c. Hazardous Materials Present 

(5) Provide supervision over contractors or employees employed by the Sub-recipient to 
remove asbestos and lead from demolished or otherwise applicable structures.  

(6) Leave the demolished site clean, level and free of debris. 

(7) Notify the Division promptly of any unusual existing condition which hampers the 
contractor’s work. 

(8) Obtain all required permits. 

(9) Provide addresses and marked maps for each site where water wells and septic tanks 
are to be closed along with the number of wells and septic tanks located on each site.  
Provide documentation of closures. 

(10) Comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are 
contained in the State Energy Conservation Plan issued in compliance with the Energy 
Policy and Conservation Act (Public Law 94-163).  

(11) Comply with all applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under Section 112 
and 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857), Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 
U.S.C. 1251-1388), Executive Order 11738, and the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency regulations (40 C.F.R., Part 15 and 61).  This clause shall be added to any 
subcontracts.  

(12) Provide documentation of public notices for demolition activities.  

  



48 
 

Attachment D 
 

REQUEST FOR ADVANCE OR REIMBURSEMENT  
OF HAZARD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM FUNDS 

SUB-RECIPIENT: City of St. Petersburg 

REMIT ADDRESS: 1650 Third Avenue North 

CITY: St. Petersburg STATE: FL ZIP CODE: 33713 

PROJECT TYPE: Hurricane Safe Room and 
Generator 

PROJECT #: 4486-091-R 

PROGRAM: Hazard Mitigation Grant Program CONTRACT #: H0952 

BUDGET:  FEDERAL SHARE:  LOCAL:  

ADVANCED RECEIVED:  N/A  AMOUNT:  SETTLED?   

Invoice Period:   through   Payment No:  

Total of Previous Payments to Date:  (Federal) 
Total of Previous SRMC to Date:  (SRMC Federal) 

Total Federal to Date:  (Total Federal Paid) 
 

Eligible Amount 
100% 

Obligated Federal 
Amount 

Obligated Local 
Non-Federal Division Use Only 

(Current Request) 90% 10% Approved Comments  

     

     

 
TOTAL CURRENT REQUEST:  $ 

 

By signing this report, I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the report is true, complete, and accurate, 
and the expenditures, disbursements and cash receipts are for the purposes and objectives set forth in the terms and 
conditions of the Federal award.  I am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent information, or the omission of any 
material fact, may subject me to criminal, civil or administrative penalties for fraud, false statements, false claims or 
otherwise. (U.S. Code Title 18, Section 1001 and Title 31, Sections 3729-3730 and 3801-3812. 

SUB-RECIPIENT SIGNATURE:  
    

NAME:  TITLE:  DATE:  
 

 TO BE COMPLETED BY THE DIVISION 

APPROVED PROJECT TOTAL $   

    

APPROVED SRMC TOTAL: $  DIVISION DIRECTOR 

    
APPROVED FOR PAYMENT $    

   DATE  
  



49 
 

Attachment D (cont.) 
SUMMARY OF DOCUMENTATION IN SUPPORT OF AMOUNT  

CLAIMED FOR ELIGIBLE DISASTER WORK UNDER THE  
HAZARD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM  

SUB-RECIPIENT: City of St. Petersburg PAYMENT #:  

PROJECT TYPE: Hurricane Safe Room and Generator PROJECT #: 4486-091-R 

PROGRAM: Hazard Mitigation Grant Program CONTRACT #: H0952 
      

  REF NO2 DATE3 DOCUMENTATION 4 (Check) 
AMOUNT 

ELIGIBLE 
COSTS 
(100%) 

1           

            

2           

            

3           

            

4           

            

5           

            

6           

            

7           

            

8           

            

This payment represents % completion of the project.  TOTAL  

2 Recipient's internal reference number (e.g., Invoice, Receipt, Warrant, Voucher, Claim Check, or Schedule #) 
3 Date of delivery of articles, completion of work or performance services. (per document) 
4 List Documentation (Recipient's payroll, material out of recipient's stock, recipient owned equipment and 
name of vendor or contractor) by category (Materials, Labor, Fees) and line item in the approved project line 
item budget.  Provide a brief description of the articles or services.  List service dates per each invoice.  



50 
 

Attachment E 
JUSTIFICATION OF ADVANCE PAYMENT 

SUB-RECIPIENT: CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG 
If you are requesting an advance, indicate same by checking the box below. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

If you are requesting an advance, complete the following chart and line item justification below.  
PLEASE NOTE:  Calculate your estimated expenses at 100% of your expected needs for ninety 
(90) days.  Submit Attachment D with the cost share breakdown along with Attachment E and all 
supporting documentation.   
 

ESTIMATED EXPENSES 

BUDGET CATEGORY/LINE ITEMS 
(list applicable line items) 

20___-20___ Anticipated Expenditures for First Three 
Months of Contract 

For example 
ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS 
 (Include Secondary Administration.) 

 

For example 
PROGRAM EXPENSES 

 

TOTAL EXPENSES  

 

LINE ITEM JUSTIFICATION (For each line item, provide a detailed justification explaining the 
need for the cash advance.  The justification must include supporting documentation that clearly 
shows the advance will be expended within the first ninety (90) days of the contract term.  Support 
documentation should include quotes for purchases, delivery timelines, salary and expense 
projections, etc. to provide the Division reasonable and necessary support that the advance will 
be expended within the first ninety (90) days of the contract term.  Any advance funds not 
expended within the first ninety (90) days of the contract term as evidenced by copies of invoices 
and cancelled checks as required by the Budget and Scope of work showing 100% of 
expenditures for the 90 day period shall be returned to the Division Cashier, 2555 Shumard Oak 
Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399, within thirty (30) days of receipt, along with any interest 
earned on the advance.  

[    ] ADVANCE REQUESTED 
 
Advance payment of $ _____________ is requested.  Balance of payments 
will be made on a reimbursement basis.  These funds are needed to pay 
staff, award benefits to clients, duplicate forms and purchase start-up 
supplies and equipment.  We would not be able to operate the program 
without this advance.  



51 
 

Attachment F 
QUARTERLY REPORT FORM 

Instructions: Complete and submit this form to State Project Manager within15-days after each quarter: 
    

SUB-RECIPIENT: City of St. Petersburg PROJECT #: 4486-091-R 
PROJECT TYPE: Hurricane Safe Room and Generator CONTRACT #: H0952 
PROGRAM: Hazard Mitigation Grant Program QUARTER ENDING:  
    

Advance Payment Information: 
Advance Received     N/A  Amount: $  Advance Settled? Yes   No  

Financial Amount to Date:  
Sub-Recipient Total Project Expenditures to date (federal & local): $ 

Target Dates (State Agreement): 
Contract Execution Date:  Contract Expiration Date:  
Date Deliverables Submitted:  Closeout Requested Date:  

Describe Milestones achieved during this quarter: 
 

Project Proceeding on Schedule?    Yes    No  (If No, Describe under Issues below) 
Percentage of Milestones completed to Date:  _____% 
Describe Activities - Milestones completed this quarter only: 

 

Schedule of the Milestones-Activities: 
Milestone Dates (estimated) 
State Contracting  
  
  
  
  
  
Closeout Compliance  

Estimated Project Completion Date:  
Issues or circumstances affecting completion date, milestones, scope of work, and/or cost: 

 

Cost Status:  Cost Unchanged  Under Budget  Over Budget 
Cost / Financial Comments: 

 
NOTE: Events may occur between quarterly reports, which have significant impact upon your project(s), such as 
anticipated overruns, changes in scope of work, extensions.  Contact the Division as soon as these conditions are 
known, otherwise you could be non-compliant with your sub-grant award. 

Sub-Recipient Contract Representative (POC):  
Signature:  Phone:  

~ To be completed by Florida Division of Emergency Management Project Manager ~ 

Project Manager Statement:  No Action Required, OR 
  

 Action Required:   
  
PM Percentage of Activates competed per PM Review QR Milestones Spreadsheet: ____% 
Date Reviewed:  Reviewer:  Project Manager 

  



52 
 

Attachment G 
Warranties and Representations 

 
Financial Management 

The Sub-Recipient’s financial management system must comply with 2 C.F.R. §200.302. 

 

Procurements 

Any procurement undertaken with funds authorized by this Agreement must comply with the 

requirements of 2 C.F.R. §200, Part D—Post Federal Award Requirements—Procurement Standards (2 

C.F.R. §§200.317 through 200.327). 

 

Business Hours 

The Sub-Recipient shall have its offices open for business, with the entrance door open to the 

public, and at least one employee on site, from: 8:00 AM - 5:00 PM, Monday Thru Friday, as 
applicable. 
 

Licensing and Permitting 

All subcontractors or employees hired by the Sub-Recipient shall have all current licenses and 

permits required for all of the particular work for which they are hired by the Sub-Recipient. 

 

 

  



53 
 

Attachment H 
 

Certification Regarding 
Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility 

And Voluntary Exclusion 
 
 
 
Subcontractor Covered Transactions 
 
The prospective subcontractor,                    , of 
the Sub-Recipient certifies, by submission of this document, that neither it, its principals, nor affiliates are 
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, voluntarily excluded, or 
disqualified from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency. 

 
 
SUBCONTRACTOR   

   
   

By:    City of St. Petersburg  
Signature   Sub-Recipient’s Name 

  H0952 
Name and Title  DEM Contract Number  

  4486-091-R 
Street Address  FEMA Project Number  

   
City, State, Zip   

   
Date   

 
  



54 
 

 
Attachment I 

Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act 
Instructions and Worksheet 

PURPOSE: The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) was signed on 
September 26, 2006. The intent of this legislation is to empower every American with the ability to hold 
the government accountable for each spending decision. The FFATA legislation requires information on 
federal awards (federal assistance and expenditures) be made available to the public via a single, 
searchable website, which is http://www.usaspending.gov/.  

 
The FFATA Sub-award Reporting System (FSRS) is the reporting tool the Florida Division of Emergency 
Management (“FDEM” or “Division”) must use to capture and report sub-award and executive 
compensation data regarding first-tier sub-awards that obligate $25,000 or more in Federal funds 
(excluding Recovery funds as defined in section 1512(a)(2) of the American Recovery and Reinvestment 
Act of 2009, Pub. L. 111-5).  

 
Note: This “Instructions and Worksheet” is meant to explain the requirements of the FFATA and give 
clarity to the FFATA Form distributed to sub-awardees for completion. All pertinent information below 
should be filled out, signed, and returned to the project manager. 

 

ORGANIZATION AND PROJECT INFORMATION  
 
The following information must be provided to the FDEM prior to the FDEM’s issuance of a sub-
award (Agreement) that obligates $25,000 or more in federal funds as described above. Please 
provide the following information and return the signed form to the Division as requested.  
 

PROJECT #: 4486-091-R 

FUNDING AGENCY: Federal Emergency Management Agency 

AWARD AMOUNT: $ 443,650.00 

OBLIGATION/ACTION DATE: January 11, 2023 

SUBAWARD DATE (if applicable):  
  

UEID/SAM#: LARHMJNJAKS4 
 
  



55 
 

*If your company or organization does not have a UEID/SAM number, you will need to obtain one from  
https://sam.gov/content/entity-registrationThe process to request a UEID/SAM number takes about ten 
minutes and is free of charge. 
 

BUSINESS NAME:  
DBA NAME (IF APPLICABLE):  
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS ADDRESS:  
ADDRESS LINE 1:  
ADDRESS LINE 2:  
ADDRESS LINE 3:  
CITY  STATE  ZIP CODE+4**  
  
PARENT COMPANY UEID/SAM# (if 
applicable): 

 

CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE (CFDA#):  
  
DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT (Up to 4000 Characters) 
 

As a Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) project, the Sub-Recipient shall provide above code wind 
protection, internal hurricane safe room capabilities and backup power for a new Emergency Operations 
Center (EOC) to be constructed within the Cosme Water Treatment Plant located at 16015 Race Track 
Road, Odessa, Florida 33556.  Coordinates: (28.09610, -82.59700). 

The scope is for Phase I only, which includes but is not limited to surveying, engineering, designing, plans 
preparation, permitting and bidding for the proposed project, for Phase II approval.  No construction 
activities for this project have been approved. 

When completed, the Sub-Recipient shall provide necessary information in the Phase I deliverables for 
the Phase II review of the following proposed activities. 

The Phase II proposed scope of work shall implement a code plus and hurricane safe room project that 
includes all hardening activities to provide above code wind protection to the new EOC, including FEMA 
361-compliant internal safe room areas within this critical facility.  The new two-story, 14,950 total square 
foot structure is to be constructed adjacent to the Main Pump and Filter building within the Cosme Water 
Treatment Plant.  The new facility shall be designed with all necessary activities to protect the building 
envelope, including but not limited to an impact-rated roof and truss system with gravity support brackets 
for gutters, impact-rated exterior wall protection, weather stripping, hurricane-rated entry glass doors and 
impact-resistant window and door systems.  Additionally, the EOC shall be designed to include three built-
in-place internal hurricane safe rooms to accommodate approximately 30 critical and essential services 
employees.  The three internal safe rooms shall have a total gross area of approximately 2,230 square 
feet, with approximately 1,450 square feet of usable space.  According to preliminary estimates, the City 
of St. Petersburg proposes one internal safe room to have a gross area of approximately 1,430 square 
feet, with approximately 930 square feet of usable space.  The other two internal safe rooms shall have a 
gross area of approximately 400 square feet each, with approximately 260 square feet of usable space 
each.  The city has identified the Cosme Water Treatment Plant as an ideal location for the construction 
of the new EOC due to its placement outside the floodplain and its immediate proximity to this essential 
facility.  During an emergency, water treatment plant employees must remain on-site to monitor critical 
operations and impacts that may affect the potable water supply.  Currently, critical employees operate 
from the Main Pump and Filter building, which has several wind vulnerabilities.  The new structure shall 
be designed to simultaneously serve as the city’s EOC and operational headquarters for the Cosme Water 
Treatment Plant. 



56 
 

The City of St. Petersburg also proposes the installation of a permanent 816 kW diesel generator, or the 
adequate size determined by the vendor and/or an electrical engineer during the bid process to 
appropriately support the new EOC and the Cosme Water Treatment Plant’s service lines that pump water 
from Tampa Bay Water’s well fields.  The proposal includes the installation of an automatic transfer switch, 
construction of a concrete pad and an approximately 1,600 square foot generator enclosure.  The Cosme 
Water Treatment Plant, owned and operated by the City of St. Petersburg, has an operating permit for 
water production up to 68 million gallons per day.  The city purchases raw water from Tampa Bay Water, 
which is supplied from the Cosme-Odessa well field.  Water enters the plant through three individual 
service lines, is treated, and potable water is distributed to the entire City of St. Petersburg plus the City 
of Gulfport.  Currently, these service lines operate on grid power only, with no backup power supply.  If 
the service lines are not powered for a significant period of time, storage tanks can provide potable water 
for only one to two days until they are depleted, and water supply is suspended.  Overall, the proposed 
project shall harden the exterior envelope of the EOC reducing the potential for structural and content 
damage and shall provide near-absolute protection to essential personnel in alignment with the County’s 
Local Mitigation Strategy plan.  Furthermore, the project shall also secure access to potable water and 
allow continuity of operations at this critical facility.   

The code plus portion of the project shall be designed to provide protection against 180 MPH winds, 
exceeding the wind speed required for the area of 154 MPH per Florida Building Code.  Wind protection 
shall be provided on any other opening such as vents, louvers and exhaust fans.   

The internal safe room or area should be designed and constructed to be structurally independent of the 
host building, providing protection against 180 MPH winds, the same as a stand-alone safe room.  The 
design of the safe room should assume the failure of the host building.  The internal safe room construction 
shall be designed by the criteria contained in the standards of the Department of Homeland Security, 
Federal Emergency Management Agency guidance manual FEMA P-361 Design and Construction for 
Community Safe Room, to provide “near-absolute protection”.  Construction documents for community 
safe rooms designed for more than 50 occupants, as well as for safe rooms in an elementary school, 
secondary school, day care facility with an occupant load greater than 16, or any Risk Category IV 
building, are required to undergo peer review.  Allowable costs for safe rooms apply to retrofits of existing 
facilities, new construction, and single or dual-use facilities. Only eligible expenditures that are directly 
related to and necessary for the hazard mitigation purpose of providing immediate life-safety protection 
shall be reimbursed. Eligible and ineligible costs are outlined in the 2015 HMA Guidance Addendum, C. 
Hazard Mitigation Assistance for Safe Rooms. 

The generator shall be protected against a 500-year flood event by implementing specific activities or by 
locating the generator outside the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) and shall be protected against wind 
with a rated enclosure based on its location requirements.  Activities shall be completed in strict compliance 
with Federal, State and Local Rules and Regulations.   

 

 
Verify the approved project description above, if there is any discrepancy, please contact the project 

manager. 
 
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF PROJECT PERFORMANCE (IF DIFFERENT THAN PRINCIPAL PLACE OF 
BUSINESS):  

ADDRESS LINE 1:  
ADDRESS LINE 2:  
ADDRESS LINE 3:  
CITY  STATE  ZIP CODE+4**  
  

 
CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT FOR PRINCIPAL PLACE OF PROJECT PERFORMANCE: 



57 
 

**Providing the Zip+4 ensures that the correct Congressional District is reported.  
 
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION INFORMATION:  

1. In your business or organization’s previous fiscal year, did your business or organization (including 
parent organization, all branches, and all affiliates worldwide) receive (a) 80 percent or more of your 
annual gross revenues from Federal procurement contracts (and subcontracts) and Federal 
financial assistance (e.g. loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements, etc.) subject to 
the Transparency Act, as defined at 2 C.F.R. 170.320; , (b) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross 
revenues from U.S. Federal procurement contracts (and subcontracts) and Federal financial 
assistance (e.g. loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements, etc.) subject to the 
Transparency Act?      
Yes    No  

 
If the answer to Question 1 is “Yes,” continue to Question 2. If the answer to Question 1 is “No”, 
move to the signature block below to complete the certification and submittal process. 
 

2.  Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your 
business or organization (including parent organization, all branches, and all affiliates worldwide) 
through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
(15 U.S.C. 78m(a), 78o(d)) Section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?  
Yes     No  
 

If the answer to Question 2 is “Yes,” move to the signature block below to complete the 
certification and submittal process. [Note: Securities Exchange Commission information should 
be accessible at http//www.sec.gov/answers/execomp.htm. Requests for Internal Revenue Service 
(IRS) information should be directed to the local IRS for further assistance.] 
 
If the answer to Question 2 is “No” FFATA reporting is required. Provide the information required 
in the “TOTAL COMPENSATION CHART FOR MOST RECENTLY COMPLETED FISCAL YEAR” 
appearing below to report the “Total Compensation” for the five (5) most highly compensated 
“Executives”, in rank order, in your organization. For purposes of this request, the following terms 
apply as defined in 2 C.F.R. Ch. 1 Part 170 Appendix A:  
 
“Executive” is defined as “officers, managing partners, or other employees in management positions”.  
 
“Total Compensation” is defined as the cash and noncash dollar value earned by the executive during the 
most recently completed fiscal year and includes the following:  

i. Salary and bonus.  
ii. Awards of stock, stock options, and stock appreciation rights. Use the dollar amount 

recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with respect to the fiscal year in 
accordance with the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised 2004) 
(FAS 123R), Shared Based Payments.  

iii. Earnings for services under non-equity incentive plans. This does not include group life, 
health, hospitalization or medical reimbursement plans that do not discriminate in favor of 
executives, and are available generally to all salaried employees.  

iv. Change in pension value. This is the change in present value of defined benefit and actuarial 
pension plans.  

v. Above-market earnings on deferred compensation which is not tax-qualified. 
vi. Other compensation, if the aggregate value of all such other compensation (e.g. severance, 

termination payments, value of life insurance paid on behalf of the employee, perquisites or 
property) for the executive exceeds $10,000. 



58 
 

TOTAL COMPENSATION CHART FOR MOST RECENTLY COMPLETED FISCAL YEAR  
(Date of Fiscal Year Completion __________________) 

 
Rank 

(Highest to 
Lowest) 

Name 
(Last, First, MI) Title 

Total Compensation 
for Most Recently 

Completed Fiscal Year 
1    

2    

3    

4    

5    

 
 
THE UNDERSIGNED CERTIFIES THAT ON THE DATE WRITTEN BELOW, THE INFORMATION 
PROVIDED HEREIN IS ACCURATE. 
 

SIGNATURE:  

  

NAME AND TITLE:  

  

DATE:  
 
  



59 
 

Attachment J 
Mandatory Contract Provisions 

 

Provisions: 

Any contract or subcontract funded by this Agreement must contain the applicable provisions outlined in 
Appendix II to 2 C.F.R. Part 200.  It is the responsibility of the sub-recipient to include the required 
provisions.  The following is a list of sample provisions from Appendix II to 2 C.F.R. Part 200 that may be 
required:1 

Appendix II to Part 200—Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity  
Contracts Under Federal Awards 

 
In addition to other provisions required by the Federal agency or non-Federal entity, all contracts 

made by the non-Federal entity under the Federal award must contain provisions covering the following, 
as applicable. 

(A) Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold, which is the inflation adjusted 
amount determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations 
Council (Councils) as authorized by 41 U.S.C. 1908, must address administrative, contractual, or legal 
remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions 
and penalties as appropriate. 

(B) All contracts in excess of $10,000 must address termination for cause and for convenience by 
the non-Federal entity including the manner by which it will be affected and the basis for settlement. 

(C) Equal Employment Opportunity. Except as otherwise provided under 41 C.F.R. Part 60, all 
contracts that meet the definition of “federally assisted construction contract” in 41 C.F.R. Part 60-1.3 
must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 C.F.R. 60-1.4(b), in accordance with 
Executive Order 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity” (30 FR 12319, 12935, 3 C.F.R. Part, 1964-1965 
Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, “Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to 
Equal Employment Opportunity,” and implementing regulations at 41 C.F.R. part 60, “Office of Federal 
Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor.” 

(D) Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148). When required by Federal program 
legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-Federal entities must 
include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as 
supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. Part 5, “Labor Standards Provisions 
Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction”). In accordance with the 
statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the 
prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, 
contractors must be required to pay wages not less than once a week. The non-Federal entity must place 
a copy of the current prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each 
solicitation. The decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of 
the wage determination. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the 
Federal awarding agency. The contracts must also include a provision for compliance with the Copeland 
“Anti-Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. 
Part 3, “Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part 
by Loans or Grants from the United States”). The Act provides that each contractor or Sub-recipient must 
be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or 

 
1 For example, the Davis-Bacon Act is not applicable to other FEMA grant and cooperative agreement 
programs, including the Public Assistance Program or Hazard Mitigation Grant Program; however, sub-
recipient may include the provision in its subcontracts. 



60 
 

repair of public work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The 
non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency. 

(E) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708). Where applicable, all 
contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of 
mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as 
supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. Part 5). Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of the Act, 
each contractor must be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a 
standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that 
the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all 
hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable 
to construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or 
under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not 
apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or 
contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence. 

(F) Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement. If the Federal award meets the 
definition of “funding agreement” under 37 C.F.R. § 401.2 (a) and the recipient or Sub-recipient wishes to 
enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of 
parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that “funding 
agreement,” the recipient or Sub-recipient must comply with the requirements of 37 C.F.R. Part 401, 
“Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government 
Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the 
awarding agency. 

(G) Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 
U.S.C. 1251-1387), as amended—Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000 must 
contain a provision that requires the non-Federal award to agree to comply with all applicable standards, 
orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water 
Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal 
awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). 

(H) Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689)—A contract award (see 2 
C.F.R. 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the governmentwide Excluded Parties List System 
in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 C.F.R. 180 that 
implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 C.F.R. Part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 C.F.R. Part 1989 
Comp., p. 235), “Debarment and Suspension.” The Excluded Parties List System in SAM contains the 
names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared 
ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. 

(I) Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352)—Contractors that apply or bid for an award 
of $100,000 or more must file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not 
and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee 
of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, 
grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with non-
Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are 
forwarded from tier to tier up to the non-Federal award. 

(J) See 2 C.F.R, § 200.323 Procurement of recovered materials. 

(K) See 2 C.F.R, §200.216 Prohibition on certain telecommunication and video surveillance 
services or equipment. 

(L) See 2 C.F.R, §200.322 Domestic preferences for procurements 

(Appendix II to Part 200, Revised Eff. 11/12/2020).   



61 
 

FEMA created the 2019 PDAT Contract Provisions Template to assist non-Federal entities. It is available 

at https://www.fema.gov/media-library-data/1569959119092-

92358d63e00d17639d5db4de015184c9/PDAT_ContractProvisionsTemplate_9-30-19.pdf.   

 

Please note that the sub-recipient alone is responsible for ensuring that all language included in its 

contracts meets the requirements of 2 C.F.R. § 200.327 and 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II. 

 
 
  



Attachment K 

Certification Regarding Lobbying 

Check the appropriate box: 
This Certification Regarding Lobbying is required because the Contract, Grant, Loan, or Cooperative
Agreement will exceed $100,000 pursuant to 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II(I); 31 U.S.C. § 1352;
and 44 C.F.R. Part 18.
This Certification is not required because the Contract, Grant, Loan, or Cooperative Agreement will
be less than $100,000.

APPENDIX A, 44 C.F.R. PART 18 – CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING 

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements  

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:  

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of
any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit
Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose
accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was 
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this 
transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification 
shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.  

The Sub-Recipient or subcontractor, ________________________________, certifies or affirms the 
truthfulness and accuracy of each statement of its certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, the Contractor 
understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38, Administrative Remedies for False Claims 
and Statements, apply to this certification and disclosure, if any.  

______________________________________________________  
Signature of Sub-Recipient/subcontractor’s Authorized Official  

______________________________________________________  
Name and Title of Sub-Recipient/subcontractor’s Authorized Official 

______________________________________________________  
Date 



109 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Respectfully requesting a 

referral to the Budget, Finance, and Taxation Committee to discuss pre-funding during FY 23, a 

portion of the FY 24 Pension Fund contribution. (Councilmember Gerdes- Staff Request) 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



F-1

F-1



 
 
TO:   Members of City Council 
 
DATE:   May 4, 2023  
 
COUNCIL DATE: May 18, 2023 
 
RE: Referral to the Budget, Finance, and Taxation Committee to Discuss Pre-

Funding a Portion of the FY 24 Pension Fund Contribution. (Staff 
Request) 

 
ACTION DESIRED: 
 
Respectfully requesting a referral to the Budget, Finance, and Taxation Committee to discuss 
pre-funding during FY 23, a portion of the FY 24 Pension Fund contribution. 
 
This referral is a staff request, and I am formally submitting this new business item as a 
method of informing the City Council.  
 

 
Copley Gerdes 
Council Member, District 1 

 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
NEW BUSINESS ITEM 



112 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Respectfully requesting a 

referral to the Legislative Affairs and Intergovernmental Relations Committee for a discussion on 

the impact of Senate Bill 250 on current city ordinances and ordinances that are in the process at the 

time of passage. (Chair Gabbard) 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



F-2

F-2



 
 
TO:   Members of City Council 
 
DATE:   May 11, 2023 
 
COUNCIL DATE: May 18, 2023 
 
RE: Referral to the Legislative Affairs and Intergovernmental Relations 

Committee for a discussion on the impacts of Senate Bill 250 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
ACTION DESIRED: 

Respectfully requesting a referral to the Legislative Affairs and Intergovernmental Relations 
Committee for a discussion on the impact of Senate Bill 250 on current city ordinances and 
ordinances that are in the process at the time of passage.  

 
 
Council Chair Brandi Gabbard 
District 2 
 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 
Attachment: Analysis of Senate Bill 250 and corresponding amendments 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
NEW BUSINESS ITEM 



THE FLORIDA SENATE 
2023 SUMMARY OF LEGISLATION PASSED 

Committee on Community Affairs 

This summary is provided for information only and does not represent the opinion of any Senator, Senate Officer, or Senate Office. 

CS/CS/SB 250  Page: 1 
 

CS/CS/SB 250 — Natural Emergencies 
by Fiscal Policy; Community Affairs; and Senator Martin 

The bill makes various changes throughout Florida Statutes regarding the preparation and 
response activities of state and local government when natural emergencies impact the state.  
 
Specifically, the bill:  

• Requires the Division of Emergency Management to post on its website a model debris 
removal contract for the benefit of local governments (effective upon becoming a law). 

• Requires the Division of Emergency Management to prioritize technical assistance and 
training to fiscally constrained counties on aspects of preparedness, response, recovery, 
and mitigation (effective upon becoming a law). 

• Encourages local governments to create emergency financial plans in preparation for 
major natural disasters. 

• Provides that counties and municipalities cannot prohibit a resident from placing a 
temporary residential structure on their property for up to 36 months following a natural 
emergency under certain circumstances. 

• Authorizes local governments to create specialized building inspection teams following a 
natural disaster and encourages interlocal agreements for additional building inspection 
services during a state of emergency. 

• Requires local governments to expedite the issuance of building permits following a 
natural disaster. 

• Increases the extension of certain building permits following a declaration of a state of 
emergency from six to 24 months and caps such extension at 48 months in the event of 
multiple natural emergencies. 

• Prohibits counties and municipalities within the disaster declaration for Hurricane Ian or 
Hurricane Nicole from increasing building fees until October 1, 2024 (effective upon 
becoming a law). 

• Allows registered contractors to engage in contracting for the types of work covered by 
their registration within areas for which a state of emergency has been declared (effective 
upon becoming a law). 

• Prohibits counties and municipalities within 100 miles of Hurricane Ian or Hurricane 
Nicole landfall from adopting more restrictive or burdensome procedures to their 
comprehensive plans or land development regulations concerning review, approval, or 
issuance of a site plan, development permit, or development order before October 1, 
2024. Additionally, such counties and municipalities may not propose or adopt a 
moratorium on construction, reconstruction, or redevelopment of any property damaged 
by Hurricane Ian or Nicole (effective upon becoming a law). 

• Extends the date for fire control districts within 50 miles of Hurricane Ian’s landfall to 
submit statutorily-required performance reviews. 

• Amends the Consultants’ Competitive Negotiation Act to allow for additional disaster-
related construction projects relating to Hurricane Ian to utilize the “continuing contracts” 
provision through December 31, 2023 (effective upon becoming a law).  



 
2023 Summary of Legislation Passed Committee on Community Affairs 

 

This summary is provided for information only and does not represent the opinion of any Senator, Senate Officer, or Senate Office. 

CS/CS/SB 250  Page: 2 
 

• Makes the Local Government Emergency Bridge Loan Program a revolving program and 
makes funds available for local governments impacted by federally declared disasters 
until July 1, 2038. The bill appropriates $50 million in nonrecurring funds from the 
General Revenue Fund to the program for the 2023-2024 fiscal year and authorizes 
$50 million of funds appropriated in special session to a previous version of the program 
to be transferred and used for this program. 

• Provides clarification regarding the 45-day grace period following a hurricane in which 
owners must bring a derelict vessel into compliance before being charged with a 
violation. 

• Directs the Division of Emergency Management to administer a revolving loan program 
for local government hazard mitigation projects, and appropriates $1 million in 
nonrecurring funds from the General Revenue Fund and $10 million in nonrecurring 
funds from the Federal Grants Trust Fund for such activity for the 2023-2024 fiscal year.  

• Shields public utilities from liability for damages arising from changes in reliability, 
continuity, or quality of services stemming from an emergency or disaster. 

If approved by the Governor, or allowed to become law without the Governor’s signature, these 
provisions take effect July 1, 2023, except as otherwise provided. 
Vote:  Senate 39-0; House 109-4 



The Florida Senate 

HOUSE MESSAGE SUMMARY  

Prepared By: The Professional Staff of the Committee on Community Affairs 

 

 [2023s00250.hms.ca] 

BILL:   CS/CS/SB 250, Engrossed 1 

INTRODUCER:  Senator Martin 

SUBJECT:  Natural Emergencies 

DATE:  April 26, 2023 

 

I.Amendments Contained in Message: 

House Amendment - 791633 (body with title) 

II.Summary of Amendments Contained in Message: 

House Amendment - 791633 makes the following changes to the Senate bill: 

 Authorizes the extension for fire control district performance reviews for only those districts 

located within 50 miles of where Hurricane Ian made landfall that were required to submit 

reports by July 1, 2023, and requires submission of the report by January 1, 2024. 

 Makes the provision on the tolling and extension of permits following an emergency 

declaration retroactive to September 28, 2022.  

 Makes the provision prohibiting local governments from proposing or adopting more 

restrictive or burdensome amendments to its comprehensive plan or land development 

regulations retroactive to September 28, 2022, instead of September 29, 2022.  

 Prohibits local governments from proposing or adopting a moratorium on construction, 

reconstruction, or redevelopment of any property damaged by Hurricane Ian or Nicole before 

October 1, 2024, and applies it retroactively to September 28, 2022.  

 Adds a new section to provide that public utilities are not liable for damages based in whole 

or in part on changes in the reliability, continuity, or qualify of utility services which arise 

out of an emergency or disaster.   

 Removes the appropriation to the Office of Insurance Regulation for hurricane-related 

market conduct activity.  

 Makes a technical change regarding the continuing contracts provision and the reversion to 

current law after the provision expires.   

 

 



118 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Respectfully requesting a 

referral to the Public Services & Infrastructure Committee to discuss the enforcement of driving 

without a license and potential diversion options. (Councilmember Floyd) 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



F-3

F-3



 
 
TO:   Members of City Council 
 
DATE:   May 11, 2023 
 
COUNCIL DATE: May 18, 2023 
 
RE: Referral to the Public Services & Infrastructure Committee potential 

diversion options for driving without a license. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
ACTION DESIRED: 
 
Respectfully requesting a referral to the Public Services & Infrastructure Committee to discuss 
the enforcement of driving without a license and potential diversion options. 
 
 

Richie Floyd 
Council Member, District 8 

 
 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
NEW BUSINESS ITEM 



121 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: April 27, 2023 Youth & Family 

Services Committee - Action Item 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



G-1

G-1



 
 
TO:   Members of City Council 
 
DATE:   April 27, 2023 
 
COUNCIL DATE: May 18, 2023 
 
RE: April 27, 2023 Youth & Family Services Committee Action Item – 

Resolution Supporting the Provision of Legal Representation, Through 
Third-Party Pro-Bono Legal Service Providers, to Tenants in the City 
Facing Potential Eviction and Otherwise May Not Be Able to Afford 
Legal Representation 

ACTION DESIRED:  
Respectfully requesting approval of a resolution supporting the provision of legal representation, 
through third-party pro-bono legal service providers, to tenants in the City of St. Petersburg who are 
facing potential eviction and otherwise may not be able to afford legal representation.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Proposed Resolution 
 
 
 
 
 

Council Vice-Chair Figgs-Sanders 
Chair, Youth & Family Services Committee 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORT 
ACTION ITEM 



1  

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-____ 

 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE PROVISION OF 
LEGAL REPRESENTATION TO TENANTS IN THE CITY OF 
ST. PETERSBURG WHO ARE FACING POTENTIAL 
EVICTION AND OTHERWISE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO 
AFFORD LEGAL REPRESENTATION; REQUESTING CITY 
ADMINISTRATION EXPLORE THE CREATION OF A 
PROGRAM TO FACILITATE FUNDING LOCAL NOT FOR 
PROFIT PRO-BONO LEGAL SERVICE PROVIDERS TO 
ASSIST TENANTS FACING EVICTION; SUPPORTING 
ADDITIONAL FUNDING TO THE LOCAL NOT FOR PROFIT 
PRO-BONO LEGAL SERVICE PROVIDER FOR THE 
PAYMENT OF BACK RENT INTO THE COURT REGISTRY 
WHEN DEEMED NECESSARY BY SUCH LOCAL NOT FOR 
PROFIT PRO-BONO LEGAL SERVICE PROVIDER; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of St. Petersburg supports the health, safety, and 
welfare of all its residents; and 
 

WHEREAS, evictions have a disproportionate effect on low-income residents of the City 
and have lasting impacts on mental and physical health, as well as employment and future housing 
options for such residents; and 
 

WHEREAS, having access to a local not for profit pro-bono legal service provider can 
provide tangible benefits to those facing eviction by allowing renters to protect their rights, 
including allowing individuals to fight unauthorized evictions or directly negotiate with landlords 
for time to find a new home; and 

 
 WHEREAS, access to a local not for profit pro-bono legal service provider aids renters facing 
eviction and can help produce comparatively positive outcomes for both renters and landlords; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, City Council supports pro-bono legal services as a means to protect the rights 
of renters across the City, and requests that Administration explore providing funding to a local 
not for profit pro-bono legal service provider to assist renters in the City of St. Peterburg who are 
facing eviction; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in an eviction proceeding, Section 83.60(2), Florida Statutes, requires the tenant 
to deposit all rent due into the Court registry in order to bring most defenses to eviction, which 
often limits a tenant from bringing an otherwise valid defense; and 
 



2  

 WHEREAS, City Council accordingly supports additional funding to the local not for profit 
pro-bono legal service provider for the payment of back rent into the Court registry when deemed 
necessary by such local not for profit pro-bono legal service provider. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. Petersburg,  
Florida, that this Council supports the provision of legal representation to tenants in the City of St. 
Petersburg who are facing potential eviction and otherwise may not be able to afford legal 
representation.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Council requests City Administration  
explore the creation of a program to facilitate funding local not for profit pro-bono legal service 
providers to assist tenants facing eviction. 
 
  BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED this Council supports additional funding to the local not 
for profit pro-bono legal service provider for the payment of back rent into the Court registry when 
deemed necessary by such local not for profit pro-bono legal service provider. 
 
  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
 
 
LEGAL: 
 
 
___________________ 
City Attorney (Designee) 
00680012 

 



126 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: A resolution approving the 

settlement of the lawsuit of William Hubbard, Employee/Claimant vs. City of St. Petersburg, 

Employer and Commercial Risk Management, Carrier/Servicing Agent, Claim No. C3690446 and 

providing an effective date. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



H-1

H-1



RESOLUTION NO.___________ 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE 
SETTLEMENT OF THE LAWSUIT/CLAIM OF 
WILLIAM HUBBARD, EMPLOYEE/CLAIMANT 
V. CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG, EMPLOYER 
AND COMMERCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT, 
CARRIER/SERVICING AGENT, CLAIM 
NUMBER C3690446; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of St. Petersburg, Florida, that 
the settlement by and between William Hubbard, Employee/Claimant v. City of St. Petersburg, 
Employer and Commercial Risk Management, Carrier/Servicing Agent; Claim Number 
C3690446, in the amount of $50,000.00 for a total washout settlement is approved. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Administration and the City 
Attorney’s Office are authorized to execute the necessary paperwork and pay the funds in 
accordance with such settlement. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall become effective 
immediately upon its adoption. 

Approved as to Form and Content: 

_______________________________ 
City Attorney (designee) 
00677448 



129 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: A resolution approving 

settlement of the lawsuit of Annette Carroll v. City of St. Petersburg, Florida, Circuit Court for 

Pinellas County, Florida, Case No. 21-004365-CI, and providing an effective date. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



H-2

H-2



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING SETTLEMENT OF THE 
LAWSUIT OF ANNETTE CARROLL V. CITY OF ST. 
PETERSBURG, FLORIDA, CIRCUIT COURT FOR PINELLAS 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, CASE NO. 21-004365-CI, AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of St. Petersburg, Florida, that 
the settlement by and between the City of St. Petersburg and Plaintiff, Annette Carroll, in the case 
of Annette Carroll v. City of St. Petersburg, Case No. 21-004365-CI, Circuit Court for Pinellas 
County, Florida, in the amount of $92,500.00 is approved. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Administration and the City 
Attorney's Office are authorized to execute the necessary paperwork and pay the funds in 
accordance with such settlement. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall become effective 
immediately upon its adoption. 

Approved as to Form and Content: 

/S/: Joseph P. Patner    
City Attorney (designee) 

 
 



132 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Confirming Preliminary 

Assessment for Building Securing Number LCA 1645 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



I-1

I-1



—

stpetershurçj
www.stpota.oro

CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG
MEMORANDUM

TO: Chan Srinivasa, City Clerk, City Clerk’s Office

FROM: David Dickerson, Collection Manager, Billing & Collections’

SUBJECT: Public Hearing - City Council Meeting on MAY 18, 2023

DATE: May 3, 2023

Attached is the backup information regarding the Special Assessments listed below that are

scheduled for confirmation at the council meeting referenced above:

ASSESSMENT TYPE ASSESSMENTNUMBER

LOT CLEARING 1645

SECURING 1282



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL

MEETING OF: MAY 18, 2023

TO: COUNCIL CHAIR AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

SUBJECT: Confirming Preliminary Assessment for
Building Securing Number LCA 1645

EXPLANATION: Codes Compliance Assistance has secured the
attached structures which were found to be
unfit or unsafe under Chapter 8 of the
St. Petersburg City Code. The interest
rate is 8% per annum on the unpaid balance.

LCA: 1645

NUMBER OF STRUCTURES 8

ASSESSABLE AMOUNT: $1,875.94

According to the City Code, these assessments constitute a
lien on each property. It is recommended that the assessments
be confirmed.

COST/FUNDING/ASSESSMENT INFORMATION:
The total assessable amount of $1,875.94 will be fully assessable
to the property owners.

ATTACHMENTS:

MAYOR:________________________

COUNCIL ACTION:_________________

FOLLOW-UP:____________________ AGENDA NO.__________



U)

CO
ON
0
U)
N

M M M M M M M N>
C) fl () f) 0 0 U)
N N N N N N ZU)

WN
H H H H H H H NO)
ON ON ON ON ON ON ON NW
as as as as as as as Z
U) U) U) U) U) U) U) N

N
ON ON ON ON ON ON ON H
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
ON ON ON ON ON ON ON
U) U) U) U) U) U) U)
ON —i ON U) as w N)

to < U) 1>> JCflON H H U) U) N) (0 wh (fl U) > %%O
ON N N Wtt QHN) 0 N > N) N N —NN > -J H
tO t H 0(00) tN) 0 H H N) > H ON H ON N N

N 0> N H(I N WOON ‘U OU) N U) M N ON N U) H HN
U) < H HH H OH N —t U) H H H Hq H N MN
U) M N 0-- N NU)H N) 1 MC> > U) H
N H ‘U C N - ‘U HO ‘U U) H ‘U ONQO ‘U NO ZN
U) W N N MNU) ON CM N C N N N HNO N HZ 0

N H ‘UMH N ONNO) H> H 0 M H NOC H N
< N M N ON N N)OH U) NM N H N N N 0 NN
> H M N WN< N .M U) H N N < N NHM N H> 0

N 0 U) MNN 0 toM ON M H U) < H U) < H U) 0 N ‘U
N) N -< N N H N) N H N N N N N N N NO N
0 N C 0< ON C 0 C N C N N
H < N q ‘U H U) N N U) N U) N NM U)
H N 0 N M N ‘ 00 NO HO < N U)
0 ‘U N N) N N N
U) ‘U H U) H N ‘U N ‘U ‘U
ON M U) U) M M (j M U)
U) N -J H
ON U) ON U) M U) H U) U)

U) H ON M U) U) U)
—3 0 ON 0 —3 M —) -i
0 N) H M H H
ON as N) C) H H
N) to U) U) U)
U) U) U) U)
H H 0 H
as to to

W’UU) WM0 NMqH WOW WWN) WNWU) WNWU) —‘U
(-‘NiP MNON ZOCN) MM0 MNN) r-’oNas MONas M)
p4N ZN 0HZ ZN NH ZHH ZHH (‘IN
N HU) OW NW U) <U) <U) 00

CDHH HU)N) NU)MH 0NH ONNH ONU)HH asU)HH NN
- N) ON 0 0 0N -ON MM

U)H HH as H OH OH ONH ONH
M ON U)—) OR’U)U) jo—i MOON MH ON MH ON OH
CU) MM ‘U N 0 0 OHH OHH NO
HZON ONU) HNOas H’UU) HH0 HU)No HU)NO U)

HON HNH (this NH NON U) Nt)) NU) 0
as-<as diP OWNON N)NN) U)NW NU) N) NU) N

HtO H iP ‘UOU)N) ONON NU) H NN) U) >N) H
NO ONU),tS ‘U 0 as NN) - QON QON ‘U
N N MHZ 0 N N H

o 00 0 00 0 NO N) 0 0 H
U)0 H HO• 0 0 0 0 0 0
C’- HN) ‘U 0 U) ON ON as N
N N) N) U)

0 0 toM 0 0 0 0 0
0 H C U) N) 0 R’ 0 N)
as ON H 0 0 U) H U)
0 0 0 0 0 ‘P 0 0

U)
H

as

N)
ON

N)
U)

H
0

as
as

U)
to

*
*

U)*
‘0*

CD
00

‘UH- H-
H) rt
N H’-<

MNO
Ci) M

NW
U)U)(D U)

I U)Wrt
HND)
ONU)3

I U)(D’U
N)Ztt (U
0 N rr rt
N)ZU) (U
U)H I-c

OW
N H-tX
0<0
M H-Il
MWtO

H-
0*
0*

*
*

U)
ON
N)
-J

N)
to
H
N

N

U)

N)
N)
as

-J

as
H
0
H

N
N
‘U
H

N

0
N

U)
N

N)
ON
as

J)
ON

ON
N)
N)
ON

U)
ON
H
N

N
N

N

N)
N)
as

-1

-J
ON
0

H
ON
H
N

N

U)

H
ON
as

U)
ON

U)
N)
as

U)
ON
H
N

U)
H

U)

N)
ON
as

U)
ON

U)
—I
ON
ON

N)
ON
H
N

N

N

U)

N)
N)
as

:15
-J

U) ‘U
-) N
ON 0
U) ‘U

N
N N
N H
H H
N
0
H
00
ZN

N
N U)
<U)
N

U)

‘U
N U)
U) to
U)O (U
NN
U)H
U)O

N) NH
N) NN H
as ZN

HM
as
-3



4
/2

6
/2

3
1

0
:4

4
:3

9
:

C
ity

o
f

S
t.

P
e
te

rs
b
u
rg

*
*

*
*

P
a
g
e

2
S

p
e
c
ia

l
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
D

iv
is

io
n

F
IN

A
L

A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

R
O

L
L

5
-1

8
-2

0
2
3

A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

O
W

N
E

R
N

A
M

E
P

A
R

C
E

L
ID

O
R

IG
IN

A
L

N
U

M
B

E
R

/M
A

IL
IN

G
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

/L
E

G
A

L
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T

L
C

A
1
6
4
5

8
0
8
5
9

G
S

N
T

A
M

P
A

L
L

C
2
5

3
1

1
6

8
5
1
4
0

0
0

0
0

3
1

0
1
0

4
0

M
E

L
R

O
S

E
A

V
E

5
2

6
4
.5

6
S

T
A

N
L

E
Y

H
E

IG
H

T
S

5
0

JE
R

IC
H

O
T

P
K

E
S

T
E

1
0

3
L

O
T

3
1

JE
R

IC
H

O
N

Y
1

1
7

5
3

1
0

1
4

T
O

T
A

L
N

U
M

B
E

R
O

F
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
S

:
8

T
O

T
A

L
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
A

M
O

U
N

T
:

1
,8

7
5

.9
4

S
A

S
B

O
S

R



LOT CLEARING NUMBER 1645

COST I FUNDING I ASSESSMENT INFORMATION

CATEGORY ASSESSED AMOUNT TO BE ASSESSED

LOT CLEARING COST $ 1,355.94

ADMINISTRATIVE FEE $ 520.00

TOTAL: $ 1,875.94



A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING PRELIMINARY
ASSESSMENT ROLLS FOR LOT CLEARING
NO. 1645 (“LCA 1645”) AS LIENS AGAINST
THE RESPECTIVE REAL PROPERTY UPON
WHICH SUCH COSTS WERE INCURRED;
PROVIDING THAT SAID LIENS HAVE A
PRIORITY AS ESTABLISHED BY CITY CODE
SECTION 16.40.060.4.4; PROVIDING FOR
INTEREST RATE(S) ON UNPAID BALANCES;
ACKNOWLEDGING THAT NOTICE(S) OF
LIEN(S) WILL BE FILED BY THE POD IN THE
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK AND MAY BE
RECORDED IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF
THE COUNTY; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, preliminary assessment rolls for Lot Clearing No.1645 (“LCA 1645”)
have been submitted by the POD (i.e., person officially designated) to the City Council pursuant
to St. Petersburg Code Section 16.40.060.4.4; and

WHEREAS, notice of the public hearing was duly published in accordance with St.
Petersburg City Code Section 16.40.060.4.4; and

WHEREAS, City Council met at the time and place specified in the notice and
heard any and all objections that any affected party wished to offer as to why said assessments
should not be made final.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
St. Petersburg, Florida, that this Council confirms the preliminary assessment rolls for Lot
Clearing No. 1645 (“LCA 1645”) as liens against the respective real property upon which such
costs were incuned and that pursuant to Section 16.40.060.4.4 of the St. Petersburg City Code said
liens shall be superior in dignity to all other liens except taxes.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the unpaid balance of the principal amount of
any liens against the respective real property listed on LCA 1645 shall bear interest at the rate of
(i) 8% per annum beginning 30 days after the effective date of this Resolution and (ii) 12% per
annum beginning one year after the effective date of this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Council acknowledges that notice(s) of
the lien(s) will be filed by the POD in the office of the City Clerk and may be recorded in the
public records of the County.

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT:

00678511



140 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Confirming Preliminary 

Assessment for Building Securing Number SEC 1282 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



I-2

I-2



—

stpetershurçj
www.stpota.oro

CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG
MEMORANDUM

TO: Chan Srinivasa, City Clerk, City Clerk’s Office

FROM: David Dickerson, Collection Manager, Billing & Collections’

SUBJECT: Public Hearing - City Council Meeting on MAY 18, 2023

DATE: May 3, 2023

Attached is the backup information regarding the Special Assessments listed below that are

scheduled for confirmation at the council meeting referenced above:

ASSESSMENT TYPE ASSESSMENTNUMBER

LOT CLEARING 1645

SECURING 1282



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL

MEETING OF: MAY 18, 2023

TO: COUNCIL CHAIR AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

SUBJECT: Confirming Preliminary Assessment for
Building Securing Number SEC 1282

EXPLANATION: Codes Compliance Assistance has secured the
attached structures which were found to be
unfit or unsafe under Chapter 8 of the
St. Petersburg City Code. The interest
rate is 8% per annum on the unpaid balance.

SEC: 1282

NUMBER OF STRUCTURES 8

ASSESSABLE AMOUNT: $6,680.86

According to the City Code, these assessments constitute a
lien on each property. It is recommended that the assessments
be confirmed.

COST/FUNDING/ASSESSMENT INFORMATION:
The total assessable amount of $6,680.86 will be fully assessable
to the property owners.

ATTACHMENTS:

MAYOR:________________________

COUNCIL ACTION:_________________

FOLLOW-UP: AGENDA NO.

--___



4
/2

6
/2

3
1

0
:4

4
:5

1
:

*
C

ity
o
f

S
t.

P
e
te

rs
b

u
rg

*
*

*
*

P
a
g
e

S
p
e
c
ia

l
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

D
iv

is
io

n
F

IN
A

L
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
R

O
L

L
5
-1

8
-2

0
2
3

A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

O
W

N
E

R
N

A
M

E
P

A
R

C
E

L
ID

O
R

IG
IN

A
L

N
U

1B
E

R
/M

A
IL

IN
G

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
/L

E
G

A
L

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

S
E

C
1
2
8
2

0
8
2
0
1

*
*

*
*

*
*

*
*

*
*

2
7

3
1

1
6

0
1

7
4

6
0

0
0

0
0
5
0

3
8
1
9

1
5
T

H
A

V
E

S
7
8
8
.2

6
A

U
S

T
IN

S
S

U
B

P
0

B
O

X
3
5
2
9
5

L
O

T
5

S
A

IN
T

P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

F
L

3
3

7
0

5
0

5
0

5

S
E

C
1
2
8
2

0
8
2
0
2

F
L

IP
IT

2
U

L
L

C
1
4

3
1

1
6

1
2
4
9
2

0
0

0
0

2
2

0
2
3
1
1

8T
H

A
V

E
N

2
0

5
.9

7
B

R
U

N
S

O
N

S
U

B
1
2
0
1
1

F
O

X
H

IL
L

C
IR

L
O

T
2
2

B
O

Y
N

T
O

N
B

E
A

C
H

F
L

3
3

4
7

3
7

8
3

3

S
E

C
1

2
8

2
0

8
2

0
3

N
&

J
D

R
E

A
M

S
L

L
C

3
1

3
1

1
7

3
6
6
8
4

0
0

0
1
0
8
0

6
2

5
2

5
T

H
A

V
E

S
1

,4
4

6
.1

4
H

A
R

B
O

R
D

A
L

E
S

U
B

2
6
5
5

6T
H

A
V

E
S

L
O

T
1

0
8

S
A

IN
T

P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

F
L

3
3

7
1

2
1

6
5

3

S
E

C
1
2
8
2

0
8
2
0
4

IC
A

R
S

O
F

T
A

M
P

A
L

L
C

0
1

3
1

1
6

3
7
0
4
4

0
0
3

0
1
1
0

2
1
2
6

4
3
R

D
A

V
E

N
6
5

5
.9

7
H

A
R

R
IS

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
U

B
N

O
.

2
2
1
2
6

4
3
R

D
A

V
E

N
B

L
K

3
,

L
O

T
1

1

S
A

IN
T

P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

F
L

3
3

7
1

4
4

1
3

1

S
E

C
1
2
8
2

0
8
2
0
5

H
A

R
D

W
IC

K
R

E
A

L
E

S
T

A
T

E
IN

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
L

L
C

3
0

3
1

1
7

4
6
4
0
4

0
0

5
0

0
4

0
5

2
4

1
6
T

H
A

V
E

S
1

,2
7

9
.3

5
K

E
R

R
A

D
D

1
7
0
0

6
6

T
H

S
T

N
S

T
E

1
0

4
-1

3
1

B
L

K
5

,
L

O
T

4

S
A

IN
T

P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

F
L

3
3

7
1

0
5

5
4

4

S
E

C
1
2
8
2

0
8
2
0
6

R
E

R
F

F
1

L
L

C
2

7
3

1
1
6

5
3

5
3

2
0

0
0

0
0
6
0

4
0
2
9

1
3
T

H
A

V
E

S
1

,6
2

0
.0

7
M

C
C

L
A

Y
’S

,
J
.O

.
S

U
B

9
9
1
2

B
O

S
Q

U
E

C
R

E
E

K
C

IR
U

N
IT

3
0

2
L

O
T

6

T
A

M
P

A
F

L
3

3
6

1
9

5
1

6
0

S
E

C
1
2
8
2

0
8
2
0
7

T
H

O
M

A
S

,
N

A
T

H
A

N
IE

L
JR

2
6

3
1

1
6

7
2
8
4
6

0
0
0

0
1
8
0

1
3

3
8

2
9

T
H

S
T

S
4
1

0
.3

8
P

R
A

T
H

E
R

S
H

IG
H

L
A

N
D

H
O

M
E

S
P

0
B

O
X

1
3
4
5
7

L
O

T
S

1
8

A
N

D
1

9

S
A

IN
T

P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

F
L

3
3

7
3

3
3

4
5

7

S
A

S
8

0
S

R



4
/2

6
/2

3
1

0
:4

4
:5

1
:

C
ity

o
f

S
t.

P
e
te

rs
b
u
rg

*
*
*
*

P
a
g

e
2

S
p

e
c
ia

l
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

D
iv

is
io

n
F

IN
A

L
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
R

O
L

L
5
-1

8
-2

0
2
3

A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

O
W

N
E

R
N

A
M

E
P

A
R

C
E

L
ID

O
R

IG
IN

A
L

N
U

M
B

E
R

/M
A

IL
IN

G
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

/L
E

G
A

L
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T

S
E

C
1
2
8
2

0
8
2
0
8

B
A

N
K

O
F

A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
A

2
5

3
1

1
6

7
9
7
2
2

0
0

0
0
2
0
0

1
9

0
8

U
N

IO
N

S
T

5
2
7
4

.7
2

S
E

M
IN

O
L

E
H

E
IG

H
T

S
R

E
V

S
U

B
1
4
4
0
5

W
A

L
T

E
R

S
R

D
S

T
E

2
0
0

L
O

T
2
0

H
O

U
S

T
O

N
T

X
7

7
0

1
4

1
3

4
5

T
O

T
A

L
N

U
M

B
E

R
O

F
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
S

:
8

T
O

T
A

L
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
A

M
O

U
N

T
:

6
,6

8
0
.8

6

S
A

S
8
O

S
R



BUILDING SECURING NUMBER SEC 1282

COST!FUNDINGIASSESSMENT INFORMATION

CATEGORY AMOUNT TO BE ASSESSED

SECURING COST $ 4,252.50

MATERIAL COST $ 1,177.15

LEGALAD $ 891.21

ADMIN. FEE 360.00

TOTAL: $ 6,680.86



A RESOLUTION ASSESSING THE COSTS OF
SECURING LISTED ON SECURING BUILDING
NO. 1282 (“SEC 1282”) AS LIENS AGAINST THE
RESPECTIVE REAL PROPERTY UPON WHICH
SUCH COSTS WERE INCURRED; PROVIDING
THAT SAID LIENS HAVE A PRIORITY AS
ESTABLISHED BY CITY CODE SECTION
8-270; PROVIDING FOR INTEREST RATE(S)
ON UNPAID BALANCES; ACKNOWLEDGING
THAT A NOTICE(S) OF LIEN(S) SHALL BE
RECORDED IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF
THE COUNTY; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, in accordance with the requirements set forth in Chapter 8 of the St.
Petersburg City Code, the City has secured certain properties; and

WHEREAS, the structures so secured are listed on Securing Building No. 1282
(“SEC 1282”); and

WHEREAS, Section 8-270 of the St. Petersburg City Code provides that City
Council shall assess the entire cost of such securing against the property upon which such costs
were incurred and that such costs when assessed shall become a lien upon the property superior to
all other liens, except taxes; and

WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on May 18, 2023, to hear all
persons who wished to be heard concerning this matter.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
St. Petersburg, Florida, that this Council assesses the costs of securing listed on Securing Building
No. 1282 (“SEC 1282”) as liens against the respective real property upon which the costs were
incurred and that pursuant to Section 8-270 of the St. Petersburg City Code said liens shall be
superior in dignity to all other liens except taxes.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the unpaid balance of the principal amount of
any liens against the respective real property listed on SEC 1282 shall bear interest at the rate of
(i) 8% per annum beginning 30 days after the effective date of this Resolution and (ii) 12% per
annum beginning one year after the effective date of this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Council acknowledges that a notice(s) of
lien(s) shall be recorded in the public records of the County.

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT:

00678512



148 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: LDR 2022-06: A private-

initiated application requesting a text amendment to the Land Development Regulations: Ordinance 

545-H, an Ordinance of the City of St. Petersburg, Florida amending its Land Development 

Regulations; Amending Section 16.30.020.4 of the City Code relating to the Adaptive Reuse of 

Historic Buildings Overlay; and providing an effective date. (Legislative) 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



I-3

I-3



_ _ z 
~\WIii ____ ., __ 

stpelersburg1 
www.stpel!ei. rg 

ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
Meeting of May 18, 2023 

TO: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council 

SUBJECT: City File: LDR 2022-06: A private-initiated application requesting a text 
amendment to the Land Development Regulations: Ordinance 545-H, an Ordinance 
of the City of St. Peterburg, Florida amending its Land Development Regulations; 
Amending Section 16.30.020.4 of the City Code relating to the Adaptive Reuse of 
Historic Buildings Overlay; and providing an effective date. (Legislative) 

BACKGROUND: 
This text amendment application was submitted concurrently with applications for Local Historic 
Landmark designation (City File 22-90300002) and Adaptive Reuse (City File AR 2022-01) to 
preserve and redevelop a former Standard Oil filling station located at 2439 4th Street South. The 
text amendment will allow for the consideration of a drive-thru, where a local landmark 
designation is based on the building’s original design and function as an auto-dependent use. 
Examples of auto-dependent uses may include a filling station or auto repair shop. If the text 
amendment is approved, any requests will be required to have local landmark designation as a pre-
qualifying criterion and any adaptive reuse proposal will require public hearing approval by the 
Community Planning and Preservation Commission. The very limited applicability of local 
landmark designation for auto-dependent uses and the protection of a public hearing requirement 
to assess individual adaptive reuse proposals, makes this text amendment application a reasonable 
request with no negative, measurable impacts. 

The associated application for Local Historic Landmark designation is scheduled to be heard 
before City Council concurrently with this text amendment application, as Ordinance 133-HL.  
The application for Adaptive Reuse was approved by the Community Planning and Preservation 
Commission on April 11, 2023, conditioned upon approval of the associated Local Historic 
Landmark designation and this text amendment application. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Administration: City staff recommends APPROVAL. 

Community Planning and Preservation Commission (CPPC): On April 11, 2023, the 
Community Planning and Preservation Commission conducted a public hearing and voted 
8-to-0 to find the amendment consistent with the comprehensive plan and recommend 
APPROVAL. 

Previous City Council Action: On May 4, 2023, City Council conducted the first reading 
and voted unanimously to set the second reading and adoption public hearing for May 18, 
2023. 



Recommended City Council Action: 
1) CONDUCT the second reading and public hearing of the attached proposed ordinance; 
2) APPROVE the proposed ordinance. 

Attachments: Ordinance 545-H, CPPC Staff Report, and draft CPPC minutes 



 
 

 

 
  

 
 

  
  

  
 

 

  
 

    
  

 
   

    
    

  
  

 

  

  
  

 
   

 
  

 
  

  
   

 
  

    
   

    
 

 

ORDINANCE 545-H 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ST. 
PETERSBURG, FLORIDA AMENDING ITS 
LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS; 
AMENDING SECTION 16.30.020.4. OF THE 
CITY CODE RELATING TO THE ADAPTIVE 
REUSE OF HISTORIC BUILDINGS OVERLAY; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

THE CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG DOES ORDAIN: 

SECTION ONE. Section 16.30.020.4. of the St. Petersburg City Code is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 

SECTION 16.30.020.4. – Assignment of new use. 

A. Generally. A building is encouraged to contain any use allowed by right but may convert 
to any of the uses which are listed in the reuse chart. 

B. Reuse chart. The following chart identifies uses which are allowed in certain districts. 
Uses not identified in the chart and not allowed in the zoning district are prohibited 
unless the property is rezoned. 

Reuse Chart 

If the building or structure is located in 
the following districts: 

The building or structure may be used 
for the following: 

Neighborhoods, traditional and suburban All uses allowed in the district plus 
multifamily uses and bed and breakfasts. 

Corridor, residential All uses allowed in the district plus any 
allowable use in the NT-4 district. Where a 
building or structure was originally 
designed, and subsequently landmarked for, 
its importance as an auto-dependent use 
(e.g., including but not limited to, filling 
station and auto repair shop), adaptive reuse 
into other auto-dependent uses may be 
considered. 

Corridor, commercial Any use 
Centers, traditional and suburban Any use 
Industrial Any nonresidential use 

1 



 
 

   
    

  
 

    
 

 
     

  
 

 

 

  
  

  

 

 

 

 

SECTION TWO. Codification. Words that are struck through shall be deleted from the existing 
City Code and language which is underlined shall be added to the existing City Code.  Provisions 
not specifically amended shall continue in full force and effect. 

SECTION THREE. In the event this Ordinance is not vetoed by the Mayor in accordance with 
the City Charter, it shall become effective after the expiration of the fifth business day after 
adoption unless the Mayor notifies the City Council through written notice filed with the City 
Clerk that the Mayor will not veto this Ordinance, in which case this Ordinance shall become 
effective immediately upon filing such written notice with the City Clerk. In the event this 
Ordinance is vetoed by the Mayor in accordance with the City Charter, it shall not become effective 
unless and until the City Council overrides the veto in accordance with the City Charter, in which 
case it shall become effective immediately upon a successful vote to override the veto. 

_/s/: Michael J. Dema____ 
City Attorney (designee) 
00676040.docx 

2 



  

  

 

   

 

  

   

   

               

             

  

   

  

  

      

  

       

         

      

       

  

     

       

             

         

  

     

  

           

          

        

  

 

           

      

         

          

         

             

           

Staff Report to the St. Petersburg Community Planning & Preservation Commission 

Prepared by the Planning & Development Services Department, 

Urban Planning and Historic Preservation Division 

For Public Hearing and Executive Action on Tuesday, April 11, 2023 

at 2:00 p.m. in City Council Chambers, City Hall 

175 5th St North, St. Petersburg, FL 33701. 

Report to the Community Planning and Preservation Commission from the Urban Planning and Historic Preservation Division, Planning 

and Development Services Department, for Public Hearing and Executive Action, Tuesday, April 11, 2023 at 2:00 p.m. 

CASE NUMBER: LDR 2022-06 

CASE DESCRIPTION: Text Amendment to City Code, Chapter 16, Section 16.30.020.4 

APPLICANT: Carolee Blackmon & Robert Blackmon 

AGENT: Jessica Icerman, Esquire, Stearns Weaver Miller 

REQUEST: Owner-initiated application for approval of a text amendment to City Code, 

Chapter 16 (Land Development Regulations), Section 16.30.020.4, titled 

Adaptive Reuse of Historic Buildings Overlay: Assignment of New Uses. 

The purpose of this text amendment is to allow the consideration of a drive-

thru, where the justification for a local landmark designation is based on the 

building’s original design and function as an auto-dependent use, for e.g. 

filling station or auto repair shop. 

DESCRIPTION: Owner-initiated application for approval of a text amendment to City Code, Chapter 16 

(Land Development Regulations), Section 16.30.020.4, titled Adaptive Reuse of Historic Buildings Overlay: 

Assignment of New Uses. The purpose of this text amendment is to allow the consideration of a drive-thru, 

where the justification for a local landmark designation is based on the building’s original design and function 
as an auto-dependent use, for e.g., filling station or auto repair shop. 

AUTHORITY: Pursuant to Section 16.80.030.1 of the City Code of Ordinances, the Community Planning 

and Preservation Commission (“CPPC”), acting as the Land Development regulation Commission (“LDRC”) 
for the purposes of and as required by the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development 

Regulation Act to review and evaluate proposed modifications to the Land Development Regulations 

(“LDRs”) related to historic and archaeological preservation, to review and evaluate proposed historic 

designations, certificates of appropriateness and any other action to be performed pursuant to the Historic and 

Archaeological Preservation Overlay Section (currently Sec. 16.30.070). 

REQUEST: That the CPPC, in its capacity as the LDRC, make a finding of consistency with the 

Comprehensive Plan and recommend to City Council APPROVAL of the City Code, Chapter 16, text 

amendments described in this report. City Staff concurs with the applicant’s application and requests the same. 

ANALYSIS: The City of St. Petersburg is a Certified Local Government (“CLG”). The CLG program links 
three (3) levels of government (federal, state, and local) into a preservation partnership for the identification, 

evaluation, and protection of historic properties. The program was first enacted on the federal level as part of 

the National Historic Preservation Act Amendments of 1980. On the state and local level, Florida’s CLG 
City File LDR 2022-06 

Page 1 



  

  

 

           

        

  

 

           

             

           

        

     

           

             

       

 

 

    

            

          

   

 

    

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

   

  

  

   

  

   

   

  
 

             

       

        

           

        

           

 

 

 

 

program and the City of St. Petersburg’s CLG designation were both established in 1986. Since that time, the 
CLG program has assisted in the survey, designation, and preservation of historic and cultural resources 

citywide and helped to increase the public awareness of historic preservation. 

Through the Adaptive Reuse of Historic Buildings Overlay local landmark buildings may be re-purposed or 

adaptively reused for land use types that are otherwise prohibited within the applicable zoning category. The 

purpose of this benefit is to encourage the retention and productive reuse of structures that add historic, 

architectural, or cultural value to the city rather than demolition because their original use has become 

functionally obsolete. Historically significant buildings are sometimes abandoned or demolished when it 

becomes too difficult to meet current zoning standards and Florida Building Code requirements. Adaptive 

reuse recognizes the importance of these historically significant buildings and establishes a process by which 

these buildings can be retained and reused while minimizing any secondary impacts to the surrounding 

properties. 

Although a local landmark building is encouraged to continue operating with it’s original land use, some land 

use types become functional obsolete over time. The following reuse chart allows conversion to any other 

listed uses which are listed in the reuse chart. The proposed text amendment is identified in a strikethrough-

underline format and highlighted in [red]. 

B. Reuse chart. The following chart identifies uses which are allowed in certain districts. Uses not 

identified in the chart and not allowed in the zoning district are prohibited unless the property is 

rezoned. 

Reuse Chart 

If the building or structure is located in the 

following districts: 

The building or structure may be used for 

the following: 

Neighborhoods, traditional and suburban All uses allowed in the district plus 

multifamily uses and bed and breakfasts. 

Corridor, residential All uses allowed in the district plus any 

allowable use in the NT-4 district. Where a 

building or structure was originally designed, 

and subsequently landmarked for, its 

importance as an auto-dependent use (i.e. filling 

station, auto repair shop), adaptive reuse into 

other auto-dependent uses may be considered. 

Corridor, commercial Any use 

Centers, traditional and suburban Any use 

Industrial Any nonresidential use 

This text amendment application was submitted with a three-part request by the Applicants, who are attempting 

to preserve a former Standard Oil filling station, located at 2439 4th Street South. If approved, similar future 

requests are still required to have local landmark designation as a pre-qualifying criterion and any adaptive 

reuse proposal requires public hearing approval by the CPPC. The very limited applicability of local landmark 

designation for auto-dependent uses and the protection of a public hearing requirement to assess individual 

adaptive reuse proposals, makes this text amendment application a reasonable request with no negative, 

measurable impacts. 

City Staff recommends support for the proposed text amendment. 

City File LDR 2022-06 

Page 2 



  

  

  

   

           

        

  

          

 

         

 

            

    

         

  

  

   

  

              

       

       

         

  

   

      

   

  

 

  

 

  

 

COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The following objectives and policies from the 

City's Comprehensive Plan are applicable to the attached proposed amendments: 

Objective HP1: To continue to promote the preservation of resources through the commitment to 

conduct historic and archaeological resource surveys and the continued development of ordinances, 

guidelines and databases. 

Objective HP2: To continue to develop programs and policies to protect and preserve the City's 

historic resources. 

Objective HP3: To support the programs and incentives provided by local, state and national 

preservation organizations. 

Policy HP3.5: The City will continue to review its land use and Land Development Regulations 

and consider initiating amendments to such regulations to remove unnecessary disincentives 

to the reuse and redevelopment of historic landmarks. The City will solicit input from 

appropriate local and state organizations and interest groups. 

Objective LU20: The City shall, on an ongoing basis, review and consider for adoption, amendments 

to existing and/or new innovative land development regulations that can provide additional incentives 

for the achievement of Comprehensive Plan Objectives. 

Policy LU20.1: The City shall continue to utilize its innovative development regulations and 

staff shall continue to examine new innovative techniques by working with the private sector, 

neighborhood groups, special interest groups and by monitoring regulatory innovations to 

identify potential solutions to development issues that provide incentives for the achievement 

of the goals, objectives and policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 

HOUSING STATEMENT: The proposed amendments will have a positive impact on housing affordability, 

availability, or accessibility by synchronizing procedures and deadlines schedules. A Housing Affordability 

Impact Statement is attached. See attachment. 

REPORT PREPARED AND APPROVED BY: 

04.05.2023 

Derek Kilborn, Manager DATE 

Urban Planning and Historic Preservation Division 

Planning & Development Services Department 

Attachments 

City File LDR 2022-06 

Page 3 



  

  

  

-.<!!!!a!!
~"\'111111 ~-.-

st.petersburu 
www.s1pe1e.org 

ATTACHMENT NO. 1 

Applicant Narrative 

City File LDR 2022-06 

Page 4 



REQUEST TO AMEND 

THE TEXT OF THE 

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 

***** 

Carolee Blackmon & Robert Blackmon 

2439 4th Street South 

St. Petersburg, Florida 

Submitted by: 

Kevin Reali, Esquire 

Jessica Icerman, Esquire 

Stearns Weaver Miller 

401 East Jackson Street, Suite 2100 

Tampa, Florida 33602 

(813) 222-5059 

kreali@stearnsweaver.com 

jicerman@stearnsweaver.com 

As of October 13, 2022 

1 



~ 

2J01 Ii' 23110 0 
"' s:!11 510 500 .... 

611 

2J~ 

509 501 

2J24 
VJ .. 50 -c_;-, Cl 

E Harbor 24th Ave s 

"' I .\<DO 

r "' r, 
2405 

24-32 535 5ZI 521 513 501 

501 

h--

2&12 53D 5~ 510 ~ 

I 

2531 2550 5J5 525 52 511 51)1 

• 1 

2l00 

r/l 
2J10 

... 
r/l 2J20 

= W') 

0 

2408 

2420 

2428 

4JO 

2510 

2518 

.. 25 

401 

23rd Ave S 

I 414 

0 

0 

401 

24th Ave S 

~t.t 

0 

"' N 

.... 

Horl:o ~tJle 
YM~A 

24lil, 

25th Ave s 

25-15· '' 

2521 

0 

25l7 

-
26th Ave s 

I/) ... 
r,/) 

.c ... 
"" 

REQUEST 

This is a request to amend the text of the Land Development Regulations (“LDRs”), Chapter 16, 

City Code of Ordinances, pursuant to Section 16.70.040.1.1.D.3 of the Code of Ordinances, to 

permit auto-centric uses in connection with an approved major adaptive reuse within the residential 

corridor districts, provided the historic building or structure was originally designed as an auto-

centric use (i.e. filling station). 

Although this change shall apply to all applications meeting the criteria, the Applicant has 

simultaneously submitted an application for a local landmark designation and a major adaptive 

reuse application for Property located at 2439 4th Street South (Parcel ID 31-31-17-36684-000-

0150) (the “Property”). By way or orientation, the Property is at the northwest corner of the 

intersection at 4th St South and 25th Ave South, immediately south of the Harbordale YMCA. 

Vicinity Map 

2 



EFFECT OF TEXT AMENDMENT 

If approved, the text amendment would permit auto-centric uses for historically auto-oriented and 

locally designated landmarks within a residential corridor district as a major adaptive reuse. By 

way of example, a historic fueling station would be considered historically auto-oriented. If the 

historically auto-oriented building or structure is designated as a local or national historic 

landmark, it would be eligible to obtain an approval for a major adaptive reuse. The major adaptive 

reuse would permit auto-centric uses, such as drive-thrus, as permitted uses if the property 

containing the auto-oriented historic landmark is within a residential corridor zoning district. 

Text amendments are identified in a strikethrough-underline format on the draft Ordinance, 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 

OVERALL JUSTIFICATION 

The purpose the Adaptive Reuse of Historic Buildings Overlay Section is “to encourage the 

retention and productive reuse of structures that have historic, architectural, or cultural value to 

the City instead of seeing their underutilization or demolition because their original use has 

become functionally obsolete.” Further, the LDR “recognizes the importance of these significant 

buildings and provides a process by which these buildings can be reused and retained while 

minimizing any secondary impacts to the surrounding properties.” 

Certain historic auto-oriented uses, such as fueling stations, contain historic structures with a 

smaller-than-average footprint. Such structures no longer function in the current market 

environment due to their small size. Adaptive reuse is difficult because the small structures often 

need to be expanded and significantly retrofitted to accommodate permitted uses, thereby losing 

their historic integrity. To incentivize the preservation of such historic structures, the proposed text 

amendment adds auto-centric uses as permitted uses. Auto-centric uses will expand the available 

uses to allow for greater reuse opportunities—such as a coffee shop, café, or to-go restaurant. 

Although a coffee shop or café may currently be a permitted use, the inclusion of a drive-thru is 

what makes the use economically viable, and in the case of auto-centric uses, uniquely in harmony 

with the historic use of the property. Without proper incentives, such small historic buildings are 

at significant risk of being demolished or adapted in such a way wherein the structure will lose its 

historic integrity. 

The proposed change to add auto-centric uses as permitted uses does not create a by-right permitted 

use. All applicants seeking to incorporate such a use via a major adaptive reuse application must 

still undergo the major adaptive reuse process and obtain approval from the Community Planning 

and Preservation Commission. 

STANDARDS FOR REVIEW 

1. Compliance of the proposed use with the goals, objectives, polices and guidelines of 

the Comprehensive Plan; 

3 



The following objectives and policies from the City’s Comprehensive Plan are applicable to the 

proposed LDR text amendment: 

Objective HP2: To continue to develop programs and policies to protect and preserve the City's 

historic resources. 

Policy HP2.9: In order to protect and preserve the City’s historic resources, the City shall 

incorporate policies into the Land Development Regulations which discourage the 

demolition of historic resources which are listed, or eligible for listing, in the National 

Register of Historic Places or the St. Petersburg Register of Historic Places. Not only does 

this reinforce the City’s public policy that historic preservation is a public necessity, it 

preserves sense of place, encourages heritage tourism, and eliminates perpetually vacant 

blocks. 

Policy HP2.10: The City shall examine adding new land use and zoning incentives for 

historically or archaeologically significant properties for inclusion in the land development 

regulations. 

Objective HP3: To support the programs and incentives provided by local, state and national 

preservation organizations. 

Policy HP3.4: All City departments that provide or can create programs or incentives to 

assist in the rehabilitation and preservation of historic properties will provide assistance on 

an ongoing and case-by-case basis. 

Policy HP3.5: The City will continue to review its land use and Land Development 

Regulations and consider initiating amendments to such regulations to remove unnecessary 

disincentives to the reuse and redevelopment of historic landmarks. The City will solicit 

input from appropriate local and state organizations and interest groups. 

Objective HP5: Utilize the historic preservation ordinance and other available programs to reserve 

significant archaeological resources located in the City. 

Policy HP5.5: In order to protect and preserve the City’s archaeological resources, the City 

has adopted Land Development Regulations which discourage adverse impacts or the 

demolition of sites which are listed, or eligible for listing, in the National Register of 

Historic Places or the local register. 

Objective LU21: The City shall, on an ongoing basis, review and consider for adoption, 

amendments to existing or new innovative land development regulations that can provide 

additional incentives for the achievement of Comprehensive Plan Objectives. 

Policy LU20.1: The City shall continue to utilize its innovative development regulations 

and staff shall continue to examine new innovative techniques by working with the private 

sector, neighborhood groups, special interest groups and by monitoring regulatory 

4 



innovations to identify potential solutions to development issues that provide incentives 

for the achievement of the goals, objectives and policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 

Objective LU26: The City’s LDRs shall continue to support the adaptive reuse of existing and 

historic buildings in order to maximize the use of existing infrastructure, preserve natural areas 

from being harvested for the production of construction materials, minimize the vehicle miles 

traveled for transporting new construction materials over long distances, preserve existing natural 

carbon sinks within the City, and encourage the use of alternative transportation options. 

Policy LU26.1: The City shall, on an ongoing basis, examine existing adaptive reuse 

standards and revise or eliminate land-use provisions that act as regulatory barriers to the 

continued use of existing infrastructure and historic buildings. 

The proposed LDR text amendment is consistent with and furthers all of the above objectives and 

policies. The LDR text amendment provides further incentive to preserve structures and building 

of historic significance through an innovative use of a historically auto-oriented structure. The 

LDR text amendment will result in the preservation of historic structures which would not 

otherwise be preserved. 

2. Whether the proposed amendment would adversely affect environmentally sensitive 

lands or properties which are documented as habitat for the listed species as defined 

by the conservation element of the Comprehensive Plan; 

The proposed LDR text amendment would not adversely affect environmentally sensitive lands. 

In fact, the proposed LDR text amendment would preserve environmentally sensitive areas by 

incentivizing the reuse of already disturbed lands. 

3. Whether the proposed changes would alter the population density pattern and 

thereby adversely affect residential dwelling units or public schools; 

The proposed LDR text amendment would not alter population density patterns as it does not 

impact any permitted residential uses. 

4. Impact of the proposed amendment upon the adopted level of service (LOS) for public 

services and facilities including, but not limited to: water, sewer, sanitation, 

recreation and stormwater management and impact on LOS standards for traffic and 

mass transit. The POD may require the applicant to prepare and present with the 

application whatever studies are necessary to determine what effects the amendment 

will have on the LOS; 

The proposed LDR text amendment will have no impact on the LOS standards as it incentivizes 

the reuse of already-built structures/buildings. 

5. Appropriate and adequate land area sufficient for the use and reasonably anticipated 

operations and expansions; 

5 



Not applicable as the proposed LDR text amendment does not alter the major adaptive reuse 

process, which evaluates each property on a case-by-case basis. 

6. The amount and availability of vacant land or land suitable for redevelopment for 

similar uses in the City or on contiguous properties; 

Not applicable as the proposed LDR text amendment does not apply to vacant land and does not 

alter the major adaptive reuse process, which evaluates each property on a case-by-case basis. 

7. Whether the proposed change is consistent with the established land use pattern of 

the areas in reasonable proximity; 

Not applicable as the proposed LDR text amendment does not alter the major adaptive reuse 

process, which evaluates each property on a case-by-case basis. 

8. Whether the exiting district boundaries are logically drawn in relation to existing 

conditions on the property proposed for change; 

Not applicable. 

9. If the proposed amendment involves a change from residential to a nonresidential 

use or a mixed use, whether more nonresidential land is needed in the proposed 

location to provide services or employment to residents of the City; 

Not applicable. 

10. Whether the subject property is within the 100-year floodplain, hurricane evacuation 

level zone A or coastal high hazard areas as identified in the coastal management 

element of the Comprehensive Plan; 

Not applicable. 

11. Other pertinent facts. 

The proposed LDR text amendment would not increase housing costs. 

CONCLUSION 

We respectfully request the approval of the proposed LDR text amendment, attached as Exhibit 

“A”. 

6 
#10600516 v1 



EXHIBIT A 



EXHIBIT “A” 

ORDINANCE NO.: _________ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG, 

FLORIDA AMENDING THE PERMITTED USES IN 

CONNECTION WITH A MAJOR ADAPTIVE REUSE; 

AMENDING SECTION 16.30.020.4 TO ADD DRIVE-THRU 

AS A PERMITTED USE UNDER CERTAIN 

CIRCUMSTANCES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 

AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

THE CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG, FLORIDA DOES ORDAIN: 

Section 1: Section 16.30.020.4 of the St. Petersburg Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 

16.30.020.4 – Assignment of new use. 

A. Generally. A building is encouraged to contain any use allowed by right but may convert 

to any of the uses which are listed in the reuse chart. 

B. Reuse chart. The following chart identifies uses which are allowed in certain districts. Uses 

not identified in the chart and not allowed in the zoning district are prohibited unless the 

property is rezoned. 

Reuse Chart 

If the building or structure is located in the 

following districts: 

The building or structure may be used for 

the following: 

Neighborhoods, traditional and suburban All uses allowed in the district plus 

multifamily uses and bed and breakfasts. 

Corridor, residential All uses allowed in the district plus any 

allowable use in the NT-4 district. Where a 

building or structure was originally designed, 

and subsequently landmarked for, its 

importance as an auto-centric use (i.e. filling 

station), adaptive reuse into other auto-centric 

uses may be considered. 

Corridor, commercial Any use 

Centers, traditional and suburban Any use 

Industrial Any nonresidential use 

Section 2: Coding: As used in this ordinance, language appearing in struck-through type is 

language to be deleted from the City Code, and underlined language is language to be added to the 

City Code, in the section, subsection, or other location where indicated. Language in the City Code 

not appearing in this ordinance continues in full force and effect unless the context clearly indicates 

otherwise. Sections of this ordinance that amend the City Code to add new sections or subsections 

are generally not underlined. 

1 



EXHIBIT “A” 

Section 3: The provisions of this ordinance shall be deemed to be severable. If any provision of 

this ordinance is determined unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such determination shall not 

affect the validity of any other provisions of this ordinance. 

Section 4: In the event this Ordinance is not vetoed by the Mayor in accordance with the City 

Charter, it shall become effective after the expiration of the fifth business day after adoption unless 

the Mayor notifies the City Council through written notice filed with the City Clerk that the Mayor 

will not veto this Ordinance, in which case this Ordinance shall become effective immediately 

upon filing such written notice with the City Clerk. In the event this Ordinance is vetoed by the 

Mayor in accordance with the City Charter, it shall not become effective unless and until the City 

Council overrides the veto in accordance with the City Charter, in which case it shall become 

effective immediately upon a successful vote to override the veto. 

Approved as to Form: 

City Attorney (designee) 

2 
#10603692 v2 



  

  

  

  

-.<!!!!a!!
~"\'111111 ~-.-

st.petersburu 
www.s1pe1e.org 

ATTACHMENT NO. 2 

Housing Affordability Impact Statement 

City File LDR 2022-06 

Page 5 



  

  

  

  

    

   

          

    

          

   

 

    

  

          

           

 

       

 

      

   

      

 

City of St. Petersburg 

Housing Affordability Impact Statement 

Each year, the City of St. Petersburg receives approximately $2 million in State Housing Initiative Partnership 

(SHIP) funds for its affordable housing programs. To receive these funds, the City is required to maintain an 

ongoing process for review of local policies, ordinances, resolutions, and plan provisions that increase the cost of 

housing construction, or of housing redevelopment, and to establish a tracking system to estimate the cumulative 

cost per housing unit from these actions for the period July 1– June 30 annually. This form should be attached to 

all policies, ordinances, resolutions, and plan provisions which increase housing costs, and a copy of the completed 

form should be provided to the City’s Housing and Community Development Department. 

I. Initiating Department: Planning & Development Services Development 

II. Policy, Procedure, Regulation, or Comprehensive Plan Amendment Under Consideration for 

adoption by Ordinance or Resolution: 

See attached proposed amendments to Chapter 16, City Code of Ordinances (City File LDR 2022-06). 

III. Impact Analysis: 

A. Will the proposed policy, procedure, regulation, or plan amendment, (being adopted by ordinance or 

resolution) increase the cost of housing development? (i.e. more landscaping, larger lot sizes, increase fees, 

require more infrastructure costs up front, etc.) 

No X (No further explanation required.) 

Yes     _____ Explanation: 

If Yes, the per unit cost increase associated with this proposed policy change is estimated to be: 

$_______________________. 

B. Will the proposed policy, procedure, regulation, plan amendment, etc. increase the time needed for housing 

development approvals? 

No X (No further explanation required) 

Yes  ___ Explanation: 

City File LDR 2022-06 

Page 6 



  

  

  

 

   

   

  

 

       

       

        

  

  

  

 

 

  

   

 

  

   

    

 

 

 LJ 

LJ 

__________________________________ ________________ 

X 

IV: Certification 

It is important that new local laws which could counteract or negate local, state and federal reforms and incentives 

created for the housing construction industry receive due consideration.  If the adoption of the proposed regulation 

is imperative to protect the public health, safety and welfare, and therefore its public purpose outweighs the need to 

continue the community’s ability to provide affordable housing, please explain below: 

CHECK ONE: 

The proposed regulation, policy, procedure, or comprehensive plan amendment will not result in an 

increase to the cost of housing development or redevelopment in the City of St. Petersburg and no further 

action is required. (Please attach this Impact Statement to City Council Material and provide a copy to 

Housing and Community Development department.) 

__________________________________ 04.05.2023 

Manager, Urban Planning and Historic Preservation Division (signature) Date 

OR 

The proposed regulation, policy, procedure, or comprehensive plan amendment being proposed by 

resolution or ordinance will increase housing costs in the City of St. Petersburg. (Please attach this Impact 

Statement to City Council Material, and provide a copy to Housing and Community Development 

department.) 

Manager, Urban Planning and Historic Preservation Division (signature) Date 

Copies to: City Clerk 

Joshua A. Johnson, Director, Housing and Community Development 

City File LDR 2022-06 

Page 7 



 

 
 

   
     

  
 

 
                              

   
  

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
   

 
  
  
 
   
 
 
         

  
 

  
 

     
 

  
 

    
 

  
 

..,4....:, 
~ _. ... 

st.petersburg 
www.s1pe1e.org 

CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG 
COMMUNITY PLANNING & PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

PUBLIC HEARING 

Council Chambers, City Hall April 11, 2023 
175 – 5th Street North Tuesday 
St. Petersburg, Florida 33701 2:00 P.M. 

MINUTES 

Present: Lisa Wannemacher, Chair 
Robert “Bob” Jeffrey, Vice-Chair 
Ashley Marbet 
Manita Moultrie 
Will Michaels, Alternate 
Michael Huston, Alternate 
Joseph Magnello, Alternate 

Commissioners Absent: Cassie Gardner 
Joseph Magnello 

Staff Present: Derek Kilborn, Manager, Urban Planning & Historic Preservation 
Britton, Wilson, Planner II 
Kelly Perkins, Historic Preservationist II 
Heather Judd, Assistant City Attorney 
Michael Dema, Assistant City Attorney 
Katherine Connell, Clerk, Planning & Development Svcs. 
Iris Winn, Clerk, Planning & Development Svcs.  

The public hearing was called to order at 2:00 p.m., a quorum was present. 

I.     OPENING REMARKS OF CHAIR 

II. ROLL CALL 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND SWEARING IN OF WITNESSES 

IV. MINUTES (Approval of 3/14/2023 Minutes) 

The minutes from the March 14, 2023, meeting were approved unanimously 



 

   
 

  
 

    
  

    
  

 
  

            

  

  
  

 
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

   

   
  
     

 
   

 
   

 
 

   
   

 
  

  

V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

1. Warren Marshbourne, 104 17th Avenue South, Bradenton, Florida, gave a presentation for 
a USF class project regarding Cost Estimate Accountability in St. Petersburg.  

2. Antoine Ascanio, 200 6th Avenue South, gave a presentation for a USF class project 
regarding Cost Estimate Accountability in St. Petersburg. 

3. Kristion Jackson, 200 6th Avenue South, gave a presentation for a USF class project 
regarding Cost Estimate Accountability in St. Petersburg. 

VI. LEGISLATIVE 
1. City File LDR 2022-06 Derek Kilborn 893-7872  

Request: 

Approval of a text amendment to Land Development Regulation Section 16.30.020.4 Adaptive Reuse 
to add a drive-thru as a permitted use where the original structure was part of an auto-centered use. 

City Staff Presentation: 

Derek Kilborn gave a presentation based on the Staff Report. 

Applicant/Agenda Presentation: 

Jessica Icerman, Agent for owners Carolee, and Robert Blackmon, gave a presentation based on the 
Staff Report. 

Public Comment (33:01): 

4. Manny Leto, 3302 Northridge Avenue, Tampa, Florida, spoke in support of the proposed 
text amendments.  

5. Nathaniel Jay, 2400 Highland Street South, spoke in support of the proposed text 
amendments.  

6. Jim Blackmon, 4710 Bay Street Northeast, spoke in support of the proposed text amendments. 
7. Sarah-Jane Vatelot, 2420 5th Street South, spoke in support of the proposed text amendments. 
8. James W. Warren, 2340 Highland Street South, spoke in support of the proposed text 

amendments. 
9. Celeste Davis, 2651 Bayside Drive South, spoke in opposition of the proposed text 

amendments. 
10. Melissa Rutland, 200 Central Avenue, spoke in support of the proposed text amendments. 

Comments following Public Comment: (50:51) 

Commissioner Wannemacher: Are there any questions or commentary from the Commissioners from 
anybody who spoke today? 

Commissioner Michaels: Could the Applicant and/or Staff speak to the concern that was expressed 
about the traffic impact? 



 

  
 

   
    

 
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

  
 
 

  
 

 
  

  
  

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

  
 

was some immediate or unique concern, in which case, they would do an additional enhanced review 
and they did not see one here, so one was not included.  

Commissioner Michaels: Thank you. 

Commissioner Wannemacher: Does the Owner or Applicant have anything that they would like to 
add, specifically concerning the traffic/noise generation? 

Robert Blackmon (Co-owner of the property): As far as the traffic concerns go, the structure is 
320 square-feet, three (3) blocks to the south, you have 330-units going in. There are more new 
units being built within five (5) blocks of the location then there are square footage in the building. 
It’s not going to be a high-traffic business. There already is commercial in the direct area. Two (2) 
blocks to the north, there is a gas station right now. To the east side of the street, there is the south 
side food mart. It is about a block away. 

It is currently operating as a commercial structure on the other side of the street. I know Bayside 
Drive was mentioned, specifically, that street is on the east side of 4th Street, so there is no concerns 
in our mind a street on the other side of 4th Street would be impacted with traffic on such small 
location. And it is going to be café, so it would be limited hours, certainly, but we have so many 
units going in…it is a very small site. 

Cross Examination: 

City Staff and Applicant waived. 

Rebuttal/Closing Remarks: 

City Staff and Applicant waived. 

Executive Session (53:49): 

Derek Kilborn: I’ll go first and then if the Applicant has something to add. Thomas Whalen is the 
Transportation Engineer from the City’s Transportation and Parking Management Department. Tom 
Whalen was involved in the review of this application for several reasons. First and primarily, he was 
involved because there were concerns, when we get to the site plan later, about the egress lane leaving 
the drive-thru and reconnecting to the avenue. 

But as part of his review, of course, he looks at transportation as well. In this particular case, he did 
not identify any unique concern related to traffic that would be generated by the proposed use, and so 
we do not have a detailed analysis included here. Typically, that would not be provided unless there 

Commissioner Wannemacher: Thank you. If there is no more public comment, we can open it up 
to Executive Session. Who would like to start? 

Commissioner Michaels: I have lived on the south side of St. Pete for a good fifty years and have 
traveled up and down 4th Street, past the Standard Oil Service Station, built in 1926. I now 
understand zillions of times. I think I did it three (3) times today. It is something that will add to 
the quality life for a lot of us, whether we have lived there a long time or whether we are newcomers 



 

 
 

 
   

 
  

  
  

  
 

 
 

     
  

 
  

 
 

  
    

 
    

 
  

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
   

 
  

   
 

 
 

  

for all of us in that part of the neighborhood. That is my piece here and it applies all three of the 
applications that we have before us, and I would move approval of the proposed text amendment 
in keeping with the Staff’s recommendation. 

Commissioner Wannemacher: Well said. Thank you very much. Any other Commissioners like to 
speak, or we can go ahead and get a second. As a reminder, we are recommending approval to City 
Council for this item. 

Commissioner Moultrie: Good afternoon. I live in South St. Pete, pass this area quite frequent and 
I am happy to see some changes in that area as well. I do have a question. What happens if this is 
such a popular spot and we end up with traffic and lines of cars trying to get into the small drive-
thru and when we end up with traffic backup on 4th Street, has that been considered or how is that 
being handled? 

Attorney Dema: Chair - if I may? 

Commissioner Wannemacher: Yes, please. 

Attorney Dema: That is really site plan specific. I think that will be when we do the adaptive reuse 
item. I just kind of want to redirect the Commissions’ attention to the text amendment that is the 
subject of this first one. 

Commissioner Wannemacher: Right. 

Attorney Dema: And then we will get into some of the more nuts and bolts of site planning on that 
third item. 

Commissioner Wannemacher: And again, first is text amendment. We are just recommending to 
City Council for their view and final approval. 

to south St. Pete. I think we use the term ‘sense of place’ in historic preservation and that relates 
to the neighborhoods where we live and the neighborhoods nearby. 

This was certainly a feature, along with…I am trying to think of some of the other quality of life 
‘sense of place’ places there. The Chattaway, I think would certainly be up there towards the top 
of the list. And certainly, the Driftwood neighborhood is totally historic history-wise as well as 
landmark-wise. There is a saying about the best gifts are sometimes in small packages. I think that 
this is a gift to St. Pete in a small package, which is going to have a big effect on the quality of life 

Attorney Dema: You are making a finding of the Comprehensive Plan. 

Commissioner Wannemacher: Thank you. We’ve got a motion on the table to move this text 
amendment forward to City Council. Is there a second? 

Commissioner Marbet: Second. 

Commissioner Wannemacher: Thank you. Any other comments or discussion? 



 

  
 
 

 
 

  
   

  
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

   
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

     
 

 
                           
 
          
         
 

Commissioner Jeffrey: If I could just say one thing. I think we need to keep important as a 
Commission here is that this is not about this project. This is about any other project that may 
come forward. I just think that Staff has done an incredible job of actually crafting something here 
that protects this from going further than it would and creating unforeseen circumstances, so, thank 
you. 

Commissioner Wannemacher: I agree and knowing that any project or any case similar to this will 
come before this Commission for our review gives me comfort. If that is all, then let’s have a roll 
call, please. 

Katherine Connell (Clerk):  Wannemacher? 

Commissioner Wannemacher: Yes. 

Katherine Connell (Clerk):  Jeffrey? 

Commissioner Jeffrey? Yes. 

Katherine Connell (Clerk):  Marbet? 

Commissioner Marbet? Yes. 

Katherine Connell (Clerk):  Moultrie? 

Commissioner Michaels moved approval of the proposed text amendment in 
keeping with Staff’s recommendation. 

Commissioner Moultrie: Yes. 

Katherine Connell (Clerk):  Michaels? 

Commissioner Michaels: Yes. 

Katherine Connell (Clerk):  Huston? 

Commissioner Huston: Yes. 

Katherine Connell (Clerk):  That motion passes unanimously. 

Motion: 

Commissioner Marbet, Second. (2:28) 

YES – 6 – Wannemacher, Jeffrey, Marbet, Moultrie, Michaels, Huston. 
NO – 0 – None. 



175 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Ordinance 133-HL approving 

the owner-initiated designation of the Standard Oil Service Station, located at 2439 4th Street South, 

as a Local Historic Landmark of the St. Petersburg Register of Historic Places (City File 22-

90300002). [Quasi-judicial] 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



I-4

I-4



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
Meeting of May 18, 2023 

TO: The Honorable Chair Brandi Gabbard and Members of City Council 

SUBJECT: Owner-Initiated Local Historic Landmark Designation of the 
Standard Oil Service Station, located at 2439 4th Street South (City 
File 22-90300002). [QUASI-JUDICIAL] 

REQUEST: The request is to designate the Standard Oil Service Station, as a local 
historic landmark in the St. Petersburg Register of Historic Places. 

BACKGROUND: An analysis of the request is provided in the attached CPPC Staff 
Report. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Administration: Administration recommends approval. 

Community Planning and Preservation Commission: On April 11, 
2023, the Community Planning and Preservation Commission held 
a public hearing and voted 6-0 to recommend approval of the request 
to designate the Standard Oil Service Station. 

Recommended City Council Action: 

1) CONDUCT the second reading and quasi-judicial public 
hearing of the proposed ordinance; AND 

2) APPROVE the proposed Ordinance 133-HL  

Attachments: Ordinance 133-HL, Staff Report to the CPPC 
with the Designation Application, draft CPPC minutes 



ORDINANCE NO. 133-HL 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG, 
FLORIDA, DESIGNATING THE STANDARD OIL SERVICE 
STATION, LOCATED AT 2439 4TH STREET SOUTH, AS A 
LOCAL HISTORIC LANDMARK AND ADDING THE 
PROPERTY TO THE ST. PETERSBURG REGISTER OF 
HISTORIC PLACES PURSUANT TO SECTION 16.30.070, CITY 
CODE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

THE CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG DOES ORDAIN: 

SECTION 1.  The City Council finds that the Standard Oil Service Station meets at least 
one of the nine criteria listed in Section 16.30.070.2.5.D, City Code, for designating historic 
properties. More specifically, the Standard Oil Service Station meets the following criteria: 

(a) Its value is a significant reminder of the cultural or archaeological heritage of the
city, state, or nation.

(e) Its value as a building is recognized for the quality of its architecture, and it retains
sufficient elements showing its architectural significance.

(f) It has distinguishing characteristics of an architectural style valuable for the study
of a period, method of construction, or use of indigenous materials.

SECTION 2. The City Council finds that the Standard Oil Service Station meets at least
one of the seven factors of integrity listed in Section 16.30.070.2.5.D, City Code, for designating 
historic properties. More specifically, the property meets the following factors of integrity: 

(a) Location. The place where the historic property was constructed or the place where the
historic event occurred;

(b) Design. The combination of elements that create the form, plan, space, structure, and style
of a property; and

(c) Feeling. The property’s expression of the aesthetic or historic sense of a particular period
of time.

SECTION 3. The Standard Oil Service Station, located upon the following described
property, is hereby designated as a local landmark, and shall be added to the St. Petersburg Register 
of Historic Places, a list of designated landmarks, landmark sites, and historic and thematic districts 
which is maintained in the office of the City Clerk: 

Designation Boundary 
HARBORDALE SUB LOT 15 LESS E 5FT FOR STREET 

SECTION 4. This ordinance, having been heard at a duly noticed quasi-judicial public 
hearing, shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

Approved as to Form and Substance: 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
City Attorney (or Designee)        Date 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Planning and Development Services Department      Date  

04/19/2023

4/19/2023



 



   

CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG, FLORIDA 
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

URBAN PLANNING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION 
 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 
COMMUNITY PLANNING AND PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

REQUEST FOR LISTING IN THE ST. PETERSBURG REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES 

Report to the Community Planning and Preservation Commission from the Urban Planning and Historic 

Preservation Division, Planning and Development Services Department, for Public Hearing and Executive 

Action scheduled for Tuesday, April 11, 2023, beginning at 2:00 p.m., in Council Chambers of City Hall, 

175 Fifth St. N., St. Petersburg, Florida. Everyone is encouraged to view the meetings on TV or online at 

https://www.stpete.org/connect_with_us/stpete_tv.php. 

According to Planning & Development Services Department records, no Commission member or 

his or her spouse has a direct or indirect ownership interest in real property located within 1,000 

linear feet of real property contained with the application (measured in a straight line between the 

nearest points on the property lines). All other possible conflicts should be declared upon the 

announcement of the item. 

 

Case Number: 22-90300002 

Landmark Name: Standard Oil Service Station 

Street Address: 2439 4th Street South 

Parcel ID Number: 31-31-17-36684-000-0150 

Legal Description: HARBORDALE SUB LOT 15 LESS E 5FT FOR STREET 

Owners: Carolee and Robert Blackmon 

Agent: Jessica Icerman and Kevin Reali, Sterns Weaver Miller 

Request: Owner-initiated designation of the Standard Oil Service Station as a Local 

Historic Landmark of the St. Petersburg Register of Historic Places 



 CPPC Case No. 22-90300002 

 Page 2 

 

Summary: Standard Oil Service Station 

Date of Construction: 1926 

Period of Significance: 1926-1962 

Architect and Builder: Unknown 

Criteria for Landmark Eligibility: A, E, and F 

Areas of Significance: Architecture 

Transportation 

Retention of Historic Integrity: Location, Design, and Feeling 

OVERVIEW AND BACKGROUND 

The property at 2439 4th St S ("the subject property") was constructed in 1926 in the early Commercial 

Style that was fashionable at that time for service and filling stations across the country. The subject 

property was designed to engage with motorists driving down 4th St S and present-day 22nd Ave S, 

making it a prominent landmark for motorists driving through the southern part of St. Petersburg. As 

such, it stands as a tangible reminder of the growing importance of the automobile to the young city's 

economy. 

The designation application was accompanied by a thorough narrative detailing the subject property's 

history, existing conditions, and significance to the community's development. Staff concurs with the 

application's (Appendix A) conclusion that the subject property is eligible for listing in the St. 

Petersburg Register of Historic Places. The application proposes listing under criteria A, E, and F. Staff 

agrees with the listing under those stated criteria in the areas of Architecture and Transportation. 

The application for Local Landmark Designation is one of several submitted by the applicant for the 

subject property. The applicant has also submitted a text amendment to City Code, Chapter 16, Section 

16.30.020.4, Adaptive Reuse of Historic Buildings, and an adaptive reuse application with variances 

also based on Section 16.30.020.4, Adaptive Reuse of Historic Buildings. The following table is 

intended to itemize the Applicant’s numerous requests, schedule the order in which the CPPC is 

required to vote, and highlight what applications require subsequent City Council action. 

  CPPC City Council 

1 Text amendment to Section 16.30.020.4 Recommendation Final 

2 Local Landmark Designation Recommendation Final 

3 Adaptive Reuse (Site Plan Approval) Final *  

3a Variance: Interior Green Yard (16.40.060.2.1.3.D) Final *  

3b Variance: Exterior Green Yard (16.40.060.2.1.3.D) Final *  

3c Variance: Buffering to NT Zoning 

(16.40.030.3.4.B.10) 

Final *  

3d Variance: Buffering to Surface Parking Lot 

(16.20.060.7) 
Final *  

3e Variance: Maximum Impervious Surface Ratio 

(16.20.060.5) 

Final *  



 CPPC Case No. 22-90300002 

 Page 3 

 

3d Variance: Orientation of Speaker Box 

(16.50.150.4.3) 

Final *  

 Adaptive reuse approval by the CPPC cannot be effectuated without the text amendment and local 

landmark designation also being approved by City Council. If either the text amendment or the 

local landmark designation is denied by City Council, then the conditioned approval for adaptive 

reuse with variances is void. 

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION  

The structure is a small, one-story, rectangular box with a large front canopy with a Y-shaped structural 

steel beam. The architectural details on the building are minimal, which is in keeping with the 

utilitarian function of the building – to provide gasoline and other automotive services in an efficient 

manner. The small building is clad in stucco with a brick water table providing architectural interest. 

See the Character Defining Features section and the application for additional details on the building's 

ornamentation.  

HISTORICAL CONTEXT 

The southern portion of the Florida peninsula was largely unsettled in the mid-nineteenth century. 

Native American tribes who had resided in the Tampa Bay region at this time were diminished by 

conflict, migration, and disease at the conclusion of the Indian Wars of 1858. A small handful of settlers 

had also established fish ranchos and small farms in the lower Pinellas area by the dawn of the Civil 

War, but most relocated during the conflict.  

Following the war, politicians in Florida and states throughout the South struggled to recoup financially 

while still bickering over the ramifications of emancipation. During these early post-war years, some 

of the settlers that had called the Pinellas Peninsula home prior to the Civil War returned, and their 

numbers slowly grew. The expansion of railroad construction further into the state allowed a growing 

number of large-scale landowners to begin developing what had previously been agricultural land in 

the final decades of the 1800s. One such landowner was Peter Demens (born Pyotr Alexeyevitch 

Dementyev), a Russian immigrant and speculative real estate developer. Partially financed by 

Philadelphian and fellow area landowner Hamilton Disston, Demens expanded the Orange Belt 

Railway into, and platted the land that would become, St. Petersburg. When the first trains arrived in 

the newly named town in 1888, it was home to only 30 residents.  

Although the Orange Belt Railway was providing service into St. Petersburg, it was not initially 

successful. The American Medical Association’s Dr. W.C. Van Bibber had endorsed the Pinellas 

peninsula as the perfect location for a “Health City” in 1885. To boost ridership and capitalize on the 

idea that St. Petersburg’s climate offered healing powers, the Orange Belt Railway started to offer 

seaside excursions to St. Petersburg in 1889.1 These excursions were among the first concentrated 

efforts by the community and its boosters to attract tourists.2  

The City’s administration itself began to formally encourage tourism with promotional campaigns 

following the election of Al Lang as mayor in 1916. Lang had been elected after he arranged to bring 

the Philadelphia Phillies baseball team to the city for spring training. Under his leadership, the City 

 

1 Raymond Arsenault, St. Petersburg and the Florida Dream: 1888 – 1950, (Norfolk, VA: The Donning Company, 1988), 62. 
2 Karl H. Grismer, The Story of St. Petersburg: The History of Lower Pinellas Peninsula and the Sunshine City, (St. Petersburg, FL: 
P.K. Smith & Company, 1924), 70, 97, 111; “Heavy Real Estate Deal: Old Company Goes Out of Business,” St. Petersburg Times, 
December 15, 1906. 



 CPPC Case No. 22-90300002 

 Page 4 

 

publicly encouraged tourism and made efforts to improve the physical appearance of the city. With 

approximately 83 real estate companies operating in the city in 1914, the focus turned increasingly to 

attracting winter residents. The local population soon doubled during “the season.” Winter residents 

even formed tourist societies organized by their state or region of origin which acted as booster clubs 

in their native states. Although the real estate market collapsed during World War I, the boom of 

development had created a pattern for the future growth of the city. During the 1910s, the city’s 

population grew from 4,127 to 14,237 and developers began to eye expanding outside of St. 

Petersburg’s downtown. 3  

Harbordale and the Drive Southward 

Improvements to the railway over the years led to further investment and development of the town, 

now known as St. Petersburg, and developers started to purchase property outside the small downtown. 

In the early 1900s, C.A Harvey, who purchased a large piece of land north of Big Bayou with the 

intentions of a large residential development south of downtown, had plans to develop a harbor site in 

that residential development. He chartered the Bayboro Investment Company in 1906, and the 

development of the harbor took several years, and involved dredging Salt and Booker Creek and the 

Bayboro inlet to develop the deep-water harbor.4 While the harbor never fulfilled Harvey’s 

expectations, it had a significant impact on the development of the surrounding area. 

 

Figure 1: Newspaper advertisement for the new Harbordale Subdivision. St. Petersburg Times, 

May 25, 1914. 

The new Big Bayou trolley line in the early 1910s helped serve the area south of downtown, and 

subdivisions were created to take advantage of the new public transportation. In 1913, Harbordale was 

first platted with Lakeview Avenue (now 22nd Ave S) to the north, 4th St S to the east, and 24th Ave S 

(now 26th Ave S) to the south, and 7th St S to the west. Lakeview Avenue is one of the oldest roads in 

St. Petersburg, and considered the oldest road on the lower end of the Pinellas Peninsula.5 Advertising 

 

3 Arsenault, 121-125, 143-146, 190; Grismer,189. 
4 Arsenault, 87-88. 
5 Grismer, 155-156. 



 CPPC Case No. 22-90300002 

 Page 5 

 

for Harbordale in the early 1910s promoted its proximity to Lakeview Avenue, the Big Bayou trolley 

line, access to nearby waterfront at Big Bayou, and the construction of a new motorboat canal through 

Salt Creek (see Figure 1). 

While the plan for Harbordale was ambitious, it appears to have been unsuccessful with all the lots in 

Harbordale going to auction in 1918.6 In 1924, the subdivision was given new life by Green and 

Richman, a notable 1920s real estate firm during the Florida land boom. In the new advertisements for 

the development, Green and Richman highlighted Harbordale’s prime location “at the junction of two 

great boulevards:” Lakeview Avenue and 4th Street South.7 By the 1920s, Lakeview Avenue was a 

wide, spacious, east-west oriented corridor that served the rising automobile traffic, and 4th Street had 

become the main thoroughfare through the city and a connector to the northern Gandy Bridge, which 

allowed automobiles to reach Tampa and greatly expanded access to St. Petersburg. 

In addition, other large developments towards the southern end of St. Petersburg were announced in 

the mid-1920s, such as the Lakewood Estates subdivision on the southern edge of Lake Maggiore and 

the development of the Bee Line Ferry, which departed from Pinellas Point on the southern tip of St. 

Petersburg. 

The Rise of the Service Station 

The applicants included the National Register 

nomination for the Standard Oil Service Station in 

Plant City. The nomination gives details to the 

growing need for filling stations across the country 

in the 1920s, as the automobile became more 

accessible and popular to Americans. In 1920, one 

in 11 Americans owned an automobile. By 1930, it 

was one in five Americans owned an automobile. St. 

Petersburg would have been no different, and given 

St. Petersburg’s exceptional population growth over 

the 1920s, the increase in automobiles on the roads 

would have even more prevalent. 

Filling stations were originally small shacks, only 

providing cover to keep the attendants sheltered 

from weather. Starting in the early 1920s, gasoline 

and oil companies developed a new concept for 

filling stations: the domestic style filling station. 

These structures were intended to be located on 

corners in residential neighborhoods, so the 

structures were designed with a scale and style to fit 

in with the nearby residential neighborhoods. 

Instead of large commercial storefront windows, the 

buildings were designed with sash-operated 

 

6 “Today at 2 P.M.” St. Petersburg Times, March 8, 1918. 
7 Harbordale Advertisement, St. Petersburg Times, March 25, 1924. 

Figure 2: 1926 Advertisement for Standard Oil 
Service Station in the St. Petersburg Times. 



 CPPC Case No. 22-90300002 

 Page 6 

 

windows and cladding materials that were comparable with the neighboring houses. 

These new domestic style filling stations were an 

early example of a standardized building design being 

used as a branding and marketing product, which 

would be easily recognizable by motorists as a source 

of reliable, quality service. These standardized 

designs show the professional development and 

growing consumer demand in the automobile 

industry, moving from informally buying gasoline 

from an individual curbside to frequenting a qualified 

building specifically designed to provide gasoline and 

other automotive services.8 

Standard Oil strategically located these service 

stations throughout the city, reaching the outer edges 

of St. Petersburg to catch motorists existing the city, 

while also servicing the bustling downtown. By 1927, 

St. Petersburg had seven Standard Oil service 

stations9. The locations were in the following:  

• 179 2nd Ave S 

• 9th St S, corner of 13th Ave S 

• 821 9th St N 

• 2603 Central Ave 

• 30th Ave and 4th St N 

• 34th Ave and 9th St N 

• 4th St S and 23rd Ave S10 (the subject property) 

The subject building is the only surviving structure 

from this group. Given the subject property’s southern 

location, it appears that Standard Oil selected this 

location due to its proximity to the intersection of 4th Street South and Lakeview Avenue, trying to 

capture motorists utilizing two major roadways in the south side of St. Petersburg at the time. 

Research indicates that there are only a handful of this specific type and standardized design of the 

early 1920s Standard Oil service stations left in Florida.  

1920s Extant Standard Oil Service Stations in Florida11 

Location Current use Designation Integrity 

1111 N Wheeler St, 

Plant City, FL 
Dog Grooming 

Listed on the National 

Register of Historic Places 
High 

 

8 National Register Nomination for Standard Oil Service Station in Bowling Green, Kentucky. 
9 1927 Polk County Directory. 
10 In 1928, Ordinance 617-A standardized the street names, changing 23rd Avenue South to 25th Avenue South. This also 
includes the change of Lakeview Avenue South to 22nd Avenue South. 
11 Roadside Architecture, https://www.roadarch.com/gas/flcan.html. 

Figure 3: Advertisement for Standard Oil Service 
Station with a full depiction of the standardized 

design. St. Petersburg Times, June 23, 1926. 



 CPPC Case No. 22-90300002 

 Page 7 

 

829 Fleming St, 

Key West, FL 
Restaurant/Café 

Contributing to Key West 

Historic District 
Diminished 

1000 Eaton St, 

Key West, FL 
Restaurant/Café 

Contributing to Key West 

Historic District 
Diminished 

411 W Main St, 

Avon Park, Florida 
Mechanic Unknown High 

1120 W Main St, 

Leesburg, FL 
Office Unknown Diminished 

2439 4th St N, 

St. Petersburg, FL 

Vacant, Former 

Mechanic 

Applied for Local 

Landmark Designation 
Moderate 

STAFF FINDINGS 

In St. Petersburg, eligibility for designation as a local historic landmark is determined based on 

evaluations of age, context, and integrity as found in Section 16.30.070.2.5(D) of the City Code. Under 

the age test, a property must have been constructed over 50 years prior to designation. Historic 

documentation demonstrates that the subject property was initially constructed approximately 97 years 

ago, surpassing the required 50-year threshold. 

Further, staff suggests that the subject property satisfies three Criteria for Significance and three 

Criteria of Integrity. Staff, therefore, recommends approval of the application to designate the subject 

property to the St. Petersburg Register of Historic Places. 

Historic Significance and Satisfaction of Eligibility Criteria 

The first portion of the evaluation to determine eligibility for the St. Petersburg Register of Historic 

Places examines a resource’s historic significance with relation to nine criteria. One or more of these 

criteria must be met in order for a property to qualify for designation as an individual landmark or 

district to be placed in the St. Petersburg Register. The nine criteria are based on the National Park 

Service’s criteria for listing in the National Register of Historic Places, and are designed to assess 

resources’ importance in a given historic context with objectivity and comprehensiveness.  

In the case of the subject property, the applicant proposes that the property be designated under criteria 

A, E, and F for its significance. The applicant did not include the areas of significance, but staff has 

identified the following: Architecture and Transportation. Staff concurs with the applicant about the 

St. Petersburg Register criteria of significance, as follows: 

Is at least one of the following criteria for eligibility met? 

Yes A 
Its value is a significant reminder of the cultural or archaeological heritage of 

the city, state, or nation. 

No B Its location is the site of a significant local, state, or national event. 

No C 
It is identified with a person who significantly contributed to the development of the 

city, state or nation. 

No D 
It is identified as the work of a master builder, designer, or architect whose work has 

influenced the development of the city, state, or nation. 



 CPPC Case No. 22-90300002 

 Page 8 

 

Yes E 
Its value as a building is recognized for the quality of its architecture, and it 

retains sufficient elements showing its architectural significance. 

Yes F 
It has distinguishing characteristics of an architectural style valuable for the 

study of a period, method of construction, or use of indigenous materials. 

No G 

Its character is a geographically definable area possessing a significant 

concentration, or continuity of sites, buildings, objects or structures united in past 

events or aesthetically by plan or physical development. 

No H 
Its character is an established and geographically definable neighborhood, united in 

culture, architectural style or physical plan and development. 

No I 
It has contributed, or is likely to contribute, information important to the prehistory 

or history of the city, state, or nation. 

Architecture 

The subject property is an example of the standardized domestic-style, detached filling station used by 

Standard Oil in the 1920s. These structures were designed to fit into residential neighborhoods, while 

also providing a national branding for a specific type of service for motorists. The structure is an 

example of early Commercial Style architecture, which began dotting the landscape in the early 20th 

century. Commercial Style buildings were often single-story in height and constructed of masonry with 

modest decorative treatment. While the structure is commercial in style, it does utilize smaller-scale 

sash windows, instead of large storefront windows to adapt to the residential context that would have 

surrounded the property. The structure is fairly utilitarian, with its most significant architectural feature 

(the large front canopy) serving an important function of providing cover for automobiles while 

refueling. 

Transportation 

As discussed in the application and above, filling stations were important for the rise of the automobile 

as the primary form of transportation for Americans. If oil and gasoline companies hadn’t improved 

the safety and created efficient refueling stations, then the popularity of the automobile would have 

been diminished. As the application states, the subject property appears to be the last remaining 1920s-

era service station in St. Petersburg and one of only a handful of the 1920s-era standardized building 

design used by Standard Oil left in the state of Florida. 

Historic Integrity 

Under the second part of the two-part assessment of eligibility for designation as a historic landmark, 

staff finds that the subject property retains integrity in three of seven given criteria, surpassing the 

requirement of one or more. 

Is at least one of the following factors of integrity met? 

Location Design Setting Materials Workmanship Feeling* Association* 

Yes Yes No No No Yes No 

*Must be present in addition to at least one other factor. 

The structure has undergone several alterations in its lifetime. In 1962, Standard Oil pulled a permit to 

remodel the roof and construct side roof addition. It appears that these new roofs were constructed in 

a flat-roof style, removing the key architectural feature of the hipped-roof canopy on the front. While 

the building still provide automotive-centered services for several more decades, operating as a gas 



 CPPC Case No. 22-90300002 

 Page 9 

 

station and then a mechanic. The loss of the key architectural feature in 1962 signifies the end of the 

period of significance for the building, as it lost its standardized building design. 

 

Figure 4: Google Streetview capture of the building from 2019, prior to rehabilitation. 

When the current owners purchased the property in 2019, the building had the later constructed flat 

roof canopy, and the side canopy extension. The building was in poor condition, suffered several 

decades of neglect, and had several active code cases on the property. Given the condition, the owner 

demolished the additions to the structure and the flat roof canopy. The applicant used the examples in 

Plant City, Florida and Bowling Green, Kentucky on the way to reconstruct the hipped roof, which is 

a key architectural feature for the building. The owner states that the original windows were in such 

poor condition, that they needed to be replaced. Even though, it’s another loss of original materials, 

the replacement does retain the eight-over-eight sash windows, which are also a key feature to the 

building. The owner also restored the original brick water table, which had deteriorated as well. 

 

Figure 5: Standard Oil Service Station in Plant 
City, Florida. Photograph from University of 
North Florida. 

 

Figure 6: Standard Oil Company Filling Station in Bowling 
Green, Kentucky. Photograph from Wikipedia. 

 

  



 CPPC Case No. 22-90300002 

 Page 10 

 

Primary Character-Defining Historic Features 

Future exterior alterations to the property will be subject to Certificate of Appropriateness review. The 

following list does not define all significant features of the subject property but is intended to identify 

the most distinct elements of this designation: 

• One-story, small rectangular box with symmetrical façade, 

• Front canopy with hipped roof,  

• Stucco and brick finish 

• Large eight-over-eight sash windows, 

• Large transom window over central front door, 

• Deep overhanging eaves, 

• Y-shaped metal truss supporting the front canopy, and 

• Brick water table around exterior stucco cladding. 

  

  

PROPERTY OWNER CONSENT AND IMPACT OF DESIGNATION 

The proposed local landmark designation was submitted by Jessica Icerman and Kevin Reali of Sterns, 

Weaver, Miller on behalf of the owner, Robert and Carolee Blackman. The designation is supported 

by the owner. 

The benefits of designation include increased heritage tourism through the maintenance of the historic 

character and significance of the city, some relief from the requirements of the Florida Building Code 

and FEMA regulations, and tax incentives, such as the local ad valorem tax exemption and federal tax 



 CPPC Case No. 22-90300002 

 Page 11 

 

credit for qualified rehabilitation projects. The designation of historic landmarks protects and enhances 

the St. Petersburg’s historic character, fulfills the City’s goals as a Certified Local Government in 

Historic Preservation, and reinforces a strong sense of place. 

CONSISTENCY WITH ST. PETERSBURG’S COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, EXISTING LAND 

USE PLAN, AND FUTURE LAND USE PLAN 

The proposed local historic landmark designation is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, 

relating to the protection, use and adaptive reuse of historic buildings. The local landmark designation 

will not affect the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) or zoning designations, nor will it significantly 

constrain any existing or future plans for the development of the City. The proposed landmark 

designation is consistent with the following objectives: 

Objective LU10:  The historic resources locally designated by the St. Petersburg City Council and 

Community Planning and Preservation Commission (CPPC) shall be incorporated 

onto the Land Use Map or map series at the time of original adoption, or through 

the amendment process, and protected from development and redevelopment 

activities consistent with the provisions of the Historic Preservation Element and 

the Historic Preservation Ordinance. 

Policy LU10.1:  Decisions regarding the designation of historic resources shall be based on the 

criteria and policies outlined in the Historic Preservation Ordinance and the 

Historic Preservation Element of the Comprehensive Plan. 

Policy HP2.3:  The City shall provide technical assistance to applications for designation of 

historic structures and districts.  

Policy HP2.6:  Decisions regarding the designation of historic resources shall be based on National 

Register eligibility criteria and policies outlined in the Historic Preservation 

Ordinance and the Comprehensive Plan. The City will use the following selection 

criteria [for city initiated landmark designations] as a guideline for staff 

recommendations to the CPC and City Council: 

• National Register or DOE status 

• Prominence/importance related to the City 

• Prominence/importance related to the neighborhood 

• Degree of threat to the landmark 

• Condition of the landmark 

• Degree of owner support 

RECOMMENDATION 

Based on a determination of general consistency with Section 16.30.070.2.5(D) and the submitted 

designation application, staff recommends APPROVAL of the request to designate the Standard Oil 

Service Station, located at 2439 4th Street South, as a local historic landmark, thereby referring the 

application to City Council for first and second reading and public hearing.  

  



 CPPC Case No. 22-90300002 

 Page 12 

 

BIBLIOGRAPHY 

Arsenault, Raymond. St. Petersburg and the Florida Dream: 1888 – 1950. Norfolk, VA: The 

Donning Company. 1988. 

City of St. Petersburg, Florida. Property Cards. On file, City of St. Petersburg.  

City of St. Petersburg, Florida. “Ordinance 617-A: An ordinance changing the names of certain 

streets and avenues as therein set out and repealing all ordinances in conflict there within.” January 9, 

1928. On file, City of St. Petersburg. 

Grismer, Karl H. The Story of St. Petersburg: Historical and Biographical. St. Petersburg, FL. 1924. 

Grismer, Karl H. The Story of St. Petersburg: The History of the Lower Pinellas Peninsula and the 

Sunshine City. St. Petersburg, FL: P.K. Smith & Company. 1948. 

National Register of Historic Places, Standard Oil Company Filling Station, Bowling Green, Warren 

County, Kentucky, 10000526. 

National Register of Historic Places, Standard Oil Service Station, Plant City, Hillsborough County, 

Florida, reference number, 96000974. 

Polk, R.L. & Co, Polk’s St. Petersburg City Directory 1927 (Jacksonville, Florida: R&L Polk & Co, 

Publishers, 1927), page 702.  

RoadsideArchitecture.com: Buildings, Signs, Statues, and More. “Florida Canopy Gas Stations,” 

https://www.roadarch.com/gas/flcan.html. 

Randl, Chad. “Preservation Brief 46: The Preservation and Reuse of Historic Gas Stations.” National 

Park Service. September 2008. 

St. Petersburg Times; April 20, 1913. 

St. Petersburg Times; February 5, 1914. 

St. Petersburg Times; May 25, 1914. 

St. Petersburg Times; March 8, 1918. 

St. Petersburg Times; March 5, 1924. 

St. Petersburg Times; June 23, 1926. 

St. Petersburg Times; August 20, 1926. 

Sitler, Nevin D. Warm Wishes from Sunny St. Pete. Charleston, SC: The History Press. 2014 

Strong, William B. The Sunshine Economy: An Economic History of Florida Since the Civil War. 

Gainesville, FL: University Press of Florida. 2008. 

  



 CPPC Case No. 22-90300002 

 Page 13 

 

 
Report Prepared By: 

 

 

 

04/05/2023 

Kelly Perkins, Historic Preservationist II 
Urban Planning and Historic Preservation Division 

Planning and Development Services Department 

Date 

  

Report Approved By:  

 

 

04/05/2023 

Derek S. Kilborn, Manager 
Urban Planning and Historic Preservation Division 

Planning and Development Services Department 

Date 

 

 

 



  

 

 

 

 

Appendix A 

Application for Local Historic Landmark Designation 

  



------------- --------

---------------------------------

Gulfport city or town 

Type of property nominated (for staff use only)

Dbuilding D structure D site D object

D historic district Dmultiple resource 

1. NAME AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY 

historic name Standard Oil Service Station 

City of St. Petersburg 

Division of Urban Design 

and Historic Preservation 

Local Landmark 

Designation Application 

other names/site number 

address 2439 4th Street South 

historic address 

2. PROPERTY OWNER(S) NAME AND ADDRESS 

name Carolee Blackmon and Robert Blackmon 

street and number 6214 Fairway Bay Blvd S 

state FL zip code 33707 
RB1ackmon15@gmail.comphone number (h) 7272440379 (w) e-mail 

3. NOMINATION PREPARED BY 

name/title Owners 

organization 

street and number 

city or town 
---------

state zip code
----------

phone number (h) 
-------

(w) e-mail 

date prepared signature 
--------------

4. BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION AND JUSTIFICATION 

Describe boundary line encompassing all man-made and natural resources to be included in designation (general 
legal description or survey). Attach map delimiting proposed boundary. (Use continuation sheet if necessary) 

HARBORDALE SUB LOT 15 LESS E 5FT FOR STREET 

5. GEOGRAPHIC DATA 

acreage of property _o_._1_5______ _ 
31-31-17-36684-000-0150

property identification number 



Standard Oil ServiceeStatione
Name of Property 

Historic Functions Current Functions 

Transportation/Road Related- Gas Vacant - was an auto-repair shop 

and Service Station 

Architectural Classification Materials 
(See Appendix A for list) 

Masonry Vernacular 

Narrative Description 

Brick 

Masonry 

Stucco 

 

 

On one or more continuation sheets describe the historic and existing condition of the property use conveying the 
following information: original location and setting; natural features; pre-historic man-made features; subdivision 
design; description of surrounding buildings; major alterations and present appearance; interior appearance; 

SeeeExhibit "A" for Narrative Descriptione

Contributing Noncontributing Resource Type Contributing resources previously listed on 
the National Register or Local Register 

1 0 Buildings 

Sites 

Structures 

Objects Number of multiple property listings 

Total1 



  Standard Oil Service Station 
Name of Property 

(Explain the significance of the property as it relates to the above criteria I and information on one or more continuation 
sheets. Include biographical data on significant person(s), builder and architect, if known.) See Exhibit "A". 

Criteria for Significance 
(mark one or more boxes for the appropriate criteria) 

1X1 Its value is a significant reminder of the cultural or 
� archaeological heritage of the City, state, or 

nation. 

D 
Its location is the site of a significant local, state,
or national event. 

D 
It is identified with a person or persons who 
significantly contributed to the development of the 
City, state, or nation. 

D 
It is identified as the work of a master builder, 
designer, or architect whose work has influenced 
the development of the City, state, or nation. 

'r91' Its value as a building is recognized for the quality 
� of its architecture, and it retains sufficient 

elements showing its architectural significance. 

� It has distinguishing characteristics of an 
� architectural style valuable for the study of a 

period, method of construction, or use of 
indigenous materials. 

D 
Its character is a geographically definable area 
possessing a significant concentration, or 
continuity or sites, buildings, objects or structures 
united in past events or aesthetically by plan or 
physical development. 

□ Its character is an established and geographically 
definable neighborhood, united in culture, 
architectural style or physical plan and 
development.

□ It has contributed, or is likely to contribute,
information important to the prehistory or history of 
the City, state, or nation. 

Narrative Statement of Significance 

Areas of Significance 
(see Attachment B for detailed list of categories) 

Period of Significance 

Significant Dates (date constructed & altered) 

Significant Person(s) 

Cultural Affiliation/Historic Period 

Builder 

Architect 

(Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets.) 



 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

   

  

   

     

  

  

 

 

 

      

NARRATIVE TO 

LOCAL LANDMARK DESIGNATION 

APPLICATION 

***** 

Carolee Blackmon & Robert Blackmon 

2439 4th Street South 

St. Petersburg, Florida 

Submitted by: 

Kevin Reali, Esquire 

Jessica Icerman, Esquire 

Stearns Weaver Miller 

401 East Jackson Street, Suite 2100 

Tampa, Florida 33602 

(813) 222-5059 

kreali@stearnsweaver.com 

jicerman@stearnsweaver.com 

As of October 13, 2022 

1 



 

 
 

                

               

            

          

           

              

                

               

  

  

 
 

             

      

 

         

             

          

REQUEST 

This is a request to designate a former Standard Oil Service Station as a local landmark. The former 

Standard Oil Service Station is on the Property located at 2439 4th Street South (Parcel ID 31-31-

17-36684-000-0150) (the “Property”). The Property consists of +/- 6,660 square feet (+/-0.15 

acres). The Property is currently zoned Corridor Residential Traditional-1 (“CRT-1”). The Future 

Land Use designation for the Property is Planned Redevelopment – Mixed Use (“PR-MU”) and 

the Property is located within the Multimodal Corridor category on the Countywide Plan Map. The 

Property is not within the Coastal High Hazard Area. By way or orientation, the Property is located 

northwest of the intersection of 4th St South and 25th Ave South, immediately south of the 

Harbordale YMCA. 

Vicinity Map 

The former Standard Oil Service Station is no longer functioning as a service station and all 

underground fuel tanks have been removed. 

Although this request stands independently, the Applicant has simultaneously submitted an 

application for a major adaptive reuse application and a privately initiated text amendment to allow 

for auto-centric uses in certain qualifying major adaptive reuse projects. 

2 



 

  
 

          

               

            

            

               

    

 

 
    

 

 
      

HISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE 

The former Standard Oil Service Station was constructed in 1926 and is masonry vernacular in 

style. The late date of construction is unique; there are two other surviving, almost identical 

Standard Oil Service Stations that are listed as National Register properties (Plant City, Florida 

and Bowling Green, Kentucky), though they were built 5 years earlier in 1921. The National 

Register of Historic Places Registration Form for the Standard Oil Service Station in Plant City is 

attached hereto as Attachment #1. 

Standard Oil Station in Bowling Green, Kentucky 

Standard Oil Station in Plant City, Florida (now a dog grooming business) 

3 



 

 

               

              

                

               

          

              

 

          

         

            

             

   

 

 
 

            

           

              

            

                  

              

         

 

     
 

            

              

             

           

            

              

    

 

 

The structure holds many aspects that contribute to its significance as a historic structure. The 

former Standard Oil Service Station is believed to be the oldest service station structure within the 

City of St. Petersburg. Standard Oil was the largest oil company at the time the structure was 

constructed. In the 1920’s service stations were the first structures built in response to the growing 

automobile industry. This former Standard Oil Service Station is a significant landmark which 

embodies and preserves the architecture and tradition of a service station in a vintage building. 

Roadside Architecture’s website includes a page dedicated to Standard Oil or likely Standard Oil 

Service Stations in Florida. (Florida Canopy Gas Stations | RoadsideArchitecture.com 

(roadarch.com)). Unfortunately, this Property is not listed on the website—likely because its status 

as a former Standard Oil Service Station was unknown until the Applicant researched the history 

of the Property. 

SETTING 

The former Standard Oil Service Station is south of the historic downtown St. Petersburg 

boundary. It is adjacent to the historic Driftwood neighborhood, which was developed during the 

same time period. The former Standard Oil Service Station is on the pathway from downtown to 

the southern ferry which would have taken vehicles from St. Petersburg across Tampa Bay. 

Additionally, a historic marker that reads “One fourth mile east from this point is the site of the 

first settlement in 1857 and the first post office in 1876 of St. Petersburg, then called Pinellas” is 

located across 4th Street from the Property in Taylor Park. 

APPEARANCE AND HISTORIC ARCHITECTURAL QUALITY 

Extensive work has been done to preserve original elements wherever possible, and the Property 

today largely shares its original appearance. This includes replacing the roof joists of the hip roof 

to its historic pitch, restoration of the original Plainville Brick lower exterior, restoration of the 

original Plainville brick window sills, restoration of original upper stucco exterior, and existence 

of the original cantilevered I-beam gas canopy support. Additionally, the property retains the 

original steel advertising sign post for the service station. The following are photos of the Property 

as it exists today: 

North Facade 

4 



 

 

 

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

North/Rear Façade 

South Façade 

5 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

South Façade 

Canopy/Front Facade 

6 



 

  

 
 

 

 

   

  

Canopy/Front Facade 

Original Steel Sign Pole 

7 



 

   
 

             

              

                

            

 

           

         

          

             

 

 

           

            

            

          

 

            

        

            

           

          

   

 

           

      

 

  
 

          

            

         

 

    

 

             

            

             

         

 

              

     
               

              

    

CONDITION AND ALTERATIONS 

The building was in rough condition for years. For context, the property was condemned for 

demolition by the city of St. Petersburg as far back as 1997, and had been in very poor condition 

for decades prior. In fact, in 1997 the then-owner offered the property to the City for free due to 

its poor condition. Relevant code enforcement history is attached hereto at Attachment #2. 

During renovation, extensive work was done to restore the building to its historic appearance while 

regaining structural integrity. The original hip roof system and ceramic tile roof had long been 

removed and was replaced with a non-code flat roof that had collapsed. The Applicant replicated 

the original joist pitch and topped it with a standing seam aluminum roof with a copper colored 

finish. 

The building also had extensive termite damage and was tented. Original windows were missing 

and/or replaced with Plexiglas and plywood in many areas by prior owners. These windows were 

replaced with double hung impact windows with grills to match the original light panels. The two 

window transoms were repaired, with the original wooden frames sanded and restored. 

When paint was stripped off the exterior brick, the Applicant discovered the brick was structural 

instead of stamped concrete. However, in multiple places, damaged brick had been patched in with 

stucco. The Applicant located original Plainville brick and had it shipped to St. Pete to repair and 

replace the stucco areas with period, salvaged materials. The brick was then professionally 

repointed for integrity. The original stucco was repaired, sealed, and retained, and has been 

repainted period-appropriate white. 

The Applicant also carried out removal of a non-contributing canopy bay and two non-contributing 

concrete block buildings that had been added on in 1962 and 1983. 

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA 

The City uses locally adopted criteria modeled after recognized national historic standards for 

determining the significance of historic properties. The Property meets the Eligibility Criteria set 

forth in Section 16.30.070.2.5.D of the Code of Ordinances. 

Age & Significance Test 

A property proposed for designation must meet the general 50 years of age requirement. This 

Property contains a former Standard Oil Service Station which was constructed in 1926, making 

it almost 100 years old—and surpassing the minimum age test. A property must also meet the 

significance test by meeting at least one of the following criteria: 

A. Its value is a significant reminder of the cultural or archaeological heritage of the 

City, state or nation; 
B. Its location is a site of a significant local, state, or national event; 

C. It is identified with a person who significantly contributed to the development of the City, 

state, or nation; 

8 



 

                

          

              

      

            

          

            

            

     

          

        

              

       

 

           

 

               

             

             

              

 

              

          

              

           

      

             

           

   

 

            

                

            

      

 

   

 

                  

 

             

     

              

    
          

          

             

D. It is identified as the work of a master builder, designer, or architect whose individual work 

has influenced the development of the City, state, or nation; 

E. Its value as a building is recognized for the quality of its architecture, and it retains 

sufficient elements showing its architectural significance; 

F. It has distinguishing characteristics of an architectural style valuable for the study of 

a period, method of construction, or use of indigenous materials; 

G. Its character is a geographically definable area possessing a significant concentration, or 

continuity of sites, buildings, objects or structures united in past events or aesthetically by 

plan or physical development; 

H. Its character is an established and geographically definable neighborhood, united in culture, 

architectural style or physical plan and development; or 

I. It has contributed, or is likely to contribute, information important to the prehistory or 

history of the City, state, or nation. 

The Property meets three of the above criteria—A., E., and F. 

Under Criterion A, the Property’s “value is a significant reminder of the cultural or archaeological 

heritage of the city, state, or nation.” The Standard Oil Service Station possesses historic 

significance in the areas of Architecture and Transportation. As an early 20th Century service 

station, it serves as a physical representation of the early use of the automobile. 

Under Criterion E, the Property’s “value as a building is recognized for the quality of its 

architecture, and it retains sufficient elements showing its architectural significance.” The Standard 

Oil Service Station is significant in the area of Architecture for its demonstration of standardization 

of service stations for familiarity and marketing purposes. All over the state, Standard Oil 

constructed similar structures—identified by their small masonry building and hip roof with 

significant extension beyond the front façade to form a canopy and shelter for motorists. The 

original cantilevered I-beam gas canopy support remains in place and is iconic for Standard Oil 

Service Stations. 

Finally, the Property “has distinguishing characteristics of an architectural style valuable for the 

study of a period, method of construction, or use of indigenous materials.” In the areas of both 

Architecture and Transportation, the Standard Oil Service Station is significant in its depiction of 

an evolving reliance on the automobile. 

Historic Integrity Test 

The historic integrity test requires at least one or more of the following seven factors to be met: 

A. Location. The place where the historic property was constructed or the place where 

the historic event occurred. 

B. Design. The combination of elements that create the form, plan, space, structure, and 

style of a property. 
C. Setting. The physical environment of a historic property. 

D. Materials. The physical elements that were combined or deposited during a particular 

period of time and in a particular pattern or configuration to form a historic property. 

9 



 

               

       

             

   

             

 

           

 

 

           

 

               

              

       

 

            

               

           

   

 

                 

  

 

  

 

            

          

             

             

      

 

           

          

              

          

     

 

          

          

      

 

         

        

        

 

 

E. Workmanship. The physical evidence of the crafts of a particular culture or people during 

any given period in history or prehistory. 

F. Feeling. The property's expression of the aesthetic or historic sense of a particular 

period of time.* 

G. Association. The direct link between an important historic event or person and a historic 

property.* 

*Feeling and association, without meeting at least one other factor, are insufficient to support 

designation. 

The Property meets three of the above criteria—A., B., and F. 

Under Criterion A., the Standard Oil Service Station was constructed on the Property in 1926. It 

was located on the pathway from downtown to the southern ferry which would have taken vehicles 

from St. Petersburg across Tampa Bay. 

Under Criterion B., the Standard Oil Service Station includes a combination of architectural 

elements that create the form, plan, space, structure and style of the Property. Most notably, the 

hip roof with a connected canopy supported by the cantilevered I-beam exemplify a unique and 

historic architectural. 

Under Criterion F., the Property emotes a sense of place and establishes a historic sense of a time 

forgotten. 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

Designation of the former Standard Oil Service Station is consistent with the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan relating to the protection of historic buildings. The local landmark 

designation will not affect the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) or zoning designations, nor will it 

significantly constrain any existing or future plans for the development of the City. The proposed 

landmark designation is consistent with the following objectives: 

OBJECTIVE LU10: The historic resources locally designated by the St. Petersburg City Council 

and the commission designated in the LDRs, shall be incorporated into the Comprehensive Plan 

map series at the time of original adoption or through the amendment process and protected from 

development and redevelopment activities consistent with the provisions of the Historic 

Preservation Element and the Historic Preservation Ordinance. 

Policy LU10.1: Decisions regarding the designation of historic resources shall be based on 

the criteria and policies outlined in the Historic Preservation Ordinance and the Historic 

Preservation Element of the Comprehensive Plan. 

Policy HP2.6: Decisions regarding the designation of historic resources shall be based on 

National Register eligibility criteria, the Historic and Archaeological Preservation Overlay 

section of the Land Development Regulations and Comprehensive Plan policies. 

CONCLUSION 

10 



  

 

              

 

 

 

 

            

     

We respectfully request the designation of the former Standard Oil Service Station as a local 

landmark. 

Attachments: 

1. National Register of Historic Places Registration Form for Standard Oil in Plant City 

2. Relevant code enforcement history 

11 
#10604051 v1 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  ATTACHMENT 1 

































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  ATTACHMENT 2 























  

 

 

 

 

Appendix B 

Maps of Subject Property 

 

 



Communi l i ion Commi ity P ann ng and Preservat ss on
2439 4th Street South 
AREA TO BE APPROVED, 
SHOWN IN 

N
SCALE:
1 " = 100 '

5T
H

ST
S

4T
H

 S
T 

S 

24TH AVE S 

25TH AVE S 

26TH AVE S 

BAYSIDE
DR

S 

TA
YLOR AVE S 

OAKDALE
ST

S 

 
 

 
 

  

  

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

     
   
   

  
    



237 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: A private initiated application 

for a 1.66-acre site, which consists of the entire eastern facing block of 14th Street North between 

7th and 5th Avenues North, just west of St. Anthonys Hospital, requesting amendments to the Future 

Land Use and Official Zoning maps. (Quasi-judicial) 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



I-5

I-5



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

    
 

      
      

    
 

   

    
    

    
 

 
 

   
  

  
 

  

 
 

 

         
 

 

     
    

   
     

 

  
  

 
 

   
 

  
 

 

     

-G 
~ ____ ., __ 

stpelersburg1 
www.s:tpel!ei. rg 

ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 

Meeting of May 18, 2023 

TO: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair and Members of City Council 

SUBJECT: City File FLUM-66: Private initiated application for a 1.66-acre site, which consists 
of the entire eastern facing block of 14th Street North between 7th and 5th Avenues 
North, just west of St. Anthony’s Hospital, requesting amendments to the Future Land 
Use and Official Zoning maps. 

(a) ORDINANCE 754-L, amending the Future Land Use Map from Planned
Redevelopment – Residential (PR-R) to Residential Medium (RM) and from
Planned Redevelopment – Residential (PR-R) to Planned Redevelopment – Mixed
Use (PR-MU); providing for repeal of conflicting ordinances and provisions
thereof; and providing an effective date.

(b) ORDINANCE 786-Z, amending the Official Zoning Map from Neighborhood
Traditional -2 (NT-2) to Neighborhood Suburban Multifamily – 1 (NSM-1) and
from Neighborhood Traditional Mixed Residential – 1 (NTM-1) to Corridor
Residential Traditional -1 (CRT-1); providing for repeal of conflicting ordinances
and provisions thereof; and providing an effective date.

RECOMMENDATION: 

Administration:  City staff recommends APPROVAL. 

Public Input: One email from the public in support and two phone calls in opposition 
have been received. 

Community Planning and Preservation Commission (CPPC): On April 11, 2023, the 
CPPC held a public hearing regarding this matter and voted 4 to 2 making a finding of 
consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and recommending to City Council 
APPROVAL of the Future Land Use Map amendments and concurrent rezonings. 

Previous City Council Action: On May 4, 2023, City Council conducted the first 
reading and voted unanimously to set the second reading and adoption public hearing 
for May 18, 2023. 

Recommended City Council Action: 
1) CONDUCT the second reading and public hearing of the attached proposed 
ordinances; AND
3) APPROVE the proposed ordinances.

Attachments: Ordinance 754-L, Ordinance 786-Z, CPPC Staff Report, and draft 
CPPC Minutes. 



ORDINANCE NO. 754-L 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND 
USE MAP OF THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FOR 
THE CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG, FLORIDA; BY 
CHANGING THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
DESIGNATION FOR THE ENTIRE EAST FACING 
BLOCK OF 14TH STREET NORTH BETWEEN 7TH AND 
5TH AVENUES NORTH AS FOLLOWS: A PORTION 
OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY (APPROX. 1.24 
ACRES), FROM PLANNED REDEVELOPMENT – 
RESIDENTIAL (PR-R) TO RESIDENTIAL MEDIUM 
(RM); A PORTION OF THE PROPERTY (APPROX. 
0.42 ACRES) FROM PLANNED REDEVELOPMENT – 
RESIDENTIAL (PR-R) TO PLANNED 
REDEVELOPMENT MIXED USE (PR-MU); 
PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTING 
ORDINANCES AND PROVISIONS THEREOF; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, established the Community Planning Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of St. Petersburg Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map are 

required by law to be consistent with the Countywide Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map 
and the Pinellas Planning Council, Forward Pinellas, is authorized to develop rules to implement the 
Countywide Future Land Use Map; and 
 

WHEREAS, the St. Petersburg City Council has considered and approved the proposed St. 
Petersburg land use amendment provided herein as being consistent with the Countywide Future Land 
Use Map; now, therefore 
 

THE CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG DOES ORDAIN: 
 

SECTION 1.  Pursuant to the provisions of the Community Planning Act, as amended, and 
pursuant to all applicable provisions of law, the Future Land Use Map of the City of St. Petersburg 
Comprehensive Plan is amended by placing the hereinafter described property in the land use category 
as follows: 

 
Property 

 
The following nine lots currently designated as Planned Redevelopment – Residential (PR-R) as 
identified as “1” on “Attachment A” Approximately 1.24 acres: 
 

BON AIRE LOTS 71-79 
 

Parcel ID Numbers: 
13-31-16-10062-000-0791, 13-31-16-10062-000-0792, 13-31-16-10062-000-0790, 13-31-
16-10062-000-0780, 13-31-16-10062-000-0770, 13-31-16-10062-000-0760, 13-31-16-
10062-000-0750, 13-31-16-10062-000-0740, 13-31-16-10062-000-0730 and portions of 13-
31-16-10062-000-0680 

 



Land Use Category 

From: Planned Redevelopment – Residential (PR-R) 
To: Residential Medium (RM) 

SECTION 2.  Pursuant to the provisions of the Community Planning Act, as amended, and 
pursuant to all applicable provisions of law, the Future Land Use Map of the City of St. Petersburg 
Comprehensive Plan is amended by placing the hereinafter described property in the land use category 
as follows: 

Property 

The following three lots currently designated as Planned Redevelopment – Residential (PR-R) as 
identified as “2” on “Attachment A” Approximately 0.42 acres: 

BON AIRE LOTS 68-70 

Parcel ID Number: 
Portions of 13-31-16-10062-000-0680 

Land Use Category 

From: Planned Redevelopment - Residential (PR-R)  
To: Planned Redevelopment - Mixed Use (PR-MU) 

SECTION 3.  All ordinances or portions of ordinances in conflict with or inconsistent with this 
ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency or conflict. 

SECTION 4.  In the event this ordinance is not vetoed by the Mayor in accordance with the City 
Charter, it shall become effective upon approval of the required Land Use Plan change by the Pinellas 
County Board of County Commissioners (acting in their capacity as the Countywide Planning Authority) 
and upon issuance of a final order determining this amendment to be in compliance by the Department 
of Economic Opportunity (DEO) or until the Administration Commission issues a final order 
determining this amendment to be in compliance, pursuant to Section 163.3187, F.S.  In the event this 
ordinance is vetoed by the Mayor in accordance with the City Charter, it shall not become effective 
unless and until the City Council overrides the veto in accordance with the City Charter, in which case 
it shall become effective as set forth above. 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND SUBSTANCE: FLUM-66 
(Land Use) 

/s/ Elizabeth Abernethy  04/21/2023 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT DATE 

ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY DATE 

(Land Use) 

04/21/2023 



ATTACHMENT A 



ORDINANCE NO. 786-Z 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF 

THE CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG, FLORIDA, BY CHANGING THE 

ZONING OF THE ENTIRE EAST FACING BLOCK OF 14TH STREET NORTH 

BETWEEN 7TH AND 5TH AVENUES NORTH AS FOLLOWS: A PORTION OF 

THE SUBJECT PROPERTY (APPROX. 1.24 ACRES), FROM 

NEIGHBORHOOD TRADITIONAL - 2 (NT-2) TO NEIGHBORHOOD 

SUBURBAN MULTIFAMILY - 1 (NSM-1), A PORTION OF THE PROPERTY 

(APPROX. 0.42 ACRES) FROM NEIGHBORHOOD TRADITIONAL MIXED 

RESIDENTIAL -1 (NTM-1) TO CORRIDOR RESIDENTIAL TRADITIONAL – 

1 (CRT-1); PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES 

AND PROVISIONS THEREOF; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

THE CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG DOES ORDAIN: 

SECTION 1.  The Official Zoning Map of the City of St. Petersburg is amended by placing 

the hereinafter described property in a Zoning District as follows: 

Property 

The following nine lots currently designated as Neighborhood Traditional – 2 (NT-2) and as 

identified as “1” on “Attachment A”: 

BON AIRE LOTS 71-79 

Parcel ID Numbers: 

13-31-16-10062-000-0791, 13-31-16-10062-000-0792, 13-31-16-10062-000-0790, 13-31-

16-10062-000-0780, 13-31-16-10062-000-0770, 13-31-16-10062-000-0760, 13-31-16-

10062-000-0750, 13-31-16-10062-000-0740, 13-31-16-10062-000-0730 and portions of

13-31-16-10062-000-0680

District 

From: Neighborhood Traditional – 2 (NT-2) 

To: Neighborhood Suburban Multifamily – 1 (NSM-1) 

SECTION 2.  The Official Zoning Map of the City of St. Petersburg is amended by placing 

the hereinafter described property in a Zoning District as follows: 

Property 

The following three lots currently designated as Neighborhood Traditional Mixed Residential – 1 

(NTM-1) and as identified as “2” on “Attachment A”: 

BON AIRE LOTS 68-70 



Parcel ID Number: 

Portions of 13-31-16-10062-000-0680 

District 

From: Neighborhood Traditional Mixed Residential – 1 (NTM-1) 

To: Corridor Residential Traditional – 1 (CRT-1) 

SECTION 2.  All ordinances or portions of ordinances in conflict with or inconsistent with 

this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency or conflict.  

SECTION 3.  This ordinance shall become effective upon the date the ordinance adopting 

the required amendment to the City of St. Petersburg Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map 

becomes effective (Ordinance 754-L). 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND SUBSTANCE: FLUM-66 (Zoning) 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT DATE 

ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY DATE 

04/21/2023

04/26/2023



ATTACHMENT A 



 
 

 

 
 

 
   

 
 

 
  

 
 

      
         

    
 

 
 

 

   
     

  
 

    
  

     
     

    
    

   
       

 
 

 
 

   
 

  

  
 

 

   
  

 
 

 

 

  
 

 
  

 
  

 

Staff Report to the St. Petersburg Community Planning & Preservation Commission 
Prepared by the Planning & Development Services Department, 

Urban Planning and Historic Preservation Division 

For Public Hearing and Executive Action on Tuesday, April 11, 2023 
at 2:00 p.m. in City Council Chambers, City Hall 

175 5th St North, St. Petersburg, FL 33701. 
According to Planning and Development Services records, there are no Community Planning & Preservation Commission members that have 
a direct or indirect ownership interest in real property located within 1,000 linear feet of real property contained within the application 
(measured by a straight line between the nearest points on the property lines). All other possible conflicts should be declared upon 
announcement of the item. 

City File: FLUM-66 
14th Street North (between 5th – 7th Avenue North) 

This is a private-initiated application requesting the Community Planning and Preservation Commission 
(“CPPC”), in its capacity as the Local Planning Agency (“LPA”), make a finding of consistency with the 
Comprehensive Plan and recommend to City Council APPROVAL of the following Future Land Use Map 
amendments from Planned Redevelopment – Residential (PR-R) to Planned Redevelopment – Mixed Use (PR-
MU) and Residential Medium (RM) and concurrent amendments to the Official Zoning Map from 
Neighborhood Traditional -2 (NT-2) and Neighborhood Traditional Mixed Residential - 1 (NTM-1) to 
Neighborhood Suburban Multifamily – 1 (NSM-1) and Corridor Residential Traditional -1 (CRT-1) for a 1.66-
acre site, which consists of the entire eastern facing block of 14th Street North between 7th and 5th Avenues 
North, just west of St. Anthony’s Hospital. 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 

APPLICANT/OWNER: John D. Smith, Belleair Properties Group LLC and Fifth Avenue Properties 
Group LLC 
2840 West Bay Drive, Suite 204 
Belleair Bluffs, Florida 33770 
Davidsmith4343@rogers.com 

AGENT: Katie Cole, Esq. Hill Ward Henderson 
600 Cleveland Street, Suite 800 
Clearwater, Florida 33755 
Katie.Cole@hwhlaw.com 

CITY STAFF: Britton Wilson, AICP 
Urban Planning and Historic Preservation Division 
Planning and Development Services Department 
One 4th Street North 
St. Petersburg, Florida 33731 
Britton.wilson@stpete.org 
(727) 551-3542

City File FLUM-66 
Page 1 



 
 

 

 

 
 

  
  

    
 

   
     

   
   

    
  

 
 

REQUEST 

The applicant is requesting amendments to the Future Land Use Map from Planned Redevelopment – 
Residential (PR-R) to Planned Redevelopment – Mixed Use (PR-MU) and Residential Medium (RM) and 
concurrent amendments to the Official Zoning Map from Neighborhood Traditional - 2 (NT-2) to 
Neighborhood Suburban Multifamily – 1 (NSM-1) and from Neighborhood Traditional Mixed Residential – 1 
(NTM-1) to Corridor Residential Traditional -1 (CRT-1) for a 1.66-acre site, which consists of the entire 
eastern facing block of 14th Street North between 7th and 5th Avenues North. This section of 14th Street north 
is a one-way street located just west of St. Anthony’s Hospital. The site is also located within the Intown 
Activity Center (AC) overlay on the Future Land Use Map, which will remain. As stated by the applicant, 
there are no immediate plans for redevelopment, but the purpose of the proposed amendments is to allow for 
resale of the property in support of redevelopment to multifamily housing at a greater density than what is 
currently permitted. 

City File FLUM-66 
Page 2 



 
 

 

 
 

      
     

           
   

 
 

 
  

        
 

 
         

 
   

        
 

    
 

     
     

     
   

    
 

     
    

 
    

 
  

  

  
    

 

SITE DESCRIPTION 

Street Addresses: 1400 7th Avenue North (lot 79), 1402 7th Avenue North (lot 79), 1404 7th 

Avenue North (lot 79) and 636 14th Street North (lot 78), 634 14th Street North 
(lot 77), 622 14th Street North (lot 76), 610 14th Street North (lot 75), 0 14th 

Street North (lot 74), 540 14th Street North (lot 73), and 1401 5th Avenue North 
(lots 68-72) 

Parcel ID No.: 13-31-16-10062-000-0791, 13-31-16-10062-000-0792, 13-31-16-10062-000-
0790, 13-31-16-10062-000-0780, 13-31-16-10062-000-0770, 13-31-16-
10062-000-0760, 13-31-16-10062-000-0750, 13-31-16-10062-000-0740, 13-
31-16-10062-000-0730 and 13-31-16-10062-000-0680 

Acreage: 1.66 
Future Land Use: (1) The northern 1.24 acres (MOL) from Planned Redevelopment – 

Residential (PR-R) with Activity Center Overlay to Residential Medium 
(RM) with Activity Center Overlay and 

(2) The southern 0.42 acres (MOL) from Planned Redevelopment – 
Residential (PR-R) with Activity Center Overlay to Planned 
Redevelopment – Mixed Use (PR-MU) with Activity Center Overlay 

Zoning: (1) The northern 1.24 acres (MOL) from Neighborhood Traditional - 2 (NT-
2) to Neighborhood Suburban Multifamily -1 (NSM-1) and 

(2) The southern 0.42 acres (MOL) from Neighborhood Traditional Mixed 
Residential – 1 (NTM-1) to Corridor Residential Traditional -1 (CRT-1) 

Countywide Plan Map: Activity Center (AC) – no change proposed 
Existing Uses: Facing 5th Avenue North is a vacant medical office building (former assisted 

living facility), the northern portion of the block are duplexes, single family 
homes, a quadraplex and a five-unit multifamily apartment building. 

Surrounding Uses: North: 7th Avenue North and Single-family residential, duplexes and 
multifamily residential 
West: Buffered by a 15-foot alleyway followed by single-family residential, 
duplexes, multifamily residential and former medical offices that are now 
vacant 
South: 5th Avenue North and I-375, a raised interstate highway, followed by 
St. Vincent De Paul institutional uses 
East:  The entire block consists of existing professional medical buildings and 
vacant land owned by St. Anthony’s Hospital 

Neighborhood Within the Historic Uptown Neighborhood Association. 
Association: 

City File FLUM-66 
Page 3 



 
 

 

 

 

     
  
   

   
     

 
   

  
     

  
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

       
    

     
   

        
 

     
     

     
     

  
     

        
   

  
 

   
 

       
  

       
  

       
 

 
   

  
      

Future 
Land 
Use: 

(1) The northern 1.24 acres from Planned 
Redevelopment – Residential (PR-R) with 
Activity Center Overlay to Residential Medium 
(RM) with Activity Center Overlay 

Zoning: 

(2) The southern 0.42 acres from Planned 
Redevelopment – Residential (PR-R) to 
Planned Redevelopment – Mixed Use (PR-MU) 
with Activity Center Overlay 

(1) The northern 1.24 acres from Neighborhood 
Traditional - 2 (NT-2) to Neighborhood 
Suburban Multifamily -1 (NSM-1) 

(2) The southern 0.42 acres from Neighborhood 
Traditional Mixed Residential – 1 (NTM-1) to 
Corridor Residential Traditional -1 (CRT-1) 

BACKGROUND 

The subject 1.66-acre site between 5th and 7th Avenue North contains ten parcels consisting of twelve east 
facing platted lots in the Bon Air subdivision on 14th Street North, which is a one-way road. The site consists 
of a 14,000 square foot vacant medical office building that is considered an abandoned grandfathered use since 
there has been no active tax receipt since 2019 (per LDR Section 16.60.030.1.D). The northern portion of the 
block is a mix of duplexes, single-family homes, a quadraplex and a five-unit multifamily building all built 
between 1918 and 1922. 

There are active code violations for four of the subject addresses. The single-family home located at 636 14th 

Street North was issued violations for roof, fascia/soffit disrepair, windows, and various other exterior property 
maintenance. The duplex located at 634 14th Street North was issued violations for fascia/soffit and porch 
disrepair and other various exterior property maintenance. The multifamily building located at 610 14th Street 
North was issued violations for roof, fascia/soffit disrepair, exterior stairs, windows, and other various exterior 
property maintenance. The quadraplex located at 622 14th Street North was issued a civil citation for two 
inoperable vehicles and code violations for fascia/soffit disrepair, structural maintenance, paint and exterior 
wall disrepair. At the time of writing, none of the above-mentioned violations have been resolved. 

Projects subject to a planning and zoning decision which involve demolition of four or more existing occupied 
multifamily dwelling units at the time of application shall provide written notice via certified mail of the intent 
to develop to all tenants residing on the subject property at least 90 days prior to issuance of a building permit 
(per LDR Section 16.70.010.14). 

On the east side of 14th Street North from 5th to 7th Avenue is property owned by St. Anthony’s hospital that 
consists of parking for the main entrance of the hospital accessed from 5th Avenue North, vacant parcels, and 
a medical office building at the southeast corner of 7th Avenue North. To the south is 5th Avenue North and I-
375, a raised interstate highway, followed by St. Vincent De Paul CARES Center of Hope and other 
institutional uses. To the north is 7th Avenue North with south facing duplexes and single-family homes on the 
north side of the avenue. 

The site is located in the western portion of Historic Uptown Neighborhood Association. There is an adopted 
neighborhood plan that was last updated in 2013. The plan identifies the entire length of 7th Avenue North as 
an appropriate roadway for implementation of a complete streets concept with a bike/pedestrian influence as 
well as calling for the deterrence of traffic from 7th Avenue North to make the neighborhood quieter. The plan 

City File FLUM-66 
Page 4 



 
 

 

  
 

  
  

  
   

 
     

   
 

 

  
 

    
  

  
 

  
           

     
 

       
   

    
  

    
    

 
 

    
   

 
 

     
   

   
  

          
      

  
 

 

 
     

  
     

        
 

 

   
  

  
     

also calls for structural neighborhood improvements such as infilling vacant lots and improving or eliminating 
substandard housing. 

From 1977 to 2007, the site and surrounding area was zoned Residential Office -1 (RO-1), which was intended 
to permit a mix of residential and office uses allowing up to 12 dwelling units per acre. The subject site was 
rezoned to NT-2 in September 2007, following the implementation of the City’s Vision 2020 Plan and the 
Citywide rezoning and update of the Land Development Regulations. On March 23, 2023, the city rezoned the 
southern three lots (lots 68-70) to Neighborhood Traditional Mixed Residential – 1 (NTM-1) but was zoned 
NT-2 at the time of application. The existing medical office building was in conformance with its zoning 
designation until 2007, where it then became a grandfathered use under both the NT-2 and NTM-1 zoning 
districts. 

CONSISTENCY AND COMPATIBILITY 

The primary criteria associated with this private application are consistency and compatibility of the requested 
designation with the established surrounding land use and zoning patterns, and the provision of adequate public 
services and facilities. 

The property owner’s intent to resell the property with the ability to redevelop to multifamily housing at a 
greater density than what is currently permitted is not consistent with the current Planned Redevelopment – 
Residential (PR-R) Future Land Use designation and Neighborhood Traditional - 2 (NT-2) and Neighborhood 
Traditional Mixed Residential -1 (NTM-1) zoning districts. The PR-R land use designation is intended for low 
to moderate density residential uses not to exceed 15 dwelling units per net acre; however, when located outside 
of the Coastal High Hazard Area, and only when abutting a major street as depicted on the Future Major Streets 
Map (Map 20), Missing Middle Housing at a maximum density of 30 dwelling units per net acre is permitted 
in accordance with the Land Development Regulations (LDRs) and special area plan. The southern three lots 
(lots 68-70) of the amendment qualify for Missing Middle Housing as they abut the major street of 5th Avenue 
North and therefore were rezoned on March 23, 2023, to NTM-1. The NT-2 zoning district also only allows 
for single-family residential homes with accessory dwelling units. On the Future Land Use map, the site is also 
located within the Intown Activity Center (AC) overlay. An AC overlay provides for density and intensity 
increases for mixed use zoning districts. Since the subject site is zoned NT-2 and NTM-1, which only allow 
for single-family residential and small four-unit multifamily buildings and do not allow for a mix of uses, the 
AC overlay therefore does not provide for density or intensity increases. 

The proposed Residential Medium (RM) Future Land Use designation for the nine northern lots (lots 71-79) 
allows for medium density residential uses not to exceed 15 dwelling units per net acre; however, when located 
outside of the Coastal High Hazard Area, and only when abutting a major street as depicted on the Future 
Major Streets Map (Map 20), Missing Middle Housing at a maximum density of 30 dwelling units per net acre 
is permitted in accordance with the Land Development Regulations (LDRs) and special area plan. The nine 
northern lots of the amendment do not qualify for Missing Middle Housing as they don’t abut a major street 
and therefore are not eligible to be rezoned to NTM-1. Similar to PR-R, RM does not allow for a mix of uses, 
therefore the AC overlay does not provide for density or intensity increases.  

A land use change to RM would allow for the proposed rezoning to Neighborhood Suburban Multifamily – 1 
(NSM-1). The purpose of the NSM-1 district is to allow for medium-intensity garden apartments reflecting 
both small- and large-scale apartment complexes. Both NT-2 and NSM-1 allow up to the same maximum 
density of 15 dwelling units per acre, however the building form of the units for NT-2 is single-family with an 
accessory dwelling unit or ADU and the form of the units for NSM-1 is multifamily to include apartments, 
townhouses and duplexes with building heights typically ranging between one and three stories. 

The requested amendments to the RM land use designation and NSM-1 zoning district are appropriate at this 
location as it is consistent with several Comprehensive Plan goals, objectives, and policies, which are included 
in the following section of the report. For example, Policy LU3.4 that calls for the Land Use Plan to provide 
for compatible land use transitions through an orderly land use arrangement. The request furthers this policy 

City File FLUM-66 
Page 5 



 
 

 

    
    

 

    
 
 

  

    
     

  
 

 

        
          

 
    

   
  

    
 

   
 

 

    
     

 
   

   
       

   
   

  
  

  
    

  
  

 
        

 
 
 
 

z 

'" - fi 
------------

0 CRT-1 

as the proposed amendments provide for a step down in intensity from the institutional use of St. Anthony’s 
Hospital to the east and the single-family homes to the west resulting in an orderly land use arrangement. 

The proposed Planned Redevelopment – Mixed Use (PR-MU) Future Land Use designation for the three 
southern lots (lots 68-70) allows for mixed use retail, office, service and medium density residential uses not 
to exceed a floor area ratio of 1.25 and a net residential density of 24 dwelling units per acre; however, when 
located outside of the Coastal High Hazard Area, and only when abutting a major street as depicted on the 
Future Major Streets Map (Map 20), Missing Middle Housing at a maximum density of 30 dwelling units per 
net acre is permitted in accordance with the Land Development Regulations (LDRs) and special area plan. The 
three lots qualified for Missing Middle Housing and were rezoned to Neighborhood Traditional Mixed 
Residential -1 (NTM-1) on March 23, 2023. The PR-MU land use category allows for a mix of uses, therefore 
higher densities and intensities are acceptable within activity centers. 

A land use change to PR-MU would allow for the proposed rezoning to Corridor Residential Traditional -1 
(CRT-1). The purpose of the CRT district is to address major streets lined with single-family residential by 
encouraging redevelopment of townhomes, condominiums, apartment buildings and mixed-use buildings that 
are appropriately scaled to the context of the corridor and to facilitate conversion of the remaining single-
family homes to offices or limited retail uses. These uses can provide affordable workforce housing units and 
buffer the adjacent interior single-family neighborhoods from the high volumes of traffic on major streets. 
Development standards reinforce the traditional development pattern. When located in an Activity Center 
overlay, such as the subject site, an increase in density and intensity is permitted up to 60 dwelling units per 
acre and 2.5 FAR with a potential Workforce Housing Density Bonus of 8 dwelling units and 0.2 FAR. 
Additionally, under the CRT-1 zoning district, the option to build to NTM-1 standards will remain. 

The requested amendments to the PR-MU land use designation and CRT-1 zoning district are appropriate at 
this location as it is consistent with several Comprehensive Plan goals, objectives, and policies, which are 
included in the following section of the report. For example, Policy LU3.11 calls for more dense residential 
uses (more than 7.5 units per acre) to be located along designated major streets and Policy LU3.6 calls for 
land use decisions to weigh heavily on the established character of the neighborhood. The request furthers 
these policies as the subject property is located on 5th Avenue North, which is designated as a future major 
street on the Future Major Streets Map (Comprehensive Plan Map 20) and is consistent with the current mix 
of residential densities and the established zoning pattern of the north side of 5th Avenue North, which is 
predominantly CRT-1, one standard lot deep, for 3.5 miles from Beach Drive to 42nd Street North, only 
periodically interspersed with more intensive zoning such as Industrial Traditional (IT) at the highway 
interchange and Corridor Commercial Traditional – 1 (CCT-1) at other arterial roadway intersections such as 
4th Street North (see below map). It is also in character with the predominant surrounding development that is 
also within the AC overlay, which includes this subject site and its surroundings with the intent to support 
neighboring St. Anthony’s Hospital and the greater downtown area. 
Figure demonstrating the existing CRT-1 zoning pattern on 5th Avenue North from 42nd Street North to Beach Drive. 

City File FLUM-66 
Page 6 



 
 

 

        
     

    
 

    
      

    
   

 
 

 

 
      

  

    
 

   
  

 

    
  

  
  

   
       

 
 

 

  
  

 

       
   

 
  

 
 

  
 

    
  

 
   

 
   

 

 
  

    
   

 

The proposed amendments are also consistent with Countywide Land Use Strategy Map, where the subject 
property is designated Activity Center (AC) with an Urban Center subcategory designation, which provides 
for the highest density and intensity development standards. The Countywide Plan Rules identifies the Urban 
Center as providing for up to 200 dwelling units an acre and a Floor Area Ratio (FAR) of 8.0. The Land Use 
Strategy Map and the Advantage Pinellas Plan, also known as the 2045 Long Range Transportation Plan, 
identify this section of 5th Avenue North as a supporting multimodal corridor which are key priority investment 
corridors to be served with high frequency transit. Both plans prioritize investment in projects that support 
these investment corridors as they are best suited for regional connectivity of housing and employment by 
promoting travel options and economic redevelopment while protecting established communities.  

RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS ON AMENDMENTS TO THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

The Urban Planning & Historic Preservation Division staff reviewed this application in the context of the 
following criteria excerpted from the City Code Section 16.70.040.1.1 Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan 
and Land Development Regulations, the review and decision shall be guided by the following factors: 

1. Compliance of the proposed use with the goals, objectives, policies, and guidelines of the 
Comprehensive Plan. 

The following staff analysis is provided to address compliance with the following policies and 
objectives from the Comprehensive Plan: 

LU 2.5  The Land Use Plan shall make the maximum use of available public facilities and 
minimize the need for new facilities by directing new development to infill and 
redevelopment locations where excess capacity is available. 

The subject amendment is supporting redevelopment of a site that is served by public 
facilities with excess capacity available. There is excess roadway capacity, as well as 
water and sewer capacity to accommodate the proposed increase in potential density 
and intensity. 

LU3.4       The Land Use Plan shall provide for compatible land use transition through an orderly 
land use arrangement, proper buffering, and the use of physical and natural separators. 

The request furthers this policy as the proposed amendments to CRT-1 are consistent 
with the established zoning pattern of the north side of 5th Avenue North, which is 
predominantly CRT-1 one standard lot deep for 3.5 miles from Beach Drive to 42nd 
Street North. The proposed amendments will be a continuation of the existing transition 
in intensity resulting in a logical and orderly land use pattern. 

The request also furthers this policy as the proposed amendments to NSM-1 provide for 
a step down in intensity from the institutional use of St. Anthony’s Hospital to the east 
and the single-family homes with a 15-foot wide alley separator to the west resulting in 
an orderly land use arrangement. 

LU3.5 The tax base will be maintained and improved by encouraging the appropriate use of 
properties based on their locational characteristics and the goals, objectives, and 
policies within this Comprehensive Plan. 

The subject property is located within the Intown Activity Center (AC) overlay. A 
change in zoning from NTM-1 to CRT-1 will allow for the density and intensity 
increases the overlay is intended to provide. The tax base will improve when the site is 
redeveloped in keeping with densities that the AC overlay was intended to support. 

City File FLUM-66 
Page 7 



 
 

 

   
  

 
 

    
   

    
  
    

   
 

 

     
   

  
 

  
 

   
 

 
 

   
    

 
   

   
 

 

     
    

  
  

   
     

 
  

  
  

 

       
   

   
  

      
 

    
 

  
  

 
  

  
   

LU3.6 Land use planning decisions shall weigh heavily on the established character of 
predominately developed areas where changes of use or intensity of development are 
contemplated. 

When applied to the southern 0.42-acres of the site, the proposed PR-MU Future Land 
use designation and CRT-1 zoning district with existing AC overlay will allow for 
mixed use residential development of 25 total dwelling units, or medical office 
expansion up to 45,738 square feet, which is in character with the predominant 
surrounding development that is also within the AC overlay, which includes this subject 
site and its surroundings with the intent to support neighboring St. Anthony’s Hospital 
and the greater downtown area. 

When applied to the northern 1.24-acres of the site, the proposed RM Future Land Use 
and NSM-1 zoning district will allow for 19 total dwelling units with a potential 
workforce housing density bonus of ten dwelling units, which is in keeping with the 
surrounding residential density but will allow a building form of townhouses or 
multifamily units. 

LU3.7 Land use planning decisions shall include a review to determine whether existing Land 
Use Plan boundaries are logically drawn in relation to existing conditions and expected 
future conditions. 

Land use boundaries are logically drawn and are of a relatively consistent depth in 
relation to existing land use and zoning pattern. 

LU3.8          The City shall protect existing and future residential uses from incompatible uses, noise, 
traffic, and other intrusions that detract from the long-term desirability of an area 
through appropriate land development regulations. 

The potential mixed-use and multifamily development will provide for a compatible 
land use transition from the street fronting higher density mix-uses followed by the less 
dense multifamily to the north. In accordance with the Land Development Regulations, 
Site Plan Review criteria, appropriate building setbacks and existing 15-foot-wide alley 
will provide compatibility and protection of the neighboring residential uses to the west 
and the single-family homes to the north are buffered by 7th Avenue North. 

LU3.11 More dense residential uses (more than 7.5 units per acre) may be located along (1) 
passenger rail lines and designated major streets or (2) in close proximity to activity 
centers where compatible. 

The amendment area is located on 5th Avenue North, which is designated as a future 
major street on the Future Major Streets Map (Comprehensive Plan Map 20). The Land 
Use Strategy Map and the Advantage Pinellas Plan, also known as the 2045 Long Range 
Transportation Plan, identify this section of 5th Avenue North as a supporting 
multimodal corridor which are key priority investment corridors to be served with high 
frequency transit. Both plans prioritize investment in projects that support these 
investment corridors as they are best suited for regional connectivity of housing and 
employment by promoting travel options and economic redevelopment while protecting 
established communities. The subject site is also located within the Intown Activity 
Center, which is identified as an area suitable for concentrated growth and economic 
development. 

LU5.3 The Concurrency Management System shall continue to be implemented to ensure 
proposed development to be considered for approval shall be in conformance with 

City File FLUM-66 
Page 8 



 
 

 

  
   

 

       
       

      
 

 
    

  
 

     
 
 

  
   

 

  
  

 
 

           
   

 
 

      
    

 
  

 
  

 
 

 

     
    

 
  

 
 

     
 

   
  

 
  

     
  
 

 

 
    

  
 

existing and planned support facilities and that such facilities and services be available, 
at the adopted level of service standards, concurrent with the impacts of development. 

LOS impact analysis concludes that the proposed FLUM amendment and concurrent 
rezoning will not have a significant impact on the City’s adopted LOS standards for 
public services and facilities including potable water, sanitary sewer, solid waste, traffic, 
mass transit, recreation, and stormwater management. 

LU19.3 The land use pattern shall contribute to minimizing travel requirements and anticipate 
and support increased usage of mass transit systems. 

The site is located on 5th Avenue North, which is a supporting multimodal corridor 
served by high frequency transit serviced by three different transit routes with service 
headway times between 30 and 60 minutes. The subject property is located within the 
northern outer edge of the Intown Activity Center, which may make commuting into the 
economic downtown center by transit and other mobility options more appealing. 

Additionally, the StPete2050 Vision Plan recognizes that higher density projects along 
major corridors increase the number of riders and future success of any expanded transit 
options. 

LU20.2 The Future Land Use Element of the St. Petersburg Comprehensive Plan shall be 
consistent with the Countywide Future Land Use Plan, including the categories, rules, 
policies, and procedures thereof. 

The proposed amendments to the City’s Future Land Use Map and Official Zoning Map 
are consistent with the Countywide Rules and Future Land Use Plan as the site is already 
designated Activity Center (AC). Therefore, no amendment to the Countywide Map is 
required. 

LU23.1 The City’s development review policies and procedures shall continue to integrate land 
use and transportation planning so that land development patterns support mobility 
choices and reduced trip lengths. 

The subject property has frontage on 5th Avenue North which is classified as a Future 
Major Street and a supporting multimodal corridor. The proposed amendments support 
the integration of land use with transportation planning as the site is currently served 
with high frequency transit while being located within the northern boundaries of the 
Intown Activity Center. 

T13.2 The City shall include criteria in the FLUM amendment process in the Land 
Development Regulations to give additional weight to amendments that increase 
densities for projects that are located in close proximity to Activity Centers or along 
corridors where transit or facilities for high occupant vehicles exist, where compatible 
with the policies established in the Land Use Element. 

As stated above, the proposed amendments will allow for higher density with the 
potential for mixed-use development that is located within the Intown Activity Center 
and served by high frequency transit. 

Additionally, a goal of the StPete2050 Vision Plan theme of Sustainability and 
Resilience is to reduce vehicle miles traveled and parking demand by increasing 
development that is supported by high-frequency transit service. 

City File FLUM-66 
Page 9 



 
 

 

  
 

 

      
  

 
  

   
 

 

      
    

 
 

    
 

     
         

 

   

  
  

 
 

   
  

      
   

      
 

 
    

    
    

   
   

    
   

       
    

  
   

       
  

  
    

PR1.1 The right of a property owner to physically possess and control his or her interests in 
the property, including easements, leases, or mineral rights. 

The subject property owner has initiated the subject land use and zoning map 
amendments in order to further their interests in their private property. 

PR1.2 The right of a property owner to use, maintain, develop, and improve his or her property 
for personal use or the use of any other person, subject to state law and local 
ordinances. 

The subject property owner has initiated the subject land use and zoning map 
amendments in order to expand upon their existing entitlements and to develop 
according to state law and local ordinances. 

PR1.3 The right of the property owner to privacy and to exclude others from the property to 
protect the owner’s possessions and property. 

The proposed amendments do not alter the property owner’s right to privacy or their 
ability to exclude others from the property to protect the owner’s possessions and 
property. 

PR1.4 The right of a property owner to dispose of his or her property through sale or gift. 

The proposed amendments do not alter the property owners right to dispose of their 
property through sale or gift. 

2. Whether the proposed amendment would adversely affect environmentally sensitive lands or 
properties which are documented as habitat for listed species as defined by the Conservation 
Element of the Comprehensive Plan. 

The proposed amendment would not adversely affect any environmentally sensitive land or 
properties which are documented as habitat for listed species as defined by the conservation element 
of the Comprehensive Plan. The lots were first developed in the early 1900’s with a mixture of single 
family and missing middle housing types. 

3. Whether the proposed changes would alter the population density pattern and thereby 
adversely affect residential dwelling units. 

The existing PR-R and proposed RM Future Land Use designation (for the northern 1.24-acres) both 
allow for 15 dwelling units per acre. However, the PR-R units are expressed as 7.5 single family 
dwellings with 7.5 accessory dwelling units (ADUs) and the RM units are expressed as 15 
multifamily dwelling units per acre. Assuming 2.5 people per single family home and 1 person per 
ADU, the current land use and zoning could support approximately 33 people [(7.5 x 1.24 x 2.5) + 
(7.5 x 1.24 x 1) = 32.5]. Assuming 1.5 people per multi-family dwelling unit, the proposed land use 
could also support an approximate population of 28 people, which represents a potential slight 
decrease in population of five people. 

For the southern 0.42-acres, the existing PR-R Future Land Use designation allows for 15 dwelling 
units per acre or up to 30 units per acre when zoned NTM-1 or 13 units on the subject property. The 
current land use and zoning could support approximately 19 people [0.42 x 30 x 1.5 = 18.9]. The 
proposed Future Land Use designation of PR-MU with AC overlay would allow for 60 dwelling units 
per acre or 25 dwelling units. Assuming 1.5 people per multi-family dwelling unit, the proposed land 
use could support a population of 38 people or an approximate increase of 19 people. 

City File FLUM-66 
Page 10 



 
 

 

       
  

      
   

 
 

   
 

      
   

  
  

   
 

 
 

 
          

  
       

  
      

    
    

     
 

 
    

     
     

    
 

 
    

  
   

          
  

 

 
  

   
  

 

 
     

  
  

 

   
   

Overall, the proposed amendments represent an increase in supported population of approximately 
14 people. 

4. Impact of the proposed amendment upon the adopted level of service (LOS) for public services 
and facilities including, but not limited to: water, sewer, sanitation, recreation and stormwater 
management and impact on LOS standards for traffic and mass transit. The POD may require 
the applicant to prepare and present with the application whatever studies are necessary to 
determine what effects the amendment will have on the LOS. 

The following LOS impact analysis concludes that the proposed FLUM amendment and concurrent 
rezoning will not have a significant impact on the City’s adopted LOS standards for public services 
and facilities including potable water, sanitary sewer, solid waste, traffic, mass transit, recreation, 
and stormwater management. Upon application for site plan review, or development permits, a 
concurrency review will be completed to determine whether the proposed development may proceed. 
The property owner must comply with all laws and ordinances in effect at the time development 
permits are requested. 

POTABLE WATER 
Under the existing inter-local agreement with Tampa Bay Water (TBW), the region’s local 
governments are required to project and submit, on or before February 1st of each year the anticipated 
water demand for the following year. TBW is contractually obligated to meet the City’s and other 
member government’s water supply needs. The City’s adopted LOS standard is 125 gallons per capita 
per day (gpcd), while the actual current usage equates to approximately 72.4 gpcd. The City’s overall 
potable water demand is approximately 26.8 million gallons per day (mgd), while the systemwide 
capacity is 68 mgd. With only 40% of capacity systemwide currently being used, there is excess 
water capacity to serve the amendment area. 

SANITARY SEWER 
The subject property is served by the Southwest Water Reclamation Facility (WRF), which presently 
has an estimated excess average daily capacity of 5.26 mgd. The estimate is based on permit capacity 
of 20 mgd and a calendar year 2021 daily average flow of 14.74 mgd. With approximately 26% 
available capacity, there is excess average daily capacity to serve the amendment area. 

Following several major rain events in 2015-2016, the City increased its’ peak wet weather 
wastewater treatment capacity from 112 mgd to approximately 157 mgd – a 40% increase in peak 
flow capacity. As outlined in the St. Pete Water Plan, the City is implementing system reliability 
improvements at the WRFs, aggressively improving the gravity collection system to decrease Inflow 
and Infiltration (I&I) which reduces peak flows at the WRFs, and addressing sea level rise system 
vulnerabilities at lift stations. 

The City remains committed to continued I&I reduction. Also, the City is fully committed to 
implementing selected recommendations from the St. Pete Water Plan, which incorporates growth 
projections and outlines the required system and network improvements needed to provide a resilient 
wastewater collection and treatment system. 

SOLID WASTE/SANITATION 
Solid waste collection is the responsibility of the City, while solid waste disposal is the responsibility 
of Pinellas County. The City and the County have the same designated LOS of 1.3 tons per person 
per year. The County currently receives and disposes of municipal solid waste generated throughout 
Pinellas County. All solid waste disposed of at Pinellas County Solid Waste is recycled, combusted, 
or buried at the Bridgeway Acres sanitary landfill. The City and County’s commitment to recycling 
and waste reduction programs have assisted in keeping down the actual demand for solid waste 
disposal, which continues to extend the life span of Bridgeway Acres Sanitary Landfill. The landfill 

City File FLUM-66 
Page 11 



 
 

 

   
  

 

 
          

    
 

   
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
        

  
  

 
 

     
   

    
        

 
   

            
 

 

   
   

        
  
  

    
   

  

 

 
 

 
 

   
 

 
   

              
 

 

is expected to remain in use for approximately 82 years, based on current design (grading) and 
disposal rates. Thus, there is excess solid waste capacity to serve the amendment area. 

RECREATION 
The City's adopted LOS for recreation and open space is 9 acres/1,000 population, the actual LOS 
City-wide is estimated to be 20.3 acres/1,000 population. With a LOS rate of 9 acres/1,000 permanent 
and seasonal residents, the City would still have 20.3 acres/1,000 permanent and seasonal residents. 
If approved, there will be no noticeable impact on the adopted LOS standard for recreation and open 
space. 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT/DRAINAGE 
Drainage LOS identifies minimum criteria for existing and future facilities impacted by rain events. 
This is often quantified by a “design storm” with a specific duration, rainfall amount and return 
frequency. Currently the design storm used by the City is a 10-year return frequency, 1-hour duration 
storm as outlined in Drainage Ordinance, Section 16.40.030 of the Land Development Regulations 
(LDR). Unlike the other concurrency related facilities, stormwater LOS is not calculated with a per 
capita formula. Instead, the City implements the LOS standard through review of drainage plans for 
new development and redevelopment where all new construction of and improvements to existing 
surface water management systems will be required to meet design standards outlined in LDR Section 
16.40.030. This ordinance requires all new development projects to be permitted through the City 
and SWFWMD to ensure projects meet quantity and quality design standards for stormwater 
treatment. 

Prior to redevelopment of the subject property, site plan approval will be required. At that time, City 
Code and Southwest Florida Water Management District (SWFWMD) site requirements for 
stormwater management criteria will be implemented. The City’s existing Stormwater Management 
Master Plan (SWMP) contains detailed information on the 26 basins that comprise the stormwater 
management area. An update to the plan is currently underway with the assistance of cooperative 
funding from SWFWMD. The City’s commitment to upgrading the capacity of stormwater 
management systems is demonstrated by continued implementation of the SWMP, the Stormwater 
Utility Fee and capital improvement budgeting for needed improvements.  

The City is updating the Stormwater Management Master Plan with an expected completion before 
the end of calendar year 2023. While this update is consistent with the SWFWMD guidelines, it is 
enhanced as it takes into consideration sea level rise to identify projects to maintain LOS and enhance 
water quality. The City’s Stormwater Design Standards are being updated to incorporate Low Impact 
Design (LID) to reduce stormwater runoff and increase water quality. Likewise, the City recently 
updated its’ impervious service mapping throughout the City and will be working towards a credit-
based stormwater rate system for commercial and residential properties who implement LID and rain 
harvesting elements. Examples of such credits may be underground stormwater vaults, pervious 
pavements, greywater systems, and vegetative swales. 

TRAFFIC 

Existing Conditions 
Fifth Avenue North, 14th Street, 7th Avenue North, and a north-south alley border the subject 
property.  The Florida Department of Transportation maintains 5th Avenue North, which is a three-
lane, undivided road that is classified as a minor arterial.  The City of St. Petersburg maintains 14th 

Street, which is a one-lane, one-way local road commonly utilized for on-street parking.    The City 
also maintains 7th Avenue North, which is a two-lane, undivided road.  The north-south, two-way 
alley is located west of the subject parcels; the alley has a platted width of 15 feet and the surface 
material is brick. 

City File FLUM-66 
Page 12 



 
 

 

         
    
   

  
  

   
   

    
     

 
   

 

 

 
 
 

     
  

  
 

   
 

 

     
   

    
      

 
 

  
  

 
 

   
  

           
 

  
 

   
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
    
   

 
 

  
       

 

While the City no longer has a level of service (LOS) standard for roadway capacity, the 
Comprehensive Plan (T3.2) requires the City to utilize the Forward Pinellas Annual LOS Report to 
monitor roadway LOS for major streets. Roadway LOS is divided into six letter grades, “A” through 
“F,” with “A” representing free flow conditions for motorists and “F” representing heavy traffic 
congestion.  The proposed amendment is not expected to degrade existing levels of service 
significantly. According to the Forward Pinellas’ 2022 Annual Level of Service Report, the Average 
Annual Daily Traffic (AADT) volume on 5th Avenue North from Dr. ML King Jr. Street to 16th Street 
is 10,200. This segment of 5th Avenue North has a volume-to-capacity (V/C) ratio of 0.27 and 
functions at a LOS “D.” Fifth Avenue North carries 475 peak hour, peak direction trips, and has a 
spare capacity of 1,301 peak hour, peak direction trips.  Roadway level of service data is not provided 
for 14th Street and 7th Avenue North because they are not major streets. 

Trip Generation 
The subject properties are developed with a 14,000-square-foot medical office building, six single-
family homes on five parcels, one quadplex, and one five-unit multifamily development.  The 
Transportation and Parking Management Department staff utilized trip generation data in the Institute 
of Transportation Engineer’s (ITE’) “Trip Generation Manual” (11th Edition) to estimate the trip 
generation for the existing development. Staff utilized the following ITE land use types (followed 
by ITE land use code): single-family attached housing (215), single-family detached housing (210), 
multifamily low rise (220), and medical office (720).  These land use types were used to estimate 
existing morning (7 a.m. to 9 a.m.) and evening (4 p.m. to 6 p.m.) peak hour trips.  If fully occupied, 
the current land uses would generate an estimated 51 a.m. peak hour trips (34 trips in, 17 trips out) 
and 66 p.m. peak hour trips (24 trips in, 42 trips out). 

The maximum build-out for low-rise multifamily (ITE land use 220), accounting for the activity 
center density and workforce housing density bonuses, across all the lots would be 54 units, which 
would generate an estimated 40 a.m. peak hour trips (10 trips in, 30 trips out) and 44 p.m. peak hour 
trips (28 trips in, 16 trips out).  If the southern portion of the development were to build strictly 
commercial development, the maximum build-out for general commercial would be 45,738 square 
feet.  A variety of commercial developments could be built, but for the purpose of this trip generation 
analysis staff selected a shopping plaza (ITE land use code 821). A shopping plaza would generate 
an estimated 79 a.m. peak hour trips (49 trips in, 30 trips out) and 237 p.m. peak hour trips (116 trips 
in, 121 trips out). 

Staff utilized ITE trip generation data from general urban/suburban settings for the existing and 
proposed uses.  Vehicular trip rates per unit of development are typically lower in denser urban areas, 
such as the vicinity of the subject property. This suggests that the existing land uses would likely 
generate fewer than 51 a.m. and 66 p.m. peak hour trips, and the proposed uses would likely generate 
fewer than 79 a.m. and 237 p.m. peak hour trips.  As noted, the spare capacity on 5th Avenue North 
adjacent to the site is 1,301 peak hour, peak direction trips.  A significant amount of excess capacity 
is available to accommodate the potential trips generated by the proposed land use change and 
rezoning. 

Sidewalks 
There are sidewalks adjacent to the subject property on 5th Avenue North.  There are also sidewalks 
on both sides of 14th Street and both sides of 7th Avenue North. 

Bicycle Network 
There is a bike lane on the northern side of 5th Avenue North for bicyclists traveling in the westbound 
direction.  A bike lane exists on the southern side of 4th Avenue North for bicyclists traveling 
eastbound. 

Neighborhood Traffic Plan 
The subject property is in the Historic Uptown Neighborhood Association, which has a neighborhood 
traffic plan.  There are no traffic-calming measures in the vicinity of the subject property. 

City File FLUM-66 
Page 13 



 
 

 

 
 

    
    

 
 

 
                

  
 

 

  
   
   

 

 
 

  
 

 

   
  

 

 
  
  

  

  
  

 

 
 

  
 

 

    
  

 

   
 

         
         

  
    

   
 

 
 

     
           

   
 

Complete Streets 
The portion of 7th Avenue North that is east of Dr. ML King Jr. Street is a designated neighborhood 
greenway in the Complete Streets Implementation Plan.  This portion of 7th Avenue North is 
designated for bicycle priority and street calming in coordination with neighborhood plans.   

TRANSIT 
The Citywide LOS for mass transit will not be affected. There is a bus stop on 5th Avenue North 
between 15th and 14th Street, which services three transit routes, two of which are high- frequency 
routes: 

• Route 9 with 30-minute headways 
• Route 16 with 65-minute headways 
• Route 32 with 35-minute headways 

These routes provide service to Grand Central Station, Gateway Mall transfer center, and downtown 
St. Petersburg, including the SunRunner service.  Additionally, PSTA offers several programs that 
provide discounted or late-night bus service to qualifying individuals, including the Late Night, 
Direct Connect, and Access Programs. 

5. Appropriate and adequate land area sufficient for the use and reasonably anticipated 
operations and expansions; 

The 1.66-acre land area is both appropriate and adequate for the applicants stated intention to resell 
the property to be redeveloped for multifamily residential housing at a density greater than what is 
currently allowed. 

6. The amount and availability of vacant land or land suitable for redevelopment for similar uses 
in the City or on contiguous properties; 

The City has a limited availability of large, consolidated lots such as the subject property that can 
help the community address the growing need for market rate affordable housing. Its location on a 
multimodal corridor served by high frequency transit and within the Intown Activity Center support 
the subject property as being suitable for the proposed land use and zoning amendments. 

7. Whether the proposed change is consistent with the established land use pattern of the areas 
in reasonable proximity; 

The established land use pattern of the immediate surrounding neighborhood is a mix of single and 
multifamily houses and St. Anthony’s Hospital with supporting medical offices. When applied to 
the northern 1.24-acres of the site, the proposed RM Future Land Use designation and NSM-1 zoning 
district will allow for 19 total dwelling units with a potential workforce housing density bonus of 
ten dwelling units, which is in keeping with the surrounding residential density but will allow a 
building form of townhouses or multifamily units, while also providing for a transition in density 
from Institutional to the east and single family to the west with a 15-foot alley separator. 

When applied to the southern 0.42-acres of the site, the proposed PR-MU Future Land use 
designation and CRT-1 zoning district with existing AC overlay will allow for mixed use residential 
development of 25 total dwelling units, or medical office expansion up to 45,738 square feet, which 
is in character with the predominant surrounding development that is also within the AC overlay, 
which includes this subject site and its surroundings with the intent to support neighboring St. 
Anthony’s Hospital and the greater downtown area. 

City File FLUM-66 
Page 14 



 
 

 

 

      
 

 

     
    

 
   

  
 

    
  

 
  

    
  

 

    

 
   

 

 
  

 

  
 

 
    

 
   

 

   
 

 

    

    
 

 

   
 

   
  

  
 

 
  

       
  

    

8. Whether the existing district boundaries are logically drawn in relation to existing conditions 
on the property proposed for change; 

The existing district boundary of NT-2 applied to the norther 1.24-acres and NTM-1 applied to the 
southern 0.42-acres are logically drawn and will continue to be so with the proposed districts. 

9. If the proposed amendment involves a change from residential to a nonresidential use or 
mixed use, whether more nonresidential land is needed in the proposed location to provide 
services or employment to residents of the City; 

The current residential use will remain with the potential for limited office and/or retail uses on the 
southern 0.42-acres designated CRT-1. 

10. Whether the subject property is within the 100-year floodplain, hurricane evacuation level 
zone A or Coastal High Hazard Area as identified in the coastal management element of 
the Comprehensive Plan; 

The subject property is not within the 100-year flood plain, hurricane evacuation level zone A or the 
Coastal High Hazard Area.  

11. Other pertinent facts. 

The Community Planning and Preservation Commission and City Council may bring up other 
pertinent information as necessary. 

CONSISTENCY WITH THE COUNTYWIDE PLAN: 

Proposed amendments to local future land use plans and land development regulations are required to be 
consistent with the Countywide Plan Map and the criteria and standards set forth in the Countywide Rules. 
The subject property’s Countywide Plan Map designation of Activity Center (AC) is consistent with the 
proposed City land use designation of RM, therefore no amendment to the Countywide Map is required. 

PUBLIC NOTICE and COMMENTS 

Public Notice 

The applicant has met the minimum notification requirements prescribed by City Code Chapter 16. 

• December 29, 2022: Pursuant to City Code, the applicant sent a “Notice of Intent to File” to the Council 
of Neighborhood Associations (“CONA”), and the nearby neighborhood association of Historic 
Uptown. 

• February 13, 2023: The City’s Urban Planning and Historic Preservation Division (“Division”) 
received an application for processing. 

• February 21, 2023: An email notification and the submitted application was sent by the Division to 
CONA, and the nearby neighborhood association of Historic Uptown. 

• March 24, 2023: Public notification signs were posted on the subject property. In addition to noticing 
the public hearing, and two (2) online links were included for accessing the information described 
above.   

• March 24, 2023: Public notification letters were sent by direct mail to neighboring property owners 
within 300-linear feet of the subject property. Additional letters of notification were sent to CONA, 
FICO, and the nearby neighborhood associations of Historic Uptown Neighborhood Association. In 
addition to the standard information, this notification included both the CPPC and City Council public 

City File FLUM-66 
Page 15 



 
 

 

  
  

 

  

 
 

   
     

  
 

 
 

  
  

   
  

 
 

 
 

     
  

    
 

  
 

         
       

 
   

 
 

 

       
        

 
   

 
 

 

   
  
  

 
 

 

hearing dates and times, web links to review the then-pending staff reports, and a link to the current 
planning projects webpage for more information. 

Public Comments 

To date, staff has received one public comment in support of the proposal.  

PUBLIC HEARING PROCESS 

The proposed ordinances associated with the Future Land Use Map and Official Zoning Map amendment 
require one (1) public hearing with the Community Planning & Preservation Commission (CPPC) and one (1) 
public hearing with City Council. 

SUMMARY 

The Staff analysis is to determine whether the proposed Amendments are consistent with the requirements of 
the Comprehensive Plan. Based on the analysis contained in this report, City staff agrees with the application 
narrative and finds that the proposed Future Land Use and Official Zoning Map amendments at the subject 
location are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan in the review of the Land Use, Utilities, Housing, and 
Transportation Elements. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Community Planning and Preservation Commission (CPPC), in its capacity as the 
Local Planning Agency, make a finding of consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and recommend to City 
Council APPROVAL of the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map and Official Zoning Map 
amendments described herein. 

REPORT PREPARED BY: 

Britton Wilson 04.03.2023 
Britton Wilson, AICP, Planner II DATE 
Urban Planning and Historic Preservation Division 
Planning & Development Services Department 

REPORT APPROVED BY: 

04.03.2023 
Derek Kilborn, Manager DATE 
Urban Planning and Historic Preservation Division 
Planning & Development Services Department 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Subject Area Maps 
2. Application 
3. Public Comments 

City File FLUM-66 
Page 16 



 
 

 

 

 

  

 

  

--%'!1!11-■ 
~'\WII ~-.--

st.petersburg 
www.stpete.org 

ATTACHMENT NO. 1 

Application 

City File FLUM-66 
Page 17 





   

 

 

 

NARRATIVE 

PROPERTY INFORMATION: 

Street Address: 

Parcel ID or Tract Number: 

Square Feet: 

Acreage: 

Proposed Legal Description: 

 

 

 

Is there any existing contract for sale on the subject property: 

If so, list names of all parties to the contract: 

Is contract conditional or absolute: 

 

Are there any options to purchase on the subject property: 

Is so, list the names of all parties to option: 

 

 REQUEST: 
The applicant is of the opinion that this request would be an appropriate land use and / or rezoning for 
the above described property, and conforms with the Relevant Considerations of the Zoning Ordinance 
for the following reasons: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
                                                                          
UPDATED 08-23-2012                                                                                
 

FUTURE LAND USE PLAN CHANGE 
REZONING 

 

NARRATIVE (PAGE 1 of 1) 



 

 

  Narrative Request

14th Street North at 7th Avenue

The  applicant  requests  a  land  use  map  amendment as  well  as  a  zoning  map  amendment  for  property 
owned by Belleair Properties Group LLC and Fifth Avenue Properties Group LLC and generally located at 
1400 7th Ave N; 1402 7th Ave N; 1404 7th Ave N; 636 14th St N; 634 14th St N; 622 14th St N; 610 14th St 
N; 14th St N; 540 14th St N; and 1401 5th Ave N (“the Property”). The applicant specifically requests:

(1) Rezoning from NT-2 to NSM-1 for the northern 1.24 acres of land located at generallylocated 

at 1400 7th Ave N (Lot 79); 1402 7th Ave N (Lot 79); 1404 7th Ave N (Lot 79); 63614th St N (Lot 

78); 634 14th St N (Lot 77); 622 14th St N (Lot 76); 610 14th St N (Lot 75);14th St N (Lot 74); and 

540 14th St N (Lot 73); and 1401 5th Ave N (Lots 71-72); and

(2) Rezoning from NT-2 to CRT-1 for the southern 0.42 acres of land generally located at

1401 5th Ave N (Lots 68-70); and

(3) A future land use amendment from PR-R to RM for the northern 1.24 acres of landlocated 

at generally located at 1400 7th Ave N (Lot 79); 1402 7th Ave N (Lot 79); 1404 7thAve N (Lot 79); 

636 14th St N (Lot 78); 634 14th St N (Lot 77); 622 14th St N (Lot 76); 61014th St N (Lot 75); 14th 

St N (Lot 74); and 540 14th St N (Lot 73); and 1401 5th Ave N (Lots71-72); and

(4) A future land use amendment from PR-R to PR-MU for the southern 0.42 acres of land 
generally located at 1401 5th Ave N (Lots 68-70).

While  there  are  no  immediate  plans  for  redevelopment,  the  trend  of  development  and  the 
intensity of nearby development, coupled with the future sale of the Property necessitates this

change. Under an NSM-1 and CRT-1 zoning classification, the Property will allow a developer to 
purchase  the  land  and  develop  residential  properties  with  multifamily  housing  and  a  greater

density  that  what  is  permitted  today.  Pursuant  to  conversations  with  staff,  the  applicant 
acknowledges that the City may require a development agreement to maximize the number of 
workforce housing units available on the Property.

This request meets the standard of review in the St. Petersburg Code §16.70.040.1.1(E) as provided for 
below.

1.C ompliance  of  the  proposed  use  with  the  goals,  objectives,  polices  and  guidelines  of  the 
Comprehensive Plan.

The  Proposal  will  encourage  pedestrian  and  bicycle  transportation  as  future  development  will  permit 
greater density adjacent to the St. Anthony’s Hospital that can be utilized by employees and staff on that 
campus in an area where there is otherwise limited multifamily housing. Moreover, rezoning the southern 
portion of the Property to a CRT classification will promote development of housing options with greater 
density, which will in turn relieve St. Petersburg’s housing shortage. Overall, the Proposal will promote 
redevelopment that will protect and enrich the quality of life in the Historic Uptown Community and the 
City at large.



2. Whether the proposed amendment would adversely affect environmentally sensitive lands or 

properties which are documented as habitat for the listed species as defined by the conservation 

element of the Comprehensive Plan. 

The Proposal will not adversely impact any environmentally sensitive lands. Moreover, the Property does 

not have any documented habitats for listed species.  

3. Whether the proposed changes would alter the population density pattern and thereby adversely 

affect residential dwelling units or public schools. 

The Proposal would increase the population density on the Property. Any proposed development that 

would follow this map amendment would likely include a workforce housing agreement, allowing the 

density in a CRT-1 zone to reach 68 dwelling units per acre and to 21 dwelling units per acre in the NSM-

1 zone.  

4. Impact of the proposed amendment upon the adopted level of service (LOS) for public services 

and facilities including, but not limited to: water, sewer, sanitation, recreation and stormwater 

management and impact on LOS standards for traffic and mass transit. The POD may require the 

applicant to prepare and present with the application whatever studies are necessary to 

determine what effects the amendment will have on the LOS. 

The proposed increase in density will not trigger a negative impact on existing levels of service.    

5. Appropriate and adequate land area sufficient for the use and reasonably anticipated operations 

and expansions. 

The Property contains approximately 1.66 acres of land and encompasses an entire city block.  This 

Proposal creates a transition from the Institutional use to the east and the Industrial and CRT-1 to the 

southwest facing the interstate as well as NSM-1 to the northwest blending into the Historic Uptown 

Neighborhood.  While there is not a current contract to develop the property, the land will be sufficient 

for future residential development that will match the character of the surrounding area. As noted above 

a future development agreement would likely include workforce housing, so the proposed CRT zoning 

would provide ample space for the City to continue to address affordable housing needs.   

6. The amount and availability of vacant land or land suitable for redevelopment for similar uses in 

the City or on contiguous properties. 

At present, there is a shortage of available vacant and otherwise suitable land for redevelopment for 

residential and mixed uses in St. Petersburg. The Property is suitable for redevelopment for residential 

uses as there are currently some single family homes – all of which are in need of renovations and 

improvements. By allowing for a CRT-1 and NSM-1 rezoning classification, and the necessary future land 

use map amendment, the City will promote housing development that can address the City-wide shortage 

and contribute to relieving the housing affordability crisis.   

7. Whether the proposed change is consistent with the established land use pattern of the areas in 

reasonable proximity. 

A CRT-1 classification would be consistent with the pattern of land use surrounding the Property. This 

would reflect a continuation of the CRT-1 zoning to the west of the Property and allow for a more natural 



17443699v3 

transition to the Institutional Center (“IC”) use to the East of the Property. Moreover, NSM-1 zoning in the 

north of the Property would provide a transition from the denser IC and CRT zoning districts to the 

substantially less dense NT-2 zoning district. 

8. Whether the exiting district boundaries are logically drawn in relation to existing conditions on 

the property proposed for change. 

The present boundaries and conditions of the property are not consistent with the intent of its present 

zoning, Neighborhood Traditional Single-Family-2 (“NT-2”), as stated in §16.20.010.3 of the code. As noted 

above, the Property borders IC use to its east and has CRT-1 zoning to its west. Thus, lower density zoning 

effectively interrupts the transition from a CRT-1 zone to an Institutional Center. Moreover, the present 

conditions do not reflect single family character found in the remainder of this NT-2 District. While there 

are some single-family homes, there are also duplexes, a vacant lot, a surface parking lot, and an office. 

Since the existing structures already deviate from the intent of the NT-2 district, it would benefit the 

districts surrounding the Property to allow to redevelopment and a more natural transition from CRT and 

NSM to IC.  

9. If the proposed amendment involves a change from residential to a nonresidential use or a mixed 

use, whether more nonresidential land is needed in the proposed location to provide services or 

employment to residents of the City. 

The primary intended use in CRT-1 and NSM-1 zoning is residential, just as it is in NT-2 zoning. However, 

CRT zoning does permit some limited mixed-use development that is in scale with the surrounding 

neighborhood. More non-residential land is not needed, rather more residential use at greater density is 

needed on the Property. 

10. Whether the subject property is within the 100-year floodplain, hurricane evacuation level zone 

A or coastal high hazard areas as identified in the coastal management element of the 

Comprehensive Plan. 

The Property is not located within the 100-year floodplain, any hurricane evacuation level zone, or a 

coastal high hazard area. 

11. Other pertinent facts. 

While the Proposal itself does not include any redevelopment of the Property, we have also confirmed 

that there are no local landmarks or potentially eligible properties on the Property.  



Zoning Map

City of St. Petersburg, City of Tampa, County of Pinellas, Esri, HERE, Garmin,
GeoTechnologies, Inc., NGA, USGS

Easements

Tax Parcels Boundary

House Numbers

Tax Parcels Info

Zoning Districts

CCS-2

CRT-1

IC

IT

NT-2

10/13/2022, 1:57:09 PM 0 0.03 0.060.01 mi

0 0.06 0.110.03 km

1:2,257

Web AppBuilder for ArcGIS

City of St. Petersburg | City of Tampa, County of Pinellas, Esri, HERE, Garmin, GeoTechnologies, Inc., NGA, USGS |



Future Land Use Map

City of St. Petersburg, City of Tampa, County of Pinellas, Esri, HERE, Garmin,
GeoTechnologies, Inc., NGA, USGS

Tax Parcels Boundary

House Numbers

Tax Parcels Info

FLU Special Designation Overlays

ACTIVITY CENTERS

Future Land Use

Residential/Office General

Institutional

Planned Redevelopment Residential

Planned Redevelopment Mixed-Use

10/13/2022, 2:00:19 PM 0 0.03 0.060.01 mi

0 0.06 0.110.03 km

1:2,257

Web AppBuilder for ArcGIS

City of St. Petersburg | City of Tampa, County of Pinellas, Esri, HERE, Garmin, GeoTechnologies, Inc., NGA, USGS |



Document Number
FEI/EIN Number
Date Filed
Effective Date
State
Status

Department of State /  Division of Corporations /  Search Records /  Search by Entity Name /

Detail by Entity Name
Florida Limited Liability Company
FIFTH AVENUE PROPERTIES GROUP LLC

Filing Information

L21000194377
APPLIED FOR
05/04/2021

05/04/2021
FL
ACTIVE

Principal Address

2840 W BAY DR UNIT 204 
BELLEAIR BLUFFS, FL 33770 

Mailing Address

2840 W BAY DR UNIT 204 
BELLEAIR BLUFFS, FL 33770 

Registered Agent Name & Address

SMITH, JOHN D
2840 W BAY DR UNIT 204 
BELLEAIR BLUFFS, FL 33770 

Authorized Person(s) Detail

Name & Address 
 
Title MBR 
 
SMITH, JOHN D
2840 W BAY DR UNIT 204 
BELLEAIR BLUFFS, FL 33770 
 
Title MBR 
 
SMITH, MARK R
2840 W BAY DR UNIT 204 
BELLEAIR BLUFFS, FL 33770 
 

D������� �� C�����������Florida Department of State



Annual Reports

Report Year Filed Date
2022 04/06/2022
 

Document Images

04/06/2022 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format

05/04/2021 -- Florida Limited Liability View image in PDF format

 
 

Florida Department of State, Division of Corporations



Document Number
FEI/EIN Number
Date Filed
Effective Date
State
Status
Last Event
Event Date Filed
Event Effective Date

Department of State /  Division of Corporations /  Search Records /  Search by Entity Name /

Detail by Entity Name
Florida Limited Liability Company
BELLEAIR PROPERTIES GROUP LLC

Filing Information

L17000094353
82-3971666
04/28/2017

04/27/2017
FL
ACTIVE

LC NAME CHANGE
01/16/2018

NONE

Principal Address

2840 WEST BAY DRIVE 
BELLEAIR BLUFFS, FL 33770 

Mailing Address

2840 WEST BAY DRIVE 
BELLEAIR BLUFFS, FL 33770 

Registered Agent Name & Address

Weylie, Philip A, Esq.
780 94TH AVE N 
STE 104 
ST PETERSBURG, FL 33702 
 
Name Changed: 04/07/2019 
 
Address Changed: 04/29/2021

Authorized Person(s) Detail

Name & Address 
 
Title MGR 
 
SMITH, JOHN D

D������� �� C�����������Florida Department of State



2840 WEST BAY DRIVE 
BELLEAIR BLUFFS, FL 33770 
 
Title MGR 
 
SMITH, BARBARA A
2840 WEST BAY DRIVE 
BELLEAIR BLUFFS, FL 33770 
 
Title MGR 
 
SMITH, MARK R
2840 WEST BAY DRIVE 
BELLEAIR BLUFFS, FL 33770 
 
Title MGR 
 
SMITH, JOHN D, JR.
2840 WEST BAY DRIVE 
BELLEAIR BLUFFS, FL 33770 
 

Annual Reports

Report Year Filed Date
2020 02/05/2020
2021 04/29/2021
2022 03/14/2022
 

Document Images

03/14/2022 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format

04/29/2021 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format

02/05/2020 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format

04/07/2019 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format

06/28/2018 -- ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format

01/16/2018 -- LC Name Change View image in PDF format

04/28/2017 -- Florida Limited Liability View image in PDF format

 
 

Florida Department of State, Division of Corporations







 
 

 

 

 

 

   

 

..,r-.....:,'.@iiiii 
~"\WIii ~---st.petersburg 

www.s1pe1e.oru 

ATTACHMENT NO. 2 

Map Series 

City File FLUM-66 
Page 18 



 

FILE 

FLUM-66 

SCALE: 1 "= 1?0' 

LJ SUBJECT AREA 1 

LJ SUBJECT AREA 2 



 

f-
Cl) 

I 
f-
CD ..-

V Duplex 

SF 

J SF 

SF 

' 
Medical Office 

\.~-------------

Car 

Wash 

t 
SF a. 

1 Duplex 

:::, 
Q 

Light T 1-
ManufacturinS ~F SF 

\. 

SF 

Store 
V 

SF 
Store Duplex 

V 

Auto 

Repair 
V 

5THAVE N 

Apts 

Medical 

Office 

• 

Duplex SF SF V 

Duplex SF 
Apts Apts 

SF SF Duplex V 

Duplex Apts 
Apts 

SF 
SF SF 
SF SF SF Apts 

>< SF 
! SF 

SF 0. s F 
le~SF 

:::, SF SF Q bu 

7TH AVE N 

SF SF SF FlsF: •:haritable 

SF I Services 

SF Duplex 

z Apts Duplex I z 

~ --------" ---w~.--r· ~ 
~ SF /\.1 : ~ 
..- I ..-

V 

SF • 
f----------"· 

r----+-----1 

,, ALF • 
I 

1------------I - - - - -

Head 
Start ~ 

School V 

ALF • • 
®: 

V 

V 

Medical Office 

:;t Vince11t 

V 
z 

V f-
Cl) 

Office I 

Medical f-
LO 
..-

Office 

CITY FILE 

FLUM-66 

SCALE: 1 "= 170' 

>e Paul 

V 
V 

z 
f- Apts Cl) 

I 
f-

4THAVE N 'SI" ..-

EXISTING USES 

LJ SUBJECT AREA 1 

LJ SUBJECT AREA 2 

V 

V V 

V 
z 
f- V Medical 
Cl) 

I 
V Office 

f-
(") 
..-

V 
-

V 
V 

St Anthony's Hospital 

Office 

------------

---------v 



 

PR-R 

--■ 

5THAVE N 

z 
I-
Cf) 

I 

to 

z 
I-
Cf) 

I 
I-
LO 

PR-R PR-R PR-R 

7TH AVE N 

z 
I-
Cf) 

I 
I-
'SI" 

R/ 

R/OG 

4THAVE N 

FUTURE LAND USE 

z 
I-
Cf) 

I 
I
(") 

_____ c_lT_Y_F_I _LE-----□ SUBJECT AREA 1 
From: PR-R To: RM 

(Planned Redevelopment-Residential ) (Residential Medium) 

FLUM-66 
with Activity Center Overlay with Activity Center Overlay 

From: PR-R From: PR-MU 

R/O 

R/OG 

N 

$\ 
W-~E 

□ SUBJECT AREA 2 (Planned Redevelopment-Residential) (Planned Redevelopment-Mixed Use) 
SCALE: 1 " = 170 ' with Activity Center Overlay with Activity Center Overlay 

s 



  

IC IC 
NT-2 

NT-2 NT-2 NT-2 z z 
I-
Cf) 

I 
I- CRT-1 CD 
~ 

NT-2 

7TH AVE N 

CRT-1 INt-~ IC 

z z I-
I- Cf) 
Cf) 

I 
I I-
I- '<:!" 
LO ~ 

~ 

IC 
CRT-1 

I 

l ckJ1 I IC 
5THAVE N 

CITY FILE 

FLUM-66 

SCALE: 1 "= 170' 

z 
I-
Cf) 

I 

to 
~ 

4THAVE N 

EXISTING ZONING 
From: NT-2 

SUBJECT AREA 1 (Neighborhood Traditional 

Single Family - 2 ) 

From: NTM-1 
□ SUBJECT AREA 2 (Neighborhood Traditional 

Mixed-Residential - 1 ) 

I-
Cf) 

IC I 
I-
(") 
~ 

IC 

IC 

To: NSM-1 
(Neighborhood Suburban 
Multifamily -1 ) 

To: CRT-1 
(Corridor Residential 
Traditional -1 ) 

IC 

N 

~ 
W-~ E 

s 



 

 

 

IIIIIIIIJiQt!!liiiiiiiiiiiil 
~"\'111111 ~-.-

st.petersburg 
www.s1pe1e.org 

ATTACHMENT NO. 3 

Public Comments 



From: Felix Fudge 
To: Britton N. Wilson 
Subject: Application - FLUM-66 
Date: Tuesday, March 28, 2023 11:27:59 AM 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

Happy Monday. I am in total support of this application. I believe this area warrants increased 

density and should have included all of the area from 7th Avenue to 5th Avenue and from 14th Street 

to 16th Street. Meaning, the areas bordered by I 375 to the South, the 1,000,000 sq. Ft. mol St. 

Anthony’s Campus to the East, the 5 lane 16th Street to the West and 7th Avenue to the North. I 
appreciate this application was a “Private” initiated zoning application versus a City initiated 
application. 
Britton, what density, height restriction and FAR will this new zoning allow? 
The above area warrants a much higher density (of residential units per acre), a higher height 
restriction and a substantial increase to FAR. I would feel differently if there was not almost a million 
square feet of medical with a much higher height which is also one of the largest employers in the 
bay area with major roads bordering the South and West. 

I would note, that in addition to our building at 1501 5th Avenue North, we also have our office 
building at the below address which is two blocks from the area to be rezoned. Both of our LLC’s 
fully support this zoning change. 

Felix Fudge 
Bridgeport South Realty Advisors, Inc. 
650 16th Street North 
St. Petersburg, FL 33705 
Phone: 727-894-1717 
Cell: 727-458-7171 
FFudge@BSRA.net 



 

 
 

CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG 
COMMUNITY PLANNING & PRESERVATION COMMISSION  

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Council Chambers, City Hall April 11, 2023 
175 – 5th Street North                            Tuesday 
St. Petersburg, Florida 33701 2:00 P.M. 
  

MINUTES 
 

Present: Lisa Wannemacher, Chair 
 Robert “Bob” Jeffrey, Vice-Chair 
 Ashley Marbet 
 Manita Moultrie 
 Will Michaels, Alternate 
 Michael Huston, Alternate 
  
Commissioners Absent: Cassie Gardner 
 Joseph Magnello, Alternate 
   
Staff Present: Derek Kilborn, Manager, Urban Planning & Historic Preservation 
 Britton, Wilson, Planner II 
 Kelly Perkins, Historic Preservationist II 
 Heather Judd, Assistant City Attorney 
 Michael Dema, Assistant City Attorney 
 Katherine Connell, Clerk, Planning & Development Svcs. 
 Iris Winn, Clerk, Planning & Development Svcs.  
         
The public hearing was called to order at 2:00 p.m., a quorum was present. 
 
I.     OPENING REMARKS OF CHAIR  
 
II.    ROLL CALL 
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND SWEARING IN OF WITNESSES 
 
IV.  MINUTES (Approval of 3/14/2023 Minutes) 
 
The minutes from the March 14, 2023, meeting were approved unanimously 
 
V.  PUBLIC COMMENTS  



 

 
VI. LEGISLATIVE  
 
VII.  QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING 

 
1. City File FLUM-66             Britton Wilson (727) 551-3542 

 Request: 

Private-initiated application requesting Future Land Use Map amendments from Planned 
Redevelopment – Residential (PR-R) to Planned Redevelopment – Mixed Use (PR-MU) and 
Residential Medium (RM) and concurrent amendments to the Official Zoning Map from 
Neighborhood Traditional Mixed Residential - 1 (NTM-1) to Corridor Residential Traditional -1 
(CRT-1) and Neighborhood Traditional - 2 (NT-2) to Neighborhood Suburban Multifamily – 1 
(NSM-1) for a 1.66-acre site.  

City Staff Presentation (2:23):  
 
Britton Wilson gave a presentation based on the Staff Report. 
 
Applicant/Agenda Presentation:  
 
Katie Cole, Esq., gave a presentation on behalf of the Applicant, John D. Smith, on behalf of 
Belleair Properties Group, LLC and Fifth Avenue Properties Group, LLC., in support of the 
proposed amendments. 
 
Public Comment: 
 
Joshua Miller, 1403 7th Avenue North, spoke in opposition to the proposed amendments.  
 
Cross Examination: 
  
City Staff and Applicant waived. 
 
Rebuttal/Closing Remarks (2:57): 
 
Katie Cole: I have a couple of clarifications. I apologize, we were looking to try find the deeds for 
you, they unfortunately were not in my binder. I did want to speak to the building height, the 
neighborhood NTM building height is a 36-feet. The primary building height for NSM is also 36-
feet. It would only get to 48-feet in the event that workforce housing units are included. I just 
wanted to make that clarification. Otherwise, I think that with the evidence in the Staff Report and 
in the application as it was presented, the application meets your criteria in the Code and allows 
for the future review in the event there is an application forthcoming for site plan review that could 
address some of these other issues. Based on the matter that is before you today, from the zoning 
and land use change, we would respectfully request your approval.  Thank you.  
 
 



 

Executive Session (2:58): 
 
Commissioner Wannemacher: Thank you. We will go ahead and move into Executive Session. Do 
any Commissioners have any comments, questions, or concerns?  
 
Commissioner Huston: Since I mentioned it earlier, I thought I’d seen in the Zoning Code before 
that there were some basic design standards, so I’m glad to see that they are in there, that kind of 
will ease my concerns. Given the configuration of the lots, it would probably be difficult to get up 
to  four stories anyway because you are going to be limited in parking and there is not enough 
room for a garage, probably. Personally, I’m comfortable based on the criteria on moving forward 
with it.  
 
Commissioner Jeffrey: I do have one comment. When the uptown plan was done back in 1991 and 
1992, this area really struggled from the standpoint of the hospital was trying to expand, the 
interstate had gone in in the ‘70’s. It’s always appeared to me as a sort of a hodgepodge of 
locations. A lot of those apartment buildings were owned by a notorious slumlord at the time who 
didn’t do much to really improve the property, and, in many ways, I think that as we go through 
the City, we need to start looking a little more long-term about where density is increasing, where 
things are done and this seems like a way of starting to…and I hate the word ‘cleanup’, but to 
organize, better organize an area of our City that could use some organization.  
 
Commissioner Wannemacher: This property’s adjacency to the hospital, I could potentially foresee 
some really wonderful workforce housing happening here, depending on who potentially who buys 
this piece of property. And, really being very beneficial to cleaning up the neighborhood a bit. But, 
the hospital is not going anywhere. The hospital has been putting a lot of money into upgrades and 
renovations, it makes sense, in my opinion, to rezone this property and increase the density.  
 
Any other comments? Okay, I’ll take a motion  
 
Michael Dema: Chair, if I may? There is a member of the public that has a green card. 
 
Commissioner Wannemacher: Oh. Okay. I should have said is there anybody else that would like 
to… 
 
Michael Dema: Even though the public hearing has closed, we generally open to anybody 
speaking, so long as a decision has not been made on an item yet.  
 
Commissioner Wannemacher: It has not. Sorry for not acknowledging you earlier. Our next 
speaker is Laurel Martin.  
 
Public Comment (3:01): 
 
Laurel Martin, 622 ½  14th Street North, spoke regarding concerns of the proposed amendments.  
 
Executive Session (3:02): 
 



 

Commissioner Wannemacher: Thank you very much. In light of the last comment, is there any 
additional commentary from the Commission? 
 
Commissioner Michaels: Could the Staff or Legal remind us of what the notice requirements are 
for vacating property, given the concern we just heard?  
 
Michael Dema: Right. A couple of years ago, we did adopt in our Land Development Regulations 
the Tenant Notice of Intent to Develop provision, which says, “projects subject to a planning and 
zoning decision which involve demolition and four (4) or more occupied dwelling units at time of 
the application shall have 90 days written notice, prior to issuance of building permits.” This 
zoning decision does not have a demolition tied to it, it would normally be with something like a 
site plan or even a variance or something like that that came with redevelopment. In this case, the 
notice that has been provided appears to be compliant with what the Code requires for a rezoning 
and should there be a demolition permit coming in, that is when that may implicate the 90-day 
written notice.  
 
Commissioner Michaels: I seem to recall, maybe it is a matter of dates, when the Stanton apartment 
complex was demolished, there was only a 30-day notice to the residents. Am I not recalling that 
correctly?  
 
Michael Dema: Well, that was a potentially eligible listing and I know that in that case, there was 
certainly 30-days required there. I don’t know if that triggered the 90-days.  
 
Commissioner Michaels: Okay. Thank you.  
 
Commissioner Wannemacher: May I have a motion for this agenda item?  
 
Motion: Commissioner Jeffrey moved to find the application consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan and recommend to City Council to change the Future Land 
Use and Zoning based on the Staff Report . 

 
Commissioner Wannemacher: Thank you. Is there a second? 
 
                        Commissioner Huston, Second. (3:06) 
Commissioner Wannemacher: Anymore discussion? Roll call, please.  
 
    YES – 4 –   Wannemacher, Jeffrey, Marbet, Huston.   
    NO – 2 –  Moultrie, Michaels.  
 
Commissioner Wannemacher: Thank you very much. I believe there would be time and there 
would be sufficient information provided for each of the tenants who are currently occupying the 
homes.  
 
Britton Wilson: To clarify, it would only be applicable to the units of four (4) or more, so if they 
are in a duplex or triplex, they will not get the 90-day notice. 



287 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approving the renewal of a 

one-year blanket purchase agreement and an increase in allocation with SP Plus Corporation, for 

shuttle bus services, for the Municipal Pier District, at an estimated annual cost of $950,000 per year, 

for a total contract amount of $1,963,000. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CA-1

CA-1



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
Consent Agenda 

Meeting of May 18, 2023 
 

 
To: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council 
 
Subject: Approving the renewal of a one-year blanket purchase agreement and an increase in 
allocation with SP Plus Corporation, for shuttle bus services, for the Municipal Pier District, at an 
estimated annual cost of $950,000 per year, for a total contract amount of $1,963,000. 
  
Explanation: On May 19, 2022, City Council approved a one-year blanket purchase agreement 
for shuttle bus services through May 31, 2023. The agreement has two, one-year renewal options. 
This is the first renewal option. 
 
The supplier provides all labor, materials, and equipment for transportation and parking 
management services. This includes providing staffing to drive the trams and manage the parking 
lots. The supplier has successfully provided transportation and parking management services for 
the Pier since it’s opening in 2020 and the City desires to have SP Plus Corporation continue 
providing such services 365 days per year. 
        
The Procurement and Supply Management Department, in cooperation with the Enterprise 
Facilities Department, recommends for renewal: 
 

 SP Plus Corporation (Chicago, IL) ……………........$950,000 
 

Original agreement amount $1,013,000 
1st Renewal 950,000 

Total agreement amount $1,963,000 
 
SP Plus Corporation has agreed to renew under the same terms and conditions of the agreement. 
Administration recommends renewal of the agreement based on the vendor’s past satisfactory 
performance and demonstrated ability to comply with the terms and conditions of the agreement. 
This renewal will be effective through May 31, 2024.  
 
Cost/Funding/Assessment Information: Funds have been appropriated in the Pier Operating 
Fund (1203), Enterprise Facilities Department, Pier Advertising and Promotions Division 
(282.2861). 
 
 
Attachments: Resolution 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-_____ 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FIRST 
ONE-YEAR RENEWAL OPTION TO THE 
AGREEMENT WITH SP PLUS CORPORATION 
FOR TRANSPORTATION AND PARKING 
MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR THE 
MUNICIPAL PIER DISTRICT TO EXTEND THE 
TERM AND INCREASE THE CONTRACT 
AMOUNT BY $950,000 FOR THE RENEWAL 
TERM THROUGH MAY 31, 2024; PROVIDING 
THAT THE TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT 
SHALL NOT EXCEED $1,963,000; 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR HIS 
DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS 
NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THIS 
TRANSACTION; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
  WHEREAS, on May 19, 2022, City Council approved the award of a one-year 
blanket purchase agreement with two, one-year renewal options with SP Plus Corporation for 
transportation and parking management services for the Municipal Pier District at a total contract 
amount not to exceed $1,013,000 for the initial term; and 
 
  WHEREAS, Administration desires to exercise the first renewal option to extend 
the term and an increase the contract amount by $950,000 for the renewal term through May 31, 
2024; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Procurement & Supply Management Department, in cooperation 
with the Enterprise Facilities Department, recommends approval of this Resolution. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
St. Petersburg, Florida that the first renewal option to the agreement with SP Plus Corporation 
for transportation and parking management services for the Municipal Pier District to extend the 
term and increase the contract amount by $950,000 for the renewal term through May 31, 2024 is 
hereby approved.  
 
   BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the total contract amount shall not exceed 
$1,963,000. 
 
  BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to 
execute all documents necessary to effectuate this transaction. 



2 
 

 
  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

________________________                            _________________________ 
00678210 



Page 1 of 1

-- City of St. Petersburg Authorization Request --

General Authorization

Request #

212658

Name: Pocengal, Nicholas W Request Date: 28-APR-2023 Status: APPROVED

Authorization Request

Subject: Shuttle Bus, Pier, May 18 Council

Message: Submitted for your approval, please find attached Consent Write-up for Shuttle Bus, Pier, scheduled to go before 
City Council on May 18, 2023.  Resolution currently in development and will be included on the finalized version
when posted into City Clerk's Office Questys system.  Should you have any questions, please contact me at 
extension 3387. Thank you.

Supporting
Documentation:

Approval Request.pdf

Approver Completed By Response Response
Date

Type

0 Pocengal, Nicholas W SUBMITTED 28-APR-2023

1 Wahl, Margaret Brown Wahl, Margaret Brown APPROVE 28-APR-2023 User Defined 

2 Corbett, James Anthony Corbett, James Anthony APPROVE 01-MAY-2023 User Defined 



293 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approving the renewal of a 

one-year blanket purchase agreement and an increase in allocation with Blue Crew Services, Inc., for 

cleaning and maintenance services, for the Municipal Pier District, at an estimated annual cost of 

$878,000 per year, for a total contract amount of $1,756,000. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CA-2

CA-2



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
Consent Agenda 

Meeting of May 18, 2023 
 

 
To: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council 
 
Subject: Approving the renewal of a one-year blanket purchase agreement and an increase in 
allocation with Blue Crew Services, Inc., for cleaning and maintenance services, for the Municipal 
Pier District, at an estimated annual cost of $878,000 per year, for a total contract amount of 
$1,756,000. 
  
Explanation: On May 19, 2022, City Council approved a one-year blanket purchase agreement 
for cleaning and maintenance services through May 31, 2023. The agreement has two, one-year 
renewal options. This is the first renewal option. 
 
The supplier provides all labor, materials, and equipment for nearly 3,000 hours of service on a 
monthly basis to handle daily cleaning responsibilities including the interior of Pier Operations 
office, exterior common areas of grounds, interior common areas of Pier Head building, and all 
common area restrooms. They also provide consumables, such as restroom paper, trash liners, 
etc. 
        
The Procurement and Supply Management Department, in cooperation with the Enterprise 
Facilities Department, recommends for renewal: 
 

 Blue Crew Services, Inc. (Tampa, FL) ……………........$878,000 
 

Original agreement amount $878,000 
1st Renewal 878,000 

Total agreement amount $1,756,000 
 
Blue Crew Services, Inc. has agreed to renew under the same terms and conditions of the 
agreement. Administration recommends renewal of the agreement based on the vendor’s past 
satisfactory performance and demonstrated ability to comply with the terms and conditions of the 
agreement. This renewal will be effective through May 31, 2024.  
 
Cost/Funding/Assessment Information: Funds have been appropriated in the Pier Operating 
Fund (1203), Enterprise Facilities Department, Pier Advertising and Promotions Division 
(282.2861). 
 
 
Attachments: Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-____ 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FIRST RENEWAL 
OPTION TO THE BLANKET PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
WITH BLUE CREW SERVICES, INC. FOR CLEANING AND 
MAINTENANCE SERVICES FOR THE MUNICIPAL PIER 
DISTRICT TO EXTEND THE TERM UNTIL MAY 31, 2024 
AND INCREASE THE CONTRACT AMOUNT IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $878,000 FOR THIS RENEWAL TERM; 
PROVIDING THAT THE TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT 
SHALL NOT EXCEED $1,756,000; AUTHORIZING THE 
MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE ALL 
DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THIS 
TRANSACTION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, on May 19, 2022, City Council approved a one-year blanket purchase 

agreement with two one-year renewal options to Blue Crew Services, Inc. for cleaning and 
maintenance services for the Municipal Pier District for a total contract amount of $878,000 for the 
initial term through May 31, 2023; and  

WHEREAS, the City desires to exercise the first renewal option to extend the term through 
May 31, 2024, and increase the contract amount in the amount of $878,000 for this renewal term; and  

WHEREAS, the Procurement & Supply Management Department, in cooperation with the 
Enterprise Facilities Department, recommends approval of this Resolution.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. Petersburg, 
Florida that the renewal option to the blanket purchase agreement with Blue Crew Services, Inc. for 
cleaning and maintenance services for the Municipal Pier District to extend the term through May 31, 
2024 and increase the contract amount in the amount of $878,000 for this renewal term is hereby 
approved.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the total contract amount shall not exceed $1,756,000.  

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to execute 
all documents necessary to effectuate this transaction. 
 
 This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

    
00678228  



Page 1 of 1

-- City of St. Petersburg Authorization Request --

General Authorization

Request #

212650

Name: Pocengal, Nicholas W Request Date: 28-APR-2023 Status: APPROVED

Authorization Request

Subject: Cleaning & Maintenance, Pier, May 18 Council

Message: Submitted for your approval, please find attached Consent Write-up for Cleaning & Maintenance, Pier, scheduled 
to go before City Council on May 18, 2023.  Resolution currently in development and will be included on the 
finalized version when posted into City Clerk's Office Questys system.  Should you have any questions, please 
contact me at extension 3387. Thank you.

Supporting
Documentation:

Approval Request.pdf

Approver Completed By Response Response
Date

Type

0 Pocengal, Nicholas W SUBMITTED 28-APR-2023

1 Wahl, Margaret Brown Wahl, Margaret Brown APPROVE 28-APR-2023 User Defined 

2 Corbett, James Anthony Corbett, James Anthony APPROVE 01-MAY-2023 User Defined 



298 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approving the renewal of a 

one-year blanket purchase agreement and an increase in allocation with Covenant Security Solutions 

LLC, for security services, for the Municipal Pier District, at an estimated annual cost of $650,000 

per year, for a total contract amount of $1,300,000. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CA-3

CA-3



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
Consent Agenda 

Meeting of May 18, 2023 
 

 
To: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council 
 
Subject: Approving the renewal of a one-year blanket purchase agreement and an increase in 
allocation with Covenant Security Solutions LLC, for security services, for the Municipal Pier 
District, at an estimated annual cost of $650,000 per year, for a total contract amount of 
$1,300,000. 
  
Explanation: On May 19, 2022, City Council approved a one-year blanket purchase agreement 
for security services through May 31, 2023. The agreement has two, one-year renewal options. 
This is the first renewal option. 
 
The supplier provides all labor, materials, and equipment for uniformed security officers to patrol 
the common area and service corridors within the Pier District 24 hours per day, 365 days per 
year. The supplier has successfully provided security services for the Pier since July 30, 2021, 
and the City desires to renew with Covenant Security Solutions LLC. Effective with FY23 there 
was an Amendment executed to provide a consumer price index (CPI) increase of 5.04% CPI.  
This will not exceed the Maximum Annual Price of $650,000 per the original agreement amount. 
Additional funding is not needed. 
        
The Procurement and Supply Management Department, in cooperation with the Enterprise 
Facilities Department, recommends for renewal: 
 

 Covenant Security Solutions LLC (St. Petersburg, FL) ……………........$650,000 
 

Original agreement amount $650,000 
1st Renewal 650,000 

Total agreement amount $1,300,000 
 
Covenant Security Solutions LLC has agreed to renew with a CPI increase of 6.15% effective with 
FY24. This will not exceed the Maximum Annual Price of $650,000 and additional funding is not 
needed. Administration recommends renewal of the agreement based on the vendor’s past 
satisfactory performance and demonstrated ability to comply with the terms and conditions of the 
agreement. This renewal will be effective through May 31, 2024.  
 
Cost/Funding/Assessment Information: Funds have been previously appropriated in the Pier 
Operating Fund (1203), Enterprise Facilities Department, Pier Advertising and Promotions 
Division (282.2861). 
 
 
Attachments: Resolution 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-_____ 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FIRST 
ONE-YEAR RENEWAL OPTION TO THE 
AGREEMENT WITH COVENANT SECURITY 
SOLUTIONS LLC FOR SECURITY SERVICES 
FOR THE MUNICIPAL PIER DISTRICT TO 
EXTEND THE TERM AND INCREASE THE 
CONTRACT AMOUNT BY $650,000 FOR THIS 
RENEWAL TERM THROUGH MAY 31, 2024; 
PROVIDING THAT THE TOTAL CONTRACT 
AMOUNT FOR THE AGREEMENT SHALL NOT 
EXCEED $1,300,000; AUTHORIZING THE 
MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE ALL 
DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE 
THIS TRANSACTION; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
  WHEREAS, on May 19, 2022, City Council approved the award of a one-year 
blanket purchase agreement with two, one-year renewal options to Covenant Security Solutions 
LLC for security services for the Municipal Pier District at a total contract amount not to exceed 
$650,000 for the initial term; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the City and Covenant Security Solutions LLC entered into a first 
amendment to the agreement on January 27, 2023 to increase the pricing to reflect a 5.04 % CPI 
adjustment retroactive to October 1, 2022 with no adjustment to the not-to-exceed amount; and 
 
  WHEREAS, Administration desires to enter into a second amendment to the 
agreement to exercise the first renewal option to extend the term for one year, increase the 
contract amount by $650,000 for the renewal term through May 31, 2024, and increase the 
pricing to reflect a 6.15 % CPI effective October 1, 2023; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Procurement & Supply Management Department, in cooperation 
with the Enterprise Facilities Department, recommends approval of this Resolution. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
St. Petersburg, Florida that the first one-year renewal option to the agreement with Covenant 
Security Solutions LLC for security services for the Municipal Pier District to extend the term 
and increase the contract amount by $650,000 for the renewal term through May 31, 2024 is 
hereby approved.  
 



2 
 

   BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the total contract amount shall not exceed 
$1,300,000. 
 
  BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to 
execute all documents necessary to effectuate this transaction. 
 
  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

________________________                            _________________________ 
00678331 



Page 1 of 1

-- City of St. Petersburg Authorization Request --

General Authorization

Request #

212661

Name: Pocengal, Nicholas W Request Date: 28-APR-2023 Status: APPROVED

Authorization Request

Subject: Security, Pier, May 18 Council

Message: Submitted for your approval, please find attached Consent Write-up for Security, Pier, scheduled to go before 
City Council on May 18, 2023.  Resolution currently in development and will be included on the finalized version
when posted into City Clerk's Office Questys system.  Should you have any questions, please contact me at 
extension 3387. Thank you.

Supporting
Documentation:

Approval Request.pdf

Approver Completed By Response Response
Date

Type

0 Pocengal, Nicholas W SUBMITTED 28-APR-2023

1 Wahl, Margaret Brown Wahl, Margaret Brown APPROVE 28-APR-2023 User Defined 

2 Corbett, James Anthony Corbett, James Anthony APPROVE 01-MAY-2023 User Defined 



304 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approving a one-year blanket 

purchase agreement with Bank of America, N.A. for merchant credit card merchant processing and 

related services, including Automated Clearing House (“ACH”) transaction processing and account 

verification, and requesting a waiver of Procurement Code Section 2-209(b) pursuant to 

Procurement Code 2-222, to effectuate a one-year agreement at an estimated annual cost of 

$1,000,000. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CA-4

CA-4



Continued on Page 2 

 

ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
Consent Agenda 

Meeting of May 18, 2023 
 

 
To:  The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council 
 
Subject: Approving a one-year blanket purchase agreement with Bank of America, N.A. for 
merchant credit card merchant processing and related services, including Automated Clearing 
House (“ACH”) transaction processing and account verification, and requesting a waiver of 
Procurement Code Section 2-209(b) pursuant to Procurement Code 2-222, to effectuate a one-
year agreement at an estimated annual cost of $1,000,000. 
 
Explanation: This City currently uses Bank of America, N.A. through the State of Florida, 
Department of Financial Services Contract No. TR175 which is due to expire on June 11, 2023. 
This request includes a Waiver of the Procurement Code Section 2-209(b) allowing the vendor to 
continue providing point of sale terminals to process credit and debit card transactions such as 
payment of utility bills, building permits, business licenses, golf courses and marina store 
purchases, library payments as well as the ParkMobile downtown parking meters (Pay-by-Cell) 
program and payments of utility bills through the Billing & Collections Utility Interactive Voice 
Response (IVR) system.  
 
Revenues from these transactions are credited to the city’s general depository accounts. Gross 
sales revenue received on an annual basis is approximately $35,000,000. Services are provided 
via transactions fees that are invoiced on a monthly basis at $.03 per transaction plus the standard 
interchange pass through fees charges by Visa, Mastercard, Discover and American Express.  
 
The expenditure breakdown is an estimate and the actual payment to Bank of America, N.A. will 
vary based upon the number of credit/debit card and E-Check transactions made by the City’s 
customers. The vendor submits monthly invoices for all transactions and debits the City’s ACH 
bank account to cover their fees.  
 
The Procurement and Supply Management Department, in cooperation with the Billing and 
Collections Department, recommends: 
 

Bank of America, N.A. (Atlanta, GA)………………………..………. $1,000,000 
 
 

The agreement will be effective through June 11, 2024 with one, one-year renewal option 
available. A blanket purchase agreement will be issued and will be binding only for actual services 
rendered. 
 
Cost/Funding/Assessment Information:  Funds have been previously appropriated in the 
Billing and Collections Fund (5201),  Billing and Collections Department, City Collections Division 
(350-1989), Utility Cashiers Division (350-1997), and Business Tax Division (350-2013); Building 
Permit Special Revenue Fund (1151), Planning and Development Services Department, 
Administration Division (370-1537), Constructions Services and Permits Division (370-1553); Golf 
Course Operating Fund (4061), Golf Courses Department, Mangrove Bay Business Division (630-
2477), Cypress Links Business Division (630-2493) and Twin Brooks Business Division (630-
2497); General Fund (0001), Police Department, Fiscal Support Division (140-1389); Parking 
Revenue Fund (1021), Transportation and Parking Management Department, Parking 
Enforcement Division (281-1957), Parking Citation Payment Office Division (281-1961), Al Lang 



Merchant Credit Card Processing & Related Services 
May 18, 2023 
Page 2 

Parking Lot Division (281-2873), Pier Parking Division (281-2889), and Southcore Garage 
Division (281-2893); Marina Operating Fund (4041), Enterprise Facilities Department, Marina 
Division (282-1885).  
 
 
Attachments: Resolution 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-

A RESOLUTION WAIVING SECTION 2-209 OF THE ST.

PETERSBURG CITY CODE TO ALLOW CITY

ADMINISTRATION TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT

WITH BANK OF AMERICA, N.A. FOR MERCHANT

CREDIT CARD PROCESSING AND RELATED SERVICES

WITHOUT USING THE COMPETITIVE SEALED

PROPOSALS/COMPETITIVE NEGOTIATIONS METHOD;

APPROVING THE AWARD OF A ONE-YEAR

AGREEMENT WITH A ONE-YEAR RENEWAL OPTION

TO BANK OF AMERICA, N.A. FOR MERCHANT CREDIT

CARD PROCESSING AND RELATED SERVICES AT AN

ESTIMATED ANNUAL COST OF $1,000,000;

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO

EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO

EFFECTUATE THIS TRANSACTION; AND PROVIDING

AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City currently utilizes State of Florida, Department of Financial

Services Contract No. TR175 (“State Contract”) to purchase merchant credit card

processing and related services from Bank of America, N.A.; and

WHEREAS, the State Contract will expire on June 11, 2023, and City

Administration desires for Bank of America, N.A. to continue providing merchant credit

card processing and related services to the City, including providing point of sale terminals

to process credit and debit transactions at various locations throughout the City; and

WHEREAS, St. Petersburg City Code (“City Code”) section 2-209 sets forth the

requirements for entering into contracts using the competitive sealed proposals/competitive

negotiations method; and

WHEREAS, Section 2-222 of the City Code provides that City Council may waive

any provision of the City’s Procurement Code by a resolution receiving at least five (5)

affirmative votes; and

WHEREAS, the Procurement and Supply Management Department, in cooperation

with the Billing and Collections Department, is requesting a waiver of section 2-209 of the

City Code to allow City Administration to execute a one-year agreement with a one-year

renewal option with Bank of America, N.A. without using the competitive sealed

proposals/competitive negotiations method; and

WHEREAS, Bank of America, N.A. will charge the City the same fixed transaction

fee of $.03 per transaction that it has charged in previous years under the State Contract plus



standard interchange passthrough fees set by Visa, Mastercard, Discover and American
Express; and

WHEREAS, annual gross sales revenues from these credit card transactions are
anticipated to be approximately $35,000,000, which are credited to the City’s general
depository accounts; and

WHEREAS, City Administration recommends approval of this Resolution.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St.
Petersburg, Florida that Section 2-209 of the St. Petersburg City Code is hereby waived to
allow City Administration to execute an agreement with Bank of America, N.A. to provide
merchant credit card processing and related services without using the competitive sealed
proposals/competitive negotiation process.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the award of a one-year agreement with a one-
year renewal option to Bank of America, N.A. to provide merchant credit card processing
and related services at an estimated annual cost of $1,000,000 is hereby approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to
execute all documents necessary to effectuate this transaction.

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT:

00678925 (

2



Page 1 of 1

-- City of St. Petersburg Authorization Request --

General Authorization

Request #

213279

Name: Pocengal, Nicholas W Request Date: 02-MAY-2023 Status: APPROVED

Authorization Request

Subject: Software Maint Payment Processing, 5/18 Council

Message: Submitted for your approval, please find attached Consent Write-up for Software Maintenance, Payment 
Processing, scheduled to go before City Council on May 18, 2023.  Resolution currently in development and will 
be included on the finalized version when posted into City Clerk's Office Questys system.  Should you have any 
questions, please contact me at extension 3387. Thank you.

Supporting
Documentation:

Approval Request.pdf

Approver Completed By Response Response
Date

Type

0 Pocengal, Nicholas W SUBMITTED 02-MAY-2023

1 McKee, Stacey Pevzner McKee, Stacey Pevzner APPROVE 03-MAY-2023 User Defined 

2 Greene, Thomas Andrew Greene, Thomas Andrew APPROVE 04-MAY-2023 User Defined 



311 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approving a contract with Ric-

Man Construction Florida, Inc. for progressive design build services for the Downtown Watermain 

Replacement Program; authorizing the Mayor, or his designee, to execute an agreement with Ric-

Man Construction Florida, Inc. for pre-construction services in the amount of $876,078.89 (ECID 

Project No. 21058-111; Oracle No. 18011); and providing an effective date. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CA-5

CA-5



 

Continued on Page 2 

ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
Consent Agenda 

Meeting of May 18, 2023 
 
 
To: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council 
 
Subject: Approving a contract with Ric-Man Construction Florida, Inc. for progressive design build 
services for the Downtown Watermain Replacement Program; authorizing the Mayor, or his 
designee, to execute an agreement with Ric-Man Construction Florida, Inc. for pre-construction 
services in the amount of $876,078.89 (ECID Project No. 21058-111; Oracle No. 18011); and 
providing an effective date. 
 
Explanation: On August 30, 2022, the City issued a Request for Qualifications, RFQ No. 8481, 
for Progressive Design Build, Downtown Watermain Replacement Program.  
 
On October 12, 2022, the City received four Statements of Qualifications (SOQs) from the 
following firms: 
 

1. Ajax Building Company, LLC. 
2. Amici Engineering Contractors, LLC. 
3. Ric-Man Construction Florida, Inc. 
4. Westra Construction Corporation 

 
The selection committee comprised of the  following staff: 
 

John Palenchar, Water Resources Director  
Diana Smillova, Engineering Design Manager 
Michael Renshaw, Water Maintenance Manager 
Eric Lavina, Economic Development Analyst 
Scott Keddy, Civil Engineer III 

 
The Statements of Qualifications were evaluated based on the following criteria: 
 

• Team background and experience 
• Project approach 
• Relevant project examples 
• Certification as a Small (SBE), Minority (MBE), Women (WBE) and Disadvantaged (DBE) 

Business Enterprise 
• SBE/WBE/MBE/DBE Outreach Plan 

 
On November 14, 2022, the selection committee met to discuss the SOQs and shortlist firms.  
The selection committee shortlisted the following three firms: 
 

1. Amici Engineering Contractors, LLC. 
2. Ric-Man Construction of Florida, Inc. 
3. Westra Construction Corporation 

  
On December 6, 2022, the evaluation committee heard presentations from each of the shortlisted 
firms.   
 



Progressive DB, Downtown Watermain Replacement Program 
May 18, 2023 

Page 2 

 

 

Based on the presentations, interviews, deliberations and the SOQs submitted the committee 
then ranked the shortlisted firms based on the criteria set forth in RFQ No. 8481 and tabulated 
the scores as follows. 
 

Rank Firm Total  
1. Ric-Man Construction Florida, Inc. 467 
2. Westra Construction Corporation 433 
3. Amici Engineering Contractors, LLC. 424 

 
 
The consultant will provide all labor, materials, and equipment to provide design build services for 
the downtown watermain replacement program.  
 
This program will be implemented in phases utilizing multiple design-build proposals with a 
Guaranteed Maximum Price (“GMP”).  
 
This approval includes pre-construction services. Multiple Amendments will be required to 
authorize construction on designed elements while also including additional pre-construction 
services for the next phase/segment. This is being sequenced to minimize impacts and coordinate 
with ongoing developments within downtown.  
 
Each design-build proposal will be provided to Council as Amendments for approval of each 
subsequent pre-construction and GMP. 
 
Cost/Funding/Assessment Information: Funds have been previously appropriated in the Water 
Resources Capital Projects Fund (4003), DIS Downtown Main Replacement FY21 Project 
(18011). 
 
 
Attachments: Technical Evaluation (2 pages) 

 Resolution 



Technical Evaluation  
RFQ No. 8481: Progressive DB, Downtown Watermain Replacement Program 

  
Summary Work Statement 
 
The City received four Statements of Qualifications (SOQs) for RFQ No. 8481: Progressive DB, 
Downtown Watermain Replacement Program. The successful offeror will provide progressive 
design build services for the downtown watermain replacement program. The SOQs were 
received from: 
 

1. Ajax Building Company LLC 
2. Amici Engineering Contractors, LLC 
3. Ric-Man Construction Florida, Inc. 
4. Westra Construction Corporation 
 

Evaluation Committee 
 
Evaluation of the SOQs was conducted by:   
 

John Palenchar, Water Resources Director  
Diana Smillova, Engineering Design Manager 
Michael Renshaw, Water Maintenance Manager 
Eric Lavina, Economic Development Analyst 
Scott Keddy, Civil Engineer III 
 

Evaluation Criteria 
 
The SOQs were evaluated based on the following criteria:  
 
Team background and experience 30 possible points 
Staff Availability 25 possible points 
Project Approach 20 possible points 
Relevant Project Examples 25 possible points 
Does the project team include small business enterprise firms 10 possible points 
Outreach Plan (SBE/WBE/MBE/DBE) 15 possible points 

 
 

Offerors’ Profiles 
 
Ajax Building Company LLC is headquartered in Oldsmar, Florida and was incorporated in 
1958. They have been in business for 64 years and employ 210 people. They have successfully 
delivered projects for the City, Pinellas County, and the City of Cleveland, Ohio. Their SOQ 
demonstrated team longevity with the key members having worked together on prior Design Build 
projects, staff availability, project approach which leverages several technologies for value 
engineering, life cycle cost analysis and the development of accurate cost estimates, outreach to 
S/M/W/DBE firms and includes a wide array of SBE firms to partner with.    
 
Amici Engineering Contractors, LLC is headquartered in Miami, Florida and was incorporated 
in 2015. They have been in business for 8 years and employ 43 people. They have been 
constructing projects as a CMAR for over 20 years. The have successfully delivered projects for 
the City of Tampa, Pasco County and the City of Miami Beach. Their SOQ demonstrated longevity 



of the key team members, staff availability, project approach which includes a well thought out 
community outreach program, use of AECOM as Envision lead and their workforce development 
plan to develop younger workers, outreach to S/M/W/DBE firms and includes an array of SBE 
firms to partner with.    
 
Ric-Man Construction Florida, Inc. is headquartered in Deerfield Beach, Florida and was 
incorporated in 2004. They have been in business for 18 years and employ 65 people. They have 
been constructing pipeline projects as General Contractor for over 35 years. The have 
successfully delivered projects for the City,  Miami-Dade Water & Sewer Department, the City of 
Hollywood, FL, Gwinnett County, GA, and the City of Tampa Their SOQ demonstrated longevity 
about the team, staff availability, project approach utilizing Freese & Nichols for Design and 
Envision lead and The Valerin Group for community outreach, outreach and utilization of several 
S/M/W/DBE firms.  
 
Westra Construction Corporation. is headquartered in Palmetto, Florida and was incorporated 
in 1977. They have been in business for 45 years and employ 66 people. They have successfully 
delivered similar projects for the City, the City of Tampa, Pinellas County, and Hillsborough 
County. Their SOQ demonstrated longevity about the team, staff availability, project approach 
which utilizes quarterly leadership meetings, leveraging the current predictive technology of the 
City to develop a risk-based design approach and the utilization of The Valerin Group for 
community outreach,  and the inclusion of several S/M/W/DBE firms to partner with.  
 
Shortlisting and Interviews 
 
On November 14, 2022 the SOQs were evaluated solely on the evaluation criteria established in 
the RFQ. The evaluation committee discussed each firms’ qualifications and shortlisted the four 
firms to the three most qualified firms to be invited for interviews.  
 
Interviews and Recommendation for Award 
 
On December 6, 2022, the evaluation committee heard presentations and interviewed the three 
firms. The evaluation committee then scored the shortlisted firms and the aggregate scores for 
the firms based on a possible total of five hundred points were as follows:  
 

Company  Score Rank 

Ric-Man Construction Florida, Inc. 467 1 

Westra Construction Corporation 433 2 

Amici Engineering Contractors, LLC 424 3 
 
The Ric-Man Construction Florida, Inc has met the requirements for RFQ No. 8481 and were 
determined to be the most qualified firm, taking into consideration their experience of providing 
these services and the evaluation criteria set forth in the RFQ. 
 
The firm was selected for the following reasons:  
 

• Their years of experience in providing these services 

• Their proposed use of SBE/MBE/DBE-certified sub-consultants 

• They provided successful, relevant past and present project examples  

• Their staff availability 
 



1 
 

RESOLUTION 2023- 

A RESOLUTION ACKNOWLEDGING THE SELECTION OF 
RIC-MAN CONSTRUCTION FLORIDA, INC. (“RIC-MAN 
CONSTRUCTION”) AS THE MOST QUALIFIED FIRM TO 
PROVIDE PROGRESSIVE DESIGN-BUILD SERVICES FOR 
THE DOWNTOWN WATERMAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECT  
(“PROJECT”); AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR HIS 
DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE THE CITY’S STANDARD FORM 
DESIGN-BUILD AGREEMENT (“AGREEMENT”) BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG, FLORIDA AND RIC-MAN 
CONSTRUCTION; AUTHORIZING THE CITY ATTORNEY'S 
OFFICE TO MAKE NON-SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES TO THE 
AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO RIC-MAN 
CONSTRUCTION IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$876,078.89 FOR PRECONSTRUCTION WORK TO INCLUDE 
PREPARATION OF A PROGRAMMING DOCUMENT; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

WHEREAS, the City of St. Petersburg, Florida ("City") through its Procurement and 
Supply Management Department, issued Request for Qualifications ("RFQ") No. 8481 dated 
August 30, 2022, for Progressive Design-Build Services, Downtown Watermain Replacement 
Program (“Project”); and 

WHEREAS, on October 12, 2022, the City received four (4) statements of qualifications 
("SOQs") in response to the RFQ; and 

WHEREAS, the selection committee (John Palenchar, Diana Smillova, Michael Renshaw, 
Eric Lavine, and Scott Keddy) met on November 14, 2022 to discuss the SOQs, motioned to 
shortlist three (3) firms, and motioned to hear presentations and conduct interviews on December 
6, 2022 with the three (3) shortlisted firms; and 

WHEREAS, on December 6, 2022, the three (3) shortlisted firms 1) Amici Engineering 
Contractors, LLC; 2) Ric-Man Construction Florida, Inc. (“Ric-Man Construction”); and 3) 
Westra Construction Corporation made presentations to the selection committee and interviews 
were conducted; and 

WHEREAS, based on the presentations, interviews, deliberations, and SOQs submitted by 
the three (3) shortlisted firms, the selection committee met on December 6, 2022 and ranked Ric-
Man Construction as the most qualified firm to provide progressive design-build services for the 
Project; and 



2 
 

WHEREAS, Administration recommends City Council acknowledge the selection of Ric-
Man Construction as the most qualified firm to provide progressive design-build services for the 
Project and authorize the Mayor or his designee to execute the City’s standard form design-build 
agreement (“Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, additional preconstruction work will require amendment(s) to the Agreement 
that will be subject to City Council approval; and 

WHEREAS, construction work will be done in phases pursuant to multiple design-build 
proposals with a guaranteed maximum price (“GMP”); and 

WHEREAS, each design-build proposal with a guaranteed maximum price (“GMP”) for 
this Project will be subject to acceptance by City Council and must be incorporated into the 
Agreement through amendment(s) to the Agreement that will be subject to City Council approval; 
and 

WHEREAS, Administration recommends approval of this Resolution. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. Petersburg, 
Florida, that the selection of Ric-Man Construction Florida, Inc. (“Ric-Man Construction”) as the 
most qualified firm to provide progressive design-build services for the Downtown Watermain 
Replacement Project (“Project”) is hereby acknowledged. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to execute the 
City’s standard form design-build agreement (“Agreement”) between the City of St. Petersburg, 
Florida and Ric-Man Construction. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Attorney’s office is authorized to make non-
substantive changes to the Agreement. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that payment to Ric-Man Construction in an amount not 
to exceed $876,078.89 for preconstruction work to include preparation of a programming 
document is hereby authorized. 

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

    
00678477 



Page 1 of 1

-- City of St. Petersburg Authorization Request --

General Authorization

Request #

211229

Name: Pocengal, Nicholas W Request Date: 19-APR-2023 Status: APPROVED

Authorization Request

Subject: ProgressiveDowntown Watermain Replace, 5/18 Council

Message: Submitted for your approval, please find attached Consent Write-up for Progressive Downtown Watermain 
Replacement Program, scheduled to go before City Council on May 4, 2023.  Resolution currently in 
development and will be included on the finalized version when posted into City Clerk's Office Questys system.  
Should you have any questions, please contact me at extension 3387. Thank you.

Supporting
Documentation:

Approval Request.pdf

Approver Completed By Response Response
Date

Type

0 Pocengal, Nicholas W SUBMITTED 19-APR-2023

1 McKee, Stacey Pevzner Wahl, Margaret Brown APPROVE 20-APR-2023 User Defined 

2 Tankersley, Claude Duval Tankersley, Claude Duval APPROVE 20-APR-2023 User Defined 



320 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approving a resolution 

authorizing the Mayor or his designee to accept additional funding in the amount of  $644,220 from 

the Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas, Inc. (ELC), which will be utilized to enhance programs 

provided by the Parks and Recreation Department; authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute 

all documents necessary to receive this additions funding from ELC; approving a supplemental 

appropriation in the amount of $644,220 from the increase in the unappropriated balance of the 

General Fund (0001), resulting from these additional funds, to the Parks and Recreation Department, 

Administration Division (190-1573), FY23 ELC Stabilization Grant Project (19572); and providing 

an effective date. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CA-6

CA-6



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL

Consent Agenda

May 18, 2023

TO: City Council Chair and Members of City Council

SUBJECT:
Approving a resolution authorizing the Mayor or his designee to accept additional funding in the 
amount of  $644,220 from the Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas, Inc. (ELC), which will be 
utilized to enhance programs provided by the Parks and Recreation Department; authorizing the 
Mayor or his designee to execute all documents necessary to receive this additions funding from 
ELC; approving a supplemental appropriation in the amount of $644,220 from the increase in the 
unappropriated balance of the General Fund (0001), resulting from these additional funds, to the 
Parks and Recreation Department, Administration Division (190-1573), FY23 ELC Stabilization 
Grant Project (19572); and providing an effective date.

EXPLANATION: 
For the past 28 years, the City of St. Petersburg and ELC and have had an agreement allowing the 
Parks and Recreation Department to be a year-round school readiness program service provider for 
children of families in Pinellas County who meet the defined financial need eligibility 
requirements. ELC evaluates each family’s financial need and determines how much of the school 
readiness program cost a family can afford to pay themselves, then pays the balance of the program 
cost to the Parks and Recreation Department.

In response to the COVID-19 crisis, ELC desires to provide the City (a childcare provider in 
Pinellas County who was classified as operational/open on March 11, 2022, and providing on-site 
childcare services) with additional funding to be utilized to enhance programs that are provided by 
the Parks and Recreation Department.   

Based on the above information, it is recommended that City Council adopt the attached 
resolution authorizing the Mayor or his designee to accept additional funding in the amount 
of $644,220.00 from the Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas, Inc.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends City Council approve the attached resolution authorizing the 
Mayor or his designee to accept additional funding in the amount of  $644,220 from the Early 
Learning Coalition of Pinellas, Inc. (ELC), which will be utilized to enhance programs provided 
by the Parks and Recreation Department; authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute all 
documents necessary to receive this additions funding from ELC; approving a supplemental 
appropriation in the amount of $644,220 from the increase in the unappropriated balance of the 
General Fund (0001), resulting from these additional funds, to the Parks and Recreation 
Department, Administration Division (190-1573), FY23 ELC Stabilization Grant Project (19572); 
and providing an effective date.

COST/FUNDING/ASSESSMENT INFORMATION:
Funds in the amount of $644,220 are scheduled to be received from the Early Learning Coalition 
of Pinellas, Inc and deposited into the General Fund (0001). Funds will be available after the 
approval of a supplemental appropriation in the amount of $644,220 from the increase in the 
unappropriated balance of the General Fund (0001), resulting from these additional revenues, to 
the Parks and Recreation Department, Administration Division (190-1573), FY23 ELC 
Stabilization Grant Project (19572).



ATTACHMENTS: Resolution

APPROVALS:

Administrative:                     Budget:                                       



1 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR HIS 
DESIGNEE TO ACCEPT ADDITIONAL FUNDING IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $644,220 FROM THE EARLY LEARNING 
COALITION OF PINELLAS, INC. (“ELC”), WHICH WILL BE 
UTILIZED TO ENHANCE PROGRAMS PROVIDED BY THE 
PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT; AUTHORIZING 
THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE ALL 
DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO RECEIVE THIS ADDITIONAL 
FUNDING FROM ELC; APPROVING A SUPPLEMENTAL 
APPROPRIATION IN THE AMOUNT OF $644,220 FROM THE 
INCREASE IN THE UNAPPROPRIATED BALANCE OF THE 
GENERAL FUND (0001), RESULTING FROM THESE 
ADDITIONAL FUNDS, TO THE PARKS AND RECREATION 
DEPARTMENT, ADMINISTRATION DIVISION (190-1573), 
FY23 ELC STABILIZATION GRANT PROJECT (19572); AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Department is a year-round childcare 
provider for children of qualified families in Pinellas County and has received funding from the 
Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas County, Inc. (“ELC”); and 

WHEREAS, ELC desires to provide the City (a childcare provider in Pinellas 
County who was classified as operational/open on March 11, 2022, and providing on-site childcare 
services) with additional funding to be utilized to enhance programs that are provided by the Parks 
and Recreation Department; and   

WHEREAS, this additional funding will be available after a supplemental 
appropriation in the amount of $644,220 from the increase in the unappropriated balance of the 
General Fund (0001), to the Parks and Recreation Department, Administration Division (190-
1573), FY23 ELC Stabilization Grant Project (19572); and 

WHEREAS, Administration recommends approval of this Resolution. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to accept additional funding in the 
amount of $644,220 from the Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas, Inc. (“ELC”), which will be 
utilized to enhance programs provided by the Parks and Recreation Department. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to 
execute all documents necessary to receive this additional funding from ELC. 



2 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that there is hereby approved from the increase in 
the unappropriated balance of the General Fund (0001), resulting from the additional funds, the 
following supplemental appropriation for FY23:  

General Fund (0001) 
Parks and Recreation Department,  
Administration Division (190-1573),  
FY23 ELC Stabilization Grant Project (19572)                             $644,220 
 
This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

    
00678019 

BUDGET: 

  



326 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: A resolution approving an 

Amendment (“Plan Amendment”) to the City’s Local Housing Assistance Plan under the State 

Housing Initiatives Partnership (“SHIP”) Program for FY 2021-2024 (“Current Plan”); authorizing 

the Mayor or his designee to accept a grant of $2,497,889 from the Florida Housing Finance 

Corporation (“FHFC”) for FY 2022/23 to fund the State Housing Initiatives Partnership (“SHIP”) 

Program for the purpose of providing affordable housing opportunities for extremely-low, very-low, 

low-, moderate-, and 140% (purchase assistance program only) income persons; and to expend funds 

in accordance with the current Plan, as amended, upon approval by FHFC; finding that five percent 

(5%) of the City’s SHIP allocation plus five (5%) percent of Program Income is insufficient to pay 

the administrative costs of the City’s SHIP Program; authorizing the use of up to ten percent (10%) 

of the City’s SHIP allocation plus ten (10%) of the City’s SHIP Program Income for administrative 

costs of the SHIP Program; authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute the grant requirements 

with the FHFC as necessary to effectuate this transaction; and providing an effective date. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CA-7

CA-7



Page 1 of 2 

ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 

Consent Agenda 

Meeting of May 18, 2023 

 

TO: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council 

 

SUBJECT:  A resolution approving an Amendment (“Plan Amendment”) to the City’s Local 

Housing Assistance Plan under the State Housing Initiatives Partnership (“SHIP”) Program for FY 

2021-2024 (“Current Plan”); authorizing the Mayor or his designee to accept a grant of $2,497,889 

from the Florida Housing Finance Corporation (“FHFC”) for FY 2022/23 to fund the State Housing 

Initiatives Partnership (“SHIP”) Program for the purpose of providing affordable housing 

opportunities for extremely-low, very-low, low-, moderate-, and 140% (purchase assistance program 

only) income persons; and to expend funds in accordance with the current Plan, as amended, upon 

approval by FHFC; finding that five percent (5%) of the City’s SHIP allocation plus five (5%) percent 

of Program Income is insufficient to pay the administrative costs of the City’s SHIP Program; 

authorizing the use of up to ten percent (10%) of the City’s SHIP allocation plus ten (10%) of the 

City’s SHIP Program Income for administrative costs of the SHIP Program; authorizing the Mayor or 

his designee to execute the grant requirements with the FHFC as necessary to effectuate this 

transaction; and providing an effective date.  

 

EXPLANATION:  The State Housing Initiatives Partnership (“SHIP”) Program was created through 

the William E. Sadowski Affordable Housing Act, pursuant to Chapter 420.907 – 420.9079, Florida 

Statutes (“Act”), for the purpose of providing assistance through the transfer of funds from 

documentary stamps generated from the sale of residential properties to the Florida Housing Finance 

Corporation (“FHFC”) for use by local governments in implementing SHIP Programs to produce and 

preserve affordable housing.  The City has participated in the SHIP Program since 1993. 

 

To receive SHIP funds from the State, eligible municipalities must develop affordable housing 

strategies (“Strategies”) and must submit a SHIP Local Housing Assistance Plan (“Plan”) a minimum 

of every three years to FHFC to be eligible to receive funding.  During the 2022 regular session, the 

Florida Legislature allocated $209 million to the SHIP Program, less $5 million in disaster relief 

holdback, and $563,600 in catalyst funds, for distribution to local governments to continue to 

implement their SHIP Program, providing affordable housing opportunities to residents of the City 

of St. Petersburg.   

 

To accept the funding, the City has to budget the strategies in its Local Housing Assistance Plan 

(“LHAP”) under the SHIP Program for FY 2022-23, where funding will be allocated to provide 

assistance to eligible applicants.  All strategies currently in place shall remain in full force in effect 

The Purchase Assistance program will be available to assist households whose incomes are up to 

140% area median income (“AMI”), and the Housing Accessibility and Housing Rehabilitation 

programs to households whose incomes are up to 120% AMI. 

 

  



Page 2 of 2 

The City is required to reserve at least 30 percent of the funds for awards to very-low income persons 

and at least 30 percent of the funds for awards to low-income persons as required in the Act.  In 

addition, there is a requirement to expend at least 75 percent of the funds for construction, 

rehabilitation or emergency repair and at least 65 percent of the funds for home ownership.  The City 

is also required to make 20 percent of funds available for persons with special needs (preference to 

persons with developmental disabilities). 

 

The City must expend all funding by June 30, 2025.   

 

RECOMMENDATION:  A resolution approving an Amendment (“Plan Amendment”) to the City’s 

Local Housing Assistance Plan under the State Housing Initiatives Partnership (“SHIP”) Program for 

FY 2021-2024 (“Current Plan”); authorizing the Mayor or his designee to accept a grant of $2,497,889 

from the Florida Housing Finance Corporation (“FHFC”) for FY 2022/23 to fund the State Housing 

Initiatives Partnership (“SHIP”) Program for the purpose of providing affordable housing 

opportunities for extremely-low, very-low, low-, moderate-, and 140% (purchase assistance program 

only) income persons; and to expend funds in accordance with the current Plan, as amended, upon 

approval by FHFC; finding that five percent (5%) of the City’s SHIP allocation plus five (5%) percent 

of Program Income is insufficient to pay the administrative costs of the City’s SHIP Program; 

authorizing the use of up to ten percent (10%) of the City’s SHIP allocation plus ten (10%) of the 

City’s SHIP Program Income for administrative costs of the SHIP Program; authorizing the Mayor or 

his designee to execute the grant requirements with the FHFC as necessary to effectuate this 

transaction; and providing an effective date.  

 

COST/FUNDING/ASSESSMENT INFORMATION:  Revenues in the amount of $2,497,889 will 

be received from the Florida Housing Finance Corporation (“FHFC”) for FY 2022/23 to fund the State 

Housing Initiatives Partnership (SHIP) Program.  Funds have been previously made available in the 

FY23 Operating Budget. 

 

Attachments:  Resolution 

 

APPROVALS: 

 

Administration:  __________________________ Budget:________________________ 

 



 1 

Resolution No. 2023 -   

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR 

OR HIS DESIGNEE TO ACCEPT A GRANT OF 

$2,497,889 FROM THE FLORIDA HOUSING 

FINANCE CORPORATION (“FHFC”) FOR FY 

2022/23 TO FUND THE STATE HOUSING 

INITIATIVES PARTNERSHIP (“SHIP”) 

PROGRAM FOR PROVIDING AFFORDABLE 

HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES FOR 

EXTREMELY-LOW, VERY-LOW, LOW-, 

MODERATE-, AND 140% (PURCHASE 

ASSISTANCE PROGRAM ONLY) INCOME 

PERSONS; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR 

HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE  GRANT 

REQUIREMENTS WITH THE FHFC AS 

NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THIS 

RESOLUTION; AND PROVIDING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the State Housing Initiatives Partnership (“SHIP”) Program was 

created through the William E. Sadowski Affordable Housing Act, Chapter 420.907 – 420.9079, 

Florida Statutes (“Act”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the State of Florida transfers documentary stamp revenues to the 

Florida Housing Finance Corporation (“FHFC”) and local governments for use in implementing 

programs to produce and preserve affordable housing; and   

 

WHEREAS, for the applicable 12-month period, the Florida Legislature allocated 

$209 million to the SHIP Program, less $5 million in Disaster Relief holdback, and $563,600 in 

catalyst funds; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City is to receive its allocation from the Florida Housing Finance 

Corporation (“FHFC”) in the amount of $2,497,889, and must comply with the Act during the 

implementation of the SHIP Program for FY 2022/23; and  

 

WHEREAS, to accept the funding, the City budgets the strategies in its SHIP Local 

Housing Assistance Plan under the SHIP Program for FY 2022/23, where funding will be allocated 

to assist eligible applicants and has been previously appropriated with the adoption of the FY23 

Operating Budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City must expend all funding from this allocation by June 30, 

2025. 

 

  



CM 210916 - 2 RE License-Pinellas Opportunity Council @ Dwight Jones NC (L-5415) 2021-2024 2 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 

Petersburg, Florida, that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to accept a grant of $2,497,889 

from the Florida Housing Finance Corporation (“FHFC”) for FY 2022/23 to fund the State 

Housing Initiatives Partnership (“SHIP”) Program for providing affordable housing opportunities 

for extremely-low, very-low, low-, moderate-, 140% (purchase assistance program only) income 

persons.  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to 

execute the grant requirements with FHFC as necessary to effectuate this resolution. 

 

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

 

LEGAL:      DEPARTMENT: 

 

______________________________  _______________________________ 
00677090 

 



332 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approving an increase in 

allocation for the 4th of July fireworks display with Pyro Productions of Alabama, Inc., in the 

amount of $50,000, for a total contract amount of $271,250. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-1

CB-1



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
Consent Agenda 

Meeting of May 18, 2023 
 

 
To: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council 
 
Subject: Approving an increase in allocation for the 4th of July fireworks display with Pyro 
Productions of Alabama, Inc., in the amount of $50,000, for a total contract amount of $271,250. 
  
Explanation: On May 19, 2022, City Council approved a three-year blanket purchase agreement 
for the 4th of July fireworks display through December 31, 2024. The agreement has one, two-
year renewal option.  
 
The vendor provides all labor, materials, permits, supervision, equipment, and vehicles necessary 
for the provision of a fireworks display. The fireworks will be launched from a barge on the St. 
Petersburg waterfront. 
 
Costs associated with the barge increased due to the unavailability of a rental barge to be used 
for the initial three-year term of the fireworks agreement with Pyro Productions. A barge had to 
be constructed at a cost of $50,000 to timely accommodate the city’s 4th of July fireworks display 
which was launched from the barge in 2022 and will be for the remaining two years of the 
agreement. Therefore, an allocation increase is being requested to cover the balance of the 
agreement. 
        
The Procurement and Supply Management Department, in cooperation with the Parks and 
Recreation Department, recommends approval of: 
 

Pyro Productions of Alabama, Inc. (Dothan, AL) ..............................$50,000 
 

  Original agreement amount $221,250 
  Allocation increase   50,000 

  Total agreement amount $271,250 
 
Cost/Funding/Assessment Information: Funds have been previously appropriated in the 
General Fund (0001), Parks and Recreation Department, Special Programs Division (190-1585). 
 
 
Attachments: Resolution 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-___ 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INCREASE IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $50,000 TO THE ALLOCATION FOR THE 
BLANKET PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH PYRO 
PRODUCTIONS OF ALABAMA, INC. FOR THE 4TH OF JULY 
FIREWORKS DISPLAY; PROVIDING THAT THE TOTAL 
COMBINED CONTRACT AMOUNT SHALL NOT EXCEED 
$271,250; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE 
TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 
EFFECTUATE THIS TRANSACTION; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, on May 19, 2022, City Council approved a three-year blanket 
purchase agreement with Pyro Productions of Alabama, Inc. for the 4th of July fireworks display 
in an amount not to exceed $221,250 for the initial term through December 31, 2024; and  

WHEREAS, an increase in the amount of $50,000 to the allocation for this 
agreement is necessary due to the additional cost to construct a barge due to the unavailability of 
a rental barge to timely accommodate the City’s 4th of July fireworks display in 2022; and 

WHEREAS, the Procurement & Supply Management Department, in cooperation 
with the Parks and Recreation Department, recommends approval of this Resolution. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida that an increase in the amount of $50,000 to the allocation for the blanket 
purchase agreement with Pyro Productions of Alabama, Inc. for the 4th of July fireworks display 
is hereby approved. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the total contract amount shall not exceed 
$271,250. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is hereby 
authorized to execute all documents necessary to effectuate this transaction. 

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

    
00678854 



Page 1 of 1

-- City of St. Petersburg Authorization Request --

General Authorization

Request #

212659

Name: Pocengal, Nicholas W Request Date: 28-APR-2023 Status: APPROVED

Authorization Request

Subject: Fireworks Display, 4th of July, 5/18 Council

Message: Submitted for your approval, please find attached Consent Write-up for Fireworks Display, 4th of July, scheduled
to go before City Council on May 18, 2023.  Resolution currently in development and will be included on the 
finalized version when posted into City Clerk's Office Questys system.  Should you have any questions, please 
contact me at extension 3387. Thank you.

Supporting
Documentation:

Approval Request.pdf

Approver Completed By Response Response
Date

Type

0 Pocengal, Nicholas W SUBMITTED 28-APR-2023

1 Stanford, Lance N Stanford, Lance N APPROVE 28-APR-2023 User Defined 

2 Jefferis, Michael J II Jefferis, Michael J II APPROVE 02-MAY-2023 User Defined 



337 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Accepting a bid from Insight 

Public Sector, Inc. for Trend Micro support for 3,200 users and a deep discovery inspector 

appliance, for the Department of Technology Services at a total cost of $78,176.10.  

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-2

CB-2



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL  
Consent Agenda  

Meeting of May 18, 2023  
   

 

To: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council  

  

Subject: Accepting a bid from Insight Public Sector, Inc. for Trend Micro support for 3,200 users 
and a deep discovery inspector appliance, for the Department of Technology Services at a total 
cost of $78,176.10.  
   

Explanation: The Department of Technology Services received 5 bids for the support and 
inspector appliance. The bids were are tabulated as follows: 

 
Bidders Amount 
Insight Public Sector $78,176.10 
Adservero $81,420.35 
SHI Government $83,576.90 
CDW-G $88,225.79 
vCloud Tech $89,132.24 

 
  

The vendor submitted quote number 0226171804 on April 13, 2023 and will provide support for 

the Trend Micro Smart Protection suite, which is a comprehensive security solution that covers 

all the City’s devices and servers with endpoint protection against various cyber threats, such as 

viruses, malware, ransomware, and malicious network traffic. It also secures the City’s Office 365 

environment, including email, Microsoft Teams, and OneDrive access.  Due to increasing 

deployments of computing devices, 400 additional licenses have been added with this renewal 

for a total of 3,200 devices. 

 
The Procurement and Supply Management Department, in cooperation with the Department of 
Technology Services recommends award:  
  

Insight Public Sector Inc. (Chandler, AZ) ………………..…. $78,176.10 

 

   

This purchase is being made in accordance with Procurement Code Section 2-211, Small 

Purchases and the Procurement Operations Manual, Chapter 5 for small purchases which states 

the department must obtain five electronic quotes for purchases between $10,000 and $99,999. 

 

Cost/Funding/Assessment Information: Funds have been previously appropriated in the 
Technology Services Fund (5011), Department of Technology Services, Computer Operations 
Division (850-2561). 
  

  

Attachments: Resolution  



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-____ 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE QUOTE 
AND APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF TREND 
MICRO SUPPORT FOR 3,200 USERS AND A 
DEEP DISCOVERY INSPECTOR APPLIANCE 
FROM INSIGHT PUBLIC SECTOR, INC. AT A 
TOTAL COST OF $78,176.10; AUTHORIZING 
THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE 
ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 
EFFECTUATE THIS TRANSACTION; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City received five (5) quotes for the purchase of Trend Micro Smart 
Protection Suite for the Department of Technology Services in response to the City’s request for 
quotes; and  

WHEREAS, section 211 of the St. Petersburg City Code provides that any procurement 
for $100,000 or less may be made in accordance with the City’s small purchase procedures; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s small purchase procedures require that five quotes be requested 
for any purchases between $10,000 and $99,999; and 

WHEREAS, Insight Public Sector, Inc. submitted Quote Number 0226171804 on April 
13, 2023 in response to the City of St. Petersburg’s request for quotes; and 

WHEREAS, Insight Public Sector, Inc.’s Quote Number 0226171804 has met the 
requirements of the City’s request for quotes and is the lowest and best quote; and  

WHEREAS, the Procurement and Supply Management Department, in cooperation with 
the Department of Technology Services, recommends approval of this Resolution. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida, that the quote is hereby accepted and the purchase of Trend Micro support 
for 3,200 users and a deep discovery inspector appliance from Insight Public Sector, Inc. at a 
total cost of $78,176.10 is hereby approved. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to execute 
all documents necessary to effectuate this transaction.  

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

    
00678410 



Page 1 of 1

-- City of St. Petersburg Authorization Request --

General Authorization

Request #

212656

Name: Pocengal, Nicholas W Request Date: 28-APR-2023 Status: APPROVED

Authorization Request

Subject: Software Trend Micro & Discovery, 5/18 Council

Message: Submitted for your approval, please find attached Consent Write-up for Software, Trend Micro and Discovery 
Appliance, scheduled to go before City Council on May 18, 2023.  Resolution currently in development and will 
be included on the finalized version when posted into City Clerk's Office Questys system.  Should you have any 
questions, please contact me at extension 3387. Thank you.

Supporting
Documentation:

Approval Request.pdf

Approver Completed By Response Response
Date

Type

0 Pocengal, Nicholas W SUBMITTED 28-APR-2023

1 McKee, Stacey Pevzner McKee, Stacey Pevzner APPROVE 28-APR-2023 User Defined 

2 Greene, Thomas Andrew Greene, Thomas Andrew APPROVE 01-MAY-2023 User Defined 



342 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Accepting a proposal from 

Thompson Consulting Services LLC. for disaster related reimbursement assistance. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-3

CB-3



Continued on Page 2 

 

ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
Consent Agenda 

Meeting of May 18, 2023 
 
 
To: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council 
 
Subject: Accepting a proposal from Thompson Consulting Services LLC. for disaster related 
reimbursement assistance. 
 
Explanation:  The Procurement and Supply Management Department received two proposals 
for disaster related reimbursement assistance. 
 
The proposals were received from: 
 
     #   Offerors 
     1.  Thompson Consulting Services LLC 
     2.  Wheeler Emergency Management Consulting LLC 
 
The proposals were evaluated by a cross-functional team from the Office of City Auditor, Fire 
Rescue Administration, Police Department, and Park and Recreation. They include: 
 
       Boriana Pollard, City Auditor 
       Amber Boulding, Emergency Management Manager 
       Pamela West, Administrative Services Manager 
       Leon Highsmith, Accountant III 
       
The proposals evaluated were scored based on the following criteria: 
 

• Experience of the firm  

• Qualifications of Staff  

• Capacity to accomplish the work  

• Past performance on similar contracts 

• Financial Stability 

• Cost or price 
 
The consultant will provide disaster related reimbursement assistance services to ensure the 
City’s timely, compliant and accurate submission of documentation for reimbursement/recovery 
of all disaster-related costs determined to be eligible by law or otherwise. Services will include 
preparing and submitting the city’s initial request for public assistance and all project worksheets 
with required supporting documentation, within all agencies’ deadlines and in a manner achieving 
maximum eligibility for reimbursement of costs; tracking all project documentation submitted 
through the entire grant process; establishing audit trails as administration of the grant(s) occurs; 
developing strategies and writing appeals for any cost-recovery disputes between the City and 
others and advising the City of changes, updates, revisions and other policy or procedural 
changes affecting the recovery and eligibility for recovery of the City’s disaster-related 
expenditures.  
  



Disaster Related Reimbursement Assistance 
May 18, 2023 

Page 2 

 

 

The Procurement and Supply Management Department, in cooperation with the Office of the 
City Auditor, recommends approval: 
 

 

Thompson Consulting Services LLC. (Maitland, FL) 
 
 

Thompson Consulting LLC has met the specifications and requirements of RFP No. 8582 dated 
February 23, 2023.  The company is headquartered in Maitland, FL and has been in business 
since 2011. They have performed these services for the City of St. Petersburg in the past.  A 
blanket purchase agreement will be issued to the consultant and will be binding only for actual 
services rendered. This agreement will be effective through April 30, 2026, with one two-year 
renewal option. 
 
 
Cost/Funding/Assessment Information: Initially funds will be obtained through the appropriate 
department’s budget. In the event additional funds are needed, a supplemental appropriation will 
be requested from Council. 
 
 
Attachments: Technical Evaluation (2 pages) 
   Resolution 



1 
Rev (5/11, 12/19) 

Technical Evaluation  
918-81 Consulting Services for Disaster Related Reimbursement Assistance 

 
 
Summary Work Statement 
 
The City received two proposals for RFP No. 8582, 1, consulting services for disaster related 
reimbursement assistance. The successful offeror will ensure the City’s maximum reimbursement 
of eligible costs related to disasters declared pursuant to the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief 
and Emergency Assistance Act (Stafford Act) and other incidents governed by the National 
Contingency Act, 40 C.F.R. Part 300, Oil Pollution Act of 1990, Clean Water Act of 1972, etc. The 
proposals were received from: 

 
 
 
 

Evaluation Committee 
 
Evaluation of the proposals were conducted by: 
 
       Boriana Pollard, City Auditor, Director 
       Amber Boulding, Fire Emergency Management Manager 
       Pamela West, Administrative Services Manager 
       Leon Highsmith, Accountant III  
  
Evaluation Criteria 
 
The proposals were evaluated based on the following weighted criteria: 
 

• Experience of the firm  
• Qualifications of staff  
• Capacity to accomplish the work  
• Past performance on similar projects 
• Financial stability 
• Cost or price 

 
Offerors’ Profiles 
 
Below is a profile of the offerors and a summary of the weighted criteria as reported after the initial 
independent review. 

 
Thompson Consulting Services LLC. is headquartered in Maitland, FL, and was founded in 
1953. The firm has been in business for seventy years and employs 400 people.     
 
Based on the evaluation criteria, the vendor has worked with large cities in the past and were the 
City of St. Petersburg’s vendor between 2013-2017; most staff have many years of experience 
providing these types of services, feedback from references was very positive; the proposal was 
slightly more expensive; however, they have never breached FEMA’s 5% direct administration 
costs (DAC) allowance. 
 
The proposal meets the City’s requirements. 
 

1. Thompson Consulting Services LLC 
2. Wheeler Emergency Management Consulting LLC 



Request for Proposal Technical Evaluation 
 

2 
Rev (5/11) 

 
 
Wheeler Emergency Management Consulting LLC is headquartered in Marianna, FL and was 
founded in 2011. The firm has been in business for 12 years and all employees are subcontract 
1099.     
 
Based on the evaluation criteria the vendor originally formed to help rural, fiscally restrained 
communities and are looking to expand their clientele to larger cities; all employees are 
subcontracted with varying levels of experience, they were the prime contractor for smaller/rural 
counties, the proposal was slightly less expensive; however, they have breached the FEMA 5% 
DAC a couple times. 
 
The proposal meets the City’s requirements. 
 
Recommendation for Award  
 
On April 13, 2023, the evaluation committee recommended Thompsons Consulting Services LLC 
to ensure the City’s maximum reimbursement of eligible costs related to disasters declared.  The 
agency has met the requirements of RFP No. 8582, 1 and the offer was determined to be the 
most advantageous to the City, taking into consideration the evaluation criteria set forth in the 
RFP. 
 
Thompson Consulting Services LLC. was selected for the following reasons: 
 

• Provided these services for the City of St. Petersburg for Hurricane Irma  
• Provides these services for municipalities of similar size to St. Petersburg  
• Staff has experience providing these services 
• Their past performance to not breach FEMA’s DAC allowance  

 



      RESOLUTION NO. 2023-____ 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL 
AND APPROVING THE AWARD OF A THREE-
YEAR AGREEMENT WITH A TWO-YEAR 
RENEWAL OPTION TO THOMPSON 
CONSULTING SERVICES LLC FOR DISASTER 
RELATED REIMBURSEMENT ASSISTANCE 
SERVICES; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR 
HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE ALL 
DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE 
THIS TRANSACTION; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Procurement & Supply Management Department issued RFP No. 
8582, dated February 23, 2023 for disaster related reimbursement assistance services; and  

WHEREAS, the Procurement & Supply Management Department received two 
(2) proposals in response to the RFP; and  

WHEREAS, a cross-functional team from the Office of City Auditor, Fire Rescue 
Administration, Police Department, and Parks and Recreation evaluated the proposals based on 
the criteria set forth in the RFP and recommended award to Thompson Consulting Services LLC; 
and  

WHEREAS, Thompson Consulting Services LLC has met the specifications and 
requirements of RFP No. 8582; and  

WHEREAS, the Procurement & Supply Management Department, in cooperation 
with the Office of the City Auditor, recommend approval of this resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida, that the proposal is accepted and the award of a three-year agreement with a 
two-year renewal option to Thompson Consulting Services LLC for disaster related 
reimbursement assistance services is hereby approved. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is hereby 

authorized to execute all documents necessary to effectuate this transaction.  
 
This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

_______________________    
00678610 



Page 1 of 1

-- City of St. Petersburg Authorization Request --

General Authorization

Request #

212677

Name: Pocengal, Nicholas W Request Date: 28-APR-2023 Status: APPROVED

Authorization Request

Subject: Consulting Svcs Disaster Reimburse., 5/18 Council

Message: Submitted for your approval, please find attached Consent Write-up for Consulting Services Disaster Related 
Reimbursement, scheduled to go before City Council on May 18, 2023.  Resolution currently in development and 
will be included on the finalized version when posted into City Clerk's Office Questys system.  Should you have 
any questions, please contact me at extension 3387. Thank you.

Supporting
Documentation:

Approval Request.pdf

Approver Completed By Response Response
Date

Type

0 Pocengal, Nicholas W SUBMITTED 28-APR-2023

1 McKee, Stacey Pevzner McKee, Stacey Pevzner APPROVE 28-APR-2023 User Defined 

2 Greene, Thomas Andrew Greene, Thomas Andrew APPROVE 01-MAY-2023 User Defined 



350 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: A resolution approving an 

agreement between the City of St. Petersburg, Florida (City) and Pinellas County, Florida for the 

City to purchase, install, and maintain parking meters for the Judicial County Building parking lot 

located on the northeast corner of the intersection of 1st Avenue North and 6th Street North at an 

initial cost not to exceed $17,000 and an estimated annual revenue to the City of $12,250 after the 

initial cost has been recouped; authorizing the City Attorney’s office to make non-substantive 

changes to the agreement; authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute the Agreement and all 

other necessary documents; and providing an effective date. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-4

CB-4



 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
  

ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
Consent Agenda

 Meeting of May 18, 2023 

To: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council 

SUBJECT: A Resolution approving an agreement between the City of St Petersburg, Florida 
(City) and Pinellas County, Florida for the City to purchase, install, and maintain parking meters 
for the Judicial County Building parking lot located on the northeast corner of the intersection of 
1st Avenue North and 6th Street North at an initial cost not to exceed $17,000 and an estimated 
annual revenue to the City of $12,250 after the initial cost has been recouped; authorizing the 
City Attorney’s office to make non-substantive changes to the Agreement; authorizing the Mayor 
or his designee to execute the Agreement and all other necessary documents; and providing an 
effective date. 

EXPLANATION: On September 8, 1970, The City of St Petersburg and Pinellas County entered 
into an agreement for the City to install and maintain 59 single-space parking meters at the 
courthouse parking lot for use by the public. The City and Pinellas County have since divided 
the proceeds of the collections from the meters after the purchase and installation of the meters 
cost were met. Since that time replacement meters have been installed by the City as needed. 
The existing parking meters have reached the end of their useful life and need to be replaced 
again. However, technology has evolved leading to the use of more multi-space meter stations 
in parking lots rather than single-space for several advantages. The multi-space meter stations 
accept credit/debit cards, provide receipts, as well as document transactions via the web for 
easy and accurate accounting. Fewer pieces of equipment result in more cost-effective 
maintenance. Customers may also use the ParkMobile Application. 

The City will purchase and install two multi-space meters and associated signs at a cost of 
approximately $17,000. After these costs have been recouped, the estimated yearly total 
revenue of $24,500 will be split equally between the City and County. 

The County will maintain the parking lot at its sole cost and expense and agrees that the City 
has exclusive right and authority to establish and enforce all rules, rates, and regulations in 
connection with the operations of the Stations. 

RECOMMENDATION: Administration recommends that City Council approve the attached 
Resolution approving an agreement between the City of St Petersburg, Florida (City) and 
Pinellas County, Florida for the City to purchase, install, and maintain parking meters for the 
Judicial County Building parking lot located on the northeast corner of the intersection of 1st 

Avenue North and 6th Street North at an initial cost not to exceed $17,000 and an estimated 
annual revenue to the City of $12,250 after the initial cost has been recouped; authorizing the 
City Attorney’s office to make non-substantive changes to the Agreement; authorizing the Mayor 
or his designee to execute the Agreement and all other necessary documents; and providing an 
effective date. 

COST/FUNDING ASSESMENT INFORMATION: Funds have been previously appropriated in 
the Parking Revenue Fund (1021), Transportation and Parking Management Department, 



 

 
 

 
       

       

Parking Meter and Lot Maintenance Division (281.1289). 

ATTACHMENTS:  Resolution 
Agreement 

APPROVALS: Administrative: ________________________________ 

Budget: _______________________________________ 



 
 

  
 

   
 
 

  

 

 
 

    

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

    
  

    
 

 
    

  
 

 
    

  
  

 
   

 
 

 
 

   
   

     

Resolution No. 2023 - ______ 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF ST. 
PETERSBURG, FLORIDA (“CITY”) AND 
PINELLAS COUNTY, FLORIDA FOR THE CITY 
TO PURCHASE, INSTALL, AND MAINTAIN 
PARKING METERS FOR THE JUDICIAL 
COUNTY BUILDING PARKING LOT LOCATED 
ON THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE 
INTERSECTION OF 1ST AVENUE NORTH AND 
6TH STREET NORTH AT AN INITIAL COST NOT 
TO EXCEED $17,000 AND AN ESTIMATED 
ANNUAL REVENUE TO THE CITY OF $12,250 
AFTER THE INITIAL COST HAS BEEN 
RECOUPED; AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
ATTORNEY’S OFFICE TO MAKE NON-
SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES TO THE 
AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR 
OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE THE 
AGREEMENT AND ALL OTHER NECESSARY 
DOCUMENTS; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Pinellas County, Florida (“Pinellas County”) owns the Judicial 
County Building parking lot, which lies on the northeast corner of the intersection of 1st Avenue 
North and 6th Street North (“Courthouse Parking Lot”); and 

WHERAS, on September 8, 1970, the City of St. Petersburg, Florida (“City”) and 
Pinellas County, Florida (“Pinellas County”) entered into an agreement for the City to install and 
maintain 59 single-space parking meters at the Courthouse Parking Lot for use by the public 
(“1970 Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the 1970 Agreement, after the proceeds from the meters 
covered the cost of purchase and installation, the City and Pinellas County have been dividing the 
proceeds of the collections from the meters; and 

WHEREAS, the existing meters have reached the end of life and need to be 
replaced; and 

WHEREAS, the Transportation and Parking Management Department 
recommends the City and Pinellas County enter into a new agreement to replace the existing 
single-space meters with two multi-space meters and associated signs at a cost of approximately 
$17,000 and divide the estimated yearly revenue of $24,500 evenly between the City and Pinellas 
County after that cost is recouped. 

1 



 

 
 

    
     

 
    

 
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

   

 
           

 
 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida that an agreement between the City of St. Petersburg, Florida (“City”) and 
Pinellas County, Florida for the City to purchase, install, and maintain parking meters for the 
Judicial County Building parking lot located on the northeast corner of the intersection of 1st 

Avenue North and 6th Street North at an initial cost not to exceed $17,000 and an estimated annual 
revenue to the City of $12,250 after the initial cost has been recouped is hereby approved. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Attorney’s Office is authorized to 
make non-substantive changes to the agreement. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to 
execute the agreement and all other necessary documents. 

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

_ 
00677507 

2 



 

 
 

    
     

 
     

 
 

 
 

 
   

     
 

    
  

    
    

 
  

  
     

 
 

  
  

  
 

  
 

 
     

 
 

 
   

 
     

     

  
   

 
     

 
 

AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this  day of 
, 2023 (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of St. Petersburg, 

Florida, a municipal corporation, whose post office address is 1 – 4th Street North, St. Petersburg, 
Florida 33731 (“City”) and Pinellas County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida 
(“County”), with offices located at 315 Court Street, Clearwater, Florida 33756. (collectively, 
“Parties”). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the County owns the Judicial County Building Parking lot, which lies on the 
northeast corner of the intersection of 1st Avenue North and 6th Street North (“Parking Lot”); and 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into an agreement on September 8, 1970 (“Original 
Agreement”) for the City to install and maintain 59 parking meters and other parking 
appurtenances on the Parking Lot for use by the public, and for the Parties to divide the proceeds 
of the collections from those meters as outlined in the Original Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties now desire to terminate the Original Agreement and enter into 
this Agreement for the City to purchase, install, and maintain new “Cale” touch screen pay stations 
(“Stations”) and related signage on the Parking Lot according to the terms and conditions 
contained herein. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals (which are incorporated 
herein as an integral part hereof) and the mutual covenants contained herein, receipt of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Termination of Original Agreement. As of the Effective Date, the Original Agreement 
is hereby terminated. 

2. Stations. The City shall purchase, install, and maintain, at its sole cost and expense, the 
Stations and the related signage within the boundaries of the Parking Lot depicted in 
Exhibit A. Exhibit A is attached hereto and made a part of this Agreement. 

3. Proceeds from Stations. After the cost of the said Stations and signage have been 
recouped by the City through the collections from the Stations, the gross receipts from said 
Stations and signage will be divided as follows: the City will receive fifty (50%) percent 
of said receipts, and the County will receive the other fifty (50%) percent of said receipts. 
The City agrees to remit to the County its percentage at reasonable intervals, not less 
frequently than once every three (3) months during the Term (as defined herein). The City 
agrees to make collections from the Stations separately and agrees not to commingle the 
funds so collected with its parking meter or parking station receipts from other properties 
until after a division of the collections from the Parking Lot has been made as set forth 
herein. 

1 



 
 

      
     

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
 

 
 

    
  

  
    

  
    

     
  

  
  

 
  

   
   

 
  

  
 

     
    

 
  

 
    

   
 

 
      

      
    

  
 

       
  

4. Parking Lot Maintenance. The County agrees to maintain, at its sole cost and expense at 
all times during the Term, the surface and curbing on and about the Parking Lot on its 
property. Each party agrees to bear responsibility for its own negligence and that of its 
employees and agents, subject to any limitations on liability established by law, including 
the provisions of Fla. Stat. 768.28. 

5. Inspection. The City agrees that the County may check and/or inspect any and all 
procedures used by the City and/or its agents in collecting and disbursing the funds 
collected from the Stations on the Parking Lot, provided that such checking and inspecting 
are done at such time and in such manner that no City employee is delayed or hindered in 
the performance of his or her duties. 

6. Parking Lot Expansion or Contraction. The Parties hereto mutually agree that the 
Parking Lot area devoted to parking on the County property may be enlarged or contracted 
from time to time by the County, and the County may request in writing that additional 
stations to be purchased, installed, and maintained by the City. Upon receipt of such written 
request, the City may, in its sole and absolute discretion, purchase, install, and maintain 
such additional stations if the City determines that doing so would be advantageous to the 
City. In the event the City elects to purchase and install any additional stations at the 
County’s request pursuant to this paragraph, the Parties will cease dividing the proceeds 
from the Stations as outlined in paragraph 3 until such time as the City has recouped the 
cost of the additional station(s). 

7. Rules and Regulations. The County covenants and agrees that the City, during the Term, 
has the exclusive right and authority to establish and enforce all rules, rates, and regulations 
in connection with the operation of the Stations. 

8. Property Taxes. The County shall, throughout the Term, pay all licenses and taxes of any 
type applicable to the parking facilities on its property. 

9. Term. This Agreement commences on the Effective Date and will remain in full force and 
effect until terminated as provided for herein (“Term”). 

10. Termination. 

A. This Agreement may be terminated by the mutual written consent of the Parties or 
by either party giving written notice to the other party of such termination at least 
sixty (60) days in advance thereof. 

B. Upon termination, each party hereto will be freed and discharged from further 
liability and responsibility hereunder as of the effective date of termination except 
as otherwise provided in this paragraph 10. If this Agreement is terminated by the 
County before the City has recouped the full and complete cost of the Stations and 
related signage (and any additional stations installed in the Parking Lot), the City 
shall, within ninety (90) days after receiving a termination notice from the County, 
render to the County a final accounting, and the County shall then reimburse the 

2 



 
 

     
 
 
 

 
 

    
  

 
 

    
    

 
 

 
    

  
   

   
 

  
 

 

City for the remaining balance within thirty (30) days after receipt of the final 
accounting. Additionally, the City shall remove the Stations and related signage 
(and any additional stations installed in the Parking Lot) at its own cost and expense 
within thirty (30) days after the effective date of termination. In the removal thereof, 
the City shall exercise reasonable care so as not to unnecessarily damage County 
property. 

11. Ownership of Stations. All Stations and related signage installed by the City in the 
Parking Lot either before or after the Effective Date will all times remain the property of 
the City. 

12. Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon the 
Parties hereto and their successors and assigns. 

13. Non-Appropriation. The obligations of the Parties as to any funding required pursuant to 
this Agreement shall be limited to an obligation in any given year to budget, appropriate 
and pay from legally available funds, after monies for essential city or county services, as 
applicable, have been budgeted and appropriated, sufficient monies for the funding that is 
required during that year. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither the City nor the County 
will be prohibited from pledging any legally available non-ad valorem revenues for any 
obligations heretofore or hereafter incurred, which pledge will be prior and superior to any 
obligation of the City or County, as applicable, pursuant to this Agreement. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

3 



 

   
   

 
 

 
 
 

 

                                                                  
 

    

    
  

   
 

 

  

 
 
 

                                
 

 
 
 
                            
 
 
 

 
 

    
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly 
executed as of the day and year first above written. 

CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG, FLORIDA PINELLAS COUNTY, FLORIDA 

By: _______________________________ By: 

Print: Joe Lauro 
Director of Administrative Services 

Title: Date: ________________________ 

Date: _______________________________ 

ATTEST: 

By:_________________________________ 
City Clerk 

[Seal] 

Approved as to Content and Form: 

By: 
City Attorney (designee) 
00665992 

4 



 

  
 

 
 

 

81 Avenue N. and 6"' Street N., City of St Petersbu-g, Fl 33701 1 

EXHIBIT A 

LOCATION MAP 

5 



361 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Authorizing the Mayor, or his 

designee, to execute a License Agreement with the Police Athletic League of St. Petersburg, Inc., a 

Florida not-for-profit corporation, for the use of the Main Building located at 1450 - 16th Street 

North, St. Petersburg, within a portion of the City-owned Woodlawn Park for a period of three (3) 

years at an aggregate rent of $36.00; waiving the reserve for replacement requirement of City 

Council Resolution No. 79-740A; and providing an effective date. (Requires affirmative vote of at 

least six (6) members of City Council.) 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-5

CB-5



     

      

     
   

 
            

    

     
   

    
   

      
        

   
  

         
  

    
           

         
    

         
       

   

ST. PETERSBURG  CITY COUNCIL  

Consent Agenda  

Meeting of  May 18,  2023  

TO: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair and Members of City Council 

SUBJECT:  A  resolution  authorizing  the  Mayor,  or  his  designee,  to  execute a  License  
Agreement with the Police Athletic League of St.  Petersburg, Inc., a  Florida  not-for-profit  
corporation, for  the use of  the Main Building  located  at 1450 - 16th  Street  North, St. 
Petersburg,  within a   portion  of  the  City-owned Woodlawn  Park  for  a  period of  three (3)  
years at an aggregate rent  of $36.00; and to execute all documents necessary to  
effectuate same;  waiving  the reserve  for replacement requirement  of  City  Council  
Resolution No. 79-740A;  and  providing  an effective  date. (Requires an affirmative vote  
of at  least  six (6)  members  of City  Council.)  

EXPLANATION:  Real Estate and Property Management received  a request from Police  
Athletic League  of  St. Petersburg, Inc. ("PAL")  to  enter  into  a  new  license  agreement  for  
another  three (3)  year  term  for  use  of the Main Building  located at  1450 - 16th  Street  
North, St. Petersburg,  within a portion of  City-owned  Woodlawn Park that PAL has utilized  
since 1995.  

PAL ("Licensee") has executed a new License Agreement ("License"), for a term of thirty-
six months (36) months, subject to City Council approval, with the terms and conditions 
providing it with the same basic rights and privileges it has enjoyed during the preceding 
term. The license fee is thirty-six dollars ($36.00) for the entire term. The Licensee is 
responsible for all interior and exterior maintenance of the Premises and the building 
Systems which include repair or replacement of the HVAC and roof.  The Licensee will 
pay for utilities and other services including, but not limited to, water, electric, sewer, 
gas, trash collection and stormwater fees, in addition to any applicable taxes and 
maintain a commercial general liability insurance policy in the amount of $1,000,000 
per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate, in addition to all risks property 
insurance on the Premises, in an amount not less than assessed value of the 
improvements as determined by the Pinellas County Property Appraiser's office. The 
License may be terminated without cause by either party with ninety (90) days written 
notice prior to the scheduled date of termination. 

City Council Resolution No. 79-740A, dated October 4, 1979, establishes policies for the 
sale and leasing of City-owned park and waterfront property.  This resolution requires 
that when leasing City property to a non-profit, private organization ". . . the organization 
pays operating costs plus a reserve for replacement." Due to the limited financial 
resources of the organization, the City is charging nominal rent and recommending that 
the reserve for replacement requirement be waived in an effort to minimize operating 
costs. These terms and conditions are consistent with prior Licenses with this and other 
non-profit organizations. Under the terms of the License, "the City is under no obligation 
to provide a replacement facility under any circumstances." 

CM 230518 - 1 RE Police Athletic League L-3720 (2023-2026) 1 



    

   
    

            
           

 

   

  

Section 1.02 (c)(2) of the City Charter, Park and Waterfront Property, permits City Council 
approval of leases for Park and Waterfront property for three (3) years or less on 
residentially-zoned property with approval by an affirmative vote of at least six (6) 
members of City Council. The subject property is zoned Neighborhood Suburban Estate 
(NS-E). 

RECOMMENDATION:  Administration  recommends  that  City  Council adopt  the  
attached resolution authorizing  the Mayor, or his  designee,  to execute a  License  
Agreement with the Police Athletic League of St.  Petersburg, Inc., a  Florida  not-for-profit  
corporation, for  the use of  the Main Building  located  at 1450 - 16th  Street  North, St. 
Petersburg,  within a   portion  of  the  City-owned Woodlawn  Park  for  a  period of  three  (3) 
years  at  an  aggregate  fee of  $36.00; and  to  execute  all  documents  necessary  to  
effectuate same; waiving  the reserve  for replacement requirement  of  City  Council  
Resolution No. 79-740A; and providing an effective date.  

COST/FUNDING/ASSESSMENT INFORMATION: N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: Illustration and Resolution 

CM 230518 - 1 RE Police Athletic League L-3720 (2023-2026) 2 

         

         
  

APPROVALS: Administration: 

Budget: N/A 



    

16th STREET NORTH 

g PAL 
BUILDING 

WOODLAWN z 
ELEMENTARY w 
SCHOOL 2 

~ -
s::. -.., ... 

-

Ball Fields 

POLICE 
PISTOL 
CLUB 

I 

19th STREET NORTH 

CM 230518 - 1 RE Police Athletic League L-3720 (2023-2026) 3 



     Resolution No. 2023 -

    

         
 

  

  
   

     
   

     

   
     

   

           
  

     

      
   

  
   

      
  

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE  MAYOR,  OR  
HIS DESIGNEE, TO EXECUTE A  LICENSE 
AGREEMENT  WITH  THE  POLICE  ATHLETIC  
LEAGUE  OF  ST. PETERSBURG, INC., A  FLORIDA  
NOT-FOR-PROFIT CORPORATION, FOR THE  USE  
OF  THE  MAIN  BUILDING  LOCATED  AT 1450 - 
16TH  STREET NORTH,  ST.  PETERSBURG,  WITHIN  
A PORTION OF THE  CITY-OWNED WOODLAWN  
PARK FOR  A PERIOD  OF THREE (3) YEARS  AT  AN  
AGGREGATE FEE OF $36.00; AND TO EXECUTE  
ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY  TO  EFFECTUATE  
SAME;  WAIVING  THE  RESERVE  FOR  
REPLACEMENT  REQUIREMENT  OF  CITY  COUNCIL  
RESOLUTION  NO.  79-740A;  AND  PROVIDING  AN  
EFFECTIVE DATE.  

WHEREAS, the Police Athletic League of St.  Petersburg, Inc. ("Licensee")  
desires to continue to use the main building located at 1450  - 16th  Street North, St. 
Petersburg,  within  a  portion of  City-owned Woodlawn Park, which is classified as  
Parkland,  for the  purpose of office space and  to  conduct  social, educational and athletic 
programs  for the benefit low- and moderate-income  persons, that  the  Licensee  has  
utilized  since October 2, 1995; and  

WHEREAS, the proposed License Agreement ("License") will be for a term of 
thirty-six (36) months, at an aggregate fee of $36.00, to be paid at the commencement 
of the License; and 

WHEREAS, the Licensee is responsible for all interior and exterior 
maintenance of the Premises, the building Systems which include repair or replacement 
of the HVAC and roof, utilities and other services including, but not limited to, water, 
electric, telephone, internet service, sewer, gas, cable/satellite television, trash 
collection and stormwater fees, in addition to any applicable taxes and insurance; and 

WHEREAS, the License is in accordance with the policies established in 
Resolution No. 79-740A with the exception that the reserve for replacement requirement 
is being waived to reduce the organization’s operating costs; and 

WHEREAS, due to the limited financial resources of the Licensee, the City is 
charging nominal rent and recommending that the reserve for replacement requirement 
be waived in an effort to minimize operating costs; and 

WHEREAS, these terms and conditions are consistent with prior licenses 
with this and other non-profit organizations; and 

WHEREAS, Section 1.02 (c)(2) of the City Charter, Park and Waterfront 
Property, permits City Council approval of leases for Park and Waterfront property for 
three (3) years or less on residentially-zoned property with approval by an affirmative 
vote of at least six (6) members of City Council. 

CM 230518 - 1 RE Police Athletic League L-3720 (2023-2026) 1 



    

  
  

    

NOW  THEREFORE,  BE I T  RESOLVED B Y  the  City  Council  of the  City  of St.  
Petersburg,  Florida,  that  the Mayor,  or  his  designee,  is  authorized  to  execute a  License  
Agreement with the Police Athletic  League of St.  Petersburg, Inc., a  Florida  not-for-profit  
corporation, for  the use of  the Main Building located at 1450  - 16th  Street  North, St. 
Petersburg,  within a   portion  of  the  City-owned Woodlawn  Park  for  a  period of  three  (3)  
years  at  an  aggregate  fee  of  $36.00;  and  to  execute  all  documents  necessary  to  
effectuate same; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the reserve for replacement requirement of 
City Council Resolution No. 79-740A is waived. 

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

CM 230518 - 1 RE Police Athletic League L-3720 (2023-2026) 2 

         

             
      

 

      
  

 

Legal: Leisure Services Administration: 

City Attorney (Designee) Michael J. Jefferis, Administrator 

Real Estate and Property Management: 

Aaron Fisch, Interim Director 
00677717 



368 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: A Resolution approving the 

five-year interlocal agreement (“Interlocal Agreement”) between the City of St. Petersburg (“City”) 

and Pinellas County (“County”) to provide for the reimbursement of costs for occasional 

modifications to the Recreational Water Quality Map on the Pinellas County Water Atlas website in 

an amount not to exceed $10,000; authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute the Interlocal 

Agreement and all other documents necessary to effectuate this transaction; authorizing the City 

Attorney’s Office to make non-substantive changes to the Interlocal Agreement; and providing an 

effective date. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-6

CB-6



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting of May 18, 2023 

 

 TO:          The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair and Members of City Council 

 

 

SUBJECT: A Resolution approving the five-year interlocal agreement (“Interlocal 

Agreement”) between the City of St. Petersburg (“City”) and Pinellas County (“County”) to 

provide for the reimbursement of costs for occasional modifications to the Recreational Water 

Quality Map on the Pinellas County Water Atlas website in an amount not to exceed $10,000; 

authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute the Interlocal Agreement and all other documents 

necessary to effectuate this transaction; authorizing the City Attorney’s Office to make non-

substantive changes to the Interlocal Agreement; and providing an effective date.   

 

EXPLANATION:  On November 30, 2018, Pinellas County and the City entered into an 

interlocal agreement for the purpose of developing a water quality webpage (“Webpage”) on the 

Pinellas County Water Atlas website and to set forth the relationship of the parties with respect to 

their general responsibilities to develop and maintain technical content on the Website. The 

purpose of the Webpage is to provide citizens with easy access to water quality data for local water 

bodies. The 2018 interlocal agreement expired on December 31, 2022. 

 

Initial development of the Webpage is now complete and the City and County wish to provide a 

framework by which the City may request occasional modifications to the Webpage and reimburse 

the County for the costs of such modifications. 

 

The most efficient way for the City to request and pay for occasional modifications to the Webpage 

is to bring such requests through the County and reimburse the County for the cost of such 

modifications under its agreement with USF, which maintains the Webpage. The continued 

collaboration between the Parties to enhance and improve the content on the Webpage will provide 

a benefit to the citizens of both the City and the County. 

 

The deliverable product is the maintenance of a fully functional Webpage for five years, for the 

period January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2027, during which time data will be updated on 

the Webpage, and the user-interface will be redesigned on an as-needed basis with the 

collaboration of staff from County and the City. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Administration recommends approval of the five-year interlocal 

agreement (“Interlocal Agreement”) between the City of St. Petersburg (“City”) and Pinellas 

County (“County”) to provide for the reimbursement of costs for occasional modifications to the 

Recreational Water Quality Map on the Pinellas County Water Atlas website in an amount not to 

exceed $10,000. 
 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

COST/FUNDING/ASSESSMENT INFORMATION: Funds have been previously appropriated 

in the Water Resources Operating Fund (4001), Water Resources Department, Environmental 

Compliance Laboratory Division (420-2153). 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Resolution  

    Interlocal Agreement 

 

 

APPROVALS: ________________________ ________________________ 

              Administrative                    Budget 



1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FIVE-YEAR 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (“INTERLOCAL 

AGREEMENT”) BETWEEN THE CITY OF ST. 

PETERSBURG (“CITY”) AND PINELLAS 

COUNTY (“COUNTY”) TO PROVIDE FOR THE 

REIMBURSEMENT OF COSTS FOR 

OCCASIONAL MODIFICATIONS TO THE 

RECREATIONAL WATER QUALITY MAP ON 

THE PINELLAS COUNTY WATER ATLAS 

WEBSITE IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 

$10,000; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR HIS 

DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE THE INTERLOCAL 

AGREEMENT AND ALL OTHER DOCUMENTS 

NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THIS 

TRANSACTION; AUTHORIZING THE CITY 

ATTORNEY’S OFFICE TO MAKE NON-

SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES TO THE 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT; AND 

PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 

 

  WHEREAS, Section 163.01, Florida Statutes, et. seq. authorizes counties and 

municipalities to enter into cooperative agreements for the mutual advantage of each governmental 

entity; and 

 

  WHEREAS, on November 30, 2018, Pinellas County and the City entered into an 

interlocal agreement for the purpose of developing a water quality webpage (“Webpage”) on the 

Pinellas County Water Atlas website and to set forth the relationship of the parties with respect to 

their general responsibilities to develop and maintain technical content on the Webpage; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the 2018 interlocal agreement expired on December 31, 2022; and 

 

  WHEREAS, initial development of the Webpage is now complete and the City and 

County wish to enter into an interlocal agreement to provide a framework by which the City may 

request occasional modifications to the Webpage and reimburse the County for the cost of such 

modifications; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the continued collaboration between the parties to enhance and 

improve the content on the Webpage will provide a benefit to the citizens of both the City and the 

County; and 

 

 



2 

 

  WHEREAS, funds have been previously appropriated in the Water Resources 

Operating Fund (4001), Water Resources Department, Environmental Compliance Laboratory 

Division (420-2153); and 

   

  WHEREAS, Administration recommends approval of the Interlocal Agreement. 

 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 

Petersburg, Florida that the five-year interlocal agreement (“Interlocal Agreement”) between the 

City of St. Petersburg (“City”) and Pinellas County (“County”) to provide for the reimbursement 

of costs for occasional modifications to the Recreational Water Quality Map on the Pinellas 

County Water Atlas website in an amount not to exceed $10,000 is hereby approved. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is hereby authorized 

to execute the Interlocal Agreement and all other documents necessary to effectuate this 

transaction. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Attorney’s Office is hereby authorized 

to make non-substantive changes to the Interlocal Agreement.  

  

  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

 

 

 

LEGAL:      DEPARTMENT:  

 

________________________________  ___________________________________ 



Page 1 of 5 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT  
FOR 

REIMBURSEMENT FOR AS-NEEDED MODIFICATIONS TO THE PINELLAS 
COUNTY WATER ATLAS WATER QUALITY WEBPAGE 

 
            This Agreement (this “Agreement”), is entered into this _____ day of 
_________________ 2023, between: Pinellas County, a political subdivision of the State of 
Florida (hereinafter referred to as the “County”) whose address is 315 Court Street, Clearwater, 
FL 33756, and the City of St. Petersburg (hereinafter referred to as “St. Petersburg”) whose 
address is 175 5th St N, St. Petersburg, FL 33701. The County and St. Petersburg are collectively 
referred to as “Parties” herein. 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, this Agreement is made and entered into between the Parties pursuant to 
Section 163.01, Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is the mutual desire of the Parties to inform and educate the public regarding 
water quality data; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on November 30, 2018, the COUNTY and the CITY entered an interlocal 
agreement (“Agreement”) for the purpose of developing a Recreational Water Quality Map 
(“Webpage”) on the Pinellas County Water Atlas website (the “Website”) and to set forth the 
relationship of the parties with respect to their general responsibilities to develop and maintain 
technical content on the Website; and 
 
 WHEREAS, initial development of the Webpage is now complete and the Parties wish to 
provide a framework by which the City may request occasional modifications to the Webpage 
and reimburse the County for the costs of such modifications; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County currently contracts with the Tampa Bay Estuary Program 
(“TBEP”) to maintain and develop technical content on the Webpage through a regional contract 
with the University of South Florida (“USF”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties have determined that the most efficient way for the City to request 
and pay for occasional modifications to the Webpage is to bring such requests through the 
County and reimburse the County for the cost of such modifications under its agreement with 
TBEP; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the continued collaboration between the Parties to enhance and improve the 
content on the Webpage will provide a benefit to the citizens of both the City and the County. 
 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants, 
conditions and terms set forth herein, the Parties hereby mutually agree as follows: 
 



Page 2 of 5 

SECTION 1.     PURPOSE  
 
The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth the relationship of the Parties with respect to the 
City’s ability to request occasional modifications and enhancements (“Modifications”) to 
technical content on the Webpage, and to reimburse the County for the costs of such 
Modifications performed by USF or another third-party developer. 
 
 
SECTION 2.     RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES 
 
2.1     The County shall be responsible for continuing to contract with the necessary persons or 
 entities to maintain the Webpage and shall work with the City to continue to enhance the 
 functionality and content of the Webpage.   
 
2.2 The City may, during the term of this Agreement, make written requests to the County 
 for Modifications to content on the Webpage, as it deems appropriate.   
 
2.3  Within 30 days of such written request, the County shall notify USF of the requested 
 Modifications and, provided that USF is willing and able to make the requested 
 Modifications, negotiate the cost, if any, of such Modifications with TBEP and USF. The 
 County shall notify the City of the negotiated cost of the requested Modifications, and, 
 upon written approval of the negotiated cost by the Parties, direct USF to make such 
 Modifications.  
 
2.4 The City shall reimburse the County for the cost of the Modifications within 30 days 
 of its receipt of an invoice from the County with supporting documentation showing that 
 the County paid the total cost of the Modifications, including an amended scope of work 
 setting forth the requested Modifications under the County’s agreement with TBEP and 
 USF. 
 
2.5 The total amount paid by the City for Modifications during the term of this Agreement 
 shall not exceed $10,000. 
 
 
SECTION 3.    NOTICES 
 
All notices, invoices, payments, and other correspondence required under this Agreement 
between the Parties shall be in writing and delivered via USPS Certified Mail.  Notice shall be 
considered delivered and received as reflected by certified mail delivery receipt. All notices 
between the Parties shall be sent to the following respective Project Managers at their following 
respective addresses: 

 
Pinellas County                                                     City of St, Petersburg 
Natasha Dickrell                                                     John Palenchar, P.E. 
Environmental Specialist 3                                     Director, Water Resources 
Pinellas County Public Works                                City of St. Petersburg 



Page 3 of 5 

22211 US 19 N., Bldg 10                                      1650 3rd Ave. S. 
Clearwater, FL 33756                                           St. Petersburg, FL 33731 

 
Either party may designate a replacement Project Manager at any time, which shall become 
effective immediately upon receipt of written notice of such replacement designation by the other 
party. 
 
 
SECTION 5.    AMENDMENT 
 
This Agreement may only be amended by mutual written agreement of the Parties. 
 
 
SECTION 6.    TERMINATION  
 
This Agreement may be terminated for convenience by either party upon fifteen (15) days 
written notice of termination to the other party. If terminated for convenience by the City, the 
City shall pay any outstanding County invoices in accordance with Section 2.4 above. 
 
 
SECTION 7.     FILING, EFFECTIVE DATE, AND TERM 
 
After the County files a duly executed version of this Agreement with the Clerk of Circuit Court 
of Pinellas County, this Agreement shall be retroactively effective as of January 1, 2023 and 
shall continue in effect through December 31, 2027 unless terminated in accordance with Section 
Six (6) above, unless renewed in writing by mutual agreement of the Parties hereto for any 
additional length of time.  
 
 
SECTION 8.     PAYMENT LIMITATIONS AND FISCAL NON-FUNDING  
 
Webpage Modification costs incurred prior to the effective date of this Agreement are not 
fundable under this Agreement. 
 
This Agreement is not a general obligation of the County. It is understood that neither this 
Agreement nor any representation by any employee or officer of the County creates any 
obligation to appropriate or make monies available for the purpose of this Agreement beyond the 
fiscal year for which this Agreement is executed. No liability shall be incurred by the County, or 
any department of the County, beyond the monies budgeted and available for this purpose. If 
funds are not appropriated by the County for any or all of this Agreement, the County shall not 
be obligated to pay any sums provided pursuant to this Agreement beyond the portion for which 
funds are appropriated. The County agrees to promptly notify the other party in writing of such 
failure of appropriation, and upon receipt of such notice, this Agreement, and all rights and 
obligations contained herein, shall terminate without liability or penalty to the County. 
 



Page 4 of 5 

The obligations of the City as to any funding required pursuant to this Agreement shall be limited 
to an obligation in any given year to budget, appropriate, and pay from legally available funds, 
after monies for essential City services have been budgeted and appropriated, sufficient monies 
for the funding that is required during that year. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City shall 
not be prohibited from pledging any legally available non-ad valorem revenues for any 
obligations heretofore or hereafter incurred, which pledge shall be prior and superior to any 
obligation of the City pursuant to this Agreement. 
 
 
SECTION 9.    INDEMNIFICATION AND NON-AGENCY RELATIONSHIP 
 
Each party shall be fully responsible for the negligence of its respective employees, officers and 
employees, when such person is acting within the scope of his or her employment and shall be 
liable for any damages alleged or claimed to have resulted or arisen from said negligence.  
Nothing contained herein is intended to serve as a waiver by either party of its sovereign 
immunity or to extend the liability of either party beyond the limits set forth in Section 768.28, 
Florida Statutes. Further, nothing herein shall be construed as consent by either party to be sued 
by third parties in any manner arising out this Agreement or contracts related thereto. 
 
 
SECTION 10.     PUBLIC RECORDS: 
 
The Parties acknowledge that the information and data they manage pursuant to this Agreement 
may be public records in accordance with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes and agree to fully comply 
therewith.     
 
 
SECTION 11.    SEVERABILITY 
 
If any word, clause, sentence, paragraph, or section of this Agreement is held invalid or 
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain 
in full force and effect. 
 
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 5 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 

executed on the day and year first above written. 
 

  
CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG, FLORIDA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PINELLAS COUNTY, FLORIDA by and  
through its Director of Administrative Services 

 
By: _______________________________                                                                  
 
 
 
 
 

 
By: __________________________________ 
 

Print: ______________________________ Print: _________________________________ 

Title:  Mayor  Title:   Director of Administrative Services             

ATTEST: 
 
 
By:_________________________________                                 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
                           [Seal] 
 
 
 
Approved as to Content and Form: 
 
By: __________________________ 
               City Attorney (designee) 
00670298 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
By: _____________________________ 
              Office of the County Attorney 
 
 

 

 



379 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: A resolution appointing HanH 

H. Tran and Christa Bruning as regular members to the Code Enforcement Board; and providing an 

effective date. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-8

CB-8



  MEMORANDUM 
 

 
TO:   Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair and Members of City Council 
 
FROM:  Joe Waugh, Codes Compliance Assistance Director 
 
DATE:  May 4, 2023  
 
SUBJECT: Code Enforcement Board Appointments 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
I respectfully request that City Council approve the appointments of HanH H. Tran and Christa Bruning 
to the Code Enforcement Board serving three-year terms ending May 31, 2026.  
 
Mr. Tran’s decades of experience as an architect will prove to be an indispensable resource to the 
Board, given his knowledge and understanding of project cost, timelines, and regulatory hurdles.  Ms. 
Bruning will bring a strong understanding of the socioeconomic challenges our citizens face as they 
attempt to bring their code violations into compliance, which will be key during deliberations when 
extensions and fines are considered. I believe their diverse strengths and combined experience will 
elevate the quality of the Board, and their appointments will strengthen its diversity, making it more 
reflective of the community it serves. 
 
A copy of each candidate’s resume is attached to this memorandum for your review and consideration. 
 
 
Reviewed and approved by: 
 
Administration: _____________________________ 
 
Budget:  ___________________________________ 
 
Legal: _____________________________________   
 
 
 
 
Attachments:  HanH H. Tran Resume 
             Christa Bruning Resume 
            
 
         

N/A



Resolution No. _____ 

 

 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING HANH H. TRAN 

AND CHRISTA BRUNING AS REGULAR 

MEMBERS TO THE CODE ENFORCEMENT 

BOARD; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. Petersburg, Florida, that 

this Council hereby appoints HanH H. Tran and Christa Bruning as regular members to the Code 

Enforcement Board to each serve an unexpired three-year term ending May 31, 2026.  

 

This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

 

 

Legal:        Department: 

 

                                                                __________________________ 

 

 
 



383 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Committee of the Whole 

Meeting Minutes (March 30, 2023) 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-9

CB-9



 

 

City of St. Petersburg 

Committee of the Whole  

March 30, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

City Hall, Room 100 

   

Present: Council Vice-Chair Deborah Figgs-Sanders, Council Members Copley Gerdes, Ed 

Montanari, Lisset Hanewicz, Gina Driscoll, John Muhammad, and Richie Floyd 

 

Absent: Council Chair Brandi Gabbard 

 

Also Present:  Assistant City Administrator Tom Greene, Assistant City Attorney Jeannine 

Williams, Procurement and Supply Management Director Stephanie Swinson, Supplier Diversity 

Manager LaTasha Binder, and City Clerk Chan Srinivasa 

 

Support Staff: Kimberly Amos, Legislative Aide 

 

1. Call to Order – 10:30 AM 

2. Approval of Agenda – CM Gerdes motioned for approval. All voted in favor. 

3. Approval of January 26, 2023 Minutes – CM Hanewicz motioned for approval. All 

voted in favor. 

4. New Business – March 30, 2023 

 

New Business:  Disparity Study Part 4 –  

 

Supplier Diversity Manager LaTasha Binder reviewed the goals and objectives related to the 

creation of the Women and Minority Business Enterprise Program (MWBE). A draft ordinance 

for the program was created and revisions to the Small Business Enterprise (SBE) ordinance are 

being drafted. The Office of Supplier Diversity (OSD) has worked to develop a comprehensive 

administrative policy with departmental metrics that track key performance indicators around 

equity participation and the number of opportunities created per department. 

 

Next Ms. Binder discussed the expanded communication plans, internally staff input sessions are 

occurring, and department liaisons are being designated to serve on a re-established Procurement 

Advisory Committee. Externally, marketing is working to create synergy between the 

Procurement, OSD, and Greenhouse pages on the City’s website to increase the ease of access 

and a procurement forecast will be offered to the public. A Comprehensive Capacity Building 

Support Plan was developed in collaboration with the Greenhouse, to utilize individualized 

Technical Assistance Plans (TAPs). Tailored events and various training activities will also be 

used to support businesses and close gaps relative to bid opportunities. Technology has been 

enhanced to increase efficiency, facilitate public outreach, and allow for goal setting.  

 



 

 

Ms. Binder then provided an overview of community outreach efforts and upcoming events that 

are designed to increase business connections and provide education to bidders including a 

digital “Doing Business with the City of St. Petersburg” Guide in the works. In conclusion, Ms. 

Binder expanded on the OSD goal setting process from the forecasting stage through the 

awarded contract and compliance monitoring and discussed how the success of this process will 

be measured. Vice-Chair Figgs-Sanders then opened the floor for questions and comments.  

 

CM Hanewicz asked why the ordinance draft utilizes a $75,000 threshold instead of the 

$100,000 suggested in the Disparity Study and for additional context on the sheltered 

background and required participation percentages. Procurement and Supply Management 

Director Stephanie Swinson responded that $75,000 is the current Council threshold and an 

appropriate benchmark for consideration of projects. Projects that are over $75,000 are typically 

larger projects and goals can be set on individual subcontracts, unbundling the package will 

allow for higher goals to be set. Utilizing a sheltered market for projects under $75,000 will 

allow additional contract opportunities for businesses that have smaller capacities.  

 

CM Hanewicz asked for additional information on using evaluation points for professional 

services, Ms. Swinson stated that weighted points are on the proposals & qualifications and are 

only offered on lowest responsible and responsive bids.  

 

CM Hanewicz asked when additional information on procedures will be shared, Ms. Binder 

responded it could be available in a week but requires review from Legal, CM Hanewicz asked 

that it be shared with Council once available.       

 

CM Hanewicz asked if an additional definition of “good faith efforts” was available, Ms. 

Swinson responded that the definition would be expanded within the administrative policy. 

 

CM Montanari expressed concerns regarding potential legal threats and requested information on 

the ombudsman position, Ms. Binder responded that position handles any complaints received 

and it has yet to be staffed. Assistant City Administrator Tom Greene added the delay is 

intentional for fiscal responsibility and the position will be staffed when the need is created. 

 

CM Montanari asked for additional information about capacity building as it relates to goals, Ms. 

Binder responded that capacity building is only one aspect and goals will be set based on 

availability, the B2G module1 assists in factoring eligibility. CM Montanari asked Assistant City 

Attorney Jeannine Williams if she had any concerns in the differences between recommendations 

for the ordinance presented by Dr. Colette Holt in December and the current draft language. Ms. 

Williams answered that she did not, and that capacity building and goal setting are two distinct 

processes with the capacity building occurring during outreach and their standards not as 

scrutinized as significantly as goal setting. Ms. Swinson added that the process is impacted by 

 
1 Supplier diversity, procurement, and grant management software 



 

 

availability, goals cannot be set if contractors are not available for specific scopes; however, 

outreach may occur in attempt to certify contractors so that goal setting can become an option.  

 

CM Montanari asked for clarification on the participation percentages verbiage in the ordinance 

title and how it varies from a quota. Ms. Binder explained that participation percentage is the 

goal that is created on the project based on availability and is not intended as a quota. Ms. 

Williams added context that a contract-by-contract evaluation is used with a sliding scale of 

percentages required based on availability of applicable businesses. CM Montanari expressed 

concern that it could be challenged, and Ms. Williams responded other cases were available for 

reference and the standards are tailored and backed up by the Disparity Study. 

 

CM Montanari asked for further explanation on the sheltered market concept. Using a current 

SBE example, Ms. Swinson explained that sheltering is based on availability, if there are three 

SBEs that are available to bid on the project then it would be sheltered for only those SBEs to 

bid on and larger contractors cannot bid. The same concept would apply to Minority Business 

Enterprises (MBE) and Women-Owned Business Enterprises (WBE).  

 

CM Montanari asked for information on a sunset provision, Ms. Binder responded a date will be 

assigned for re-evaluation and the decision to sunset the program or not will be made based upon 

if the disparity still exists.   

 

CM Montanari asked for clarification on bid discounts, Ms. Swinson explained that when bids 

are evaluated a discount may be applied for a qualifying business to allow the advantage of being 

considered the lowest bidder, however the discounted rate is not actualized. Ms. Binder provided 

an example with dollar amounts and information on underlying factors to add context as to why 

this is used to assist SBEs, MBEs, and WBEs in the competitive bid process.  

 

CM Driscoll asked about the annual aspirational goal, Ms. Binder and Ms. Swinson emphasized 

that participation and data need to be collected in order to establish the framework for the goal.  

 

CM Driscoll asked if any specific instances or charges of discrimination have been brought 

forward and expressed concern the current verbiage of “remedying discrimination” implies that 

discrimination has occurred. Ms. Williams explained from a legal standpoint the concept of 

disparate impact, CM Driscoll asked that changes be considered to further clarify the intent. 

 

 CM Driscoll asked about sheltered market utilization when there is only one bidder. Ms. 

Swinson responded the preference from procurement is at least three bids and in the instance of 

only one, it would not be sheltered but a lower goal could be assigned.  

 

CM Driscoll asked for a higher frequency update than an annual report and suggested a report 

could be provided at the quarterly reports at the Budget Finance and Taxation (BFT) Committee 



 

 

Meeting. Ms. Swinson clarified that the annual report is for consistency but until the program is 

fully established, more frequent reports can occur, CM Driscoll recommended six months. 

 

CM Gerdes voiced support for project-by-project and data driven analysis and asked for 

clarification on the sheltering process, would it apply to MBE, WBE, and SBE at the same time? 

Ms. Swinson responded that it is based on what is available and is evaluated by the B2G module.  

 

CM Floyd provided input related to measuring the success of the program, requesting that 

broader community impact be reported back such as employment in women & minority groups 

or wealth and income information. Mr. Greene explained that could be challenging but would 

collaborate with staff, CM Floyd responded any type of snapshot available has value with 

emphasis on change from the start to end of program.  

 

CM Hanewicz expressed interest in a review of the language CM Driscoll referenced to ensure 

clarity. 

 

CM Montanari asked Ms. Williams for an update on the Supreme Court review of the Harvard 

and UNC admissions programs. Ms. Williams responded there is no timeline on when the 

decision of the Supreme Court is released. CM Montanari asked if it could impact the ordinance, 

Ms. Williams explained the decision is not directly applicable but will be analyzed. 

 

Vice-Chair Figgs-Sanders asked for clarification on the name to which Ms. Binder responded 

that it is the Office of Supplier Diversity. VC Figgs-Sanders expressed concerns that the term is 

vague and asked for intentional expansion of outreach beyond those currently taking advantage 

of the opportunities offered. Additionally, VC Figgs-Sanders expressed her agreement with a 

previous recommendation Dr. Holt presented regarding changing the name.  VC Figgs-Sanders 

offered two suggestions submitted by the public: Office of Diversity and Equal Opportunity and 

Office of Equitable Procedure Opportunities. VC Figgs-Sanders emphasized that the name 

should not create confusion, should be welcoming, and should follow the intent of the six pillars 

to ensure it is reaching its intended audience. Mr. Greene expressed that the name is a result of 

industry standards and common practice. VC Figgs-Sanders responded that this initiative isn’t 

common or standard, and closed her comments by advocating for the ombudsman position when 

the timing was appropriate. 

 

Mr. Greene relayed recommendations for next steps: working with the Legal Department to 

finish the ordinance and evaluate the SBE ordinance, provide a summary of the built out 

administrative policies, and conduct individual meetings with Council Members in hopes of 

bringing a first reading to a City Council Meeting in May or June.        

 

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 11:44 am 

   



389 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approving a supplemental 

appropriation in the amount of $87,500 from the unappropriated balance of the General Capital 

Improvement Fund (3001) to the Marine Team Dive Equipment Project (19624) for replacement 

dive equipment for the Fire Rescue Department. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-10

CB-10



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
Consent Agenda 

Meeting of May 18, 2023 
 
 
To: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council 
 
Subject: Approving a supplemental appropriation in the amount of $87,500 from the 
unappropriated balance of the General Capital Improvement Fund (3001) to the Marine Team 
Dive Equipment Project (19624) for replacement dive equipment for the Fire Rescue Department. 
 
Explanation: The suppliers will furnish and deliver dive equipment for St. Petersburg Fire 
Rescue’s Marine Team, which includes wetsuits, dry suits, boots, BC packs and additional 
breathing tanks.  
 
The Fire Department outfits their Marine Team personnel with dive protective gear to include 
wetsuits, dry suits, boots, BC packs and additional breathing tanks. Dive equipment is a 
necessary component of the Marine Team’s equipment and is crucial to completing their job safely 
and efficiently.  
 
Letts Dive!!........................................................................................................$20,290.42 
Interspiro…………………..................................................................................$49,235.14 
High Tech Diving & Safety Inc..........................................................................$17,560.00 
   
Cost/Funding/Assessment Information: Funds have previously been assigned for 
SCBA/Bunker Gear for the Fire Rescue Department in the General Capital Improvement Fund 
(3001). Funding will be available for these purchases after the approval of a supplemental 
appropriation in the amount of $87,500 from the unappropriated balance of the General Capital 
Improvement Fund (3001), to the Marine Team Dive Equipment Project (19624). 
 
Attachments: Resolution 
 
Approvals: 
 
 
 

 

  

Administrative  Budget 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 2023 - ______ 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SUPPLEMENTAL 
APPROPRIATION IN THE AMOUNT OF $87,500 FROM THE 
UNAPPROPRIATED BALANCE OF THE GENERAL CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT FUND (3001) TO THE MARINE TEAM DIVE 
EQUIPMENT PROJECT (19624) FOR REPLACEMENT DIVE 
EQUIPMENT FOR THE FIRE RESCUE DEPARTMENT; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Administration desires to purchase dive equipment for St. Petersburg Fire 

Rescue’s Marine Team, which includes wetsuits, dry suits, boots, BC packs and additional 
breathing tanks at an estimated amount of $87,185.56; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Fire Department outfits their Marine Team personnel with dive protective 

gear to include wetsuits, dry suits, boots, BC packs and additional breathing tanks; and  
 
WHEREAS, dive equipment is a necessary component of the Marine Team’s equipment 

and is crucial to completing their job safely. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. Petersburg, 
Florida, that this Council hereby approves from the unappropriated balance of the General Capital 
Improvement Fund (3001), the following supplemental appropriation for Fiscal Year 2023: 

 
General Capital Improvement Fund (3001) 
Marine Team Dive Equipment Project (19624)                                                   $87,500 
 
 

 This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
LEGAL:    BUDGET:    DEPARTMENT: 

          _________________ 
City Attorney (Designee)   
00677720  
    
 



393 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Public Services & 

Infrastructure Committee Meeting Minutes (April 13, 2023) 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-11

CB-11



 
City of St. Petersburg 

Public Services & Infrastructure Committee 
April 13, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

City Hall, Room 100 

1 
 

Present: Committee Chair Deborah Figgs-Sanders, Committee Vice-Chair Lisset Hanewicz 
Council Member Copley Gerdes, Council Member Ed Montanari, and Council Member 
Gina Driscoll 

 
Absent: None 
 
Also Present: City Administrator Rob Gerdes, City Attorney Jacqueline Kovilaritch, City Clerk Assistant 
Jordan Wilson, Public Works Administrator Claude Tankersley, Water Resources Director John 
Palenchar, Public Works Services Manager Angela Miller and Stantec Vice President, Water Management 
Andrew Burnham 
 
Support Staff: Linnie Randolph– City Council Legislative Aide 
 
1. Call to Order – 9:30 AM 
 
2. Approval of Agenda – Council Member Lisset Hanewicz motioned for approval. All voted in favor. 
 
3. Approval of February 9, 2023, Minutes – Council Member Copley Gerdes motioned for approval. 
All voted in favor. 
 
4. New Business – April 13, 2023 
 

 Review of the conceptual future metered reclaimed water fee structure 
John Palenchar, Water Resources Director 
Angela Miller, Public Works Services Manager 
Claude Tankersley, Public Works Administrator 
Andrew Burnham, Stantec Vice President, Water Management 

 
Committee Chair Deborah Figgs-Sanders welcomes all to the committee meeting then introduces Water 
Resources Director John Palenchar and Angela Miller who will present the power point presentation and 
lead the discussion on reclaimed water metering. 
 
Mr. Palenchar explains the reasoning behind a metering system discussion is to try to find a way to 
manage the reclaimed water supply to have more water available when needed. Currently, the city’s 
reclaimed water is set up under a flat rate structure.  While researching the city worked with Andrew 
(Andy) Burnham at Stantec to do an evaluation of reclaimed metering as a demand management strategy.  
 
Mr. Palenchar introduces Andrew Burnham to walk through the power point presentation to explain their 
data findings. Mr. Burnham stated that the purpose of the presentation will be to review the current 
reclaimed water system, the potential for conservation and the cost of the metering program. He will cover 
the return on investment and what the payback period would look like as well as some alternative options 
that may have the same opportunity to provide conservation potential but perhaps at a different cost that 
could be considered in lieu of or in tandem with a metering program.  



2 
 

At the conclusion of the presentation Mr. Burnham states that the best solution, per the data, is a hybrid 
approach that would cost about $17 million to get meters installed within 2 years based on revenue neutral 
rates that would have a payback of about 17 years but could be shortened a little if we were to look at 
elevating the level of reclaimed water rates. With the primary objective of conservation alternative options 
such as rain and soil moisture sensors could be more cost-effective if customers are willing to have those 
devices and participate in the programs associated with usage and conservation.  
 
Public Works Administrator Claude Tankersley thanked administration and council for giving them the 
time and opportunity to do their due diligence on this issue. After reviewing all the data Mr. Tankersley 
and his team do not believe at this time that metering reclaimed water does not make sense.  For now, 
there is a pause on any further evaluations of reclaimed water metering, but they are going to continue to 
look at using rain and soil moisture sensors and developing a potential program to help conservation.  
Once they complete that analysis they’ll come back to council with an update and recommendation.  
 
At this time Committee Chair Figgs-Sanders opens the floor for committee member comments.  
 
Council Member Ed Montanari was glad to hear that the department was not recommending metering as 
he did not feel the numbers added up to be beneficial.  He asked the cost of bringing a new neighborhood 
online and Mr. Tankersley responded that they would have to take their best guess as to the costs as they 
have not extended the [reclaimed] water main in several years but is estimating a range between $10,000 
to $15,000 per household to bring new customers into the system.  CM Montanari then asked about 
mandating the sensors and the thoughts on how that program would be established.  Mr. Tankersley said 
that the initial idea is for the city to provide the sensors for each resident and have the resident responsible 
for the sensor installation. CM Montanari followed up with a question to city attorney Jacqueline 
Kovilaritch regarding the legality of such a mandate.  Ms. Kovilaritch stated that they would need to know 
the specifics of the program before giving a definitive answer but did not foresee any immediate concerns 
that could not be worked through. 
 
Council Member Gina Driscoll stated that she would rather see a rebate program instead of a mandate 
for the sensors.  She stated that it would have to be a significant enough savings for each homeowner to 
want to install the sensors and allow the inspection of proper installation.  She asked for the team’s 
thoughts on this approach.  Public Works Services Manager, Angela Miller, responded saying that we 
have a similar rebate program with our rain barrels and that they would have to calculate what the reduced 
impact the system would look like for it to be equivalent through a rebate process. She said that this is 
something they can consider and investigate as they move forward. Mr. Burnham followed up by saying 
this rebate approach could only be used for the soil moisture sensor as we already have rain sensors 
available to residents upon request as part of the sensible sprinkling program.  Mr. Tankersley added that 
a lot of residential irrigation systems are not compatible with the soil moisture sensors.  This is an area 
they are investigating to try to calculate how many of our customers would have to upgrade their system 
to utilize the soil moisture sensor?  He also stated that about 13% of the residents have gone through the 
sensible sprinkler program and he feels this is a good indicator for the type of response we should expect. 
 
Committee Vice-Chair Lisset Hanewicz asked how they calculate the required percentage of residents to 
bring reclaimed water into a new neighborhood.  To bring the system into a new area the area needs a 
majority of customers to want the system.  (50% +1) Mr. Palenchar stated that it really depends on the ask 
and location.  For example, we would run a main down an entire block.  In that case we would need 50% 



3 
 

plus one of the residents on that street to agree to the program.  CM Hanewicz brought up the inflationary 
period we are in right now and feels that it may be difficult to get the majority of the neighbors to agree 
to a new expense.  CM Hanewicz also mentioned the 4,000 inactive accounts of residents with current 
access to the reclaimed system and thinks that working on incentives to bring these properties into the 
program may be an easier approach than trying to get new customers that would require infrastructure 
buildout. 
 
Council Member Copley Gerdes wanted to discuss the difference in usage between a single-family 
residence and a non-single-family residence (commercial) property.  He walked through his math with the 
presenting team to ensure his understanding of the usage data. At the end of the discussion CM Gerdes 
thanked the team for verifying his math and he is in agreement that we should not go to a metering system 
and that rain and soil moisture sensors are the way to go to help curb some of the single family residential 
over usage.  
 
Council Member Montanari asked about the possible usage restrictions stating that in the beginning of 
the program people were encouraged to switch to the reclaimed system because you could water your 
property as much as you wanted for one flat rate.  He then asked if these residents signed a contract when 
they begin the program. Mr. Palenchar responded stating that yes, each customer signs a contract but these 
contracts are mainly about the rights and responsibilities of using reclaimed water because it is not potable 
and do not mention any price elements. CM Montanari then followed up to confirm that some of the older 
irrigation systems may not be compatible with the soil moisture sensors.  Mr. Palenchar confirmed that a 
digital timer is needed to operate the sensors and older nondigital systems would have to be upgraded.  
 
Committee Chair Figgs-Sanders asked how Harbor Isles was selected as the pilot area for this study.  
Mr. Palenchar answered by saying this area was selected because it is an isolated neighborhood that all 
operates off one water main and not in a looped system. Committee Chair Figgs-Sanders had another 
concern regarding the requirement of 50% plus 1 because so many of the streets in her district are occupied 
by renters and she does not feel like this will ever be an option for some of these neighborhoods. She 
asked if there was any way to incentivize the management company or actual homeowner of a rented 
property to sign up? Mr. Tankersley said its very difficult to incentivize property owners when the tenant 
is the one who will see the savings in their bill. He said he has not been able to figure that out but is open 
for a discussion.  Committee Chair Figgs-Sanders also wanted to know what her messaging should be 
when she speaks to her neighborhoods about reclaimed water.  The metering is tabled for now, will it stay 
that way? Mr. Tankersley said that he firmly believes that the best way to handle conservation usage is 
through metering it just does not make financial sense at this time.  If we were building this system from 
scratch, we would be putting in meters. He also stated that he and his team plan to review this annually to 
consider new technologies and costs. 
 
Council Member Driscoll asked staff if they would like this item to stay on the PS&I referral list or be 
moved back to HERS.  Staff responded that they were happy with either. This was moved onto PS&I due 
to timing concerns.  Committee Chair Figgs-Sanders said that she would ensure that this item was placed 
back on the PS&I referral sheet to await the next staff requested update.  
 
With this final update and no others requesting to be heard Committee Chair Figgs-Sanders  
Adjourned the meeting at 10:30 a.m. 



398 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Budget, Finance, and Taxation 

Committee Meeting Minutes (April 27, 2023) 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-12

CB-12



City of St. Petersburg 
Budget, Finance and Taxation Committee 

April 27, 2023 Meeting Minutes 
City Hall, Room 100 

1 
 

Present: Committee Chair Copley Gerdes, Committee Vice-Chair Deborah Figgs-Sanders, Council 
Member Ed Montanari, Council Member Richie Floyd, and Council Member Lisset Hanewicz 
(Alternate) 
 
Absent: None 
 
Also Present: Assistant City Administrator Tom Greene, Chief Assistant City Attorney Jeannine 
Williams, Senior Procurement Analyst Sakha Reed, City Auditor Boriana Pollard, and Assistant City 
Clerk Patty Beliveau. 
 
Support Staff: Jayne Ohlman – Senior Legislative Aide 
 
1. Call to Order – 10:50 AM 
2. Approval of Agenda – CM Montanari motioned for approval. All voted in favor. 
3. Approval of April 13, 2023 Minutes – CM Figgs-Sanders motioned for approval. All voted in favor. 
4. New Business – April 27, 2023 
 
2023 Management Evaluation: Review and Shortlist RFP Proposals for a Management Evaluation 
of the Planning & Development Services Department – Sakha Reed, Senior Procurement Analyst, 
and Boriana Pollard, City Auditor 
 

On March 7, 2023, at the City Council's request, an RFP was issued for a Management 
Evaluation of the Planning and Development Services Department. City Auditor Boriana Pollard stated 
that in response to the RFP, the City received proposals from the following firms: 65th North Group, 
Matrix Consulting Group, and MGT of America Consulting. Ms. Pollard noted that each proposal 
includes an employee survey priced separately from the base agreement. In addition, Ms. Pollard stated 
that one of the submittals, 65th North Group, did not meet all the solicitation requirements and is 
therefore disqualified.  

Committee Chair Gerdes asked for clarification on the disqualification of the 65th Group. Senior 
Procurement Analyst Sakha Reed explained that the group provided only one resume for one project 
manager; therefore, it could not be determined if they have a substitute project manager. Ms. Reed 
explained that a substitute project manager is required in the event the primary project manager cannot 
perform their duties, which indicates whether a project stays on schedule and meets all required 
deliverables of the contract. 

Committee Vice-Chair Figgs-Sanders and Council Member Montanari inquired why the 65th 
North Group's proposal was included in the committee's backup material if it was determined they did 
not meet the solicitation's minimum requirements. Ms. Reed responded that the Procurement 
Department provides all proposals to the evaluation committee for transparency but will note whether or 
not the submittals meet the solicitation's minimum requirements, as seen in the summary matrix 
spreadsheet. 

CM Montanari stated that Matrix Consulting Group's proposal impressed him and highlighted 
the following factors: experience, project approach, proposed interaction between the City and the 
project team, and the employee survey. CM Montanari noted that Matrix recently completed a business 
process study for Clearwater's Planning and Development Department. In addition, CM Montanari 



2 
 

pointed to the group's prior experience with the City as the consultant for the 2006 management 
evaluation of the St. Petersburg Police Department. Finally, CM Montanari explained that Matrix's 
proposal was professional and thoughtful, and while MGT of America's proposal had impressive 
elements, Matrix's proposal impressed him more.  

CM Figgs-Sanders concurred with CM Montanari's points concerning Matrix's proposal. Council 
Member Floyd agreed that the overall quality of Matrix's proposal was better than the other submittals; 
however, some elements of MGT's proposal, such as their employee survey plan, impressed him more 
than Matrix's. CM Gerdes asked CM Floyd to elaborate on the aspects of MGT's proposal that impressed 
him. CM Floyd responded that MGT's emphasis on analyzing discrimination among race and gender 
through their employee survey was more clearly spelled out than Matrix's proposal. Additionally, CM 
Floyd stated that MGT's proposal appeared more City-specific, while Matrix's proposal appeared more 
high-level. 

CM Gerdes explained that he was impressed with the project team's resumes for both Matrix and 
MGT. However, CM Gerdes expressed his preference for Matrix, as their proposed scope of work and 
stakeholder assessment plan exceeds MGT. CM Gerdes also pointed out that the travel costs submitted 
by MGT, a Tampa-based firm, were higher than Matrix, a California-based firm. Next, CM Gerdes 
noted that he spoke with staff at the City of Clearwater about their experience with Matrix, and the 
feedback received was overwhelmingly positive, specifically Matrix's in-depth recommendations for 
departmental improvements. 

CM Figgs-Sanders noted that both Matrix and MGT's proposals were high-quality but voiced 
support for Matrix, pointing to the cost difference between the two firms.1 

CM Montanari asked what the committee's next steps would be and what options are available if 
the committee requests more information from the shortlisted firms. Assistant City Administrator Tom 
Greene responded that the committee could submit a series of questions to the firms and request that the 
responses be provided before negotiating with the selected firm. Chief Assistant City Attorney Jeannine 
Williams concurred with Mr. Greene and added that the committee could either shortlist the firms today 
or submit questions to the firms and then proceed with shortlisting after responses are provided. 

CM Floyd and CM Figgs-Sanders stated their preference for moving forward with shortlisting, 
stating they have no specific questions to submit. CM Floyd asked if the committee needs to rank the 
firms even if they select a single firm. Ms. Williams responded that ranking is recommended in the 
event negotiations fall through with the first firm; the City can negotiate a contract with the second-
ranked firm. 

CM Montanari made a motion to rank Matrix Consulting Group as number one and MGT of 
America as number two. All members voted in favor. 
 
CM Gerdes adjourned the meeting at 11:24 AM 

 
1 Matrix Consulting’s proposed total cost (including employee survey fixed fee) is $142,000 and MGT’s proposed total cost 
(including employee survey fixed fee) is $169,530. 



402 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Housing, Land Use, and 

Transportation Committee Meeting Minutes (April 13, 2023) 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-13

CB-13



City of St. Petersburg 
Housing, Land Use, & Transportation Committee 

Minutes 
April 13, 2023 – 8:00 AM 

City Hall, Room 100 
 

Members: Chair Richie Floyd, Vice Chair Gina Driscoll, Council Member John 
Muhammad 

 
Alternate: Council Member Copley Gerdes 
 
Also present: Rob Gerdes, City Administrator, Bradley Tennant, Assistant City Attorney, Amy 
Foster, Community and Neighborhood Affairs Administrator.  

 
Support Staff: Bryan Casañas-Scarsella– City Council Legislative Aide 

 
1) Call to Order 

 
2) Approval of Agenda—Council Member Muhammad moved approval; motion passed 

unanimously.  
 

3) Approval of the March, 2023 Minutes—Council Member Gerdes moved approval; 
motion passed unanimously.  

 
4) New Business – April 13, 2023 

a) Three-year update on the City of St. Petersburg’s Housing Plan (Council Chair 
Gabbard)—Amy Foster, Community and Neighborhood Affairs Administrator 
 

Amy Foster, the Community and Neighborhood Affairs Administrator, provided an update 
on demographics and the housing market in St. Petersburg, followed by an update on the 
strategic plan and each housing goal and the progress achieved on those goals; she also 
touched on Mayor Welch’s new expanded strategic plan. Ms. Foster then showcased the 
city’s test page for housing, which lists tenants’ rights and resources, programs to help 
residents stay in their homes, and outlines actions taken by Council regarding zoning, 
permitting and other programs to help with the housing crisis. She explained that she 
expects that 1,050 units will be added to the original goals. 

b) Creation of a regularly updated public-facing dashboard detailing our affordable housing 
status and goals (Committee Chair Floyd)—Amy Foster, Community and Neighborhood 
Affairs Administrator 

 
Concluding her presentation, Ms. Foster provided a preview to the Committee on the new 
affordable housing dashboard that was created and recently launched in partnership with the 
St. Petersburg Downtown Partnership.  
 
Council Member Driscoll then asked about the figures on Slide 16 related to the Namaste 
Development and two different names that appear in the presentation. Ms. Foster replied that 
she believes both names refer to the same development and it is not being counted twice. Rob 
Gerdes, City Administrator, said that building townhomes in an affordable way can be 
challenging and that they are working on the developer with a possible amendment to the 
agreement that will be coming before Council. He also mentioned the Arya development on 



54th Avenue North between First and Fourth Street that will include 125 workforce units, 
mixed with market rate units, remarking that it is the first project that the city did under the 
Economic Stability Loan Program. He also highlighted Lake Maggiore Apartments, with 66 
workforce housing units, which is also under construction. Council Member Driscoll then 
pointed out that that the Lake Maggiore Apartments project is not utilizing city funding but 
the number of affordable units was reduced due to challenges with changing costs. So, she 
asked if perhaps the city could help incentivize builders in similar scenarios to retain the 
original number of affordable units. Mr. Gerdes said that the city made an effort with that 
development, and they did not qualify for Penny for Pinellas funding from the County due to 
there not being 30 percent of the units designated as affordable and that an offer was made by 
the city but they ultimately chose to not take it. Council Member Driscoll then remarked on 
elevating and expanding the N-Team and other programs to help residents remain in their 
homes.  
 
Council Member Muhammad commented that the demolition numbers in the presentation 
seemed low and Mr. Gerdes said that the numbers shown were averages. Council Member  
Muhammad then asked what challenges builders are having to bring projects to completion 
under the lot disposition program. Ms. Foster explained that nonprofits were given priority at 
first but later that changed because they were struggling with funding. She also replied that 
some of the lots are in the program because they are challenging in and of themselves, such 
as being in a flood zone or being a unique size. Mr. Gerdes then mentioned some design 
changes for certified affordable housing that were made by Council. Council Member 
Muhammad then asked about challenges hiring maintenance workers. Mr. Gerdes said he is 
open to solutions but he has had a hard time identifying a single solution to solve the 
problem; he went on to explain that they have started having job fairs and they have placed 
individuals within departments responsible for hiring, as well as doing outreach, contracting 
with a new labor firm, banning the box, and raising the minimum pay. He went on to say that 
they are starting to turn a corner on the hiring issues and are seeing more success. He 
emphasized that it is a nationwide issue and they are open to any suggestions. Council 
Member Muhammad then asked about maintaining the city’s housing page and the St. 
Petersburg Downtown Partnership’s affordable housing website and Ms. Foster said she did 
not foresee any issues with that. Council Member Muhammad then asked about how needs 
are considered when it comes to goal setting. Ms. Foster replied that though the goals could 
be set higher, they would be unreachable tangibly speaking without increases in federal and 
state funding sources, as well.  
 
Council Member Gerdes pointed out that he hopes the NTM-1 change will help with 
increasing the number of three- and four-unit multifamily units.  
 
Chair Floyd expressed concern with the goals and said he would like to them to better reflect 
the housing need that exists. He also expressed concern with some statements in the St. 
Petersburg Downtown Partnership’s affordable housing dashboard.  

 
 

       The meeting adjourned at 9:16PM.  

 
 

 
 
 

 


	5/18/23 Council Meeting
	Council Meeting
	Meeting Called to Order and Roll Call.
	Approval of Agenda with Additions and Deletions.
	Consent Agenda (see attached)
	Awards and Presentations
	Reports
	A Resolution of the City of St. Petersburg, Florida (City) approving an Interlocal Agreement between the City and Manatee County Port Authority (Authority) regarding collaboration on dredge material placement and seagrass mitigation efforts; authorizing the City Attorneys Office to make non-substantive changes to the Interlocal Agreement; authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute the Interlocal Agreement; and providing an effective date.
	E-1.docx (1 page)
	Manatee County - Interlocal Agreement - Final.pdf (25 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25


	A Resolution authorizing the Mayor or his designee to accept a Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Award from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), through the pass-through entity, the Florida Division of Emergency Management, at a maximum reimbursement amount of $443,650; approving a supplemental appropriation in the amount of $443,650 from the increase in the unappropriated balance of the Water Resources Capital Projects Fund (4003), resulting from this grant funding, to the COS Consol Building FY19 Project (16887); authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute all documents necessary to effectuate the grant; and providing an effective date.
	E-2.docx (1 page)
	Cosme Grant Memo - Signed.pdf (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2

	Cosme Grant Resolution - Signed.pdf (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2

	Federally-Funded Subaward and Grant Agreement.pdf (63 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45
	Page 46
	Page 47
	Page 48
	Page 49
	Page 50
	Page 51
	Page 52
	Page 53
	Page 54
	Page 55
	Page 56
	Page 57
	Page 58
	Page 59
	Page 60
	Page 61
	Page 62
	Page 63



	New Business
	Respectfully requesting a referral to the Budget, Finance, and Taxation Committee to discuss pre-funding during FY 23, a portion of the FY 24 Pension Fund contribution. (Councilmember Gerdes- Staff Request)
	F-1.docx (1 page)
	2023-05-18 CG - BFT Pre-Funding Pension Fund Staff Request.pdf (1 page)

	Respectfully requesting a referral to the Legislative Affairs and Intergovernmental Relations Committee for a discussion on the impact of Senate Bill 250 on current city ordinances and ordinances that are in the process at the time of passage. (Chair Gabbard)
	F-2.docx (1 page)
	2023-05-18 BG - Referral to LAIR Impact of SB 250.pdf (4 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4


	Respectfully requesting a referral to the Public Services & Infrastructure Committee to discuss the enforcement of driving without a license and potential diversion options. (Councilmember Floyd)
	F-3.docx (1 page)
	2023-05-18 RF - Referral to PSI Driving Enforcement.pdf (1 page)


	Council Committee Reports
	April 27, 2023 Youth & Family Services Committee - Action Item
	G-1.docx (1 page)
	2023-04-27 YFS Action Item.pdf (1 page)
	Eviction Resolution v5 FINAL.pdf (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2



	Legal
	A resolution approving the settlement of the lawsuit of William Hubbard, Employee/Claimant vs. City of St. Petersburg, Employer and Commercial Risk Management, Carrier/Servicing Agent, Claim No. C3690446 and providing an effective date.
	H-1.docx (1 page)
	Resolution (William Hubbard) v2.pdf (1 page)

	A resolution approving settlement of the lawsuit of Annette Carroll v. City of St. Petersburg, Florida, Circuit Court for Pinellas County, Florida, Case No. 21-004365-CI, and providing an effective date.
	H-2.docx (1 page)
	00679120.pdf (1 page)


	Public Hearings and Quasi-Judicial Proceedings - 5:01 P.M.
	Public Hearings
	Confirming Preliminary Assessment for Building Securing Number LCA 1645
	I-1.docx (1 page)
	Chan Memo.pdf (1 page)
	Council LCA 1645.pdf (5 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5


	Confirming Preliminary Assessment for Building Securing Number SEC 1282
	I-2.docx (1 page)
	Chan Memo.pdf (1 page)
	Council Sec 1282.pdf (5 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5


	LDR 2022-06: A private-initiated application requesting a text amendment to the Land Development Regulations: Ordinance 545-H, an Ordinance of the City of St. Petersburg, Florida amending its Land Development Regulations; Amending Section 16.30.020.4 of the City Code relating to the Adaptive Reuse of Historic Buildings Overlay; and providing an effective date. (Legislative)
	I-3.docx (1 page)
	City File LDR 2022-06 PH ada final.pdf (25 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25



	Quasi-Judicial Proceedings
	Ordinance 133-HL approving the owner-initiated designation of the Standard Oil Service Station, located at 2439 4th Street South, as a Local Historic Landmark of the St. Petersburg Register of Historic Places (City File 22-90300002). [Quasi-judicial]
	I-4.docx (1 page)
	City File 22-90300002 PH adac v. final.pdf (60 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45
	Page 46
	Page 47
	Page 48
	Page 49
	Page 50
	Page 51
	Page 52
	Page 53
	Page 54
	Page 55
	Page 56
	Page 57
	Page 58
	Page 59
	Page 60


	A private initiated application for a 1.66-acre site, which consists of the entire eastern facing block of 14th Street North between 7th and 5th Avenues North, just west of St. Anthonys Hospital, requesting amendments to the Future Land Use and Official Zoning maps. (Quasi-judicial)
	I-5.docx (1 page)
	City File FLUM-66 PH ada rev. final.pdf (48 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45
	Page 46
	Page 47
	Page 48




	Open Forum
	Adjournment

	Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA)
	Consent Agenda A
	(Procurement)
	Approving the renewal of a one-year blanket purchase agreement and an increase in allocation with SP Plus Corporation, for shuttle bus services, for the Municipal Pier District, at an estimated annual cost of $950,000 per year, for a total contract amount of $1,963,000.
	CA-1.docx (1 page)
	Pier Shuttle Bus.pdf (4 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4


	Approving the renewal of a one-year blanket purchase agreement and an increase in allocation with Blue Crew Services, Inc., for cleaning and maintenance services, for the Municipal Pier District, at an estimated annual cost of $878,000 per year, for a total contract amount of $1,756,000.
	CA-2.docx (1 page)
	Pier Cleaning Svcs.pdf (3 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3


	Approving the renewal of a one-year blanket purchase agreement and an increase in allocation with Covenant Security Solutions LLC, for security services, for the Municipal Pier District, at an estimated annual cost of $650,000 per year, for a total contract amount of $1,300,000.
	CA-3.docx (1 page)
	Pier Security.pdf (4 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4


	Approving a one-year blanket purchase agreement with Bank of America, N.A. for merchant credit card merchant processing and related services, including Automated Clearing House (“ACH”) transaction processing and account verification, and requesting a waiver of Procurement Code Section 2-209(b) pursuant to Procurement Code 2-222, to effectuate a one-year agreement at an estimated annual cost of $1,000,000.
	CA-4.docx (1 page)
	Payment Processing.pdf (5 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5


	Approving a contract with Ric-Man Construction Florida, Inc. for progressive design build services for the Downtown Watermain Replacement Program; authorizing the Mayor, or his designee, to execute an agreement with Ric-Man Construction Florida, Inc. for pre-construction services in the amount of $876,078.89 (ECID Project No. 21058-111; Oracle No. 18011); and providing an effective date.
	CA-5.docx (1 page)
	Downtown Water Main.pdf (7 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7



	(City Development)
	(Leisure Services)
	Approving a resolution authorizing the Mayor or his designee to accept additional funding in the amount of  $644,220 from the Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas, Inc. (ELC), which will be utilized to enhance programs provided by the Parks and Recreation Department; authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute all documents necessary to receive this additions funding from ELC; approving a supplemental appropriation in the amount of $644,220 from the increase in the unappropriated balance of the General Fund (0001), resulting from these additional funds, to the Parks and Recreation Department, Administration Division (190-1573), FY23 ELC Stabilization Grant Project (19572); and providing an effective date.
	CA-6.docx (1 page)
	ELC FY23 Stabilization Grant Project consent agenda with MJ signature.docx (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2

	00678027 ELC Signed.pdf (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2



	(Public Works)
	(Appointments)
	(Miscellaneous)
	A resolution approving an Amendment (“Plan Amendment”) to the City’s Local Housing Assistance Plan under the State Housing Initiatives Partnership (“SHIP”) Program for FY 2021-2024 (“Current Plan”); authorizing the Mayor or his designee to accept a grant of $2,497,889 from the Florida Housing Finance Corporation (“FHFC”) for FY 2022/23 to fund the State Housing Initiatives Partnership (“SHIP”) Program for the purpose of providing affordable housing opportunities for extremely-low, very-low, low-, moderate-, and 140% (purchase assistance program only) income persons; and to expend funds in accordance with the current Plan, as amended, upon approval by FHFC; finding that five percent (5%) of the City’s SHIP allocation plus five (5%) percent of Program Income is insufficient to pay the administrative costs of the City’s SHIP Program; authorizing the use of up to ten percent (10%) of the City’s SHIP allocation plus ten (10%) of the City’s SHIP Program Income for administrative costs of the SHIP Program; authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute the grant requirements with the FHFC as necessary to effectuate this transaction; and providing an effective date.
	CA-7.docx (1 page)
	council packet 5-18-23 Mtg.pdf (4 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4




	Consent Agenda B
	(Procurement)
	Approving an increase in allocation for the 4th of July fireworks display with Pyro Productions of Alabama, Inc., in the amount of $50,000, for a total contract amount of $271,250.
	CB-1.docx (1 page)
	Fireworks.pdf (3 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3


	Accepting a bid from Insight Public Sector, Inc. for Trend Micro support for 3,200 users and a deep discovery inspector appliance, for the Department of Technology Services at a total cost of $78,176.10. 
	CB-2.docx (1 page)
	Trend Micro.pdf (3 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3


	Accepting a proposal from Thompson Consulting Services LLC. for disaster related reimbursement assistance.
	CB-3.docx (1 page)
	Disaster Reimbursement.pdf (6 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6



	(City Development)
	A resolution approving an agreement between the City of St. Petersburg, Florida (City) and Pinellas County, Florida for the City to purchase, install, and maintain parking meters for the Judicial County Building parking lot located on the northeast corner of the intersection of 1st Avenue North and 6th Street North at an initial cost not to exceed $17,000 and an estimated annual revenue to the City of $12,250 after the initial cost has been recouped; authorizing the City Attorney’s office to make non-substantive changes to the agreement; authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute the Agreement and all other necessary documents; and providing an effective date.
	CB-4.docx (1 page)
	May 18 - Parking Meter council item - FINAL - ADA.pdf (9 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9


	Authorizing the Mayor, or his designee, to execute a License Agreement with the Police Athletic League of St. Petersburg, Inc., a Florida not-for-profit corporation, for the use of the Main Building located at 1450 - 16th Street North, St. Petersburg, within a portion of the City-owned Woodlawn Park for a period of three (3) years at an aggregate rent of $36.00; waiving the reserve for replacement requirement of City Council Resolution No. 79-740A; and providing an effective date. (Requires affirmative vote of at least six (6) members of City Council.)
	CB-5.docx (1 page)
	May 18 - CM 230518 - 1 RE Police Athletic League (2023-2026) L-3720 00677717 MJ AF JC.pdf (5 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5



	(Leisure Services)
	(Public Works)
	A Resolution approving the five-year interlocal agreement (“Interlocal Agreement”) between the City of St. Petersburg (“City”) and Pinellas County (“County”) to provide for the reimbursement of costs for occasional modifications to the Recreational Water Quality Map on the Pinellas County Water Atlas website in an amount not to exceed $10,000; authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute the Interlocal Agreement and all other documents necessary to effectuate this transaction; authorizing the City Attorney’s Office to make non-substantive changes to the Interlocal Agreement; and providing an effective date.
	CB-6.docx (1 page)
	Water Atlas Interlocal Memo - Signed.pdf (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2

	Water Atlas Interlocal Resolution - Signed.pdf (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2

	Water Atlas Interlocal Agreement - Final.pdf (5 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5



	(Appointments)
	A resolution appointing HanH H. Tran and Christa Bruning as regular members to the Code Enforcement Board; and providing an effective date.
	CB-8.docx (1 page)
	Code Enforcement Board Appointments wothout Resumes May 18 2023 (002).pdf (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2



	(Miscellaneous)
	Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes (March 30, 2023)
	CB-9.docx (1 page)
	2023-03-30 COW Minutes.pdf (4 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4


	Approving a supplemental appropriation in the amount of $87,500 from the unappropriated balance of the General Capital Improvement Fund (3001) to the Marine Team Dive Equipment Project (19624) for replacement dive equipment for the Fire Rescue Department.
	CB-10.docx (1 page)
	Dive Equipment Council Backup.pdf (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2


	Public Services & Infrastructure Committee Meeting Minutes (April 13, 2023)
	CB-11.docx (1 page)
	2023-04-13 PSI Committee Minutes.pdf (3 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3


	Budget, Finance, and Taxation Committee Meeting Minutes (April 27, 2023)
	CB-12.docx (1 page)
	2023-04-27 BFT Minutes.pdf (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2


	Housing, Land Use, and Transportation Committee Meeting Minutes (April 13, 2023)
	CB-13.docx (1 page)
	2023-04-13 HLUT Minutes.pdf (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2




	MEETING AGENDA
	Economic & Workforce Development Committee
	Budget, Finance & Taxation Committee
	CRA/Agenda Review
	Committee of the Whole
	Joint Committee of the Whole/ Citizens Advisory Committee
	City Council Meeting

	Board and Commission Vacancies

	Blank Page
	Blank Page



